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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

House or CoMMONS,
Monday, 2nd February, 1948.

Resolved: That the following Members do compose the Standing Committee
on Banking and Commerce: Messieurs Abbott, Argue, Arsenault, Beaudry,
Belzile, Benidickson, Black (Cumberland), Blackmore, Bradette, Breithaupt
Cleaver, Cote (St. Johns-Ilberville-Napierville), Dechene, Dionne (Beauce),
Dorion, Fleming, Fournier (Maisonneuve-Rosemont), Fraser, Fulton, Gour,
Hackett, Harkness, Harris (Danforth), Hazen, Ilsley, Irvine, Isnor, Jackman,
Jaenicke, Jutras, Lesage, Low, Macdonnell (Muskoka-Ontario), MacNaught,
Manross, Marquis, Maybank, Mayhew, Michaud, Nixon, Picard, Pinard, Quelch,
Rinfret, Ross (Souris), Stewart (Winnipeg North), Smith (York North),
Thatcher, Timmins, Tucker—50. (Quorum 15).

Ordered: That the Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce be
empowered to examine and inquire into all such matters and things as may be
referred to them by the House; and to report from time to time their observa-
“tions and opinions thereon, with power to send for persons, papers and records.

TuurspAY, March 11, 1948

Ordered,_—That the said Committee be empowered to print, from day to
day, 500 copies in English and 200 copies in French of its minutes of proceedings
and evidence, and that Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

Ordered,—That the quorum of the said Committee be reduced from 15 to
10 members and that Section 1 (d) of Standing Order 63 be suspended in
relation thereto. :

_ Ordered,—That the said Committee be granted leave to sit while the House
18 sitting.

Fripay, March 12, 1948.

Ordered,—That the subject-matter of the General Agreement on Tariffs and
Trade, including the Protocol of Provisional Application thereof, together with
the complementary agreement of October 30, 1947, between Canada and the
United States of America, be referred to the said Committee.

Attest.

J ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
/ Clerk of the House.
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‘and 200 copies in French of its minutes of proceedings and evidence, and that
- Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

- STANDING C
, il , : HousE oF COMMON;, bl o8
el . ¢ - THUrspAY, March 11, 1948,
The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce begs leave to present
the following as a &

FirsT REPORT £

Your Committee recommends:
1. That it be empowered to print, from day to day, 500 copies in Engllsh )

2. That its quorum be reduced from 15 to 10 members and that Section
1 (d) of Standing Order 63 be suspended in relation thereto.

3. That it be granted leave to sit while the House is sitting.
All of which is respectfully submltted

HUGHES CLEAVER,
Chairman.

(Note: The above report was adopted by the House on the same day 1t
was presented.)

SecoNnp REPORT

The Second Report to the House, presented on Thursday, March 11, 1948,
deals with Private Bills referred to it under Order of Reference dated Frlday,
March 5, 1948, and considered by the Committee.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or ComMmoNs, Room 497,
TrURsPAY, March 11, 1948

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce met this day at
11 o'clock am. Mr. H. Cleaver, Chairman, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Argue, Belzile, Benidickson, Cleaver; Dechene,
Gour (Russell), Hazen, Isnor, Jackman, Jaenicke, Jutras, Low, Macdonnell,
(Muskoka- Ontano) Marquls Mlchaud Pmard Rmfret Ross (Sourts), Smith
(York North), Thatcher Timmins.

In attendance: Mr. R. W, Warwick, Superintendent, and Mr. K R. Mac-
Gregor, Chief Actuary, of the Department of Insurance, Ottawa, Ontario;
Mr. D. K. McTavish, K.C.,, and Mr. D. A. Mecllraith, K.C., Ottawa, Ont.;
Mr. H. Gerin-Lajoie, K.C., and Mr. P. P. Hutchison, K.C., of Montreal, P.Q.;
Mr. H. 1. Price, and Mr. Joseph Miller, of Toronto, Ont.; Mr. C. N. Bissett
and Mr. A. G. B. Milborne, of Montreal, Que.; Mr. David Croll, M.P.

On motion of Mr. Pinard: ,
Resolved,—That the Committee ask leave to sit while the House is sitting.

On motion of Mr. Isnor:

Resolved,— That the Committee recommend that its quorum be reduced
from 15 to 10 members.

On motion of Mr. Marquis:

Resolved,—That the Committee recommend that it be authorized to print

from day to day, 500 copies in English and 200 copies in French, of its Minutes
of Proceedings and Evidence.

(The Committee considered four private bills.)

The Chairman proposed and the members of the Committee unanimously
agreed that the Clerk of the Committee be instructed to write to Mr. G. D. Fin-
layson, former Superintendent of Insurance, to express to the latter the Com-
mittee's appreciation of the valuable services rendered to the Committee by
Mr. Finlayson during his tenure of office. The Committee also offered their
congratulations to Mr. R. W. Warwick on his appointment as Superintendent
of Insurance to succeed Mr. Finlayson who has retired.

At 12.15 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned-to meet again at the call
of the Chair,

&




House or Commons, Room 429, :
THURsDAY, March 18, 1948.

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce met this day at
8.15 o’clock p.m. Mr. Hughes Cleaver, Chairman, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Argue, Belzile, Benedickson, Blackmore, Cleaver,
Dechéne, Dionne (Beauce), Dorion, Fleming, Fraser, Fulton, Harris (Danforth),
Hazen, Isnor, Jaenicke, Jutras, Lesage, Low, MacNaught, Marquis, Michaud,
Pinard, Rinfret, Timmins. 2 )

In attendance: Mr. H. B. MeKinnon, Chairman of the Tariff Board;
Mr. J. J. Deutseh, Director of Economic Relations Division, Department of
Finance; Mr. Hubert R. Kemp, Director of Commercial Relations Division,
Department of Trade and Commerce.

The Order of Reference of Friday, March 12, 1948 was read by the
Chairman. :
A discussion took place in connection with the procedure to be followed

and it was finally agreed that the officials in attendance should address the
Committee briefly on the subject-matter referred to it.

Mr. McKinnon, Mr. Deutsch and Mr. Kemp were therefore heard.

On motion of Mr. Marquis:

Resolved,—That a Steering Subcommittee be appointed which shall be
composed of the Chairman, three Liberal members, two Progressive-Conservative
members, one C.C.F. member and one Social Credit member, the names to be
submitted to the Chairman sometime to-morrow.

At 9.15 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to meet again at the call
of the Chair.

ANTOINE CHASSE,
Clerk of the Committee.




MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

HouseE or COMMONS,
March 18, 1948.

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce met this day at
8.15 pm. The Chairman, Mr. Hughes Cleaver, presided.

The CHAIRMAN: As you know our reference is The Geneva Trade Agree-
ments. I would suggest that we have a general statement by Mr. Hector
McKinnon, and that we then have a general discussion as to just how far
the committee would like to go in regard to going into the details. I would
ask the committee to appoint a steering committee. I anticipate as a result
of pressure of work between now and Easter adjournment this will be the
only meeting of the committee before then. Immediately after the Easter
adjournment we should take up the subject just as promptly and as continuously
as possible. g

Mr. Hargis: Just before you ask our friend, Mr. McKinnon, to give his
observations I should like to make one or two comments with regard to the
conduct of your committee. First I think you as chairman should take this
committee into your confidence and tell us how you propose to proceed. Secondly
you are charged with this responsibility and you should tell your committee
how many of the other countries interested have made substantial progress in
putting these agreements into effect. Take the major countries first and tell
us how far along the United States, for example, have proceeded with their
work, and then in due course the other countries.

I am of the opinion that to throw witnesses, in whom we have the utmost
confidence, into this committee, without having a general direction as to how
your committee is going to function, and what the objective of your committee
is as far as time and agenda and reporting back is concerned, is something
that should not be done. We should have that general basis first.

I think that these witnesses, whom you have probably summoned of your
own accord, will find themselves in a position which is more or less duplicating
certain work they have already been asked to do in another place. I think
your committee should be seized with the economy of things. I do not know
why, when there are three volumes of evidence printed elsewhere on the same
subject matter, that we should ask these witnesses to again lose their time and
travel over the same material probably that has been gone over in another
place. I think we should iron out among ourselves first the minimum of
. evidence we are going to ask for so as to be careful not to duplicate what has

transpired, and having as an objective the objective which the chairman and
the government probably have in their mind before we go on with a lot of
elaborate details which will not bring us to our final objective in what I would
suggest to you, sir, might be a more orderly way. I should like to hear from

the chairman first as to what he wants us to do before going on with the
witnesses. -

_ The CuammaN: Is there any other member of the committee who would
like to speak at this time?

Mr. Brackmore: Mr. Chairman, I am not sure I gather completely the
purport of the remarks of the honourable member, but my opinion would be
rather at variance with his. I should like to see this committee go into this

7




8 ' STANDING COMMITTEE

matter with the utmost care. It does not matter very much to me how many
times it has been gone over by other people. I am not sure that the House
01; Commons needs to concern itself a great deal with evidence taken in another
place.

dl:lr. Lesace: Is it the rule we have to rise every time we want to say a
word?
~ The CuatRMAN: It has been the practice in this committee, but I am entirely
in the hands of the committee. I think perhaps it leads to' a more orderly
- procedure.

Mr. MacNavcHT: I think that the point raised by Mr. Harris can be very
well disposed of if you have a steering committee. I think it is hardly fair to
put the question to you today without having a steering committee to help
you make that decision. I mean as to how we will proceed. I think if we
have that steering committee it will satisfy Mr. Harris’ demands.

Mr. Freming: May I say a word in support of the statement made by
Mr. MacNaught. Of course, we are all concerned about the matter of time.
I do not know how many of us—certainly I am not one of them—came here
tonight expecting there was going to be a formal sitting of the committee. I
fqr one had assumed the committee would follow the usual practice of com-
mittees, and _the practice followed by this comittee in other sessions, of having
an organization meeting which would really do little more than appoint a
steering committee. The steering committee would survey the task to be done,
the witnesses to be called, and the sittings to be arranged. The steering com-
mittee, having conferred on that, would then report to the main committee and
arrangements would then be made to proceed.

The departure tonight is in this respect, as I see it, that before a steering
committee has been appointed and has done that ground work we have been
summoned and are asked to go right into this question tonight and to hear
witnesses, witnesses for whom I do not suppose we are prepared. For my part
I had no intimation at all these witnesses were going to be called tonight.
If T had had there is certain preparation I should have liked to have made,
the kind of preparation that will in the end expedite the proceedings.

Therefore my suggestion is that tonight we should appoint the steering
committee. The steering committee should then go to work to map out the
task before us, and the kind of sittings we should have and the order in which
we propose to call the witnesses. I think beyond that it is not fair to ask
the committee to go at this particular stage. If you say, “Well, we are all
here. Why do we not sit here for an hour or so”, I think the answer to that
one is that I do not think you will save time in the long run by doing that
because many have come unprepared. The second thing is there is an important
debate downstairs, and in the third place apparently we are to have only one
meeting before Easter, and we will probably just cover the same ground at
the next meeting as we will spend time on covering tonight. I do not say any-
thing I have said in criticism of what has been done but I hope in the expecta-
tion it will save your time in the long Tun and contribute to more orderly
treatment of our task.

Mr. Jaenicke: I agree with what has been said but as to Mr. McKinnon
speaking to us tonight, if we are not going to meet again until after Easter,
it might be well to have a short statement from him. We do not have to
cross-examine him. It is not a question of cross-examining him at all. I
should like to know what it is all about. I have read the treaty, and I would
have a lot of questions to ask. I do not know whether that question would
have to be asked of Mr. McKinnon but we will find that out as we proceed.
I think a short statement by Mr. McKinnon without any examination or cross-
examination would be of help to us in the way of allowing us to prepare
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* ourselves during the Easter recess. Of course we should also attend to the
other matter referred to by Mr. Fleming, that is that a steering committee
should be appointed.. I do think however that we should have a short state-
ment from Mr. McKinnon, who will no doubt be called back again for the
purpose of answering more questions. ; :

Mr. Magrquis: If I may say a word, I entirely agree with Mr. Jaenicke. I
think the witness is supposed to submit a brief to the members of the committee
and I would like to have the brief. We could look at it during the recess. I am
not sure, however, whether there is a brief or whether it is only a statement.

" Mr. Lesace: Well, it will be printed in the record anyway.

Mr. Hazen: I would like to know the terms of reference of this committee
if there are such. In other words I would like to know what this committee has
to do. I rather agree with Mr. Harris that we should know what the committee’s
duties are and I do not see how the steering committee can go ahead unless its
members also know those duties. I think the members of the full committee
should know the situation as, well, and I agree with Mr. Jaenicke and the
other gentlemen who said we should hear Mr. McKinnon tenight. I would say
again that T would just like to know what our duties are.

Mr. Timmins: The point raised by Mr. Harris had to do with what was
being done in other countries. Now from press releases which I have seen I
think that in the United States this matter of the Geneva Treaties is more or
less a dead issue until after the presidential election. I may be wrong in that
and I think, if Mr. McKinnon were to speak tonight, it would have a consider-
able difference on how fast we move.. We should know whether we are racing
against time or whether, as a matter of fact, the United States is not going
to deal with those treaties until well on in 1948.

Mr.: Furron: Before we go any further, would the chairman please do me
the favour of telling me what we are supposed to be talking about. The chairman
asked if there were any other members of the committee who wanted to speak
and I imagine there are a lot of us who could say something which would be of
assistance if we knew what we were discussing.

The CHAmRMAN: As the members of the committee know the resolution
which appeared under the name of the Prime Minister is as follows:—

That it is expedient that Parliament do approve the General Agree-
ment on Tariffs and Trade, including the Protocol of Provisional Applica-
tion thereof, annexed to the Final Act of the Second Session of the
Preparatory Committee of the United Nations Conference on Trade and
Employment held at Geneva from April 10 to October 30, 1947, together
with the complementary agreement of October 30, 1947, between Canada
and the United States of America; that the House do approve the same,

silbject to the legislation required in order to give effect to the provisions
thereof.

_ That is the wording of the resolution which appeared on the order paper
in the name of the Prime Minister.

Our order of reference is dated Friday, March 12, 1948:—
That the subject-matter of the General Agreement on Tariffs and
Trade, including the Protocol of Provisional Application thereof, together

with the complementary agreement of October 30, 1947, between Canada

and the United States of America, be referred to the Banking and
Commerce Committee.

That is our order of reference.
Mr. Fraser: Mr. Chairman, are we not allowed to change anything?




STANDING COMMITTEE

The Cramrmax: 1f T may say a word I will just deal with the points which
have been raised and then if there is any further discussion, I am entirely in
the hands of the committee of course. Reading the order of reference and
hearing. what was said I felt that the members of this committee would come
here exactly as I find they are here, with some doubts and with considerable
lack of knowledge as to what our reference is all about. On that account I
thought it would be well if the committee were to have a general statement from
Mr. Hector McKinnon and that the committee should reserve any questions
or any discussion on that statement and we would stop there. Having had a
general resume or a bird’s-eye view of our task, we would appoint a steering
cimmittee which T would suggest be of the usual size, that is three members
from the government side, two from the Progressive Conservatives, and one
from each of the other parties. The steering committee would then meet and
would decide just what order we should adopt in taking this matter up, what
witnesses should be called, and to what extent we should go into detail on the
individual tariff items. 1 felt that a report from the steering committee to the
general committee would be helpful in that regard. Now as to the other questions
asked by Mr. Harris, namely the position of those agreements in respect to other
countries, that information would of course also be obtained and made available
to the committee. In regard to Mr. Harris’ comments that the Senate had
already heard some of the evidence and that evidence is printed and available
to us, I do think—and I hope that Mr. Harris will reconsider his view in that
regard—the matter is of such importance that this committtee should not be
content to go on the work of some other body and that the members of this
committee will want to hear witnesses themselves. That is where I stand, but
I am entirely in your hands.

Mr. FLeminGg: May I ask a question? How long is it expected that Mr.

McKinnon’s statement will take, if there are to be no questions asked?

The CrAarMAN: Not over half an hour.

Mr. McKinvon: I think the members of this committee who have known
me around Ottawa for the last quarter of a century would be the first to realize
I am not likely to come here with a prepared statement. I am not the type of
civil servant who thinks it his duty or his privilege to appear as an advocate
of any particular type of legislation. I came specifically to answer questions
and our small group, Mr. Deutsch, Mr. Kemp and myself, who were charged
with the responsibility of negotiating the agreements at Geneva, rather welcomed,
sir, the idea of a committee of this type as compared with the formal proceed-
ings in the committee of ways and means through which we have gone in other
years. It is an advantage that the members of the committee can ask questions
directly from the official concerned and receive a direct reply. 1 certainly have
no prepared statement of any kind, sir. I come in the character of a witness
in court who is supposed to answer questions. If it would help the committee,
and if it would not delay its work, I am quite willing to give a brief sketch of
the inception of the whole idea of-multi-lateral trade agreements, the various
stages through which they passed, what was done at the different conferences,
what was finally effected at Geneva, and which is now brought home for rati-
fication or rejection by parliament in its wisdom. I am quite prepared to do
anything the committee wishes me to do.

The CrARMAN: Would it be satisfactory to have a general statement, then?

Mr. Freming: If Mr. McKinnon's statement is going to be brief then we
would probably take more time talking about whether he should give it than
we would in hearing it. May I suggest we hear this brief and interrupted state-
ment of Mr. McKinnon, then appoint a steering committee, and then adjourn.
We will not have questions or discussions on the statement.

Mr. McKin~on: I will attempt to be as brief as the committee wishes.

Mr. CuaairMaN: Do not hurry.
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Mr, McKixnox: I think all the members of the committee will recall that
the first suggestion that was made in connection with multi-lateral trade agree-
ments among as many nations as could see their way clear to entering into such
agreements, came about very early in the war. It was referred to, if I remember
correctly, in very general terms in the Atlantic Charter. It was referred to again
in connection with the lend lease agreements. It was referred to again in con-
nection with the negotiations between the United Kingdom and the United States
in connection with the British loan.

~ ‘At least three or four years ago, proposals which were called proposals, were
put out under the aegis of the United States and the United Kingdom. These,
at the time, were published in Canada. My recollection, Mr. Deutsch, is that
they were tabled in the House and the Prime Minister made a brief statement
about them, merely remarking that he thought they represented something in
which Canada would have a very real and genuine interest arising out of her
great prominence as a world trader, her tremendous export trade and her general
desire to see anything done in that respect which might lead to a reduction of
tariff barriers and the elimination of discriminatory practices of one kind and
another,

A number of rather informal conferences were held in 1943, in 1944 and
1945. Each one of us attended some or all of these conferences which were in
Washington and in London. At that point, the idea was taken over by the
United Nations and, under the aegis of the United Nations, was advanced another
step.

The first session of what was called the Preparatory Committee for Inter-
national Trade Conferences was summoned in London in February of 1946. We
attended that. At that conference, in addition to the rather general proposals,
as they were called, we were presented with what was called a draft charter for
an international trade organization. This draft charter was the work of the
United States government, on the executive side. It was purely on the official
level, but the United States did go ahead in an effort to get something on paper
which could be discussed.

We spent a couple of months in the fall of 1946 at that first conference, Mr.
Chairman, attempting to hammer out a rough draft, at least, of an international
trade charter. That was, in turn, referred in 1947 to what was called the second
sitting or session of the preparatory committee. It was convened in Geneva in
the first week of April, 1947. Again, we were on the delegation which represented
Canada. There were 23 nations represented as participants in the Geneva dis-
cussions and a number of other countries were represented through observers
who were free to attend most of the meetings, but did not take actual part in the
negotiations.

The negotiations at Geneva, which lasted for about eight months, fell into
two quite separate but related divisions. The first section had to do with the
charter which is, in short, an attempt to make a code of international conduct in
respect to trade and commerce. The second part of the work of the committee
had to do with the actual negotiating of tariff arrangements among the various
nations represented at Geneva. Mr. Deutsch, who is sitting on my right, from
the Department of Finance, was primarily responsible for the Canadian partici-
pation with regard to the general code, now called the charter. Largely because
of my years of experience rather than anything else, I was regarded as the one
in charge of the tariff negotiations.

Mr. Deutsch will speak at any length the committee wishes later, sir, with
regard to what happened the charter. He will, I am sure, make as clear as
possible how it developed and will then go on to explain what is now being done
in connection with the charter at the world trade conference, itself, which is at
present in session in Havana, Cuba.

As regards my side of it, the tariff negotiations, out of the 23 nations
represented at Geneva -we carried on negotiations with 16. We successfully
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concluded negotiations with 16. However, only eight of those nations at Geneva
signed what is called the Protocol of Provisional Application which, in simple
words, was simply an undertaking by the governments of those eight eountries
to bring the actual tariff changes, provisionally and temporarily into effect on
the first of January last. In all cases, the agreement itself, including the
schedules, will have to be dealt with by the proper legislative authorities of the
countries concerned. In our case, it has to be ratified by parliament, but the
actual tariff changes were brought into effect provisionally on the first of January
and are now in effect. In connection with the point raised by Mr. Harris, I might
say that is also the situation in the United States. All the reductions were
brought into effect on the first of January. It is also the case in the United
Kingdom. It is the case’in respect of the three Benelux countries, France,
Belgium and Luxembourg. |

An Hon. MeEmBER: The Netherlands.

Mr. McKinnox: I beg your pardon, the Netherlands.  Other countries
that did not sign the protocol of provisional application have until June of 1948,
that is June of this year, to sign the protocol bringing the provisions into effect.
In many cases it was not that there was any unwillingness or reluctancé on the
part of any country to bring them into provisional effect but rather, in many
countries, their constitutional practice does not permit bringing them into effect
by executive action as it did in our case and that of the United States and Great
Britain. For instance, I think Norway is a good illustration. They cannot bring
them into effect at all until their parliament meets and ratifies the agreement.

I seem now to have reached a point, Mr. Chairman, where there is not
much more to be said by way of general remarks because we have now before us
the charter, the trade agreement itself, which is simply an abridged edition of the
charter. The idea at Geneva in bringing out an agreement, as distinct from the-
charter, was that all the nations represented there knew that the charter had to
run the gamut of a very large conference in Havana at which there are nearly 60
nations instead of the 23 who were at Geneva. Therefore, in order to get on
with the job and make it possible to bring somte of the tariff changes into effect
provisionally, the nations at Geneva agreed upon the abridged edition of the
formal charter. It is called a trade agreement and it is included, here, in the
document called the Final Act, to which all the tariff changes are merely a
schedule, ;

Mr. Chairman, I think at this point, unless you wish me to go on—we could
talk all night about it. It seems to me some of the members of the committee
have a perfectly sound point. If there are questions which could be asked now,
of a general nature, it might expedite the detailed discussion later on.

Mr. MicuAup: I should like to ask the witness a question as to whether—

The CuamrMAN: I think we decided, Mr. Michaud, that tonight we would
be content with a general statement. T am sure every member of the committee
is grateful to Mr. McKinnon. for his statement, and we are all now seized with
a clearer understanding of our task.

Mr. Lesace: Would it be possible for Mr. McKinnon to give us some idea
about what the documents before us contain, the meaning of their various parts
and how best we can proceed to make a study of them over the recess?

The CuarMAN: Would yvou make a motion to that effect and we will see
what the committee wants to do?

Mr. Jaenicke: I think Mr. McKinnon said Mr. Deutsch was the man
responsible for the drafting of the final act and he would be the one who might
give us a short statement on it.

The CaarMAN: Might I know what the committee wants to do now?

Mr. Lrsace: As far as I am concerned, either Mr. McKinnon or Mr.
Deutsch might give us an outline on that.
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The CHAIRMAN I would hke the commlttee to demde now as to where:
"we are going.
Mr. Rixrrer: 1 would move, Mr. Cha1rman that the committee hear Mr.

4 Deutsch. M -

M. MICHAUD i would second that motion, Mr. Chairman.
" The Cuamrman: Gentlemen, you have heard the motion.

Mr. FLemineg: I thought we were all of one mind long ago, that we were
going to hear the introductory statement from Mr. McKinnon and that we would
then appoint the steering committee and let them line the work up.

Mr. Hazex: Could we not hdve the introductory statement completed by
someone telling us what these documents are and what they contain, and the
best way to go about examining them?

The CrARMAN: We have a motion that we have a general explanétmn of
the terms of the treaty, and Mr. Deutsch would be the man who would give that.
All those in favour of the motion please signify.

Those opposed?

I declare the motion carried.

The Cuarrman: Mr. Deutsch, please.

Mr. Drursca: Mr. Chairman, like Mr. McKinnon, I shall try to be very
brief in this first part of the discussion with the committee and simply try to
- explain what these books are about. 1 assume you all have copies of the
material in front of you and I shall in my discussion refer to them and try to
indicate what these documents are.

First of all there is the document called the final act. That document contains
the provisions of the treaty to which; Mr. McKinnon has referred, together with
the protocol of provisional application, the thing called the final act; I shall come
back to this in .a minute; and some supplementary agreements with the United
States and the United Kingdom.

Now, the general form of the document that came out of Geneva was this:
There was a document similar to this final act which contains the text of the
general provisions elicited from the International Trade Commission. To these
books are appended I believe some twenty schedules of tariff rates; there was
a schedule for each country, and the second document you have before you is
the schedule pertaining to Canada, Schedule 5. That is the schedule to this main
document which contains the provision of the trade charter. Every country
has a schedule; and this schedule like the schedule for Canada which is reprinted
here as Schedule 5 contains the record of the tariff rates that were bound as a
result of the negotiations at Geneva.

If you look at schedule 5, you will see the list of items taken from our
tariff. These are the items with the numbers opposite them found in our tariff,
and at the right are-the lowest rates. Opposite each item there are the rates
which were agreed upon as a result of negotiations, and if this agreement is
ratified Canada will undertake that the rate shown, or that rates against the
items will not exceed the rates shown on importation into Canada of those items.
In other words, these are the rates that are bound if” parliament ratifies this
agreement.

Mr. JaeNicke: They are all reduced?

Mr. Deursca: Not necessarily, some are re(luced from the existing rates,
others are bindings of the existing rates.

Mr. JAENICKE: Are there some increases?

: Mr. DeurscH: No, not shown in here. The schcdulos for the other twenty
countries, the other twenty schedules in other words, each of the other countries
has a similar schedule and in those schedules they show the rates which they
have bound with regard to the importations from any one of the other coun-
trles which have signed this agreement. And the rates mentioned in these
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schedules; for instance, the rates mentioned in the Canadian schedule are rates
which are accorded each of the other countries which have signed or will sign
this agreement; therefore, it is a multilateral agreement, each country has bound
itself to accord these rates to every other country that has signed the document.”
ffi\?lr. Pinarp: T see there is a part which is different from our seetion of the .
tari

Mr. Deurscu: I was going to elaborate a little further on the specific
character of our schedule. As you gentlemen know, the Canadian tariff has many
columns; indeed, I believe Mr. McKinnon says our tariff has at least five columns
of rates. The columns which are most prominent and most widely applicable
are the most favoured nation rates which are the rates we accord to other

_countries who accord us most favoured nation treatment, and the British
preferential rates which are accorded to members of the British Commonwealth;
and at Geneva we negotiated with countries both with respeet of most favoured
nation rates and with the United Kingdom with regard to our preferential
rates and the result that most negotiations are shown in this schedule. The first
part of the schedule refers to the most favoured nation tariff. That is accorded
to all countries with whom we have most favoured nation arrangement. The
schedule shows the preferential part of this schedule, and in the table are the
rates accorded to other countries of this commonwealth. And, as I said, we
negotiated mostly if not entirely with the United Kingdom with respect to that.
Other countries like the United States have not got a preferential system and
their schedule simply is a table of most favoured nation rates.

Mr. Micuaup: Does not France have some sort of preferential rates for
trading with her colonies and other countries?

Mr. Devurscr: France has, yes. France has some which are more favourable
to its own territories. The system in France is rather complicated. There are
a number of French territories which have the same tariff rates as France itself,
others have different tariffs and in certain cases like the Benelux there are
preferential rates between the mother country and the colonies, that is true.
I was simply trying to distinguish between our country and the United States.
In the United States they have one column which is similar. In our case we have
two, that is where we have one section for the most favoured nation rates and
the other for the British preferential rates.

Mr. Harris: And I believe the United States has a special rate with Cuba
and possibly the Philippines?

Mr. Deurscu: Yes, with the Philippines they have special rates which are to
disappear over a period of years, and there is a preferential system with Cuba.
Now, back to the larger document.

Mr. Fraser: Before you leave that might T ask a question? The way I
understand it then is that Canada cannot raise her rates higher than what are
here but they could lower them?

Mr. DeurscH: That is right, sir.

Mr. Fraser: Also they can do that without taking the matter up with
the other countries affected?—am I right on that, can they lower it indiserimi-
nately or do they have to lower all tariffs?

Mr. DrurscH: If they lower them they must supply it to all countries which
have signed this treaty. I do not wish to get into too much detail on this. We
are going to get into a great deal of detail if we go on that way. To come back
to the document, the final Act, that is a collection of different documents—this
particular print. On page 4 there is something called “Final Act adopted at the
conclusion of the second session of the Preparatory Committee of the United
Nations Conference on Trade and Employment”. This final Act simply says
that these twenty-three nations met at Geneva, they prepared certain documents
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nd in signing this particular final Act shown on page 4 they simply say that
hese documents are the documents which they prepared; there is no under-
king involved in that at all. ‘

So that first document is simply an attestation of the documents which are
prepared, and there is no commitment by governments or anything else involved
~_in that particular phase of it.

The next document begins on page 6 and is called, “General Agreement on
Tariffs and Trade”. That document contains the provisions of the International
~ Trade Charter which the twenty-three nations at Geneva wanted to bring into
. effect among themselves provisionally prior to the end of the world conference
~ which is now sitting at Havana. These provisions contain the rules which are

“to govern international trade between the members who have signed this

: agreement—a general rule; and they cover such matters. I shall not go into
~ detail now because this is a lengthy statement and would take a long time to go
through; but I shall simply give the highlights only on this particular occasion.

It contains the rules with regard to most-favoured-nation treatment. For
i instance, it spells out the nature of the tariff treatment which these countries
. which have signed this agreement will accord to one another. In other words,

they will give one another most-favoured-nation treatment; they will not dis-
criminate between one another and so forth.
4 Further on there is a section beginning on page 12 which speaks about

National treatment on internal taxation and regulation”; and thereon follow

several sections having to do with various aspects of customs administration
and the provisions spell out in some detail precisely how nations will treat one
another with respect to their customs administration. There are certain rules
set down with regard to admission of goods and the manner in which tariffs
will be assessed and that sort of thing, and the way in which valuation will be
made for duty purposes, anti-dumping rules and all that sort of thing.

g Then on page 26 there is a set of provisions beginning under the heading

General elimination of quantitative restrictions.” In these provisions rules are

laid down regarding the use of quotas and prohibitions and invisible trade barriers
of all kinds—a detailed set of rules set down as to how nations will treat one
another in the application of quotas and licences and permits and all that sort
_of thing. Also in this set of provisions there are the detailed rules regarding
the protection of the balance of payments of the signing countries, the exceptions
t}]at are allowed in the case of countries which are in balance-of-payment
difficulties are also spelled out in this section.

Baginning on page 44 there is a section on subsidies—some very general
rules about subsidization of exports and subsidies generally. Right under that on
the same page is a statement, “Non-diseriminatory treatment on the part of
state-trading enterprises.” Certain rules are laid down regarding the conduct
of state-trading enterprisesy rules which indicate the manner in which state-
.tradlng organizations will conduct their trading arrangements with regard to
international trade. They are mostly rules about non-discrimination.

Then there is a section on page 46, “Adjustments in connection with economic
development.” Those are provisions which were inserted at the wish of the
less industrialized countries. countries which wished to use some protective
measures in a development of their industries; and certain provisions have been
written into the charter and into this agreement to facilitate the wishes of
those countries.

Then there is following that a miscellaneous set of provisions—I do not
need to go into all of them in detail—having to do with emergency action,
,gene{'a_l exceptions, security exceptions and consultation. Those are all normal
provisions in any agreement of this kind; territorial application, entry into
ports, ete., and details of that sort. I do not need to go into all that because
they are more or less normal parts of any agreement.
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Then there is a series of annexes which are rather detailed. I do not think
I want to take too much time with those at the present time.

Finally, on page 88, there was a document called, “Protocol of provisional
application of the general agreement on tariffs and trade.” '

Mr. McKinnon has referred to that protocol. Under this protocol eight of
the countries—the eight are named here—agreed among themselves at Geneva
to bring these agreements to the tariff schedules into provisional effect beginning
on January 1, 1948. Mr. McKinnon has explained that it was not possible for
all the countries at Geneva to adhere to this protocol because of eonstitutional
procedure; but the eight countries named were able to bring these agreements
into effect provisionally. That means they are brought into effect in so far as
the executive branch of the government can bring them into effect; that means
in so far as legislation in the various countries permits,

Now, the eight countries named have done so. They have brought these |
agreements into provisional effect. It is purely provisional. Any of these
countries can withdraw on sixty days’ notice. The agreements under this
protocol will remain provisionally in effect among the countries named until
the document is brought finally into effect, and that will take place when
countries representing 85 per cent of the trade of the twenty-three nations at
Geneva have ratified these agreements. When that has happened the whole
agreement becomes final and comes permanently into effect. I said “perman-
ently.” I mean in so far as the provisions of the agreement are concerned.
This agreement is only for three years definite.

Then there is on page 92 an agreement between Canada and the United
States supplementary to the general agreement on tariffs and trade. This note
on page 92 is simply a note stating that while this agreement is in effect our
Canadian and Amerjcan existing trade agreement shall be held in abeyance
or shall be suspended. It simply suspends the existing agreement while this
agreement is in effect, and if this agreement, for some reason or other, should
go out of effect, the existing trade agreement will come back into effect. This
simply suspends the existing agreement for the time being while this is in
effect.

There are some minor notes at the back. I do not think I need to detain
the committee with them. Then on page 100 there is finally an exchange of
notes, or an exchange of letters between Canada and the United Kingdom. The
adoption of this agreement required certain modifications in our existing agree-
ment with the United Kingdom. It also contains certain undertakings with
respect to the British preference in the future between us and the United
Kingdom and these undertakings are spelled out in this exchange of notes
beginning on page 100. I think, Mr. Chairman, that covers the thing in a general
way, and is all I need to say at this time.

The Cuamrman: Thank you. ‘

Mr. Hazex: What is this?

The CaamrMaN: I am coming to that. Would the members of the committee
now like to have a few minutes’ explanation from Mr. Kemp as to the mimeo-
graphed memorandum? :

Mr. Kemp: Mr. Chairman, when your committee comes to look into the
tariff agreements that were made at Geneva, and that are coming up before
parliament here for consideration you will no doubt wish to ask the questions,
“What did we give with regard to tariff concessions” and “What did we get
from other countries?” The question “What did we give” is answered by the
document mentioned by Mr. Deutsch and Mr. McKinnon. That is schedule 5
which shows the new rates in the Canadian tariff, but the question “What did we
receive” is a bigger question in a way because there are some 45,000 different
tariff items which have been covered in the various agreements.
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Obviously we have not tried to write down all the 45,000 items, but it was
thought that your committee might be particularly interested in the changes
that have been made in the United States’ tariff which are likely to be beneficial
to Canada. This little mimeographed report, which we have had put together
in rather illegible form, I am afraid, in some instances, covers the principal items
in the United States’ tariff on which concessions have been made that it was
thought would be beneficial to Canada. ;

The material here is confined to items of wheh we exported $50,000 worth
or more to the United States either in 1939 or in 1946. For all those items the
document shows the name of the item, the United States’ tariff number, the rate
as it existed in 1930 under the Smoot Hawley tariff, the rate as it stood in 1946
before the Geneva Conference, and the rate that was agreed upon at Geneva.

Finally in the last two columns you will find stated the value of the imports
from Canada into the United States in 1939 and in 1946, so that you can form
some judgment on this basis as to the magnitude of the concessions that were
made by which it is hoped that Canada will benefit. There are other concessions
that are not mentioned here. This, for example, does not include the items that
represent less than $50,000 worth of trade although it may well be that some of
those items will expand in future and may be more valuable than they have
been in the past. Similarly this document does not include the items which were
already duty free in the United States before the Geneva Conference. All those
items are still duty free, but because there has not been any change in their
status they are not included here. This is, therefore, just an attempt to indicate
for you the highlights of what we have received in the tariff of one particular
country.

Mr. Furron: I wonder if it would be possible for the department to prepare
in concise form a statement of the main concessions from other countries in tariff
reductions of importance to Canada. This covers the United States. There are
45,000 items. I imagine when you multiply that by all the other countries there
are more than that. Otherwise we are going to have to look through 19 separate
tariff schedules, and we would have to know what they were in order to appreciate
what the reductions mean. Would that be asking too much? Would it be
possible to give us a statement of the highlights of the concessions made by other
countries which will be of importance to Canada?

Mr. Kemp: That can be done, sir, if you wish it.

Mr. McKinnoN: Apropos that question, the press release that was put out
on the 17th of November is just such a statement as the member has asked for
in that it goes through the whole 45,000 items and picks out the significant ones,
indicates in almost every instance the old rate and the new rate and attributes
the concession to the particular country that made it.

Mr. Furron: I have looked through it, and it did occur to me most of the
concessions appeared to be concessions made by the United States. It may be
that is where most of our concessions arise. If so, I will be content.

Mr. McKinnon: It is done by tariff group, and although the United States
comes first in almost every instance because they were, by a very great extent
the chief trading nation with us, you will find under each tariff group subsequent
paragraphs saying what concessions we get from Benelux in that group of
commodities, what concessions we get from France, and so on.

Mr. Fuuron: That is the nearest approach which can be made to the sort
of thing I am asking for?

Mr. McKinnon: Yes. It took nearly a week to do that, and it was an
attempt to condense the concessions we secured from all the countries.
~ Mr. Micuaup: I understand Mr. Fulton has a copy of the press release
issued at the time.

8713—2
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The Cramrman: I will see that all members of the committee have a copy.

Mr. Jaenicke: Could the department also prepare a similar mimeographed
sheet of our own tariff reductions that we have made or that we have proposed
to make in this treaty?

Mr. McKinnon: We will have for the next sitting a key to be used in con-
nection with schedule 5 which will show you the items, the former rates, both
British preferential and intermediate, favoured nation, the proposed rates, both
British preferential and most favoured nation, and the trade.

Mr. Jaenicke: In the two years, 1939 and 19467

Mr. McKinyox: 1939 and 1946. _

Mr. Trmmins: Is there any change we should know about now having
regard to the last pages of this, the final act between ourselves and the United
Kingdom, that we ought to know about in the meantime?

The Crairman: Would you ask that question again?

Mr. Timmins: Are there any changes in this arrangement which appears
in the exchange of notes between Canada and the United Kingdom since the
signing of the protocol?

Mr. MeKinnon: No, there have been no changes whatever.

Mr. Micaavp: Mr. Chairman, Mr. McKinnon and some members of the
committee have used the term “trade.” I should like to ask what is meant by
that. Does it refer to the other countries which are not included as part of this
agreement? Reference was made to the most-favoured-nation rate and the
preferential rate and then trade.

Mr. Jaenicke: Imports into Canada.

Mr. McKixyox: We show the value of the imports into Canada.

Mr. Micraup: I am sorry. While I am on my feet I should like to ask
whether any of the parties to this agreement have ratified it through their
governments or legislative authorities?

Mr. DeurscH: Not yet, sir; they are all applying it provisionally at this
time.

The CrAamrMAN: Gentlemen, shall we excuse the witnesses and thank them
for coming?

Mr. Isvor: I wonder if Mr. Deutsch would tell us whether, under article
18, Canada is considered as an industrial country?

Mr. DeurscH: No attempt was made at Geneva to classify the countries.

Mr. Isvor: I understood you to say there was a special provision made for
the development of the less industrialized countries.

Mr. DeurscH: Yes, the less industrialized countries—a number of them
—regarded themselves as capable of much further development industrially,
and they wanted some provisions to help them along the road.

Mr. Isnor: Was Canada placed in that category?

Mr. DeurscH: No one was placed in any category. It was simply a pro-
vision any country could use for its purposes but no attempt was made to
classify the countries.

The CuaiemAN: Thank you very much, Mr. McKinnon.

Now gentlemen, in regard to the appointment of the steering committee
would each of the parties please indicate to me the members they would like
to have serve on the steering committee. I had in mind that it might be wise
to convene the steering committee before Easter so that witnesses could have
proper notice.

Mr. JAENICKE: Are we not going to appoint the steering committee now?
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The Cuamrman: My thought was that each party would indicate to me
the names that they would like to have serve on the committee.
Mr. JaeNickE: Why not do it right now?

Mr. Fraser: How many are to be on the steering committee?

The CHAlRMAN: My suggestion was that we should have the size of com-
mittee that we have had before, three from the Liberal party, two from the
Progressive Conservative party, and one each from the other parties.

Mr. Marquis: I would move that the steering committee be constituted
on the basis just suggested by the chairman and that each party recommend
names of members. :

Mr. Fraser: I would move that the names be handed in sometime tomorrow.

The CuamrMAN: The meeting is adjourned.
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ADDENDUM

Ottawa, Ontario,
March 12, 1948.

G. D. FinvaysoN, Esq., CM.G,,
200 Carling Avenue,
Ottawa, Ontario.

Dear Mr. FINLAYSON:

On Thursday, March 11, 1948, the Banking and Commerce Committee of
the House of Commons held its first meeting of the present session.

On that occasion, at the suggestion of the Chairman, Mr. Hughes Cleaver,
concurred in unanimously by the other Members present, I was instructed to
convey to you an appreciation of the valuable services rendered to the Com-
mittee by you, and to express the hope that you will be spared many years to
enjoy your well-earned retirement.

Yours very truly,

(signed) A. CHASSE, 3
Clerk of the Committee on Banking and Commerce.

Ottaﬁ’a, Ontario,
March 17, 1948.

A. Cuassg, Esq.,

Senior Committee Clerk,

Room 443, House of Commons,
Ottawa.

Dear Mr. CHASSE,—

I have received with much appreciation your recent letter communicating
to me the good wishes of the Chairman and Members of the Standing Committee
on Banking and Commerce of the House of Commons on the occasion of my
retirement from the public service.

I have greatly enjoyed the confidence which that Committee has been good
enough to extend to me and my associates during the many years that we have
appeared before it, and I would bespeak the continuance of that confidence for
my successor in office.

Yours very truly,
(signed) G.D. FINLAYSON,
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REPORT TO THE HOUSE

House or CoMMONS,
WeDNESDAY, April 14, 1948.

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce begs leave to present
the following as its
THIRD REPORT

On March 11, 1948, your Committee was empowered to print 500 copies
in English and 200 copies in French of its minutes of proceedings and evidence.

The demand for the evidence taken on April 13, 1948, will be much in
excess of 500 English and 200 French.

4 Your Committee recommends, therefore, that in respect of the evidence
taken on the said April 13, 1948, authority be granted to increase the numbers
of copies from 500 to 2,000 in English and from 200 to 500 in French, and
that Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

All of which is respectfully submitted.
HUGHES CLEAVER,

Charrman.

Nore.—Concurred in this day.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE
WEDNESDAY, 14th April, 1948.

Ordered,—That the said Committee be granted authority to increase the
numbers of copies of printed proceedings and evidence of April 13, 1948,
from 500 to 2,000 in English and from 200 to 500 in French, and that Standing
Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

Attest.

ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
Clerk of the House.




MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or CoMMONS
TuespAy, APriL 13, 1948.

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce met this evening at
8.30 o’clock. Mr. Hughes Cleaver, Chairman, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Argue, Arsenault, Benidickson, Cleaver, Coté
(St. Johw's-Iberville-Napierville), Dechene, Fleming, Fraser, Fulton, Gour,
(Russell), Hackett, Hazen, Irvine, Isnor, Jackman, Jutras, Lesage, MacNaught
Marquis, Mvayba,nk Mlchaud Picard, Pinard, Rmfret Stewart (Winnipeg N.),
Thatcher and Timmins.

In attendance: Mr. H. B. McKinnon, Chairman of the Tariff Board, Mr.
W. J. Callaghan, Commissioner of Tariff, Finance Department, Mr. R. Cousineau
of the Tariff Board, Mr. J. J. Deutsch, Director of the Economic Relations
Division, Finance Department, Mr. Hubert R. Kemp, Director of Commercial
Relations Division, Department of Trade and Commerce, Mr A. L. Neal and
Mr. G. C. Cowper of the Department of Trade and Commerce.

The Chairman identified the following documents copies of which have
already been distributed, namely:

1. Final Act of the Second Session of the Preparatory Committee of the
United Nations Conference on Trade and Employment held at Geneva
from April 10 to October 30, 1947. (Treaty Series, 1947, No. 27—
English and French.)

2. Schedule V to the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade. (Treaty
Series, 1947, No. 27A—English and French.)

3. Foreign Trade Weekly Publication—Vol. IT, November 22, 1947, No. 47,
published by the Department of Trade and Commerce, including a
relevant press release of November 17, 1947, found on page 1002.

4. Imports into the United States from Canada of principal and dutiable
items on which concessions were obtained under the General Agreement
on Tariffs and Trade for the calendar years of 1939 and 1946 showing
rates of duty.

The Chairman referred particularly to the press release issued on Novem-
ber 17, 1947, and printed in the Foreign Trade Weekly Publication intituled
“Multilateral Trade Agreement between Seventeen Countries, ete.”

On motions of Mr. Timmins, this press release was ordered printed as an
appendix to this day’s minutes of evidence (See Appendiz A).

Reference was also made to a voluminous document being “Principal Tariff
Concessions Affecting Canadian Produects Obtained Through the General Agree-
ment, on Tariffs and Trade.” A motion of Mr. Fleming to print this document
was deferred.

Mr. J. J. Deutsch was recalled, heard and examined.

The witness tabled for distribution copies of a document entituled “Declara-

tion and Protocols arising out of the First Session of the Contracting Parties held
at Havana during March 1948.”
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Reverting to the matter of printing documents tabled, and on motion of
Mr. Timmins, it was resolved to print as appendices B and C respectively, the
Principal Tariff Concessions and the Declaration and Protocols both referred
to above, and to ask leave to increase to 2,000 in English and 500 in French
the number of copies of this day’s minutes of proceedings and evidence.

At 10.30 o’clock, the Committee adjourned until Thursday, April 15 at
8.30 p.m.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Acting Clerk of the Committee.




MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or CoMMONS,
ApriL 13, 1948.

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce met this day at 8.30
p.m. The Chairman, Mr. Hughes Cleaver, presided.

The CuarMAN: The members of the committee have already been supplied
with the final Act of the second session of the preparatory committee of the
United Nations Conference on Trade and Employment held at Geneva, Schedule
5 to the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade, and a copy of the issue of
November 22, 1947, of the pamphlet “Foreign Trade” which contains the press
release with respect to these agreements. It has been called to my attention that
this reprint of the press release is in such fine print as to be practically useless to
members of the committee. It has been suggested that this should be reprinted
as an appendix to our minutes of proceedings and evidence. If that is your wish
would someone so move? -

Mr. Timmins: I will so move.

The CuarMaN: It is moved by Mr. Timmins that the article printed in the
pamphlet “Foreign Trade” under date of November 22, 1947, at page 1002 and
following headed “Multilateral Trade Agreement between Seventeen Countries
has Wide Application Here” be printed as an appendix to today’s minutes of
proceedings and evidence of this committee. All those in favour please signify?
Carried.

(See Appendix A)

Then I have been furnished with a lot of other material late today. I think
I would rather have the agenda committee pass on it and decide whether we
should go to the expense of printing it. It is a matter of either printing it or
having 1t mimeographed. It will be quite expensive to print it. If the committee
is willing we will just withhold the decision as to these other documents until the
agenda committee is able to meet.

Mr. Fueming: What are they?

The CuAlRMAN: The bundle I have in my hand is entitled “Principal Tariff
Concessions affecting Canadian products obtained through the Geneva Agree-
ments on Tariffs and Trade”. It has been prepared and handed to me by Mr.
Kemp.

H. B. McKinnon, Chairman of the Tariff Board, recalled.

Hubert R. Kemp, Director of Commercial Relations Division, Depart-
ment of Trade and Commerce, recalled.

Mr. McKinnox: That is the information the committee asked for the night
of the organization meeting. It has been all collated and compiled, but Mr. Kemp
did not like to go ahead and print it because it is a very extensive set of tables.
If the committee wishes to have it printed we will have in connection with the
Canadian tariff a corresponding accumulation of data showing the Canadian
items, the existing rates, the present rate, British preferential and most favoured
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nation, the proposed rate, British preferential and most favoured nation, and the
imports into Canada in years 1939 and 1946. It will be about double the
size of that if the members of the committee wish to have it printed.

The CuamrMAN: What is your wish?

Mr. FLeminGg: There has been a lot of valuable work put into compiling that.
It has permanent value. I think it is going to be a sort of foundation for the
work of this committee. Should it not be printed?

The CualrMAN: Mr. Fleming moves that this material, the title of which
I have just read, be printed. All those in favour?

Mr. IsNor: Just a moment before you carry that: I wonder what the cost
would be for printing it in the pamphlet “Foreign Trade” as compared to
printing it in our own proceedings. If it is valuable to us it must be valuable
to the subscribers and those who are making use of foreign trade. We might
be able to make greater use of it at not very much greater cost—

Mr. TimMmins: As I understand it, at the first meeting we had a schedule
presented which had to do with the comparison with United States tariffs.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. Timmins: Then Mr. Kemp said he would do the same thing in respect
to the tariffs of other countries. I understand you have got it there before
you now.

"The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. TimMmins: I have found amongst business men they thought the compila-
tion of the tariffs with respect to Canada and the United States was most helpful,
and I would think these other tariffs would be most useful to us.

Mr. Kemp: May I say the report which we gave you at the first meeting
covered only the United States concessions. What is here tonight is the
United States plus all other countries. On the question of cost we inquired of
the King’s Printer how much it would cost to get our material out as a separate
pamphlet, and considering the fact some small portion of it had already been
set in type. His estimate was about $600. That would apply to the concessions
we got. I presume Mr. Callaghan’s report on the Canadian tariff would probably
be about the same size.

The CuARMAN: In view of the point which Mr. Isnor has raised I would
think that it might be advisable for the committee to consider having a greater
number printed of this one issue of our minutes of proceedings and evidence.
If it is to be used for mailing to some additional mailing list I would expect
that the King's Printer cost would not be any greater than the cost of printing
the pamphlet “Foreign Trade” you have in your hand. If you think this
information should be made available through a mailing list as well as to the
committee, then it costs very little more to have two or three thousand run off
when your type is already set up.

Mr. Isnor: That is my point. Perhaps Mr. McKinnon could tell us how
valuable that would be to the subscribers to Foreign Trade. It is a very fine
publication and I believe it might be useful to have this information in it. If
this information is valuable, which I presume it is, it should be included in
Foreign Trade.

Mr. McKinnoN: What is in Foreign Trade is a reprint of the press release
which was issued on the 17th of November. At the time we distributed copies -
of the press release to all members of both Houses. Foreign Trade is a publica-
tion of the Department of Trade and Commerce put out primarily I think for
the use of their representatives in different parts of the world. I am not sure
we would not find, if the committee wishes to have it reprinted, Mr. Chairman,
that there are probably still any number of copies of the préss release in the
original form available. As a matter of fact, every member of both Houses
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got one. The press got’ them, and they were distributed by the thousands to
all inquirers. It might save a very large printing bill if you defer your decision
until we make sure.

Mr. Isnor: I think we had better reserve our decision and look into it.
Mr. Micuaup: Really, that is for the steering committee.

Mr. Hazenx: I think we should reconsider the first resolution. I am not
clear on this at all. !

The CuamrMaN: Yes.

Mr. Hazex: Now, the article which is contained in this issue of November
22, of Foreign Trade states that it contains a summary of the concessions secured
by Canada and granted by this dominion to other countries.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. Hazen: That is not set out apparently here.

The Cramrman: That is a summary and this is the detail.

Mr. Hazen: Oh, this is the detail?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. Hazex: Is it necessary to reprint this article that appears in the
November 22 issue again? I do not find it difficult to read myself. '

The CuamrMAN: I think you are very fortunate if you find it easy to read.
Mr. Lesace: You are very lucky if you find it easy to read.

The CuamrMAN: How would the committee feel about simply deferring a
final decision on this matter until the close of-the present meeting? Our witnesses
are here and we perhaps should not keep them waiting while we discuss this.

Some Hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.
Mr. Magrquis: The whole matter will be deferred.

The CuatrmMAN: We will leave it over until the end of the meeting.

We have for our witness tonight Mr. Deutsch, who will give evidence
particularly in regard to the terms of the agreement.

J. J. Deutsch, Director, Economic Relations Division, Department of
Finance, called.

The Wirness: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen: Before proceeding with the
agreement it might be useful to the committee if I explain what happened at
Havana with regard to this agreement which is now before the committee. As
you know, the purpose of the Havana conference was to prepare a charter for
an international trade organization. At Geneva the draft of such a charter was
prepared. The draft was taken as a basis of discussion at Havana. As a result
of the conference a document was prepared called a charter for an international
organization. That charter is now being submitted to the parliaments of the
various countries which attended at Havana and if approved by those parlia-
ments the governments will ratify, and in due course if enough ratifications are
submitted the charter will come into force. It is not expected that this charter
will come into force before the middle of 1949, at the earliest. It provides that
it shall come into force when half of the countries that signed the final act of
Havana have submitted ratifications, and if one year after that less than half
of them have submitted ratifications then the charter will come into force as soon
as 20 countries have submitted ratifications. In any event this process will take
until the middle of 1949. And so while the charter is ready and prepared it will
not be effective for at least another year or a year and a half.
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As you will recall from reading the Geneva agreements, there is an article
which states that the corresponding provisions of the charter will replace the
similar provisions in the Geneva agreement when the charter comes into force.
I think we explained earlier that the general provisions of this agreement contain
the bulk of the commercial policy provisions of the charter; but since these
provisions of the Geneva agreement were taken from the draft of the charter it
was subject to change at Havana. There had to be some provision for the substi-
tution of the final provisions of the charter for the ones which were put into
the Geneva agreement. Now that the charter is finished we know what the final
form of these general agreement provisions will be. At Havana the nations
included all the countries who signed the Geneva agreement and therefore while
they were there they considered this question regarding the replacement of the
existing provisions of the agreement by the new provisions of the charter where
they were appropriate. A clause in the agreement, as you know, states that
supercession shall take place unless some country objects. Any country could
object to the supercession. At Havana the countries that signed the general
agreement provisionally decided to make a declaration stating that they will
not object to the supercession of the corresponding provisions of the agreement
by the new provisions in the charter. That declaration was signed by all the
countries signatory to the general agreement at Geneva, with the exception of
Australia. There were a number of reasons why Australia abstained from signing
the declaration but it.is not expected when the time comes for the supercession
that Australia will object. Therefore, the provisions of the agreement will be
replaced by the provisions of the charter, and as soon as the charter has been
signed by the various countries.

By Mr. Lesage:

Q. Were there any muterial changes?—A. There are a number.

Q. I mean, material changes?—A. I would say there are a number of
material changes, and I will try to give you a very brief description of them
this evening,.

Mr. TmuMmins: May I ask you one question? There are only 8 nations
which signed originally at Geneva?

The Wrirness: That is right.

Mr. TimMmins: Could other countries which came in at Havana, and quite
a number of other countries did come in there; could they supersede the eight
original countries? ;

The Wirness: That agreed to?

Mr. TimmiNs: Agreed to.

* The Wrrness: They could if the eight original countries agreed, and they
did. To come back to what I said earlier there was always a provision in the
agreement stating when the charter is finished and comes into force the corres-
ponding provisions of the charter should replace the same provisions in the
general agreement, unless someone objects.

Mr. Marquis: One is sufficient.

The Wirness: One is sufficient, yes. If one objects they have to discuss
the matter among the countries that have signed the Geneva Agreement to see
what solution they can arrive at. There was no rule stated as to the majority
of votes deciding the issue, but it was simply left that they should discuss it and
come to some agreement. At Havana, the countries which signed the agreement
also signed the declaration stating they would not raise any objection. Australia,
however, did not sign the declaration for some particular reasons into which I need
not go at the moment.

The Cramrman: Would you give the committee the article number?
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The Wirness: The article that provides for the supersession?
The CHARMAN: Yes.

The Wirness: On page 64 of the Geneva Agreement, the document you
have before you, there is an article, No. 29, entitled “Relation of this agreement
to the charter for an international trade organlﬂzatlon.”' T dlspusses the relation
of this agreement to the charter and in that article it explains that when the
charter comes into force the relevant provisions in the charter will automatically
replace the corresponding provisions in the agreement, providing no one objects.
Therefore, in order to see the agreement as it will be when it comes into force
finally one must have regard to the clauses in the charter which will replace
the corresponding clauses in this agreement. This supersession, however, will
not take place until the charter comes into force and I have explained earlier
the charter is not expected to come into- force until at least the middle of next
year. In the meantime this agreement will be in force in its present form.

Mr. MarqQuis: Since when has it been in force?

The WrrNess: Since the 1st of January. It is in force now, provisionally,
and it will remain in force in its present form until the charter comes into force
and supersession takes place.

Mr. Isxor: What is the shortest period of time before the general agreement
or rather the charter can come into force?

The Wrrness: For short reference I have referred to this Geneva document
as the general agreement, and the other document I have referred to as the
charter so I will distinguish the two by using those terms.

Mr. Isnor: Yes, well I am referring to the charter.

The Wirngss: The charter will come into force sixty days after at least
one-half of the countries have ratified it and that ratification is not expected to
happen for another year and a half.

Mr. Micaaup: What happens if half the countires do not ratify it?

The Wirness: If half the countries do not ratify it at the end of one year
from the date of signature of the said final act, namely the document signed
at the conclusion of he conference in Havana—

Mr. Core: When was the document signed?

The Wirness: On March 25, T believe. It does not enter into force in
accordance with the provisions of subparagraph (a), namely the provision
requiring one-half then it comes into force “on the sixtieth day following the
day on which the number of governments represented at the conference in
Havana have deposited instruments in accordance with the agreement hereby
shall have reached twenty.” In other words after one year has elapsed and
half the governments have not submitted ratification then it will come into
force sixty days after twenty governments have submitted ratification.

By Mr. Lesage:

Q. Do you not think that is what is going to happen? You say it is going
to take a year and a half before half of the countries have signed?—A. Well
the forecast I am making here is based upon the consensus of opinion among
the countries at Havana as to how quickly the various governments can act,
anﬁ ?fle general consensus of opinion was that it would take about a year and
a half.

Q. How many countries did sign?—A. I believe fifty or fifty-one.

1\‘§Ir. Marquis: Czechoslovakia was among those who signed the agree-
ment
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The Wirness: Czechoslovakia was among the fifty-one that signed the final
act at Havana. Poland was not signatory. Poland was at Havana but it did
not sign.

Mr. Marquis: Is it only satellite of Russia? :

- The Wirness: Czechoslovakia is the only eastern European country that
signed the final act. Therefore the point of this is that until the charter does
come into force the Geneva Agreement, the general agreement, will remain in
force in its present form. Therefore it is a separate document by itself during
this period.

By Mr. Timmins:

Q. Right now there are just eight nations carrying on under the Geneva
Agreement?—A. Nine. There were eight original countries and since then Cuba
has signed. .

Q. Do you expect the other countries will, one by one come in under the
provisional arrangements?—A. Yes, we expect some countries will come into
this Geneva Agreement between now and next year. How many countries will
come in we do not know, but we expect to have some. Up to the moment we
have not received enough copies of the charter to distribute it to the members
of the committee. We have been trying urgently to get more copies but we
have not succeeded. As soon as we obtain them we shall see that the members
of the committee have copies.

By Mr. Hackett:

Q. I suppose as yet no country has ratified? There has not been time
since the 25th of March?—A. No, no country has ratified the charter, and no
country has ratified the general agreement. The signatures so far are only
for provisional application and they have only been signed by the executives
of the various governments. There has been no approval by the parliaments of
these countries.

Q. Did you say that fifty-one countries or only eight countries had signed
the general agreement?—A. The general agreement was signed at Geneva and
at that conference there were only eighteen countries.

Q. Eighteen?—A. And of those eighteen countries eight brought it into
" provisional effect. Since then Cuba has brought it into provisional effect, making
a total of nine countries.

Q. The seventeen remain signatories?—A. They remain signatories subject
to later application.

By Mr. Lesage:

Q. Because they had to obtain constitutional powers from their respective
countries?—A. That is right. The reason only eight countries signed for
provisional application at Geneva was that the other governments were not
able to bring it into effect provisionally by executive action. Many of them
had to go to their parliaments and there was not time to do that. In the case
of Canada, the United Kingdom, Australia and so on, the government has
executive power to bring it into effect provisionally and that is what was done.

In our case the government has power under the Customs Act to make
reciprocal trade arrangements and it is under that power our government brought
this agreement into effect.

By Mr. Hackett:
Q. What other countries brought it into effect?—A. Canada, the United
States, the United Kingdom, Australia, France, Holland, Belgium, Luxembourg
and now Cuba.
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By Mr. Lesage:

Q. Under the executive power Canada could not increase the rates, but
could reduce them?—A. That is quite right. By executive power the govern-
ment can only reduce tariffs, they cannot raise tariffs.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. Were any changes made in the Canadian tariffs by bringing the charter
into effect in this way?—A. Not the charter, the general agreement.

Q. I thought we were speaking a moment ago about the charter. I may
have misunderstood you, but I thought the powers given to the executive under
the Customs Act had been used at Havana?—A. Not Havana, sir, at Geneva.
In other words, they brought the general agreement into provisional effect
including reductions in tariffs which were negotiated at Geneva.

Q. Your remarks applied only to the general agreement, not the charter?
—A. Not the charter; the charter is in no way in effect. The Canadian delega-
tion, in signing at Havana, merely said, “We were at Havana; we prepared a
document and we attest that this is the document that we prepared”; that is
all the signature at Havana means.

Q. Were you at Havana?—A. T was there for a period of time, but I was
not there throughout the conference.

Q. Who were the Canadian delegates at Havana?—A. The Canadian
delegation was headed by Mr. Wilgress, formerly the Deputy Minister of Trade
a;deCommeme and now the minister to Switzerland. He headed the delegation
at Havana.

By Mr. Lesage:
Q. Both at Geneva and Havana?—A. That is right.

By Mr. Fleming :

Q. Who were the senior advisers, any of the gentlemen who are with us
tonight?—A. None of these gentlemen were there. The advisers were Mr.
Hebert, formerly a member of the tariff board; Mr. Couillard, Department of
Trade and Commerce and Mr. Neil Perry, of the Department of Finance.

By Mr. Pinard:

Q. Mr. Couillard had been in Geneva?—A. That is right, sir. Those men
were the principal advisers.

By Mr. Jackman:

Q. Under what agreement did the government reimpose the Empire
preference tariffs? They were suspended during the war years in order to allow
British imports to come into the country. How were they reimposed, under
the Geneva agreement or how?—A. The restoration of those British preferential
rates which were suspended during the war had nothing whatever to do with,
and were not the result of this agreement. Provision was made for that in the
Act under which they were reduced, the Foreign Exchange Conservation Act,
as I believe it was called. Tt contained a provision which stated, with the cessa-
tion of hostilities the tariffs would be restored to their original level. The
restoration occured automatically under that Act, by the terms of the Act itself.

Q. I suppose there were no other alterations in the tariffs against the
various countries which took place under the Foreign Exchange Control Act,
were there?—A. No, as I recall now, it concerned the British preferential rate.
Of course, there were other reductions during the war on a temporay basis.
In order to aid the acquisition of scarce supplies during the war, a number of
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tariffs were suspended temporarily. They have, by and large, all been put
back. There were about 200 reductions, I believe, and there are about 50 still
outstanding.

By Mr. Hackett:

Q. Could Mr. Deutsch say what number of commodities were withdrawn
from discussion by the United States and what was the basis of the list of
articles which were not subject to discussion concerning tariff arrangements
affecting Canada?—A. I do not know whether Mr. Kemp could answer that
question. Mr. Kemp might explain the basis upon which the United States
negotiated, and I think that will answer your question, sir.

Mr. Trmmins: Ought we not to finish with one subject, first?

The WiTNEss: We are getting off on another subject, here. I do not know
what the committee wishes.

Mr. Hackerr: I am quite willing to suspend my question.

The CHARMAN: I wonder if the committee would care to have Mr. Deutsch
outline the more important changes in the charter entered into at Havana as
they would affect the agreement.

Mr. Timmins: Including matters of principle.

Mr. Hackerr: I think it is a matter of principle—I am not insisting upon
my question,—to know roughly what proportion of items subject to tariff were
withdrawn by the United States before it entered the conference.

The CHARMAN: And the reasons; I have made a note of that, Mr. Hackett.

Mr. Hackerr: Thank you.

The Wirness: Mr. Kemp is in a position to explain that. What I had
intended to do was to bring the committee up to date on the status of this
agreement. I have already explained why there would be changes and now
I wish to go into some of the changes which were made at Havana.

By Mr. Isnor:

Q. Before the witness proceeds, in order that I may have a eclear picture,
I understand we are dealing now with the Geneva agreement?—A. That is
right, sir.

Q. It has nothing to do with the charter. At present, let us forget the
charter.

Mr. Timmins: He is coming to that.
Mr: Isnor: For the moment—

The CuaRMAN: If you do not mind, Mr. Isnor, as I understand the witness,
the charter is a new arrangement and the witness is now going to explain to
the committee the salient changes which the coming into effect of the charter
will cause to the terms of the Geneva agreement.

Mr. Isnxor: My first question hinges on the second; which will it be
necessary for parliament to ratify?

The WiTNEss: At this stage, I understand it is the governmen’ts intention
to ratify the Geneva agreement.

Mr. Isnor: It is for that reason I was asking and, if that is so, why should
it not be stated?

The CuamrmaN: I take it the reason why we should not is this; this country
is already committed to the Havana charter by having filed notice that it will
not contest or it will approve of the Havana changes to the Geneva agreement.
Is that not right?
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The Wirxess: I should explain that more carefully. I am sorry this is
so complicated. It is terribly complicated. Many things have been responsible
for creating this complexity. We are not responsible, but there it is and we
have to deal with it. :

Mr. Lesace: Should you not explain a little more fully that the agreement
was part of the original draft charter? It is part of the original draft charter,
is it not? There was a draft charter at Geneva. Would you start from there,
please?

The Wirness: All right, I will start from the beginning again. I quite
appreciate the difficulties which the members of the Committee have. It is a
very complicated business into which we have fallen by a series of processes,
all of which are understandable, but the result is very confusing.

At Geneva, two things were done. One was the negotiation of tariff
reductions between the 17 countries which were present at Geneva. FEach one
of the 17 countries negotiated with each one of the others, agreements between
themselves to reduce tariffs and the results of those negotiations are contained
in a schedule to this agreement. In that schedule each country has written
down the tariff treatment which it will accord to each of the other countries.

By Mr. Marquis:
Q. Each country negotiated with the 16 other countries?—A. That is right.

By Mr. Michaud:
Q. Separately?—A. In pairs.

The CuarMaN: I wonder, gentlemen, if it would not be better if the witness
were permitted to make his explanation. The members of the committee could
make a note of their questions and ask them after the witness has completed
his statement. These interruptions break the continuity.

The Wrrness: Each one of the seventeen negotiated with each one of the
others in pairs of two. There were altogether, therefore, some 100—I believe
108 or 112 separate negotiators. If you take the permutations and combinations
you can figure it out algebraically. You have 100 or more negotiations and
the result of those negotiations were stated in the form of schedules which are
attached to this agreement.

Mr. Hazex: The general agreement?

The Wirness: Yes. Each country shows a schedule and on that schedule
is stated the various commodities on one side and the tariff rates which that
country will apply to the imports of goods from each of the other countries.

Those rates are bound for the period of this agreement and the individual
countries cannot raise those rates in applying duties against the other imports
of the other countries, or rather to the members of this club. The Canadian
schedule is schedule 5, which has been distributed to members of the committee.

Every other of the seventeen countries has a similar schedule in which they
state the tariff treatment which they will accord for the specific commodities
from each one of the other countries.

Mr. Hackerr: The same for everybody.

The Wirness: The same for everybody. It is the most favoured nation
rule. The negotiation of those tariffs and the agreement to those schedules—
that was one phase of the work.

In order to make these tariff bindings effective to nations which agreed
to bring those tariff bindings into effect, it was necessary for them to agree
to certain rules with respect to other matters that might affect the importation
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of goods; because the schedules only state the tariff rates; but there are such
questions as these: What customs treatment is to be given? How are customs
to be administered?

Because clearly you can put all sorts of impediments in the way of imports
through the machinery of customs administration. Similarly, you could effect
the importation of goods by the application of quantitative restrictions of all
kinds. In other words, you could use a permit system and quotas and things
of that kind. These devices could very materially affect the flow of trade—
there are a whole series of things that countries could do that could overcome
or could nullify the tariff reductions—obviously. So, in order to make those
tariff reductions effective there had to be agreement on a series of rules—
rules regarding the treatment of foreign trade.

It was decided to draw up an agreement which contains the rules by which
all will abide in treating one another’s goods, in addition to the specific tariff
treatment agreed upon; because tariff treatment alone does not cover the
situation. Now, as I said, the negotiation for tariffs was one of the main jobs.
The other phase of their work was the preparation of a draft charter. The
draft charter was to be a document which contains all the rules regarding the
conduct of foreign trade. It was simply a draft; it was a draft which was to
be prepared for submission to the world conference. When the world conference
met, of course, it would not have been very fruitful simply to have called fifty
nations together and said, “Let us have a body of rules.” You had to have
something to talk about. You had to have an agenda. You had to have
proposals to discuss. And, therefore, the job of the nations at Geneva was to
prepare a set of -proposals, to prepare a draft.

Mr. Hazex: Is that what you call the general agreement?

The Wirness: I am coming to that. They prepared this draft agreement
which was going to be submitted to Havana as the basis of discussion.
The countries at Geneva said, “Let us take the rules we put into the draft
charter, and among ourselves—the countries which signed at Geneva—let us
take those rules which are now in the draft charter and bring them into effect
as between us.” The compliation of rules which they agreed to take out of
the draft charter, plus the schedules, constitute the Geneva agreement.

The CrairMAN: And knowing that the world conference would make some
changes, undoubtedly, then by article 29 in the Geneva agreement, the machi-
nery was provided for incorporating the charter into the Geneva agreement?

The Wirness: That is right. The Chairman has explained that since we
took the rules out of the draft charter, which was the draft charter being later
submitted to a world conference, and the world conference might change some
of those rules, there had to be a clause in the Geneva agreement which said
that when the rules are finally adopted there shall be provision for the substi-
tution of the final rules for the draft—rules that we put into the Geneva agree-
ment—and that is how we arrived at this situation that there shall be a sub-
stitution of a number of the rules in the Geneva agreement by the final rules
in the charter.

The CuAmrMAN: The said paragraph 3 of article 29 provides that those
new rules or any altered rules at Havana cannot be compulsorily forced upon
the contracting parties at Geneva without unanimous consent.

The Wirness: Yes. So we arrive back at the situation stated earlier that
the countries which signed the Geneva agreement, who were at Havana and
have said, “We have signed the final rules; we have been here and discussed
them; and we declare right now that we will raise no objection to the sub-
stitution of the final rules for the draft rules in the Geneva agreement—

The CuamrMAN: Excepting Australia.
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The Wirness: All, excepting Australia, stated they would not raise any
objections.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions, gentlemen?
Mr. Timmins: What new principle was evolved out of Hanava?

The Wirness: Now, if you like, I can  go on to the principal changes that
were made. :

The CrAmRMAN: Yes, do that.

The Wirxess: One of the principal changes that were made at Havana
that affect the general agreement at the present time are the rules having to
do with the balance of payments. Article 13 is the article on page 32, under
which nations undertook not to disecriminate in the application of restrictions
on trade from other members.

The CuamrMAN: And what change did Havana make?

The WrrnEss: Article 14 contains the exceptions to the rule of non-discri-
mination. Certain exceptions were allowed to this general undertaking not to
discriminate. The exceptions have to do with balance of payment difficulties.

As you know the agreement provides that when a country gets into balance
of payment difficulties, and there are certain procedures have to be gone through
to determine whether the country is in such difficulties, that country may control
its imports by means of quantitative restrictions. Under article 13 those quan-
titative restrictions have to be non-diseriminatory, but there are certain excep-
tions allowed to that situation. The exceptions are stated in article 14. The
exceptions to non-diserimination are allowed particularly to take care of the
peculiar difficulties in which the world is at the present time and, recognizing
the disjointed condition of world trade at the moment and the shortage of
United States dollars all over the world and the lack of convertibility of
currencies, that the rule of non-diserimination might be frustating to the revival
of world trade. Under conditions such as the present many countries argued that
it is possible to achieve a larger level of trade under certain types of discrimina-
tion. Therefore provision was made that diseriminatory restrictions might be
employed where it can be shown that with discrimination a larger volume of
trade can be achieved than without it.

By Mr. Benidickson:

Q. Can you give us an example?—A. Yes. This is an example that was used
pretty generally. If a country holds inconvertible currency it could enjoy more
imports if it could use that inconvertible currency than if it could not. Let me
put that in concrete terms. Suppose the United Kingdom—I am using it as an
example, not as an actual case—held Danish erowns. Let us say it had accumu-
lated Danish crowns, Danish crowns which are inconvertible. In other words,
those Danish crowns could not be sold on the exchange market for United
States dollars or gold. They are inconvertible. Suppose the United Kingdom
holds these Danish crowns and has an ample supply of such crowns, more than
it could readily use. Suppose that the United Kingdom is in balance of pay-
ment difficulties and applies quantitative restrictions on imports. In other words,
they put imports into the United Kingdom under control. If the United King-
dom were non-discriminatory in its controls it would have to control the imports
of all countries equally. That is the essence of non-discrimination.

By the Chairman:

Q. Including Denmark?—A. TIncluding Denmark. The restrictions they
would put upon the importation of goods fwom Denmark would have to be
equally severe as the restrictions put upon the 1mportat10n of goods from
Canada. The United Kingdom people may well say, “it is true we are short
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of dollars. We have not got all the dollars we want and therefore we have to
restrict imports, but we have got plenty of Danish Crowns, and so if you
allowed us to import relatively more from Denmark than from the dollar area
we could enjoy more imports and still it would not cost us more convertible
currency. In other words, we would not need to use up any convertible cur-
rencies if we were allowed to use these Danish crowns of which we have a large
stock in buying imports from Denmark, but if we are not allowed to diserimin-
ate we could not do that. We could not use those Danish erowns. We would have
to restrict imports from Denmark to the same extent we restrict imports from
the dollar countries.” In that sense by discrimination the United Kingdom could
obtain more imports than they otherwise could afford.

By Mr. Timmins:

Q. Who would put the stamp of approval on that?—A. During the period
immediately after the war, the so called transitional period, there is no prior
approval required to put such diseriminatory controls into effect. In other
words, a country simply has to be able to demonstrate that by adopting a
discriminatory program it could get more trade than it otherwise could.

By Mr. Benidickson:

Q. Demonstrate to whom?—A. Demonstrate that to the organization, to the
body which is going to administer this agreement—if someone complains.

By Mr. Pinard:
Q. And if it does not, succeed in demonstrating it was in need of doing that?
—A. Then it would have to cease discriminating. However, that test could only
arise if someone complained. They do not have to demonstrate that at the outset.

By Mr. Hackett:
Q. Is there some tribunal?—A. Yes, the tribunal will be the representatives
of the countries which have signed this agreement.

By Mr. Timmins:
Q. Do you have to notify the organization you are going to do it?—A. No.

By the Chairman.:

Q. Would you care to indicate now to what extent the Havana Charter has—
—A. Changed the situation.
Q. Changed the rule of non-discrimination made at Geneva.

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. Before you go on to that you mentioned that could happen after a war?—

A. After this war.

Q. For a period after the war; how long is that period?>—A. That period
is generally expected to be about five years in which the countries can put
discriminatory control into effect if they can demonstrate that thereby they
can get more imports than they otherwise could. §

Mr. Marquis: Would the witness say. ..
The CuamrMAN: Let the witness answer Mr. Fraser’s question first.

The WirNess: And they can do this without getting prior approval or
demonstrating it beforehand until, somebody complains. You see some other
country may say, “I am hurt by this, and I am complaining”, and if the
complainant can establish that the other country is not acting within this rule

*
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~ then the organization may require him to cease. That is true for the first
 five years. After five years discrimination is not allowed except on prior
approval.

By Mr. Fraser: ;
Q. Is that five years mentioned in the agreement?—A. Yes.
Mr. Marquis: That was my question.

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. Where abouts is that mentioned?>—A. Page 38, paragraph 3 on that page.
After March 1, 1952, no contracting party shall maintain or institute
“such action without determination by the contracting parties.

By Mr. Lesage: »
Q. It is still in the charter?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Bemdickson:

Q. Canada found itself in dollar difficulties and took some steps for its
own protection. Were any of those steps discriminatory?—A. Not formally.

By Mr. Lesage: :

Q. What about automobiles?—A. Not formally although there are dis-
criminatory elements in the Canadian program. There are some.

Q. What would they be?—A. Automobiles are a case in point.

Mr. Hackerr: Would you be a little more specific when you say there
are elements; some of us understood that there was discrimination within the
different definitions of the agreement. Is that correct?

The Wrrness: That is correct. In other words a degree of discrimination.
Generally speaking the import program in Canada is nondiscriminatory.

Mr. Benmickson: Generally speaking, we endeavour to provide our
protection on articles which would increase our imports from sterling areas
and not be discriminatory against the United States?

The Wirness: That is right. Our program in operation at the present
time endeavours to adhere to the spirit of nondiserimination but in doing so
it is applied in such a way that it will not interfere with the imports from the
soft currency countries. That is not a hundred per cent true. There are some
incidental exceptions, but by and large the purpose is not to interfere with
the imports from soft currency areas, including the sterling area, while
restricting imports from the hard currency areas keeping within the general
spirit of nondiserimination in the agreement.

Mr. Lesace: It was discriminatory in choice of articles but not in procedure.

The Wrirness: The articles of course were chosen having in mind the
amount of hard currency that was used to buy them. That is the way they
were picked. You choose your articles in such a way that you get a result
which enables you to save relatively more hard currency, you seek to get almost
all of your saving in hard currency.

Mr. LesAGE: And each country is free to select its own commodities?

The WirNess: As far as commodities are concerned, that is always up to the
countries concerned.
Mr. IsNor: Are we still at Geneva, or have we reached Havana?
The Wirness: We are still at Geneva. I have not yet introduced the
Havana agreement.
8007—2}
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Mr. Isnor: Now that we are still at Geneva, Mr. Wilgress raised a point
about the British preferential tariff and admittedly notified the United States
that they propose placing before parliament an amendment to the 1907 tariff
arrangements. Was that necessary; and, if so, is there something in the
agreement that touches on that?

The Wirness: Well, Mr. Isnor, that is another part of the agreement and has
nothing to do with balance of payments. Do you want to go into that now?

The CrARMAN: I have made a note of that to be dealt with when we come
to it. The witnesg is taking up one at a time the several points leading up to
the Havana agreement, and right at the moment he is dealing with the non-
discriminatory phase of this section.

Mr. Isnor: You are getting pretty close to Havana -anyway.

The CrArMAN: We hope to reach Havana to-night on nondls-crlmlnatory
trading.

The WiTnEss: I have no objection to answering questions at all, but it gets
off into a different field.

The CrAIRMAN: I have made a note of that.

Mr. JackmaN: In connection with the balance of payments, is each country
free to make its own selection? Can youw select the period on which it will
be based?

The Wirness: There is nothing said here in the agreement about the period.
In making such a selection, of course, I think that one has to have regard to the
spirit. While there is nothlng said about the base period obviously no one would
take as a base period 1846, or something that is clearly outrageous. As a matter
of fact, nothing is said about the base period you choose, but obviously you must
use a base period you can justify. In the Canadian import control program
years immediately preceding the war were taken as representing a more normal
situation than the situation which prevailed during any of the war years; or,
indeed, any of the years immediately following the war. The theory was that
those years were not normal years and it was obvious on the face of it that
Europe was not in a position to occupy its normal position in world trade, and to
have frozen controls on a base that was abnormal might have been very hard on
the Europeans; therefore the theory was that it would be much more in'accord
with the realities of the situation to take a more normal period on which to base
your controls, and that was done. I am not arguing one way or the other, but
that was the thought.

By Mr. Jackman:

Q. In your balance of payments position you made use of the example of a
country that had an excess of soft currency which you could use. You have also
agreed that a country may choose its base period?—A. Within reason,
Mr. Jackman.

Q. Within reason?—A. Yes.

Q. Are there any other forms of discrimination which are considered
nondiseriminatory >—A. Well, the ones that I have already mentioned, that
you can pick your commodities. That is the step most generally adopted.

Mr. HackerT: Before you leave that, if there is no range of time within
which we may choose a base period it would seem to me that the agreement is
rather loose and might be abused by people who are serupulous. For instance,
you take imports of silk, which someone mentioned, 1846; if you said 1946,
or 1936—

The CHAIRMAN: That would be highly discriminatory.

The Wirness: That is quite true. The agreement is not absolutely precise
on these things and it can be abused; but there are general provisions in here that
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any country that is signatory to this agreement may complain about the action .
of any other country. '

. Mr. Hackerr: What I was coming at is, are there any general provisions in
the agreement which state that good faith and fair dealing shall be a standard? -
The Wrrngss: That is right.

Mr. Hackerr: Where is that?

The WirNEss: Well, it is put in a sort of negative way. There is a clause
in here which relates to the method of dealing with complaints. A complaint
about the operation of any part of these agreements. Any country which feels
that any other country is not carrying out the spirit of this agreement may
complain, and it can establish its complaint, prove its complaint—

Mr. Jackman: To whom?

The Wirness: To -the organization, the body which administers this
agreement. And the body whiech administers it are the representatives of the
countries which signed it. It can establish through its representatives that
another country is not living up to the purposes and objectives of this agreement
that country can take sanctions, the complaining country can take sanctions
against the country complained about.

The CuaARMAN: Where is that found?

The Witxess: You will see on page 56, there is an article called “Nullification
or Impairment”; and it begins by saying:—

If any contracting party should consider that any benefit accruing
to it directly or indirectly under this Agreement is being nullified or
impaired or that the attainment of any objective of the Agreement is
being impeded,

ete., ete., they can lodge a complaint and the other country must come in and
discuss the complaint and if no satisfaction can be obtained in that way then
the organization may allow the complaining member to take sanctions against
the country complained against.

By Mr. Lesage:

Q. And on other countries?—A. And such other members of the organization
are permitted to do so.

Q. What would be the sanctions? Are they provided for?—A. Sanctions
are provided for. Throughout the agreement the complaining country, if it
establishes its complaint, may withdraw concessions it has made to the country
complained about. In other words, it may raise its tariffs or it may put on
controls or do anything to revoke any concession made under this agreement.

Mr. MicuAup: If the complaint is recognized as valid?

The Wrrness: Yes. That, Mr. Hackett, is the procedure for keeping a
check on the abuse of the provisions.

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. You said the complaining country could raise tariffs but are they allowed
to raise the tariffs?—A. Yes, if that country is granted the right to use sanctions.

Q. That is the only time a country would be allowed to raise the tariff?—
A. Yes, tariffs bound under the agreement.

Mr. Pinarp: Would the other countries be allowed to raise their tariffs
against the country complained of?

The Wrrness: That is a matter which the organization would have to
decide. If it was a very serious complaint or an infraction which affected many
of the other countries I would assume the organization would allow the other
countries to apply the sanctions. If it was something of which only one country
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complained then only that complaining country would be allowed to raise the
tariffs. The agreement is written rather generally and gives the organization
considerable leeway. In effect the organization has pretty wide discretion in
stating how extensive the sanctions ought to be.

Now to get back to the Havana conference. The exceptions to the rule of
non-discrimination laid down in the Geneva Agreement are somewhat more

rigid—

By Mr. Michaud:

Q. May I ask a question at this point? Is it only countries belonging to
the United Nations that took part in the trade discussions at Geneva?—A. No.
There were other countries there who were not members of the United Nations.

Q. So Havana was just a continuation of the general trade discussions?—
A. Yes, a continuation but with more countries. At Geneva it was just a selected
group but at Havana it was a world conference. At Havana there was no
restriction to only U.N. countries participating. I would mention, that Switzer-
land, which is not a member of the U.N., was represented at Havana.

Mr. Pixarp: How many nations were represented at Havana?

The Wirness: Fifty-three.

Mr. BenmicksoN: Was the Havana organization set up under the United
Nations?

The Wirness: Yes, by the Economic and Social Council. The clause in
the Geneva Agreement dealing with the exceptions to non-discrimination is
somewhat more limited than the provisions of the International Monetary Fund.
Under the International Monetary Fund, which is a separate organization as
you know, dealing with exchange and matters of that sort, there are certain rules
regarding discrimination. Those rules under the International Monetary Fund
are somewhat more liberal for certain countries than they are under the Geneva
Agreement. At Havana, countries which had more freedom with regard to
discrimination under the International Monetary Fund said that they did not-
want to restrict themselves to the extent required to adhere to the Geneva
rules. They wanted to be able to retain the freedom under which they worked
under the International Monetary Fund. That was the case with most of the

European countries.

Mr. Lesace: France?

The Wirness: Yes. The International Monetary Funds has made particular
exceptions for countries that were badly damaged during the war. They were
very lenient about what countries in that position could do, and, in effect,
they said those countries could continue to do what they were doing when they
signed the Monetary Fund agreement, and they could adapt their programs
to changing circumstances. That was a very broad exception for those countries.

Mr. BeniicksoN: Diserimination was allowed on what kind of things?

The Wirness: They said, “well now, if you are asking us to sign the
Geneva Agreement or the International Charter we would be asked to give
up some of the freedom which we have and we do not wish to do that.” They
said conditions were very bad; the trade situation in Europe had not improved
very much, and we don’t want our hands tied. They argued successfully at
Havana that they should retain the full measure of the freedom which they
had under the International Monetary Fund. Therefore at Havana a second
option was written into this clause stating that countries may operate under
the clause in the Geneva Agreement or they may operate under provisions
similar to those in the International Monetary Fund, and the members of the
organization may choose whichever option they wish.
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Mr. Timmins: Is the International Monetary Fund going to be a continuing
fund?

The Wirness: Yes. The exceptions under the International Monetary
Fund I must explain also terminate. They apply only during the transitional
period. This freedom is given during the transitional period. After that the
exceptions are withdrawn, and no discrimination can be undertaken without

prior approval.

By Mr. Lesage:

Q. Is it your opinion, Mr. Deutsch, that the wide scope of the powers, I am
thinking of this five year period particularly, would defeat the purpose of
for instance article 23 of the agreement?—A. I see what you mean. It is
recognized that this freedom is given during the transitional period and any
country may complain about the use of that freedom during the transitional
period provided that the freedom is used in a way which is clearly abusn{e.

Q. There could not be any complaint? That is why I am asking the
question?—A. Unless the freedom was used in quite an abusive manner.

Q. What I am afraid of is there will be so much freedom that the agreement
will have no effect at all?>—A. This was the dilemma. The world as it emerged
from the war was, with respect to trade, in such a disorganized condition that
to launch inmmediately into a regime of multilateral trade agreements pure
form was impossible. Currencies were inconvertible, there was inflation in
many countries, commodities were scarce, and controls were everywhere. In that
kind of a situation to have instituted a system of pure multilateral trade at
once was clearly impossible.

Q. In your opinion it was better to have a foundation than to have nothing
at all>—A. Yes. During the temporary period—we hope it will be over in five
years—we must allow a lot of things which we would normally not allow.

Mr. Pinarp: The period could be extended to more than five years.

The Witness: Yes, but for five years we must allow the countries in difficult
circumstances to have a free hand in respect to a number of things which,
granted, are not desirable from the long-run point of view. We hope in that
five year period that economic conditions will improve and that countries will
abide by the spirit of the rules. The theory was if you have an organization and
rules are laid down you can influence reconstruction in the direction of a
desirable state of affairs, and that is what is intended here.

By Mr. Lesage:
Q. And it is to that extend there was hope at Havana that this would work?
—A. That is right. 4
Q. The charter would work?—A. Most of the basic rules here will not be fully
operative during this period of transition. There are exceptions allowed during
this period.

By Mr. Michaud:

Q. Before we leave this point of diserimination and the discrimination
allowed certain European countries under the Monetary Fund, I gather those
countries may use the discrimination clause under the agreement or the one under
the Monetary Fund?—A. That is right. ;

Q. Does that apply to Canada as well, or are we bound by these rules in
the agreement?—A. T should explain that. I said earlier the countries may elect
which set of rules they will use. Naturally, in electing the option they will have
regard to the rights which they would have under each set of rules. Under the
international Monetary Fund Canada has no right to discriminate. Under the
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International Monetary Fund, the clause dealing with discrimination stated that
countries may retain for a transitional period the control programs which they
had in effect at the time of adherence. The Monetary Fund, I believe, was
signed in March of 1945. At that time, we had no controls on imports. We had
no discriminatory controls on imports in 1945 and therefore we have no rights
under that clause. We were not damaged by the war and we have no right to
discriminate under the fund but the European countries have. We are bound
to work under the clause in the Geneva Agreement. We really have no choice
in electing which one we will use.  Many of the European countries will elect
to use the Monetary Fund option because under that option they have a greater
freedom of action.

Q. All this comes under the amendments which have been drawn up at
Havana?—A. At Geneva we only had one set of rules but at Havana they agreed
to add this additional option giving some European countries the right to use the
Monetary Fund clause.

By Mr. Pinard:
Q. Which countries are they, do you know?—A. France, Denmark and
Holland, ete.

By Mr. Marquis: k
Q. Those countries are mentioned?—A. No. It is put in this way, sir, the
members can opt which one they want to elect.

By Mr. Pinard:
Q. Was any European country denied that right?—A. No, but I believe
Switzerland would not have the right.

By Mr. Marquis:

Q. I suppose those countries are known by the organization?—A. Yes, the
International Monetary Fund knows which countries have that right. The
countries themselves know and they would choose accordingly:

Q. I presume Canada has a list of those countries?—A. We have a pretty
good idea who they are. !

The Cuamman: I wonder if you would care to deal with Mr. Isnor’s
question?

By Mr. Benidickson.:

Q. Under Bretton Woods agreement, there are restrictions on the devalua-
tion we may carry out internally without the consent of the fund. Suppose we
broke our obligation under the Bretton Woods agreement, would there then be
some clause under the Geneva Agreement which would restrict our ability to
devaluate?—A. Yes. Under the Monetary Fund, as you say, there are certain
limitations on our freedom of unilateral devaluation. Within 10 per cent we do
not have to ask permission, but beyond 10 per cent we have to have the approval
of the Monetary Fund. This Geneva Agreement does not impose any obligations
on us directly with regard to exchange rates but it does contain a clause which
says that countries should be members of both institutions.

Q. What institutions?—A. The fund and the trade organization. If a
country is not a member of the International Monetary Fund, it must sign a
special exchange agreement with the ITO. In the exchange agreement, the
?att(;ier dealt with will be similar to those contained in the International Monetary

und.

By Mr. Hackett:
Q. Was France bound by both organizations?—A. Yes.
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Q. What happened when France devalued?—A. There were some disagree-
ments, but I believe they are trying to compose them now, sir. I wish to deal now
with one or two of the other major changes made in the Geneva Agreement.
There is a section in the Geneva Agreement dealing with customs uniens. It is
contained in Article 24. I do not want to get into the technicalities, but you
will find it in Article 24, page 58, territorial obligations and customs unions.

In effect, this Geneva Agreement states that a customs union arangement is
an exception to the most favoured nation rule. The most favoured nation rule
requires all countries to accord similar tariff treatment to all the others who
signed this agreement. In other words, you cannot apply one set of tariff rates
to one of the members and another set of rates to another member. You must
apply the same tariff treatment to all the members; that is the most favoured
nation rule. This clause says customs unions are an exception to that rule. In
other words, if two countries enter into a customs union the two countries entering
into this union may remove all tariffs between them. Indeed, that must be so
in order to make a customs union, but they do not have to accord this removal
of tariffs to other countries.

By Mr. Timmins:

Q. That would be like the Benelux countries?—A. Benelux is an example.
Those countries do not apply duties between themselves.

By Mr. Michaud.:

Q. None whatever?—A. None whatever. There is complete free trade
between those countries. They have a common tariff as against the rest of
the world; both countries have the same tariff as against the rest of the world.
This type of arrangement is permitted under this clause. Simply because
Belgium has given the Netherlands free treatment in tariff under this clause,
she does not have to give that free treatment to all the others.

By Mr. Pinard:

Q. Is that not a perfect case of discrimination?—A. That is the ultimate
in discrimination, in that semse. On the other hand, these countries have
adopted a common tariff; both countries have a common tariff against all other
countries.

By Mr. Marquis:
Q. Is it the same tariff?—A. It is the same tariff.

By the Chairman:

Q. In order for article 24 to apply and for the exception to apply, there
must be a complete customs union?—A. That is right, it must be a bona fide
-customs union.

By Mr. Irvine:

Q. They would be as one country, in that case?—A. They would be as one
.country as far as tariffs are concerned.

By Mr. MacNaught:

Q. Would this agreement prevent us from entering into a customs union
‘with the United States?—A. No, this clause would permit it. This clause
allows that to be done if that is what is desired. The Benelux union is permitted
“under this clause.

By Mr. Pinard:

Q. Could a country have a union with one country and still be part of a
~customs union with another country? For instance, could Holland have a
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customs union with France and still remain in the Benelux union?—A. They
would all have to be in the one. You could have France, Belgium and the
Netherlands in one union.

Q. But could Holland have a customs union with France and still have
a customs union with Belgium and the Netherlands?—A. A different one?

Q. Yes.—A. It could not be done because there has to be a common tariff.

The CuAmrMAN: If it is an absolute union, that answers your question.

By Mr. Lesage:

Q. What about Canada having a customs union with the United States
and, at the same time, keeping the preferential tariffs with Britain?—A. That
could not be allowed under a customs union. Customs union means countries
entering into an arrangement have the same tariff.

Q. So we could not get into a customs union with the United States and at
the same time keep our preferential tariff with the United Kingdom?—A. No,
that is not a customs union.

By Mr. Argue:
Q. Is there a customs union between Russia' and any other country?—
A. T do not know, sir.

By Mr. Jackman: e
Q. What would you call a customs union between Canada and the United
States, which is not permissible under the terminology? Suppose you had what
was tantamount to a customs union with the United States and still did not
want to give up the preference?—A. That would not be a customs union.
Q. What would you call it?—A. It would be a violation of this agreement.

By Mr. Lesage:

Q. We could have a customs union with the United States if we both had
the same tariff with the other states?—A. The only way you can have a customs
union with any country is if you have the same tariff for both countries. If .
you have a customs union with the United States you would have to have the
same tariff in Canada against third countries as in the United States.

Q. Do you mean you would have to have the same tariff vis-a-vig the rest
of the world?>—A. The rest of the world.

By Mr. Marquis:
Q. And between the countries?—A. The definition of a customs union is
this: two countries enter an agreement in which they removed all duties between

themselves. )
Q. They cannot have any tariff>—A. Not between themselves; but they

have a common tariff against the rest of the world. That is a customs union.

By Mr. Pinard:

Q. Tell us the differences and exceptions. Is there any difference between
this agreement and the institution that existed before the war?—A. Before the
war traditionally as a matter of custom—of traditional aceeptance—customs.
unions were always regarded as exceptions to the M.F.N. by tradition. Notwith-
standing, it was never embodied formally in a document. It was an exception
before the war by common acceptance. Now, it is formally recognized in this.
agreement that a clistoms union is a proper exception to the rule.

By Mr. Marquis:
Q. Before the first war, when they had a customs union like that they could
have a tariff with another country?—A. That is right. There was no formal
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undertaking requiring countries to have the same tariff; but in practice other
countries would not recognize unions unless they were really customs unions;
0 in practice nothing much has been changed.

By Mr. Picard:
Q. Was there not a customs union between the former German states?—A.
That is right.
Q. And was that not the aim of the Anschluss between Germany and
Austria?—A. That is right. There were customs unions before the war and they
were recognized, but they had to be real customs unions.

Mr. Hackerr: They were a conquest.

The Wirness: Some of them were based on conquest and pressure, but the
present Benelux union is a freewilled development.

By Myr. Picard:

Q. It is a departure from the procedure carried on?—A. The reason I raised
this was—

Mr. Jackman: May I ask wheit I think is a practical question? If Canada
and the States were to abolish all tariffs they could not come under this agreement
and have Canada still maintain the empire preference?

The Wrrness: Not under the agreement as it now stands.
Mr. Picarp: Unless the United States extended it?

The Wirness: It would be very unlikely. We would have to have the same
tariffs.

By Mr. Jackman:

Q. We might import goods from Britain under the preference, if you like,
and re-export them at the same time. They would have identification marks
and it might be necessary, despite the free trade areas, to have customs officers
at the border to prevent such a thing. Was this not discussed at Geneva or
Havana—the possibility of a free trade area between the United States and
Canada?—A. No, not between the United States and Canada.

Q. I understand if we ratify this agreement we cannot bring that about. Is
it likely the states would enter into empire preferences?—A. I want to get to the
point Mr. Jackman has raised, which is precisely the point I was coming to.
Under the Geneva agreement as it now stands the only exception was a pure
customs union. At Havana some countries—particularly some of the European -
countries—were interested in widening the concept of a customs union and making
it less rigid and less academic in form. As you know, there has been much discus-
sion in Europe in the last few months about customs unions, and indeed there
are very active discussions going on at the moment. There is a discussion going
on about a customs union for the whole of western Europe, and inside the general
discussion there are a lot of bilateral discussions going on. At the moment the
most important one is between France and Italy. They are actively exploring
a customs union between those two countries.

Now, in connection with this discussion these countries are anxious to get
rules put into this agreement which would make it practicable for them to work
out such arrangements and therefore have asked for an amendment to this
provision, giving it a little wider scope than it does at the present time: and so at
Havana they included a provision which stated that a free trade area should
also be an exception to the M.F.N. rule.

What is a free trade area? A free trade area, according to the definition as it
is here, is an area in which the two countries agree to remove all duties between
them but each country retains its own tariff against other countries.
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By Mr. McNaught:
- Q. That would be most impracticable, would it not?—A. Some of them
thought it would not.

Q. It must be most impracticable because how would you prevent the goods
going from one country or coming in under one tariff into the other country?—A.
Third country goods would be examined at the border and would be assessed at
the duties against the third country. You would have to have identification.

By Mr. Marquis: g

Q. What is the difference with a customs union?—A. With a customs union
the two countries entering into the arrangement must adopt the same tariff.
Under the free trade area they can maintain their own tariffs, separate tariffs,
against third parties. :

The CHAIRMAN: So that only in the free trade area there would be free
trade only with respect to domestic production; there would not be free trade
with respect— |

The WirNness: To third country goods.

Mr. HackerT: They would have to keep by their customs area.

The WirNess: They would have to have a system for identifying third
country goods and they would levy duties against the third country goods;
but as to the produce of the two countries they would move freely across the
border.

By Mr. Marquis:
Q. In the customs union they would allow the merchandise of other countries
to pass without the tariff?—A. Yes, but when they come in from third countries
they have to pay a common duty which concerns the whole area.

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. What was the result of this move?—A. This proposal by the French and
some other countries was accepted.

Q. Was accepted?—A. Was accepted as an exception from the M.F.N. rule.

Q. Will it be incorporated in whatever document comes out at Havana
supplementing this one?—A. Yes. As a matter of fact, these changes in this
clause are made in this agreement. In other words, the customs union clause
in the Geneva Agreement will be replaced by this clause that was developed
at Havana which permits the establishment of free trade areas.

By Mr. Pinard:
Q. To apply to all nations?—A. It will be equally accessible to all
countries.

By Mr. Lesage:

Q. To come back to my question of a few moments ago if we had a free
area in Canada and the United States we could still keep that?—A. Under a
free trade arrangement each country could keep its own tariffs.

Q. Whatever preference there exists?—A. That is right.

By Mr. Isnor:

Q. Could we export fish from Canada to the United States or import it
from the United States to Canada and process it and ship it out?—A. To where,
to any other country?

Q. Yes. —A. Oh, sure.
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By Mr. MacNaught:

Q. You gave us an example of a customs union, the Benelux countries.
There is no example of a free trade area?—A. There is no example at the present
time of a free trade area but I think some of the European countries are
exploring the idea. :

By Mr. Isnor:

Q. Would you say the Hamburg free port was an example of the same
principle?>—A. No, a free port is a different thing. That has been a well
established situation.

Q. I know what a free port is. I was wondering if a free area would be
on the same principle—A. Not exactly, no. A free trade area is very simply
an arrangement whereby two countries remove all duties between those two
countries but retain their usual tariffs against third countries. That is what
it is in essence, an under the Havana amendment that sort of arrangement will
be permitted in the future and will be regarded as an exception to the M.F.N.
rule.

By Mr. Timmins:
Q. That might very well result in four or five countries of Europe getting
together?—A. That is right.
Q. Under a free trade arrangement?—A. Perhaps. I believe some of the
European countries are exploring that at the moment.

By Mr. Pinard:
Q. You mentioned France and Italy?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. Can you tell us who else was interested in that? For instance, were the
Seandinavian countries interested in that proposal?—A. No, the Arab states were.
Both the French and the Arab states were interested in this proposal, and they
were able to convince the others it should be allowed and therefore that amend-
ment is being made in the Geneva document.

By Mr. Isnor:

Q. It would be more workable there than in a country like the United
States, would it not?—A. Of course, in the case of the Arab states they are all
countries that are industrially under-developed. Many of them are very small
countries, and it is a very simple business in that case.

By Mr. MacNaught:

Q. The same would apply to the Scandinavian countries?—A. Norway
and Sweden are not the same economically, you know. Sweden is a highly
industrialized country whereas Norway specializes in shipping, fishing and
lumbering. They are not closely comparable.

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. You said in this union that the third country goods that came in would
not be allowed into the other country without examination?—A. Yes.

Q. But if that country should take in say parts of machines and go ahead
and make them up into complete machines then they could ship out the com-
plete machines into other countries, could they not?—A. That depends on the
definition. There may be a content clause put in providing that the content
must reach a certain figure.

Q. That is one way they could overcome that?—A. Yes.
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By Mr. Argue:

Q. Are barter arrangements allowed?—A. It depends under what condi-
tilcl)ns.edDuring the transitional period certain types of barter arrangements are
allowed.

Q. For instance, Canada could trade so many bushels of wheat for so
many yards of textiles with Britain, for instance?—A. Under certain conditions.
In other words, if it were necessary to get a scarce commodity by that device
that would be permitted, but it is not permitted as a general rule. There are
certain exceptions for the transitional period.

I just want to finish up now the effect of the Havana Agreement on this -
Geneva Agreement, and there is one more amendment that was made which is
of some importance. In the Geneva Agreement no country other than the
seventeen which signed at Geneva could be admitted into this club unless all
of the seventeen agreed unanimously that it should be admitted.

The CHAIRMAN: Article?

The Wirness: That is article 33, on page 68. No country could join this
club, if I may use that term, unless all the members agreed. All the countries
have to agree and make proper concessions. It is one of those very exclusive
clubs that no new member can be allowed into unless all of the seventeen agreed
that the new applicant should be allowed in. That is the way the Geneva
Agreement read. Now, at Havana, several of the members felt that was pretty
stiff and they agreed to modify that to a two-thirds majority, so that if two-
thirds of the existing members agree new members could come in, even though
someone complained that they did not think the applicant was a suitable
applicant. That was the other major amendment. But, of course, it is under-
stood that any new member has to pay his dues, like in any club. He has to
make tariff concessions.

By Mr. Marquis:
Q. Did the other countries which signed the agreement accept that rule?—
A. That is the rule. The seventeen countries at Geneva agreed among them-
selves that all of the seventeen were eligible, but this is directed against any
new members. Of course, the countries at Havana, and there were some 50
countries there, thought that was pretty stiff, that any one of the original
seventeen members could blackmail any other applicant.

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. Was the result of lowering that such that new members came in?—A. It
would help. They said, we think the unanimity rule too stiff, but if you make
it two-thirds we would come along.

Q. It immediately brought new members in?—A. No, because at Havana
there was no negotiation of tariffs. In order to get into this club you have to
negotiate tariffs.

By Mr. Lesage:

Q. That is a question I was going to ask, when will they come in?—
A. Within two years after the charter comes into force each country must have
carried out its obligations to negotiate tariffs.

Q. With how many countries?—A. There were fifty. .

Q. With all the others?—A. Yes, but we do not know how many countries
will ratify the charter. Suppose thirty countries ratify it and bring it into
effect, each of the thirty countries which is not one of the seventeen at Geneva
undertakes the obligation to negotiate its tariffs within two years.

Mr. Marquis: Only seventeen have ratified?
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The Wirness: The others have to negotiate within two years. I believe,
Mr. Chairman, that covers the main changes made at Havana, but I might
say at this point the members will want to get the complete charter as it was
produced at Havana. As soon as we obtain copies we will see that the members
get the final text. The charter has in it a number of things which are not in
the agreement at all. The agreement relates purely to commercial policy
matters, purely to tariffs, and trade questions. The Havana Charter has a
chapter on commodity agreements. The rules relating to commodity agree-
ments are not in the Geneva Agreement. The Havana Charter also has a
chapter on international cartels which is called restrictive business practices.

Mr. IrviNe: Are we accepting the Havana Charter or the Geneva Charter?

The Wirness: We are only considering the Geneva Agreement. I do not
know what the intention of the government is. Later it may wish to have the
Havana Charter submitted for approval.

Mr. Isnor: Before you make your report, Mr. Chairman, is it your desire
to go through this clause by clause?

The CramrMAN: I am in the hands of the committee but it is my opinion,
with respect to these heavy assignments, that it is just as well for the committee
to have a free hand for a few meetings before deciding what their final com-
mitment shall be.

Mr. Furron: May I make a suggestion? At a meeting to be held quite soon,
I suggest that Mr. Deutsch or Mr. MacKinnon explain the way in which the
International Trade Organization functions, who runs it, and how the governing
body is set up? What is the constitution of the central body? I do not find it
in the agreement, but there is constant reference to the contracting organization
and the contracting parties. I take it that they mean in one case the international
Trade Organization which would appear to be given certain powers. For instance
the contracting organization must approve what each contracting party wishes
to do. I am wondering just what the constitution is?

The WrirNess: That matter is a large subject in itself and it can be gone
into later.

Mr. Pivarp: Is there any publication which gives that information?

The Wrrness: I should say that the organization provided for is different
from the charter. The agreement has its own organization and the charter has
its own organization.

The CHAlRMAN: Before we adjourn we should reach an agreement on the
matter of printing which was left in abeyance at the opening of the meeting and
we should also decide on the time at which the next meeting will take place.
Woujlf Thgrsday night at the same hour be satisfactory to the committee?

greed. :

Mimeographed copies are now being distributed of the changes which were
made at Havana and which have been discussed tonight.

Now with respect to printing the members of the committee have had a
chance to think this matter over.

Mr. Fraser: Mr. Chairman, do you'not think many of the manufacturers
and exporters would like to have this information? I think we should have
quite a few copies if we do print them.

Mr. TomMmins: I think we should have 2,000 copies.

The CHAmRMAN: Mr. Timmins moves that we print 2,000 copies of today’s
proceedings to which will be attached as Appendix B compilation of the principal
tariff concessions affecting Canadian products. (See Appendix B). There will
also be a statement showing the British preferential and most favoured nation
rates[,\eﬂ'e::itive July 1, 1949. Is that agreed? (See Appendix C).

greed.







APPENDIX A

MULTILATERAL TRADE AGREEMENT BETWEEN SEVENTEEN
COUNTRIES HAS WIDE APPLICATION HERE

Press release, issued on November 17, 1947, provides comprehensive
introduction, with summary of concessions secured by Canada .
and granted by this Dominion to other countries.

Press RELEASE

On Wednesday, October 29, it was announced by the Prime Minister that
Canada had successfully concluded at Geneva, Switzerland, tariff and trade
negotiations with a number of countries and that on the following day there
would be signed on behalf of Canada a multilateral General Agreement on Tariffs
and Trade, together with a Protocol of Provisional Application. On October 30
those instruments were duly signed by L. D. Wilgress, Canadian Minister to
Switzerland.

The Prime Minister’s statement indicated those countries with which
Canada had completed negotiations, viz.: United States of America, Belgium-
Luxembourg and the Netherlands (comprising the new customs union of
“Benelux”), Brazil, Chile, China, Cuba, Czechoslovakia, France, Lebanon-
Syria, and Norway, as well as the United Kingdom, the Union of South Africa,
Ceylon, India, and Pakistan.

The General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade and the Protocol of Prov-
isional Application, which together constitute the Final Act of the proceedings
of the Preparatory Committee for the World Conference on Trade and Employ-
ment, represent the culmination of intensive tariff negotiations which began
in Geneva last May. The Draft Charter for an International Trade Organ-
ization, published earlier, signifies the fruits of seven months of effort by the
members of the Preparatory Committee to formulate a code of international
conduct in respect of commercial policy, commodity policy, restrictive business
practices, employment, and development. The Draft Charter will go forward
for adoption to the World Conference to be convened at Havana on November 21.

The General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade, which includes the schedules
of tariff concessions, will be brought into force provisionally on January 1,
1948, by the countries which have signed the Protocol of Provisional Application.
This Protocol has been signed by Australia, Belgium, Canada, France, Luxem-
bourg, Netherlands, United Kingdom, and the United States. It remains
open to the other countries which have participated in the Geneva negotiations
to sign the Protocol at a later date.

As formulated at Geneva, the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade
is a substantive international agreement—independent of but complementary
to the Draft Charter—which can, if necessary stand by itself. It comes into
force, provisionally, by itself, and is so framed as to permit its continuance
in operation in a definitive sense even though the Havana Conference should
fail to produce an acceptable Charter. It contains such provisions regarding -
commercial policy as have for years been standard in most bilateral trade
agreements, as well as many of the provisions of the Draft Charter which were
approved by the negotiating countries at Geneva as essential and desirable
provisions of a multilateral trade agreement.
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Reference to the text of the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade
will reveal that various Parts and Articles thereof formulate principles and
rules fundamental to the application and enforcement of what is in effect an
international code. Those relative to Commercial Policy in the broadest
sense of the phrase deal with such matters as Most-Favoured-Nation Treat-
ment, Preferences, Customs Duties and other duties and charges, National
Treatment on Internal Taxation and Regulation, Freedom of Transit, Anti-
Dumping and Countervailing Duties, Valuation for Customs Purposes, Form-
alities connected with Importation and Exportation of Goods, Marks of
Origin, Publication and Administration of Trade Regulations, ete.

Interlocking closely with the more standard provisions respecting Com-
mercial Policy above referred to, are those relevant portions of the Draft
Charter on Quantitative Restrictions which have been embodied in the General
Agreement. In general, quantitative restrictions are prohibited. There are,
however, exceptions to this basic rule which are carefully defined, including
exceptions which are permitted in respect of countries involved in balance of
payments difficulties. The provisions regarding Non-Diseriminatory Adminis-
tration of Quantitative Restrictions and the Exceptions to the Rule of Non-
Discrimination which are important features of the basie rules regarding the
use of quantitative restrictions in any form, are carefully formulated and
set forth in the General Agreement.

Other important Articles of the General Agreement relate to Exchange
Arrangements, Export Subsidies, State-Trading Enterprises, Adjustments in
Connection with Economic Development, Emergency Action on Imports of
Particular Products, General and Security Exceptions, Consulation, Nullification
or Impairment, Joint Action by the Contracting Parties, Entry into Force,
Withholding or Withdrawing of Concessions, Modification of (Tariff)
Schedules, ete.

The General Agreement includes a provision entitled “Relation of this
‘Agreement to the Charter for an International Trade Organization.” Under
this provision, the signatories to the General Agreement undertake that,
“pending their acceptance of such a Charter in accordance with their consti-
tutional procedures,” they will “observe to the fullest extent of their executive
authority the general principles of the draft Charter submitted to the (Havana)
Conference by the Preparatory Committee.” It is further provided that on
the coming into force of the Charter after the Havana Conference, certain
parts and sections of the General Agreement shall be superseded by the cor-
responding provisions of the Charter. However, any contracting party to the
General Agreement may lodge an objection to any provision of the Agreement
being so suspended or superseded, in which case all the contracting parties
shall confer to consider the objection in order to agree whether the provisions
of the Charter to which objection has been lodged, on the corresponding pro-
visions of the Agreement in its existing form or any amended form, shall
apply. Any contracting party may on or after January 1, 1951, withdraw
from the General Agreement upon the expiration of six months prior notifica-
tion of such intention.

Under the terms of the Protocol of Provisional Applications, Canada will
bring into force on January 1, 1948, Parts T and IIT of the General Agreement
—that is (1) those Articles thereof which provide for Most-Favoured-Nation
Treatment in administration of the text and the Schedule of Tariff Concessions;
(2) the Schedule of Tariff Concessions (Schedule V); and (3) the general
Articles relative to Acceptance, Entry into Force, Withdrawal, ete. Also on
January 1, 1948, Canada will bring provisionally into force Part II of the
General Agreement (i.e—all other provisions thereof) “to the fullest extent
not inconsistent with existing legislation.”
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An illustration of the manner in which this safeguarding proviso will
apply is afforded in the case of oleomargarine: this is at present prohibited from

importation by statute, which prohibition will continue to apply unless and

until dealt with by Parliament.

Preferences, no less than rates of duty, played a vital part in the negotiations

at Geneva, and the General Agreement sets forth the basic principles agreed
upon as governing in future, and during the life of the new Agreement, the
manner in which and the extent to which preferences may be a feature of
bilateral agreements among the units of any preferential area. Very briefly,
these are that no new preferences may be created, that no existing preferences
may be enlarged, and that such preferences as remain after the conclusion of
the Geneva negotiations shall be negotiable—that is, they may be reduced or
narrowed by negotiations with foreign countries, in return for the granting
by such negotiating foreign countries of concessions or benefits to the giver
or the holder, or both, on such preferences.
' Just as preferences remaining “after Geneva” are negotiable (i.e—
subject to elimination or impairment only by the process of negotiation),
so were preferences “pre-Geneva” negociable during the past summer. In
many instances, the foreign country negotiating with Canada expressed chief
interest in a reduction of the rate of duty; in others, the “margin of preference,”
as distinet from the favoured-nation rate, was the desideratum; in not a few
negotiations concerned both the rate of duty and the preference. Naturally,
Canada was involved, preference-wise, on two fronts: demands by foreign
countries upon other Commonwealth areas for elimination or reduction of prefer-
ences enjoyed by Canada in those areas; and demands by foreign countries
for elimination or narrowing (by reduction of the favoured-nation rate) of
preference enjoyed in the Canadian tariff by other Commonwealth countries.
From the outset, Canada strongly opposed the narrowing of preferential margins
by the device of raising preferential rates and it will be seen from a study of
the Schedule that, in so far as concerns the Canadian tariff, there is only a single
instance of the raising or imposing of a duty under the British Preferential
Tariff; in all other instances, the preferential margin, if narrowed at all, has
been narrowed by the reduction of the rate applicable to favoured-nations. This
principle relative to her own tariff, Canada was content to have apply equally
in respect of the preferences enjoyed by her products in various Commonwealth
countries and in order to do her part in making it possible for the latter to
reach agreement with other negotiating nations, the Canadian Government
assented in several instances to the elimination or the reduction of those pre-
ferential margins to which she had been entitled and to which her producers
had become accustomed. The extent to which such preferences in other Com-
monwealth areas have been modified under the new Agreement is fully sef
forth in later sections of this statement as are also the number and magnitude
of the concessions secured by Canada in many countries of the world.

Although more than one hundred separate and distinet agreements
respecting tariffs and preferences were worked out at Geneva, the results of
all those appear as one comprehensive Schedule (numbered.Schedules I to
XX, inclusive) to the General Agreement. The Schedule No. V, consolidates
tbe concessions granted by Canada to all the countries with which negotia-
tions were successfully concluded; therefore, the rates of customs duty set
forth therein are generalized among the participating nations or countries.
As was the case with many of the countries, parties to preferential tariff
arra-ngcments, the Canadian Schedule (No. V) is in two parts: Part I comprises
all items of the Canadian tariff negotiated with any or all countries, and the
rates set forth therein will apply to all “members of the Club” not entitled

to lower or special preferential rates; Part II comprises those tariff items which
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were the subject of negotiation with Commonwealth countries, and the rates
set forth therein will apply to those areas of the Commonwealth entitled
to the benefits of the British Preferential Tariff. No item appears in Part II,
bearing a preferential rate which does not appear also in Part I, bearing the
rate applicable to those other countries parties to the Geneva negotiations. The
rates of duty specified in Part I are designated as the duties under the “Most-
Favoured-Nation-Tariff” and (subject to such revision of the Draft Charter
as may be made at Havana) may be applied provisionally to those countries, not
participants at Geneva, with which Canada has in the past exchanged most-
favoured-nation treatment.

The term of the General Agreement is the standard one of three years
(i.e—to January 1, 1951) but the Agreement contains the usual provision for
continuance in force thereafter, subject to six months’ notice of termination.

Study of the terms of the new Agreement and of the Schedules there-
to will reveal that it is the most far-reaching and comprehensive agreement
of its kind in Canadian history. Further, that the Canadian portion of the
multilateral instrument is a vital part of what is probably the most com-
prehensive multilateral trade agreement ever attempted. From the Canadian
point of view, the achievement of a multilateral understanding among so
many countries, representing as they do such a large percentage of the world
trade, is particularly gratifying, not merely because of the potentialities it offers
in respect of enlarged markets abroad for Canadian exports but no less because
of the fact, that from the inception of the idea of a multilateral effort to
reduce barriers to trade throughout the world as a foundation for world peace,
the Canadian Government and the Canadian public have shown intense interest
in the objective and have consistently assisted in its attainment. Repre-
sentatives of Canada joined in the earliest informal and exploratory discussions
both at London and Washington, in 1943, 1944, and 1945. A Canadian delega-
tion participated in the first session of the Preparatory Committee at London
in October and November of 1946; and again a Canadian delegation has been
~ an active participant at Geneva during the past seven or eight months. In all
these conferences, the outstanding importance of Canada’s place in world
trade has been recognized and is evidenced by the fact that Schedule V to the
General Agreement is one of the largest and most comprehensive in the series
of twenty such marking the culmination of the negotiations.

Needless to say, the conclusion by Canada of mutually-satisfactory nego-
tiations with other countries would not have been easy—indeed, might have
been impossible—had it not been for the co-operation extended by those other
countries of the Commonwealth with which she has trade agreements, notably
the United Kingdom, Australia, South Africa, New Zealand, and the West
Indies. Throughout the long and complicated series of negotiations, there was
on the part of all the Commonwealth countries a readiness to understand and
appreciate one another’s problems and a joint determination to assist one
another in arriving at agreements which all could recommend as being in
the interests of each and of the world at large.

One result of this co-operative attitude is that there has been concluded
on Canada’s initiative a revision of the Canada-United Kingdom Trade Agree-
ment (1937). The exchange of letters in this regard is being made publie
with this announcement. Under this exchange of letters each country undertakes,
with respect to goods covered by the relevant Schedules of the multilateral
Agreement (Schedules V and XIX), to continue to accord to the products of
the other treatment no less favourable in general than has been accorded
under -the existing Agreement of 1937, but in which also each government
recognizes the right of the other to reduce or eliminate preferences. In taking
such initiative, the Canadian government has had in mind the historic Cana-
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dian attitude respecting preferences, namely, that these concessions, freely
given, are not matters of rigid contractual right of obligation. It is the
intention of the Canadian government to propose to the other Commonwealth
governments concerned agreements with them similar to that now concluded
between this country and the United Kingdom. :

In studying the Schedule attributed by number to countries other than
Canada—that is, those which indicate the tariff treatment to be granted to
Canadian products entering such countries—one must realize that they are
in terms of the tariffs of those countries just as Schedule V is in terms of the
Canadian tariff. With many of these foreign countries, Canada had not hitherto
negotiated tariff rates but had merely exchanged most-favoured-nation treat-
ment, with the consequence that the form and appearance of many of the
Schedules will be unfamiliar to Canadian eyes. While inquiries in detail in
this regard should be submitted to the Foreign' Tariffs Division of the Depart-
ment of Trade and Commerce, Ottawa, attention might here be drawn to cer-
tain basic considerations which should be borne in mind in analysing the
contents of each country-schedule:

(1) In the case of concessions granted by the United States (Schedule XX),
the rate of duty shown in the third column does not in many instances tell the
entire story of the results of Canada’s continuing efforts to secure access to
that great market. Very frequently the rate indicated as the one now to
apply is only one-half or even one-quarter of the duty which applied in, say,
1930. An example is afforded by the item re Twrnips: prior to 1935, the rate
of duty was 25 cts. per 100 pounds; in the 1935 Agreement, Canada secured
a 50 per cent reduction in rate, to 124 cts.; in the 1938 Agreement, the 12%
ct. rate was bound; and in this new Agreement there has been secured a second
reduction by 50 per cent, namely.—a rate of 64 cents per 100 pounds. Successive
reductions of which this is an illustration do not appear in the Schedule now
published but in most important instances detailed explanations in later sections
of this statement indicate where the new and lowest rate is the result of one,
two or more reductions by agreement.

(2) In not a few instances, Canada stands to benefit materially, although
indirectly, by virtue of the multilateral character of the negotiations and the
generalization of the benefits. A good illustration is the concession granted
by the United States on fresh beef and veal, the rate on which is reduced from
6 cts. to 3 cts. per Ib. Here the negotiating country, as principal supplier,—or
potential principal supplier—was Australia, but the concession extends to all
the “members of the club” and Canada may expect to derive substantial
benefits from this reduction in duty.

(3) The Schedules which include the concessions granted to Canada by
Benelux (Schedule II), France (Schedule XI) or Norway (Schedule XIV), for
example, indicate the maximum import duty to apply in future on imports of
wheat. Only by reference to the explanations given in the appropriate section
of this statement, however, can one understand and appreciate the achievement
represented by such scheduled rates. The attainment of the tariff treatment
specified came only after long and persistent effort on the part of Canada’s
negotiators to arrive at a workable formula by which to measure and restrict
the net protection afforded by state-monopolies to their own producers of bread
grains.

(4) Under the provisions of the Trade Agreements Act, the power of the
President of the United States to negotiate changes in the United States is
subject to definite limitations. In particular, he is expressly forbidden to
remove any article from the dutiable list to the free list, or from the free to
the dutiable list. In addition, he is not permitted to take any action which
would have the effect of reducing any duty by more than 50 per cent of the
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rate applicable at the beginning of 1945. The United States negotiators were
limited also to a list of items on which they were specifically authorized to
negotiate. While this so-called “statutory list” was very extensive, some im-
portant items were excluded from it and therefore could not be discussed at
Geneva. One of the principal reasons for excluding such items from the list
was the “principal supplier” rule, which although not preseribed by any law or
international agreement, was for obvious reasons followed in practice to a very
large extent by all the participating countries. Under the principal-supplier
rule, each country tended to negotiate prospective tariff concessions on any
particular item not with any minor producer but with the country mainly
interested in supplying that item, which would also presumably be the country
most likely to offer concessions in exchange. When the principal supplier
of any article was for any reason not among the countries represented at
Geneva (although it may be represented in future trade conferences), there
was a tendency to postpone the discussion of the tariff on that article until
the principal supplier could be present to take part in the discussion and to
make offers of reciprocal concessions. Thus, in the absence of such countries
as Argentina, Sweden, Denmark, Switzerland, Italy, and Turkey (to mention
only a few countries at random), there was a general inclination to postpone
till a future occasion, the negotiation of tariff reductions on items of which
such countries have been or are likely to be the principal suppliers.

Ancillary to the General Agreement are certain exchanges of notes and
letters, additional to the one elsewhere referred to respecting a revision of the
Canada-United Kingdom Trade Agreement of 1937.

One of these, entitled “Agreement between Canada and the United States
of America Supplementary to the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade,” is
included in today’s release. It provides for the suspension rather than the
termination of the Canada-United States Trade Agreement of 1938, the instru-
ments exchanged making clear that the 1938 Agreement shall be inoperative
for such time as Canada and the United States are both contracting parties
to the (new) General Agreement con Tariffs and Trade. The second letter
(also published today) records the intention of the Government of Canada to
invite Parliament at its forthcoming session to amend Section 5 of the Customs
Tariff to provide that the discount of 10 per cent therein provided for in respect
of goods imported under the British Preferential Tariff shall not apply in respect
of imports on which the British Preferential rate is the same as the Most-
Favoured-Nation rate.

CONCESSIONS SECURED BY CANADA

Concessions secured for Canadian produets in the various countries with
which negotiations were concluded cover an extremely wide range and will be
of interest to all parts of the Dominion. Since it is necessary in this portion
of the statement to deal with commodities (or groups of commodities) as well
as with countries, it may be in the interest of clarity and brevity to begin by
summarizing the principal concessions—in terms of chief export commodities—
granted by various countries to Canada.

PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS

Wheat: Maximum reduction in the United States duty and substantial
reductions in the customs duty and/or “monopoly charges” in France, Belgium
and Luxembourg, Netherlands, Cuba and Norway, with binding of free entry or
existing duty in China and Brazil.

Coarse grains: Maximum reductions in the United States duties on oats,
barley, rye, bran, shorts, middlings, grain hulls, sereenings and scalpings.
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Wheat flour: Maximum reduction in United States duty and reduction in
duty and/or monopoly tax in Benelux and Cuba, as well as reduction in duties
in French colonial possessions. /

Seeds: Maximum reductions in United States duties on alfalfa, red clover,
alsike clover, sweet clover, and timothy, with reductions on other grass and forage
seeds. Binding in Benelux of free entry for clover and forage crop seeds; reduc-
tion in Czechoslovakia on lucerne and grass seeds; and binding in France of free
entry of clover and other forage seeds.

Seed Potatoes: Continuance in United States of existing quota rate on certi-
fied seed potatoes with increase in quota from 1,500,000 bushels to 2.500,000
bushels. :
Free entry for seed potatoes bound in Brazil and in Cuba on seasonal basis. -

Twrnips: Maximum reduction in United States duty.

Spirituous Liquors: Substantial reduction in United States duties on whisky
and gin. j

Apples: Reduction in duties in United States on fresh apples and maximum
reduction on dried and canned apples. Reductions by Benelux on fresh and
dried apples; by France on fresh and dried apples and apple juice; and by
Norway on fresh apples.

Berries: Reductions in United States duties on blueberries, both frozen and
canned, as well as on other frozen berries.

Cattle: Binding of the United States rate of 11 cents per lb. on cattle weigh-
ing 700 lbs. or more each together with an enlargement of the quota from 225,000
head to 400,000 head ; and binding of the rate of 1} cents per 1b. on calves with an
enlargement of the quota from 100,000 head to- 200,000 head.

Dairy Products, Eggs, Etc.: Maximum reduction in United States duties
on live poultry of all kinds; on all dressed poultry other than turkeys; and on
baby chicks, canned chicken and dead game birds.

Quota retained on fresh cream but quota rate reduced from 28-3 cts. per
gallon to 20 cts. Quota retained on whole milk, but quota rate reduced from
3icts. per gallon to 2 cts. Reductions in rates on skimmed milk and buttermilk,
condensed milk (sweetened and unsweetened), whole milk dried, and skim milk
and buttermilk, dried.

Butter: United States duty reduced from 14 cts. to 7 cts. per 1b. on global
quota of 50,000,000 pounds.
Reductions in duties in France on concentrated milk, butter and cheese.

Cheese: United States duty reduced on cheddar cheese.

Cod fillets: Continuance in the United States of the existing quota and quota
rate but with a binding of the ex-quota rate of 2% cents per pound (not bound
under the existing Agreement).

Other fisheries products: Maximum reductions in United States duties on
fresh or frozen salmon and halibut; reductions in duties on other fresh fish, on
smoked or kippered herring, on pickled salmon, and on cod, dry or green salted,
pickled, ete.

Binding by Benelux of free entry of fish, fresh or chilled, salted, smoked or
dried; reduction by France on canned salmon and canned lobster; reduction by
Brazil on dry salted codfish and by Cuba on dried codfish; reductions by Czecho-
slovakia on salted herrings and preserved salmon; by India on canned fish; and
by Norway on canned lobster, canned salmon and salted salmon.

Lumber: Maximum reductions in United States duty, as well as in L.R.C.
tax, on sawn and dressed boards, planks, ete. of fir, hemlock, spruce, pine and
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larch. Maximum reductions also in duties on red cedar plywood, veneers (other
than of birch or maple, which are bound at 10 p.c.), and binding of free entry for
wood pulp, poles, ties, staves, ete. :

Binding by Benelux of free entry for logs, pulpwood and wood pulp and of
low rates on veneer sheets and tongued and grooved wood; reductions in French
duties on logs, pulpwood, veneer leaves, tongued and grooved wood, and wood
pulp; and by India on Douglas fir timber.

Base metals: Reduction by one-third of United States duty on aluminum
metal and by 50 per cent of the duties on aluminum plates, sheet, serap, ete.
Maximum reduction on magnesium, tantalum, cadmium, nickel in all forms
except tubes and tubing, and zinc sheets, scrap and dross, together with binding
of free entry and maximum reduction in LR.C. tax on all copper,
~ Binding by Benelux of free entry for lead and zinc ores; copper in pigs,
ingots, etc.; nickel in ingots, plates, etc.; aluminum in ingots, plates, ete.; and
zine ingots.

Binding by France of free entry for important ores and reductions in duty
on vtarlous forms of copper, nickel, aluminum and zine and free entry for lead
ingots.

Binding by Czechoslovakia and Norway of free entry for certain forms of
copper, nickel, aluminum, and cadmium. '

Non-metallic minerals: Numerous reductions in various countries in duties
on mica, tale, and corundum, with continuance of free entry of asbestos in United
States, Benelux, and Czechoslovakia, and of free entry in United States of coal
and coke, artificial abrasives (crude), caleium cyanide, gypsum, stone, and sand
(including nepheline syenite).

Chemicals: Maximum reductions in United States duties on acetic anhydride,
vinyl acetate and synthetic resins, selenium dioxide and tellurium compounds,
aluminum hydroxide, ammonium nitrate, calcium carbide, acetylene and other
blacks, and salt, with reductions in duties on acetic acid and crude barytes.

Manufactured Goods: Reductions in United States duties on electric stoves
and many other appliances employing an electric element; aircraft and parts,
pleasure craft, reciprocating locomotives, many articles and wares of metal,
paint-brush handles, baby carriages, canoes and paddles, mop handles, skis,
hockey sticks, toboggans, and equipment for exercise or play; pipe organs and
parts, rubber substitutes and synthetic rubber. Continuance of free entry for
agricultural implements.

Reductions or binding of free entry or low rates in one or several of Benelux,
France, India, Norway, Brazil, Chile, China, Cuba, and Czechoslovakia on such
goods as soaps, synthetic rubber, rubber belting, agricultural implements, lamps
and lanterns, heating and cooking apparatus, insulators; ice skates, aireraft and
parts, domestic refrigerators, rubber tires, sewing machines, electrodes and
batteries, knitting-machine needles, bronze powder, and skis.

As regards the United States, it should be stated in general that the new
Agreement preserves and continues for Canada practically all the advantages
obtained in former trade agreements (including the binding of free entry of
goods of the kinds which represented approximately two-thirds of all Canadian
exports to the United States during 1939) and embodies new and often maximum
concessions on a large proportion of the remainder. :

General Products: Reductions in United States duties on maple syrup, maple
sugar, honey, hay, straw, millet, dried peas, beef and veal, edible offal, lamb,
mutton, wool, dried and frozen eggs, canned fruits, dried potatoes, potato starch,
onions, various fresh vegetables, certain processed and canned vegetables, soups,
juices and sauces, most vegetable seeds, tobacco, ete.
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'CONCESSIONS ON AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS

Grain, Grain Products and Hay

United States: Under the Geneva Agreement concessions are obtained on
33 commodities in the grain, grain products and hay group. The maximum
reduction of 50 per cent of the rate of duty in effect at the beginning of the year
1945 applies to 18 products, some reduction is obtained on 9 commodities and a
binding by inclusion in the Schedule of new duties with no change in the rate,
is provided for in the case of 6 products.

The duty on wheat is reduced from 42 cents a bushel to 21 cents a bushel
and the quota provision which limited imports to 800,000 bushels annually is
to be removed. There is no change in the Canadian most-favoured-nation tariff
which remains at 12 cents per bushel. The duty on wheat flour is reduced from
$1.04 per 100 pounds to 52 cents per 100 pounds and the quota is to be removed.
Prior to this agreement United States imports of wheat flour were limited to
4,000,000 pounds annually. The Canadian tariff remains unchanged at 50 cents
per barrel. The United States import duty on barley is reduced from 15 cents
a bushel to 74 cents, on oats from 8 cents to 4 cents and on rye from 12 cents to
6 cents a bushel. Canada reciprocates by reducing import duties on coarse grains
to the same level as the United States. Canada also reduces the duty on
imported corn by 2 cents to 8 cents a bushel. The former rate was 10 cents a
bushel.

The maximum reduction of 50 per cent is obtained also from the United
States on semolina from $1.04 to 52 cents per 100 pounds; pearl barley from
1 cent to 4 cent per pound; millet from 1 cent to % cent per pound; dried beans
from 3 cents to 14 cents per pound during the period May 1 to the following
August 31; dried peas from 13 cents to £ cent per pound; soya beans from 2 cents
to 1 cent per pound; hay from $2.50 to $1.25 per ton; bran, shorts and middlings
from 5 per cent to 2% per cent; dried beet pulp from $3.75 to $1.90 per ton; malt
sprouts and brewers’ grains from $2.50 to $1.25 per ton; grain hulls from 5 cents
to 24 cents per 100 pounds; screenings and scalpings from 5 per cent to 24 per
cent ad valorem.

Some reduction in the United States tariff rate is received on wheat starch
from 14 cents to 1 cent per pound; barley malt from 40 cents to 30 cents
per 100 pounds; rye flour from 45 cents to 30 cents per 100 pounds; rye malt

" from 35 cents to 30 cents per 100 pounds; buckwheat from 15 cents to 10 cents

per 100 pounds; buckwheat flour from 30 cents to 20 cents per 100 pounds;
split peas from 11 cents to 1 cent per pound; rape seed from free plus 2 cents
revenue tax to free plus 1 cent per pound; straw from 75 cents to 50 cents

per ton. X : :
On the following grain and grain products there are no changes in the

rates of duty which have been bound against increase by inclusion in the
Schedule. The bound items include, wheat, unfit for human consumption at
5 per cent; wheat when manufactured into flour in the United States and the
flour exported, exempt from duty; unhulled ground oats at 2% cents per
100 pounds; rolled oats and oat meal at 10 per cent, but not less than 40 cents
nor more than 80 cents per 100 pounds; cereal breakfast foods at 10 per cent;
and mixed feeds at 5 per cent ad valorem.

Beneluz: Although in past years wheat imported into the Netherlands,
Belgium and Luxembourg has been admitted free of any customs duty, imports
have be_en subject to a varying monopoly fee in the Netherlands and a cor-
responding duty in the Belgium-Luxembourg Economic Union. These restrictive
devxf:es l.xad the same effect. as a customs duty and due to their variability made
trading in wheat and wheat flour with these countries uncertain and speculative.
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Under their stabilization programs the domestic selling prices of wheat and
flour were frequently maintained at levels considerably above the world prices
for these products.

At Geneva, Canada negotiated a wheat agreement with Benelux which
provides that imported wheat will continue to be admitted free of customs duty
and the selling price of wheat in the Netherlands, Belgium and Luxembourg
shall not exceed the average landed cost of imported wheat by more than
4 florins per 100 kilograms in the Netherlands and 66-08 franes per 100 kilo-
grams in Belgium and Luxembourg. This maximum import duty corresponds
to about 40 cents per bushel. «In order to carry out their price stabilization
program, in the event of a sharp decline in world wheat prices, the agreement
provides that the selling price shall not be required to be reduced by more than
1 florin or 16-52 francs respectively or 10 per cent, whichever is the less, in any
six-week period. This means that the domestic selling price of wheat in the
Benelux countries must follow world prices down on a graduated scale and
when prices move to lower levels by reason of the agreement they will have
the intended effect of discouraging domestic production.

The agreement contains a mixing regulation which provides that not more
than an average of 35 per cent per annum of domestic wheat or similar domestic
products including potato flour, shall be required to be mixed with imported
wheat in the production of flour.

The wheat flour agreement with the Netherlands provides for the free
entry of a quantity not in excess of 50,000 metric tons per year and 3 per cent
ad valorem for imports in excess of this quantity. Imports into Belgium and
Luxembourg are subject to a duty of 3 per cent. The monopoly and cor-
responding charges on imported flour are limited to the equivalent of those
imposed on_wheat.

. Belgian Congo: Continued free entry is obtained for wheat flour, oat meal
and rolled oats.

Brazil: The tariff on wheat, wheat flour and barley malt is bound against
increase.

China: The rate of duty on wheat and wheat flour is bound against
inerease in the tariff schedule at 15 per:-cent. The duty on malt is reduced
from 15 per cent to 124 per cent and the duty on oat meal continues at 25 per
cent ad valorem.

Cuba. Substantial concessions are obtained from Cuba. The duty on wheat
is reduced from 40 cents per 100 kilograms to 16 cents and on wheat flour the
duty is reduced from $1.30 to 83 cents par 100 kilograms. It is further provided
that the United States preference on wheat flour shall not exceed 20 cents per
100 kilograms. The duty on rolled oats is bound at $1:625 per 100 kilograms
and the duty on brewers’ malt is reduced from 30 cents to 25 cents per
100 kilograms.

France: Before the war France imposed an ad valorem duty of 50 per cent
on imported wheat, and in order to encourage increased home production France
maintained the domestic price of wheat 100 to 200 per cent above the world
price. In the agreement which Canada negotiated with France at Geneva
important concessions in the rate of duty and the domestic selling price are
obtained. France agrees to reduce the import duty to 30 per cent and further
agrees that the selling price shall not exceed by more than 15 per cent the average
landed cost duty-paid of imported wheat. The agreement provides further that
in the event of wide fluctuations in world wheat prices the amount of the
negotiated maximum protection may be adjusted subject to agreement between
Canada and France.
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 Other concessions on grain and grain products obtained from France under
the General Agreement are a reduction of the import duty on barley from 50 to
40 per cent, rolled oats 50 to 30 per cent and flax seed 12 to 8 per cent ad valorem.

French Colonies: Concessions obtained from the French Colonies on wheat

Aflour are as follows: French West Africa from 7 per cent to 5 per cent; French

Guiana from 3 per cent to free; Guadeloupe from 10 per cent to 5 per cent and
in Martinique from 12 per cent to 8 per cent ad valorem.

Norway: Free entry of wheat, wheat flour, oats and barley is bound against
change in the General Agreement. Canada negotiated a special wheat agreement
with Norway which limits the price paid to producers of wheat. The Agreement
provides that during the next three years the average purchase price of domestic
wheat shall not exceed by more than 30 per cent the average price paid for
imported wheat, c.i.f. Norwegian ports, during the same period.

LIVESTOCK AND LIVESTOCK PRODUCTS

United States: Concessions in the United States tariff are obtained under the
General Agreement on 24 products in the livestock and livestock produets
group. On 6 products the full 50 per cent reduction is obtained. Some reduction
is received on 5 products and for 13 products the rate is unchanged but as these
items are included in the Schedule the import duties are bound against increase.

The tariff quota on live cattle over 700 pounds in weight is increased from
225,000 head per calendar year to 400,000 head for the twelve months commencing
April 1. Under the 1938 Trade Agreement with the United States imports were
limited to 60,000 head per calendar quarter. If quotas were filled in the first
nine months of the year this would leave 45,000 head in the annual quota for
admission at the reduced rate of duty in the last calendar quarter. The agreement
negotiated with the Unites States at Geneva provides for a quarterly quota of
120,000 head with a possible residual of 40,000 head in the last three months
of the quota year if earlier quarterly quotas are filled. Under the present arrange-
ment it is agreed that the quota year will start on April 1, thus assuring a full
quota of 120,000 head in the three months October, November and December, the
period of heavy marketings.

Within the tariff quota of 400,000 head the rate of duty continues at 14 cents
per pound. On imports of heavy cattle in excess of the quota the duty is
reduced from 3 cents to 24 cents per pound.

Under the general Agreement the tariff quota for calves weighing up to 200
pounds each is increased from 100,000 head to 200,000 head. The rates of duty
contiue unchanged at 14 cents per pound within the quota and 2% cents per pound
on imports in excess of the 200,000 head. No quota limitation is placed on
imports of dairy cows and the rate of duty continues at 14 cents per pound.

A concession of major importance to beef producers and the meat packing
industry in Canada is obtained under the General Agreement on beef and
veal fresh, chilled or frozen. The United States import duty is reduced from 6
cents per pound to 3 cents per pound. In the year 1927 when the import duty
on dressed beef entering the United States was 3 cents per pound Canada
exported 53 million pounds for which the cattle equivalent was approximately
100,000 head. If as a result of the Geneva agreement trade is resumed on this
scale it will ease the pressure on the United States live cattle import quotas,
Increase returns to producers and provide employment in Canada for workers
in the meat packing industry.

The Geneva agreement provides for a reduction in the effective duty from
3 cents per pound with a minimum of 15 per cent to 14 cents per pound with a
minimum ad valorem duty of 73 per cent on edible animal livers, kidneys,
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tongues, hearts, sweetbhreads, tripes and brains, fresh, chilled or frozen. On
practically all livestock and livestock products Canada has reciprocated by
tariff reductions to the same level as the United States.

Under the General Agreement the maximum reduction of 50 per cent in
the United States duty is also obtained for lamb from 7 cents to 3% cents per
pound; mutton from 5 cents to 2% cents per pound; frozen pork from 2% cents
to 14 cents per pound; and meat pastes, except beef, from 6 cents per pound
with a minimum of 10 per cent to 3 cents per pound with a minimum of
10 per cent ad valorem.

Some reduction in duty is obtained for horses, from $15 to $10 per head
for horses valued at less than $150 per animal and from 17% per cent to 15 per
cent, for horses valued over $150 each; canned meats, except canned beef, from
3 cents per pound but not less than 20 per cent to 3 cents with a minimum
rate of 10 per cent. In the case of the wool tariff which the United States
negotiated with Australia there is a general reduction of 25 per cent in import
duties. Although this concession was granted directly to Australia, Canada
as a contracting party to the General Agreement and all other signatories will
enjoy the same reduced rates on a most-favoured-nation basis.

The United States import duty continues unchanged on the following live-
stock and livestock products which by inclusion in the Schedule of the General
Agreement are bound against increase; live hogs 1 cent per pound; fresh and
chilled pork 1% cents per pound; bacon and hams 2 cents per pound; sausage
casings, free entry; pure bred animals (except silver and black foxes) for
breeding purposes, free.

Other Countries: Concessions in countries, other than the United States,
of importance to Canadian livestock producers and the industry include a
continuation of free entry for cattle, calf, horse and sheep hides into France;
the duty on frozen and chilled beef imported by France is fixed in the agreement
at 40 per cent ad walorem. Indo-China establishes a rate of 10 per cent for
salted hams and bacon, and Cuba continues to provide free entry for pure
bred cattle.

DAIRY PRODUCTS

United States: Concessions are obtained from the United States on 15
products in the dairy products group. On five products the maximum reduction
of 50 per cent is obtained through the General Agreement. Some reduction is
received on six products and a binding of the rates by inclusion in the Schedule
of the General Agreement applies to four products.

The United States import duty on skin milk powder is reduced from three
cents per pound to 14 cents per pound. The former rate or whole milk powder was
61, cents, the effective new rate is 314, cents per pound. The corresponding
Canadian duty on these products continues at 5 cents per pound. The United
States import duty for cream powder is reduced from 124 cents to 6% cents
per pound and for lactose the rate is cut from 50 per cent to 25 per cent
ad valorem. The concession on butter received by New Zealand from the
United States is of interest to Canada. The rate of 14 cents per pound is
reduced to 7 cents per pound on a tariff quota of 50 million pounds imported
during the period November 1 to the following March 31. Canada can parti-
cipate in the quota which is open to all most-favoured-nation countries at the
reduced rate. When the quota is filled, and outside the quota period, the
import duty rate of 14 cents per pound is applicable.

The concession obtained from the United States on cheddar cheese is of
particular interest to the dairy industry. The former rate of duty was 4 cents
per pound with a minimum ad valorem rate of 25 per cent. The new rate is
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34 cents per pound with a minimum of 174 per cent ad valorem. The corres-
ponding Canadian import duty is reduced from 7 cents to 3} cents per pound.
The tariff quota on whole milk continues at 3,000,000 gallons but the rate
of duty on this quantity is reduced from 3% cents per gallon to 2 cents per gallon.
The rate on any quantity imported into the United States in excess of 3,000,000
gallons continues at 63 cents per gallon. :

The tariff quota on cream is unchanged at 1,500,000 gallons. The duty
on this quantity is reduced from 283, cents per gallon to 20 cents per gallon.
Cream in excess of the quota continues to be subject to a duty of 56%, cents
per gallon.

Under the General Agreement Canada benefits from a reduction in the rate
on unsweetened evaporated milk from 1% cents to 1 cent per pound and a
reduction on sweetened condensed milk from 22 cents per pound to 1% cents. The
Canadian import duty on these products continues at 3% cents per pound. The
duty on buttermilk powder imported into the United States remains unchanged
at 1% cents. '

Beneluzx: Cheese, hard or medium hard which includes Canadian cheddar
has been subject to an import duty of 15 per cent and in addition a monopoly
duty equivalent to 10 cents per pound in the Netherlands. Under the General

. Agreement the monopoly duty is eliminated and the only duty imposed is the

ad valorem rate of 15 per cent. In the Belgian Congo evaporated, condensed and
dried milk continue to enter free of duty.

France: Under the Agreement unsweetened evaporated milk is subject to
a duty of 10 per cent. The rate on condensed milk is reduced from 20 per cent
to 15 per cent. The duty on cheese is cut from 20 per cent to 15 per cent and
the butter duty is reduced from 30 per cent to 25 per cent.

Norway: The import duty on cheese remains unchanged at Kr. 1-20 per
kilogram.

EGGS AND POULTRY

United States: Substantial reductions in duty were obtained from the United
States on all products of interest to Canada in the egg and poultry group. For
5 products the maximum reduction of 50 per cent is received and on 7 products
some reduction is obtained. The duty on live poultry entering the United States
is reduced from 4 cents a pound to 2 cents. The corresponding Canadian import
duty is 15 per cent. The former duty on baby chicks imported into the United
States was 4 cents each. Canada obtains a new rate of 2 cents each and
reciprocates. For dressed poultry, exelusive of dressed turkeys, the United
States rate is reduced from 6 cents a pound to 3 cents a pound. On other dead
birds, except turkeys, the rate is cut from 5 cents to 2% cents per pound. The
Canadian rates on these items continue at 15 per cent. On canned chicken the
United States rate which formerly was 10 cents a pound is now 5 cents a pound.
The Canadian rate is reduced from 30 per cent to 20 per cent.

Canada obtains an important concession in fresh eggs by the reduction in
the United States duty from 5 cents per dozen to 3% cents per dozen. Canada
reciprocates in this reduction. The import duty on frozen whole eggs, frozen
egg yolk, and frozen egg albumen entering the United States is cut from 11 cents
per pound to 7 cents. Through the Geneva agreement the following reductions
are received from the United States: dried whole eggs, dried egg yolk and dried
egg albumen from 27 cents to 17 cents per pound. The Canadian duty is main-
tained at 25 per cent ad valorem on dried.egg products.

APPLES

One of Canada’s most important contributions to the General Agreement
on Tariffs and Trade which has for its purpose the reduction of tariffs, the
elimination of tariff preferences and other trade restrictions is the relinquishing
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of the apple preference in the United Kingdom. Canadian apples have always
enjoyed free entry into the United Kingdom market. Through the Ottawa agree-
ment in 1932 a duty of 4s. 6d. per hundredweight was imposed on non-Empire
apples. In the 1938 Trade Agreement between the United States and the United
Kingdom this duty was reduced to 3s. per hundredweight for the period August 16
to April 15. At Geneva, Canada agreed to the elimination of the apple preference
during the Northern Hemisphere marketing season so that now apples from all
sources enter the United Kingdom market free of duty from August 16 to April 15
inclusive. During the balance of the year the duty continues at 4s. 6d. per
112 pounds. A

Compensation for the apple concession is obtained mainly from the United
States but it cannot be matched with any single item among the United States
concessions. It is a part of a mutually advantageous agreement between Canada
and its neighbour and other contracting parties.

Apart from the treatment of the preference in the United Kingdom market
Canada and the United States entered into negotiations at Geneva with a view
to reducing their existing tariffs on apples. The Canadian duty has amounted
to approximately 60 cents per bushel compared with the United States duty of
15 cents per bushel of 50 pounds. In the Geneva agreement the United States
“agrees to reduce its duty to 124 cents per bushel and Canada agrees to a rate
of 4 cent per pound equivalent to 374 cents per bushel of 50 pounds for the
period July 13 to May 19 inclusive. During the period May 20 to July 12
inclusive Canada agrees to admit apples free of duty.

For canned apples the United States duty is reduced the maximum of
50 per cent from 2% cents per pound to 1} cents per pound. The maximum
reduction of 50 per cent is also obtained from the United States for dried apples.
The former rate of 2 cents per pound now becomes 1 cent per pound.

Benelur: An important concession on fresh apples and pears is obtained in
Benelux where a customs duty of 12 per cent and a monopoly charge of 40 per
cent were imposed on imports. Under the Geneva agreement the customs duty
and Netherlands monopoly duty or corresponding Belgium-Luxembourg charge
together shall not exceed 20 per cent during the period from June 1 to January 31
inclusive. From February 1 to May 31 the customs duty is limited to 6 per cent
without any monopoly duty or corresponding charge. On dried apples and pears
Benelux cuts the duty from 15 per cent to 12 per cent and the rate on apple juice
continues at 20 per cent ad wvalorem.

Brazil: Brazil agrees to the continued free entry of fresh and dried apples.

Czechoslovakia: The customs duty on fresh apples entering Czechoslovakia
is reduced from Kes, 300 per 10 kilograms to Kes. 75 from November 1 to May 31
and on dried apples and pears from Kes. 300 to Kes. 50 per 100 kilograms. On
other dried fruit the former rate of Kes. 300 becomes Kes. 100 per 100 kilograms.

France: The effective rate of duty on fresh apples imported into France
has béen 15 per cent ad valorem. In the Geneva agreement France agrees to a
rate of 12 per cent from August 1 to February 14, then 8 per cent from February 15
to March 31 and 6 per cent from April 1 to May 31. From June 1 to July 31
the duty is 8 per cent. France further agrees to reduce the duty on dried apples
from 15 per cent to 10 per cent and on apple juice from 20 per cent to 10 per cent.
In Indo-China the ad valorem duty of 15 per cent which was effective throughout
the year now applies to the period July 1 to March 31 with free entry guaranteed
from April 1 to July 30. .

Norway: The effective duty on fresh apples imported into Norway was 80 Kr.
per 100 kilograms from August 1 to March 15 and 40 Kr. from March 16 to
July 31. The new rates are 80 Kr. per 100 kilograms from August 1 to Febru-
ary 15, 40 Kr. From February 16 to March 15 and 20 Kr. per 100 kilograms from
March 16 to July 31. J .
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While the United Kingdom will continue to be an important export market
for Canadian apples they will meet more competition there in future from outside
sources and from increasing domestic production. Since 1932 Canada has relied
almost entirely on a single export market in the United Kingdom where competi-

* tion from a large English crop has at times resulted in low returns to the

producers. The Geneva agreement opens up new and wider markets which in
the long run will compensate and should be to the advantage of the advantage
of the Canadian apple growers. :

POTATOES

United States: Canada obtains an important concession from the United
States on certified seed potatoes through the enlargement of the tariff quota from
1,500,000 bushels to 2,500,000 bushels for importation during the twelve months
commencing September 15. The rates of duty remain unchanged at 374 cents
per 100 pounds or 224 cents per bushel within the quota. Imports of certified
seed potatoes in excess of 2,500,000 bushels are subject to the full duty of 75 cents
per 100 pounds, which is equivalent to 45 cents per bushel.

With respect to table potatoes the United States removes the intermediate
rate of 60 cents per 100 pounds which applied from December 1 to the last day
of the following February. No concession is obtained in the United States quota
tariff and the quota of 1,000,000 bushels remains unchanged. The rate of 37%
cents per 100 pounds or 223 cents per bushel now applies throughout the year
commencing September 15 to the quota of 1,000,000 bushels. Imports in excess
of this quantity pay the full rate of duty of 75 cents per 100 pounds.

The Geneva agreement provides for a reduction in the United States duty
on dried potatoes from 23 cents to 14 cents per pound and the duty on potato
starch is reduced from 12 cents per pound to 1 cent.

Others Countries: Brazil binds free entry certified seed potatoes. With
respect to certified seed potatoes Canada obtains from Cuba treatment similar
to that accorded to the United States with free entry guaranteed from Septem-
ber 1 to January 31. France reduces the rate of duty on certified seed potatoes
from 30 per cent to 15 per cent within the limits of a quota. Seed potatoes
in excess of the quota and table potatoes are subject to a duty of 30 per cent
from July 1 to the last day of February. Outside this period the duty is
25 per cent. In French Guiana the rate of duty on all fresh potatoes is reduced
from 15 per cent to free.

Canada: The Canadian tariff on potatoes remains unchanged. From
June 15 to July 31 a duty of 374 cents per 100 pounds continues to be imposed
on table potatoes. During the balance of the year table potatoes enter Canada
grete off duty. Under the Canadian tariff certified seed potatoes are admitted

uty free.

TURNIPS AND BLUEBERRIES

The Maritime Provinces and Ontario will be particularly interested in
the concessions obtained from the United States on turnips and rutabagas and
blueberries and the province of Quebec will share this interest in the case of
blueberries.

In 1946 Canada exported over 3 million bushels of turnips and rutabagas
valued at $2 million to the United States. This trade originated mainly in
O_ntarlo and Prince Edward Island. In the 1935 Trade Agreement with the
United States the import duty on turnips was reduced® from 25 cents per
100 pounds to 124 cents. In the 1938 agreement this reduced rate was confirmed.
The new Geneva agreement provides for the maximum reduction in the United
States duty on turnips and rutabagas from 124 cents to 64 cents per 100 pounds.

Approximately 15 million pounds of blueberries were shipped to the United
States in 1946 from Eastern Canada valued at over $3 million. The 1930
United States Tariff Act imposed a duty of 35 per cent on frozen and canned
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blueberries and 1} cents per pound on fresh blueberries. In the 1935 Agreement
the duty on frozen and canned blueberries was reduced to 25 per cent. When
the Agreement with the United States was negotiated in 1938 a reduction to
174 per cent was obtained for the frozen and canned berries and the duty on
fresh blueberries was cut to 1 cent per pound. As a result of tariff discussions
at Geneva the United States duty on frozen and canned blueberries now becomes
10 per cent ad valorem and the duty on fresh blueberries in confirmed at 1 cent
per pound.

OTHER FRUITS AND VEGETABLES

Under the General Agreement the basic ad valorem rate of 10 per cent
continues to apply on fresh fruits, other than citrus fruits, and vegetables
imported into Canada. The system of affording additional seasonal protection
to fruit and vegetable growers by means of advances in the dutiable value of
imports during the period when the domestic crop is coming on the market is
discontinued. In place of this system a straight specific import duty for each
fruit or vegetable applies for a maximum period of time, the effective dates of its
application being dependent on the Canadian marketing season. For certain
vegetables the agreement provides a division of the period into two parts when
the specific duty applies in order to give protection to the producers of early
vegetables and later to main crop producers or holders of stored stocks. The
split period arrangement applies to the following vegetables: green beans, cabbage,
carrots, beets, cauliflower, celery and lettuce.

OTHER TREE FRUITS AND GRAPES -.

United States: Through the General Agreement the following concessions on
tree fruits, other than apples, and on grapes were obtained from the United
States. The import duty on fresh cherries is reduced from 1 per cent to 4 cent
per pound and on maraschino cherries from 94 cents per pound plus 20 per cent
to 7 cents plus 10 per cent. The United States duty on peaches remains un-
changed at 4 cent per pound and the duty on canned peaches is reduced from
35 per cent to 20 per cent. The duty on canned pears is reduced from 35 per cent
to 20 per cent and for dried apricots the duty is cut from 2 cents to 1 cent per
pound. For canned plums and prunes the duty is reduced from 35 per cent
to 174 per cent, and on fresh fruits for which no specific provision is made in
the United States tariff the duty is reduced from 35 per cent to 175 per cent
The new duty on fresh grapes entering the United States is 174 cents per eubic
foot in place of the former rate of 25 cents per cubie foot.

Canada: Canadian specific rates of duty on tree fruits and grapes, which
become effective with the entry into force of the General Agreement, are as
follows: Apricots 1 cent per pound for 10 weeks; cherries 2 cents per pound for
7 weeks; peaches 14 cents per pound for 9 weeks; pears 1 cent per pound for
15 weeks; plums and prunes 1 cent per pound for 10 weeks. Imports of grapes
of the Vitis Labrusca species which is the type grown commercially in Canada
are dutiable at 1 cent per pound for 15 weeks. Grapes of the Vitis Vinifera
species commonly known as the European or California type are admitted into
Canada duty free. During the period of the year when the specific rates on the
foregoing fruits are not in effect the basic duty of 10 per cent ad valorem applies.
Fresh fruits not otherwise provided for in the Canadian tariff which formerly
were subject to a duty of 10 per cent now enter Canada free of duty. Canada also
removes import duties on grapefruit and oranges and grants free entry to these
fruits the year round. Lemons and pineapples are retained on the free list.

Canada agrees to reduce the 1938 Agreement rate of duty on imports of
canned peaches from 3% cents to 24 cents per pound, on canned apricots and pears
from 3 cents to 2 cents per pound and on canned pineapple from 3 cents to 2 cents
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- per pound. On canned fruits not otherwise provided for the rate is reduced from
3 cents to 1 cent per pound. Dried plums and prunes on which a duty of 1 cent
per pound formerly applied will now be admitted into Canada free of duty.
 The 1938 Agreement rate of 15 per cent for dried fruits not otherwise provided
for is reduced to 10 per cent ad valorem. Canada makes a substantial reduction
in the most-favoured-nation duty on raisins from 4 cents to 3 cents per pound,
Commonwealth raisins remaining duty free. Other reductions in the Canadian
tariff are as follows: dried apricots, nectarines, pears and peaches from 224 per
cent to 15 per cent; canned fruit pulp, other than grape pulp, not sweetened,
from 24 cents to 14 cents per pound; fruit pulp not otherwise provided for and
crushed fruits from 2} cents to 2 cents per pound; frozen fruits from 2 cents to
2 cents per pound; jellies, jams and marmalades from 3% cents to 3% cents
per pound.

British Tariff Preference: At Geneva Canada agreed to the elimination of the
tariff preference of 7s. per hundredweight in the United Kingdom on dried apples,
pears and peaches. Canada will continue to enjoy free entry into the United
Kingdom for canned pears but agreed to a reduction from 15 per cent to 12 per
cent ad valorem for non-Commonwealth countries.

OTHER BERRIES

United States: Apart from the concession on blueberries which is dealt with
* in an earlier section of this statement the following reductions in -United States
duties on berries are of importance to Canadian fruit growers: strawberries,
reduced from 2 cent per pound to % cent per pound for the period June 15 to
September 15; raspberries and loganberries, from 3 cent to 4 cent per pound,
July 1 to August 31; lingon and partridge berries, from § cent to § cent per pound;
other fresh berries, rate unchanged at 2 cent per pound; other frozen berries,
from 174 per cent to 14 per cent; other canned berries, from 174 per cent to
14 per cent; cantaloupes, from 35 per cent to 25 per cent. August 1 to
September 15; fruit pulp, from 35 per cent to 174 per cent; currant and other
berry jellies from 20 per cent to 10 per cent ad valorem.

Canada: New Canadian specific rates for a definite period are as follows,
otherwise the rate is 10 per cent ad valorem: strawberries 12 cents per pound
for 6 weeks; raspberries and loganberries 2 cents per pound for 6 weeks; the rate
is unchanged at 10 per cent ad valorem for edible berries not otherwise provided
for; eranberries, 1 cent per pound for 12 weeks; cantaloupes and muskmelons,
14 cents per pound for 8 weeks.

OTHER FRESH VEGETABLES

United States: In addition to concessions obtained from the United States
on potatoes and turnips which are treated separately in this statement the
following reductions were negotiated. The import duty on cabbage is reduced
from 14 cents to 3 cent per pound; carrots from 25 to 124 per cent; cauliffower
from 25 to 124 per cent from June 5 to August 5; celery from 2 cents to 1 cent
per pound from August 1 to April 14 and from 1 cent to 3 cent per pound from
April 15 to July 31; cucumbers from 3 cents to 14 cents per pound from July 1
to August 31; lettuce from 2 cents to 1 cent per pound from June 1 to October 31;
onions from 24 cents to 13 cents per pound; green peas from 2 cents to 1 cent
per pound from July 1 to September 30; radishes from 25 to 124 per cent from
July 1 to August 31; beets are unchanged at 10 per cent; the rate on tomatoes is
unchanged at 14 cents per pound but the season commencing July 15 is extended
from August 15 to August 31; mushrooms from 10 cents plus 45 per cent to
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5 cents per pound plus 25 per cent. On the following fresh vegetables a reduction
from 50 per cent ad valorem to 25 per cent is obtained; asparagus, brussels
sprouts, parsley, rhubarb, spinach and okra. 5

Canada: New Canadian specific rates of duty on imported fresh vegetables
are established in the Geneva agreement. During the period when the specific
duty is not effective the basic rate of 10 per cent ad valorem applies. The new
rates are as follows: asparagus 3% cents per pound for 8 weeks; cabbage %, cent
per pound for 26 weeks; caulifiower $ cent per pound for 20 weeks; celery 1 cent
per pound for 24 weeks; cucumbers 24 cents per pound for 12 weeks; lettuce 1
cent per pound for 18 weeks; green peas 2 cents per pound for 12 weeks; carrots
and beets 1 cent per pound for 26 weeks; green beans 1} cents per pound for 14
weeks; tomatoes 1% cents per pound for 32 weeks; mushrooms 34 cents per
,pound for 52 weeks; onions 1 cent per pound for 40 weeks; rhubard % cent per
pound for 10 weeks; the rate of 10 per cent ad valorem continues unchanged for
brussels sprouts, parsley, spinach, watercress and vegetables not otherwise pro-
vided for. The duty on onion sets and shallots is reduced from 30 to 15 per
cent; truffles take a rate of 10 per cent ad valorem; eggplant, sweet potatoes and
gams, whitloof or endive, artichokes, horseradish and okra enter Canada duty

ree.

PROCESSED VEGETABLES

United States: Through the Geneva agreement a reduction in duty from 2
cents to 1 cent per pound is obtained in the United States tariff for canned peas.
Other concessions in the United States tariff on processed vegetables are as
follows: tomato juice from 10 cents to 5 cents per gallon; canned mushrooms
from 8 cents plus 25 per cent to 5 cents per pound plus 15 per cent; canned and
dried vegetables not specifically provided for, from 35 per cent to 175 per cent;
soups from 35 to 174 per cent; pickled onions from 25 per cent and sauces
from 35 to 174 per cent.

Canada: Tariff concessions made by Canada on processed vegetables are as
follows: canned peas, beans and corn bound against increase in duty at 14 cents
per pound; canned and dried mushrooms reduced from 203 per cent to 15 per
cent; canned vegetables, not otherwise provided for, reduced from 20 per cent to
15 per cent; dried vegetables reduced from 224 per cent to 20 per cent; frozen
vegetables reduced from 25 to 20 per cent; vegetable pickles are reduced from
321 to 224 per cent; vegetable juices and sauces from 274 per cent to 20 per cent.

British Tariff Preference: Through the General Agreement Canada and
other Commonwealth countries retain free entry in the United Kingdom for
canned peas, asparagus, beans and corn, but relinquish one-half of the prefer-
ence of 20 per cent on canned peas and beans and entry into the United Kingdom
market at 10 per cent ad valorem is now extended to all countries.

FORAGE CROP SEEDS

The tariff concessions on elover and grass seeds provide a good example of
reciprocal treatment on the part of Canada and the United States in their
tariff negotiations at Geneva with respect to agricultural products. In most
instances duties have been reduced on a mutually advantageous basis to the
same level.

United States: The United States duty on red clover seed is reduced from 4
cents to 2 cents per pound; alsike clover from 4 cents to 2 cents per pound;
alfalfa from 4 cents to 2 cents per pound; Sweet clover from 2 cents to 1 cent
per pound; crimson clover from 2 cents to 1 cent per pound; timothy seed from
1 cent to 4 cent per pound; bent grass from 20 cents to 15 cents per pound;
Canada bluegrass and Kentucky bluegrass seed from 24 cents to 2 cents per




T T T S e e e —

Wﬁﬁm—mm e

BANKING AND COMMERCE 69

pound; meadow fescue from 2 cents to 1 cent per pound; Chewings fescue from
2 cents to 1 cent per pound; other fescues from 2 cents to 1 cent per pound;
rye grass is bound against increase at 1} cents per pound; brome and crested
wheat grass are bound against increase at 1 cent. per pound; grass seeds not
specifically provided for from 2 cents to 1 cent per pound.

Other Countries: Benelux binds the free entry of clover and alfalfa seed.
Grass seeds are admitted free of customs duty with a monopoly fee of 15 florins
or 247-80 francs per 100 kilograms.  Czechoslovakia reduces the duty on alfalfa
from Kes 350 per 100 kilograms to Kes 85 per 100 kilograms and the duty on
grass seeds from Kes 500 to Kes 440 per 100 kilograms. France binds the free
entry of clover and other forage crop seeds. Flax seed for sowing is free within
quota limits. India reduces the import duty on clover and grass seeds from
30 per cent to 15 per cent.

Canada: In the agreement Canada reduces the import duty on all clover
and alfalfa seed from 21 cents to 2 cents a pound; timothy seed from 2 cents to
4 cent per pound; bent grass seed from 27 per cent to 224 per cent; millet and
rape seed from 9 per cent to 74 per cent; field seeds, not otherwise provided for,
from 9 per cent to 7% per cent ad valorem.

VEGETABLE SEEDS

United States: As a result of negotiations with various countries the following
reductions in import duties on vegetable seeds are received from the United States
on a poundage basis: mangel seed from 2 cents to 1 cent; celery from 2 cents to
1 cent; beet, except sugar beet, from 3 cents to 2 cents; parsnip from 4 cents to
3 cents; turnip and rutabaga {rom 3 cents to 2 cents; cabbage from 6 cents to 5
cents; radish from 3 cents to 2 cents; kale from 3 cents to 2 cents; pepper from
15 cents to 10 cents; kohlrabi from 8 cents to 5 cents. The duty on the following
vegetable seeds are bound against increase, parsley at 2 cents; carrot at 3 cents;
cauliffiower at 25 cents; spinach at 1 cent; vegetable seeds not specifically
provided for,.from 3 cents to 2 cents per pound.

Canada: The following concessions are agreed to by Canada on a poundage
basis when in packages weighing more than one pound each; mangel and turnip
seed from 4 cents to 2 cents; beet, not including sugar beet, from 3 cents to 2
cents; parsley and parsnip are bound against increase at 2 cents; radish, leek,
lettuce, carrot, borecole or kale from 3 cents to 2 cents; cabbage and cucumber
from 5 cents to 4 cents; tomato and pepper from 10 to 7% cents; caulifiower from
15 cents to 124 cents; onion from 20 cents to 15 cents; root, garden and other
seeds not otherwise provided for, from 5 cents to 24 cents per pound. Field, root,
garden and other seeds in packages weighing one pound each, or less, from 25
per cent to 20 per cent ad valorem.

NURSERY AND GREENHOUSE STOCK

United States: Growers of nursery and greenhouse stock and bulb growers
receive substantial concessions from the United States through the Geneva
agreement. United States import duties are reduced as follows: grafted or
budded fruit trees, cuttings and seedlings of fruit vines, plants or bushes, from 25
per cent to 124 per cent; grafted roses from 4 cents to 2 cents each; grafted or
budded plants, cuttings and seedlings of ornamental trees, shrubs and vines, and
all nursery or greenhouse stock, not specifically provided for, from 25 per cent
to 124 per cent; cut flowers, except orchids, from 25 per cent to 124 per cent;
hyacinth bulbs from $4 to $2 per thousand: crocus corms from $1 to 50 cents
per thousand; narcissus bulbs from $6 to $5 per thousand; bulbs, roots, etc., not
elsewhere specified, from 15 per cent to 10 per cent; tulip bulbs are bound against
increase at $3 per thousand; seedlings, layers, and cuttings of tree fruit stock
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are bound against increase at $2 per thousand; and a binding rate applies to
seedling roses at $1 per thousand. The duty on tree and shrub seeds is reduced
from 4 cents to 3 cents per pound. The tariff rate on flower seeds remains
unchanged at 3 cents per pound; and on seeds not specifically provided for the
duty is reduced from 3 cents to 2 cents per pound.

Canada: The Canadian duties on most nursery and florist stock items remain
unchanged and are bound against increase in the new agreement. In the case
of the florist stock tariff item which includes palms, ferns, rubber plants, gladioli,
cannas, dahlias and peonies, the duty is reduced from 20 per cent to 174 per
cent. The duty on azaleas, rhododendrons, rose stock and other stock for
grafting or budding, not otherwise provided for, is reduced from 15 to 123 per
cent; cut flowers, except orchids, take a new rate of 124 per cent, the former rate
was 25 per cent. The duty on trees, shrubs, vines, plants, roots and cuttings
commonly known as florist or nursery stock, not otherwise provided for, is
reduced from 174 per cent to 124 per cent ad valorem. -

FURS AND FUR BEARING ANIMALS

United States: The duty of 15 per cent ad valorem on live silver or black
foxes imported into the United States is bound against increase. In the 1938
Trade Agreement with Canada the United States reduced the duty on dressed
or undressed silver or black fox furs or skins from 50 per cent to 37% per cent.
In the Geneva agreement this rate is confirmed and bound against increase.
Other undressed furs and fur skins, not specifically provided for, including mink
and muskrat are free of duty on importation into the United States and in the
Geneva agreement the duty-free entry is bound.

Substantial reductions are received from the United States on dressed
furs and fur skins. If not dyed, marten, otter, beaver, fisher, raccoon, wolf,
ermine, lynx, chinchilla, sable, fox other than silver or black and mink take a
rate of 74 per cent in the General Agreement. If not dyed, muskrat, squirrel,
skunk, badger and weasel are admitted at a rate of 124 per cent. When dyed
the rates of duty set forth above are increased by 24 per cent.

Other Countries: Benelux continues to admit raw furs free of duty, dressed
furs at 6 per cent and made-up furs at 24 per cent. Brazil reduces the rate
of 58-24 cr. per legal kilogram on whole skins prepared or tanned to 29-12 er.
China binds a duty of 10 per cent on undressed furs and 20 per cent on dressed
or dyed furs. Czechoslovakia confirms free entry for fox skins. France binds
the free entry of raw furs, reduces an ad valorem rate of 15 per cent on prepared
sea otter and beaver skins to free entry and the import duty on other prepared
furs is reduced from 15 per cent to 10 per cent.

SPECIAL PRODUCTS, INCLUDING MAPLE PRODUCTS,
HONEY AND TOBACCO

United States: The concessions received from the United States on maple
sugar and maple syrup will be of interest to producers in the province of Quebee
particularly. Prior to the 1935 Trade Agreement the rates of duty on these
products were 6 cents and 4 cents per pound respectively. The duty on maple
sugar was reduced in the 1935 Trade Agreement to 4 cents per pound without
any reduction in the duty on maple syrup. The 1938 Trade Agreement provided
for a 50 per cent reduction from the rates on both products in force prior to
the conclusion of the 1935 Trade Agreement, or effective rates of 3 cents per
pound on maple sugar and 2 cents per pound on maple syrup. The 1938
Agreement rates of duty are reduced in the Geneva Agreement to 2 cents per
pound on maple sugar and 13 cents per pound on maple syrup. The duty on
honey imported into the United States is reduced from 14 cents per pound to
1 cent per pound. The United States duties on most types of tobacco are
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reduced substantially. On manufactured and unmanufactured tobacco, not
specially provided for, the duty is reduced from 35 cents per pound to 174 cents
per pound. In the agreement the United States binds the duty of unmanu-
factured flax, hackled, at 15 cents per pound; flax, not hackled, at § cent per
pound; flax tow at ¥ cent per pound and flax straw at $1.50 per ton. The
duty on flax noils is reduced from % cent per pound to 4 cent per pound. The
duty on hops, valued at 50 cents or more per pound, is reduced from 24 cents
to 12 cents per pound. Peat moss of poultry and stable grade is bound at
50 cents per ton and the free entry of peat moss, fertilizer grade, is bound.
Evergreen Christmas trees imported into the United States are subject to a
duty of 5 per cent ad valorem. This rate is confirmed in the Geneva Agreement.

France: In the General Agreement France reduces the duty on maple syrup
and maple sugar from 130 per cent to 30 per cent ad valorem.

Canada: The duty on honey entering Canada continues at 1% cents per
pound and the rate is bound against increase. The duty on beeswax, unrefined,
is reduced from 18 per cent to duty free and beeswax, not otherwise provided
for, from 18 to 15 per cent. The Canadian import duty on unmanufactured
tobacco of the Turkish type, unstemmed, is reduced from 40 cents per pound
to 30 cents per pound; on unmanufactured, stemmed tobacco of the Turkish
type, the duty is reduced from 60 cents per pound to 40 cents per pound. With
respect to unmanufactured tobacco, not otherwise provided for, the duty on
unstemmed leaf is reduced from 40 cents per pound to 20 cents per pound; and
the duty on stemmed tobacco is reduced from 60 cents per pound to 30 cents
per pound. The Canadian import duty on hops remains unchanged at 10 cents
per pound and this rate is bound against increase.

CONCESSIONS ON FOREST PRODUCTS

Lumber and Shingles: Under the Geneva Agreement, Canada obtains a
number of new concessions on lumber and its produets, particularly with regard
to exports to the United States. These concessions apply not only to the tariff
but also to the Internal Revenue Code tax imposed on imports, which has for
some time past been more burdensome than the tariff proper.

An outstanding concession in this field is that affecting imports into the
United States of softwood lumber of fir, hemlock, spruce, pine and larch. On
sawed and dressed boards, planks, deals and sawn timber of these kinds, not
separately provided for, the tariff rates conceded under former agreements have
been reduced by the maximum 50 per cent permitted under United States law
(i.e. from 50 cents to 25 cents per thousand board feet), and the I.R.C. tax has
been reduced by 50 per cent (i.e. from $1.50 to 75 cents per thousand board feet),
bringing down the total impost on imports of these types of lumber from $2 to
$1 per thousand board feet. On lumber of other species of soft woods, duty-free
entry is bound and the revenue tax on lumber of cedar is reduced to 75 cents
per thousand board feet. Duty-free entry for lumber of certain hard woods is
bound as is also the revenue tax of $1.50 per thousand board feet.

Under the 1938 Agreement, red cedar shingles were admitted duty free under
a quota equal to 30 per cent of average United States consumption over the
previous three years, the duty on imports in excess of this quota being 25 cents
per square of 100 square feet. The quota and the ex-quota duty were imposed
by Act of Congress to remain so long as red cedar shingles continue to be included
in any trade agreement entered into by the United States under authority of
Section 350 of the Tariff Act of 1930 as amended. Accordingly, if the United
States should cease to have a trade agreement obligation respecting the importa-
tion of red cedar shingles, the duty would not apply. In these circumstances, it
was agreed to omit any reference to red cedar shingles from the Geneva Agree-
ment, thus securing immediate elimination of the existing ex-quota duty.
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In the Benelux customs union, pulpwood and logs as well as woodpulp were
already free of duty and have been bound free. The rate on tongued and grooved
wood has been bound at 10 per cent, and that on veneer sheets has been bound
at 6 per cent.

A number of reductions in tariff duties on lumber and wood products have
been conceded by France. On logs and pulpwood the duty has been reduced from
15 per cent to 10 per cent, on leaves of veneer from 20 per cent to 15 per cent,
on tongued and grooved wood from 20 per cent to 18 per cent, and on wood pulp
the duty has been reduced from rates of 25 per cent and 30 per cent to 22 per
cent and 24 per cent respectively. The duty on veneer and plywood panels
has been bound at 25 per cent and that on tool handles has been bound at 8
per cent.

India and Pakistan have reduced their rates on wooden railway sleepers from
183 per cent to 15 per cent and on timber of Douglas fir from 30 per cent to 20
per cent.

Chile has bound its duty on pine, rough or sawn, including Douglas fir, at
70 gold pesos per cubic meter. Czechoslovakia has bound free its duties on
building woods in logs or rough blocks. Lebanon and Syria have bound at 25
per cent their duties on boxes and box shooks. China has bound a number of
lumber and timber items at rates which were already comparatively low.

Other wood and manufactures thereof:

In addition to concessions on lumber and shingles, the Geneva Agreement
covers a large variety of wood and manufactures of wood. The United States has
again bound free entry as in the 1935 and 1938 Trade Agreements for logs,
unmanufactured round timber, pulpwood, firewood, handle bolts, shingle bolts,
laths, posts, railroad ties, telephone, trolley, electric light and telegraph poles,
pickets, palings, hoops and staves. The reduction from 8 to 4 per cent in the
duty on maple, birch and beech flooring, first secured in the 1935 Trade Agree-
ment, is confirmed. The maximum reduction from 20 to 10 per cent ad valorem
obtained in the 1938 Trade Agreement on veneers of birch and maple has now
been extended to cover veneers of all woods.

Maximum reductions are provided on red cedar plywood, reduced from 40 to
20 per cent; on wooden chairs reduced from 40 to 20 per cent; on other furniture,
except bentwood, and on wood flour reduced from 25 to 124 per cent.

The existing rates obtained in a former trade agreement of 5 per cent
ad valorem on hubs for wheels, heading bolts, stave bolts, last blocks, wagon
blocks, heading blocks, match blocks, sticks, ete., and 74 per cent ad valorem
on casks, barrels (other than beer barrels), and hogsheads are confirmed in the
new agreement.

The duty on a number of manufactures of wood including paint brush
handles, broom and mop handles, ice-hockey sticks, toboggans, canoes and canoe
paddles, baby carriages, and wheelbarrows, which was reduced from 33% to
20 per cent in the 1938 Trade Agreement, is now further reduced to 15 per cent.
There is a maximum reduction from 334 to 163 per cent ad valorem on badminton
and tennis racket frames valued at less than $1.75 and from 20 to 10 per cent
on those valued at $1.75 or more. On picture and mirror frames, shuttles,
bobbins, badminton rackets, golf elub shafts, skis and parts of skis, snowshoes,
and fruit picking trays whether or not in knocked-down condition the maximum
reduction from 331 to 163 per cent ad valorem has been conceded in the new
agreement.

On manufactures of wood not specially provided for, the duty is reduced
from 33% to 25 per cent.

In consequence of the action of the United States in making a 50 per cent
reduction of its Internal Revenue Code tax on imported lumber, and in
conformity with the Lumber Declaration to which Canada, the United States
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and Great Britain all agreed in 1938, Canada has accepted a corresponding
reduction of 50 per cent in the margins of preference on lumber enjoyed in the
United Kingdom and other parts of the British Commonwealth.

Pulp and Paper: The Geneva Trade Agreement continues the binding of
duty-free entry into the United States of standard newsprint which is Canada’s
largest export to that market, and of wood pulps of all kinds. The reduction
from 4 cent per pound plus 10 per cent ad valorem to § cent per pound plus 5 per
cent ad valorem obtained in the 1938 Trade Agreement on uncoated printing
paper is confirmed in the new trade agreement. The reduced duties provided for
in the 1938 Trade Agreement on hanging paper, the raw material for wallpaper,
and on certain classes of tissue papers are confirmed in the new agreement. On
pulpboard in rolls for use in the manufacture of wallboard the duty of 5 per cent
ad valorem in the case of unfinished board is bound, and in the case of finished
board a further reduction from 15 to 10 per cent is secured. In the 1938 Trade
Agreement the duty on tourist literature of bona fide foreign authorship and
not consisting principally of illustrations, maps or charts, was reduced from 15
to 74 per cent, and the duty on other kinds from 25 to 12} per cent. The new
agreement provides for further maximum reductions in these duties, bringing
the new rates to 33 per cent on tourist literature of bona fide foreign authorship,
and 63 per cent in other cases. On other types of printed matter including books,
the duties are substantially reduced. The duty on erepe paper valued at not
more than 123} tents per pound is reduced from 3 cents per pound and 7% per
cent to 14 cents per pound and 3% per cent. The maximum reduction has been
made on correspondence cards, note and letter paper, bringing the rate from
3 cents per pound and 25 per cent ad valorem to 1% cents per pound and 124 per
cent.

Canada has also secured the binding of duty-free entry of newsprint in
Brazil, Cuba, Lebanon, and Syria. Another concession is the binding free of
duty of wood pulp in Benelux. A reduction in duty from 40 to 35 per cent on
kraft paper and cardboard, and in the binding of duty-free entry for books are
accorded by France.

CONCESSIONS ON FISHERY PRODUCTS

Under the Geneva Agreement Canada has obtained tariff concessions on
practically all species of fish, both fresh and salt water, and whether fresh,
frozen, dried, smoked, or canned.

In the United States, the duties on fresh or frozen white fish, yellow pike,
jack or grass pike, lake trout, yellow perch, tullibees, lake herring and ciscoes,
chubs, mullet, saugers, blue pike, cod, haddock, hake, pollock and cusk without
fins removed, have been reduced from ¢ cent to 1 cent per pound. On fresh or
frozen salmon and halibut the duty has been reduced from 1 cent to 4 cent per
pound. The duties on fresh mackerel, formerly 1 cent per pound, and frozen
mackerel, formerly 14 cents, have both been reduced to 2 cent per pound. The
duty on fresh swordfish is bound at 1 cent per pound and that on frozen sword-
fish reduced from 3 cents to 13 cents per pound. On fresh sturgeon, the duty
is bound at 4 cent per pound and on frozen sturgeon it has been reduced from
1 cent to 4 cent per pound. On shad and eels the duty is bound at % cent per
pound and on fresh water fish not elsewhere provided for the duty is reduced
from 1 cent to 4 cent per pound. :

On fresh or frozen fillets of cod, haddock, hake, pollock, cusk and rose
fish, a very important export trade, the duty has been bound at 1% cents per
pound on the existing quota of 15 per cent of average United States consumption
for the preceding three years, and the duty of 24 cents on fish fillets in excess of
the quota, which was not bound under the former trade agreement, has now
been bound against increase.
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A change advantageous to Canada has been made in the arrangements for
administration of the quota on these fish fillets. This is a trade in which Canada,
Newfoundland, Iceland and Norway all have an interest. The main fishing
season for Norway and Iceland is in the first half of the calendar year while the
Canadian and Newfoundland fisheries are normally active during the second
half. In the absence of any arrangement for allocation of the quota, there was
a possibility that the year’s quota might be largely filled by one group of countries
to the exclusion of the other. Arrangements have now been made by agreement
at Geneva to ensure an equitable division of the market by a provision that
not more than 25 per cent of the annual quota may be filled during the first
three months of the calendar year, not more than 50 per cent in the first six,
not more 75 per cent in the first nine, and any part of the year’s quota that
has not been filled in previous quarters may be utilized in the final quarter of
the year. In this way, it has been ensured that although fish caught early
in the year will not be charged against the quota for subsequent months, any
part of the quota unused during the early months can be carried forward to
the later months, but no part of the quota for any year can be carried forward
to a subsequent year. On fillets of other fresh fish the duty is reduced from 2%
to 14 cents per pound.

The United States duty on herring, smoked or kippered, or in tomato sauce,
packed in immediate containers weighing with contents more than 1 pound each,
has been reduced from 15 to 10 per cent, and other fish in airtight containers
has been bound at the existing rate of 124 per cent. This does not, however, apply
to canned salmon, of which the United States ordinarily has a large exportable
surplus, where the duty is bound at the existing rate of 25 per cent ad valorem.
On sardines, neither skinned nor boned, the new reduced rate is to vary accord-
ing to value being 44 per cent where the value is not over 13 cents per pound,
30 per cent where the value is over 13 but not over 18 cents per pound, 20 per
cent where the value is over 18 but not over 23 cents per pound, and 15 per cent
where the value is over 23 cents per pound. -

On pickled or salted salmon the rate has been reduced from 12% per cent
to 10 per cent.

On pickled or salted ground fish (cod, haddock, hake, pollock and cusk),
neither skinned nor boned, the rate depends on the moisture content. Where the
fish contains not more than 43 per cent moisture, the rate has been reduced
from § cent to 4 cent per pound and where it contains more than 43 per cent
moisture the rate has been reduced from £ cent to 4 cent per pound. On pickled
or salted ground fish, skinned or boned, the rate has been reduced from 15 cents
to 14 cents per pound. On the so-called “full herring” pickled or salted and in
containers containing each more than 10 pounds of herring, the rate of 4 cent
per pound has been bound and in containers containing less than 10 pounds
of herring, the rate has been reduced from § cent to 4 cent per pound. Split
herring has been bound at 4 cent per pound. Pickled or salted mackerel in bulk
or in containers weighing with contents more than 15 pounds each has been
reduced from 1 cent to 4 cent per pound, and when in containers not airtight
weighing with contents not more than 15 pounds each, the rate has been reduced
from 25 per cent to 124 per cent ad valorem. On alewives, a kind of river herring,
the rate has been reduced from § cent to 4 cent per pound.

Smoked or kippered salmon has been reduced from 15 per cent to 10 per
cent ad valorem. Smoked or kippered herring (hard dry smoked) has been
reduced from § cent to 4 cent per pound, and other than hard dry smoked from
14 cents to 1 cent per pound.

Smoked or kippered herring, boned or not, has been reduced from 14 and
2 cents per pound respectively to a uniform rate of 14 cents per pound. Smoked
or kippered ground fish have been reduced from 14 cents to 1 cent per pound,
and smoked or kippered fillets of ground fish have been reduced from 2 cents to
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13 cents per pound, uniform with the quota rate on fresh or frozen fillets of
ground fish. The so-called Alaska cod has been reduced from 12} per cent to 10
per cent ad valorem. Canned razor clams have been reduced from 15 per cent
to 10 per cent.

All the varieties of fish which were already free of duty have been bound
duty free. These include sea herring and smelts, lobsters, fresh or canned,

‘clams, oysters, and scallops.

In Benelux, the duty on lobsters and chilled fish not canned has been
reduced from 20 to 15 per cent, and that on canned crustaceous species from
30 to 25 per cent. The duty on canned salmon and pilchards has been reduced
from 25 to 20 per cent, and fresh, chilled, salted, dried or smoked fish, which
were already free of duty, have been bound free up to a quota to be established
on the basis of 150 per cent of prewar imports.

In France, the duty on fresh and frozen salmon has been bound at 10
per cent, that on canned salmon has been reduced from 30 per cent to 25 per
cent, and that on canned lobster has been reduced from 15 per cent to 10
per cent.

In Brazil, there is a very substantial reduction in the duties on dry salt
codfish, of which Canada is a substantial exporter. Before the Geneva negotia-
tions the rate was 616 cruzeiros per metric ton plus several surtaxes. As a result
of the Geneva negotiations the customs duty has been reduced to 200 cruzeiros
per ton and one of the principal surtaxes, namely the consumption tax, formerly
200 cruzeiros per ton, is to be eliminated.

In Cuba also, there is a reduction in the duty on imports of dried codfish
from Canada, the rate having been reduced {rom 5-50 pesos to 4:125 pesos per
100 kilograms. This reduction incidentally eliminates a former preference in
favour of the United States.

In Chile, the duty on dried codfish is bound at 1 gold peso per kilogram.

Several substantial reductions of duty on fish have been accorded by
Czechoslovakia. On salted herrings the rate is being reduced from 20 crowns to
14 crowns per 100 kilograms, while the rate on smoked herrings is bound at
70 crowns per 100 kilograms. The duty on canned salmon is reduced from
2,000 to 600 crowns per 100 kilograms, that on canned lobster from 2,000 to
1,000 crowns per 100 kilograms and the duty on sardines is being reduced from
2,000 to 600 crowns per kilograms. There is also a reduction in the duty on

“canned pilchards to 600 crowns per 100 kilograms if in oil and to 400 crowns

if in tomato sauce.

In India and Pakistan, the duty on canned fish is being reduced from 30
per cent to 20 per cent.

Norway is itself an exporter of various species of fish, but has cut in half
its duties on canned lobster and canned salmon, the reduction being from 1-50
kroner per kilogram to 0-75 kroner and from 0-60 kroner to 0-30 kroner per
kilogram respectively. There is also a reduction from 0-40 kroner to 0-30
kroner per kilogram in the duties on salted salmon.

On the other hand, certain preferences on fish enjoyed by Canada in various
Commonwealth markets have been reduced or eliminated.

In the United Kingdom, the preferential margin of 3d. per pound on chilled
or frozen salmon has been eliminated, and this product becomes duty free from
all sources. On canned salmon the preferential margin has been reduced from
10 per cent to 5 per cent but the product remains free of duty from Canada.

In Australia, while the rate of duty on Canadian canned salmon remains
at 1d. per pound, the most-favoured-nation rate has been reduced from 4d. to
24d. per pound, reducing the preferential margin from 3d. to 14d. per pound.

In New Zealand the tariff rate on canned salmon from Canada remains
at 13d. per pound while the most-favoured-nation rate has been reduced from

. 3d. to 23d. per pound. The former surcharge of 9/40 of the duty has been
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removed from both rates. Thus the margin of preference is being reduced by
two-fifths, but the duties collected on imports from both Canada and non-
Commonwealth countries are simultaneously being reduced.

In the British Colonies a reduction of 25 per cent in the margin of pref-
erence is provided on certain canned fish imported into Gambia, Sierra Leone,
Malayan Union, Bahamas, British Guiana, Jamaica, Trinidad, and Fiji.

Fish Oils: The concessions obtained in the 1935 and 1938 Trade Agreements
on sperm, shark and shark-liver oil are increased in the new Trade Agreement,
and the United States tariff rates on these oils will now be: on crude sperm oil,
14 cents per gallon, on refined sperm oil 3% cents per gallon, on shark oil and
shark-liver oil, including dogfish-liver oil, 5 per cent ad valorem and $ cent per
pound Internal Revenue Tax.

In the Trade Agreement with Iceland, the United States duty on herring oil
including pilchard was reduced by the maximum amount to 2% cents per gallon.
This rate is confirmed and a reduction made in the Revenue tax from 13 cents
to 4 cent per pound.

CONCESSIONS ON MINERALS AND METALS

Non-metallic Minerals: The 1938 Trade Agreement reduced the duty on
ground nepheline syenite from 30 to 15 per cent ad valorem. The United States
Customs Court in 1942 (C.D. 685) ruled ground nepheline syenite to be free
of duty as manufactured sand. The new Trade Agreement confirms this
classification during the effective period of the agreement. The duty on crude
feldspar of 25 cents per ton secured in the 1938 Trade Agreement is confirmed.
This duty had been reduced from 50 cents to 35 cents per ton in the 1935 Trade
Agreement. On ground feldspar there is a reduction in duty from 15 to 10
per cent. Previous to the 1938 Trade Agreement ground feldspar was dutiable
at 30 per cent. The 1935 Trade Agreement reduced the duty on dead-burned
basic refractory material from 30 to 274 per cent, which rate was further reduced
to 20 per cent in the 1938 Trade Agreement; in the new Trade Agreement the
rate is further reduced to 15 per cent. In the 1935 Trade Agreement the duty
on tale valued at not more than $12.50 per ton was reduced from 35 to 25 per
cent ad valorem. In the 1938 Trade Agreement this duty was reduced to 174 per
cent and the concession was applied to tale valued at not more than $14 per ton.
The new Trade Agreement reduces the duty on tale valued at not more than $14
per ton to 10 per cent. The concessions on mica secured in the 1938 Trade
Agreement are either extended or confirmed in the new Trade Agreement. On
small sizes of untrimmed phlogopite mica the rate is reduced from 10 to 5 per
cent. Previous to the 1938 Trade Agreement this duty had been 15 per cent.
On phlogopite mica waste and scrap valued at not more than 5 cents per pound
the reduction in duty from 25 to 15 per cent obtained in the 1938 Trade
Agreement is confirmed. The duty on ground or pulverized mica was reduced
from 20 to 15 per cent in the 1938 Trade Agreement, and this reduced rate is
continued in the new Trade Agreement. The new Trade Agreement provides
for maximum reductions in the duties on crude or crushed limestone, lime and
hydrated lime. In the 1935 Trade Agreement the duty on crude or crushed
limestone was reduced from 5 cents to 24 cents per 100 pounds. This rate was
confirmed in the 1938 Trade Agreement and is now further reduced to 14 cents
per 100 pounds. On lime, not specially provided for, the duty was reduced
from 10 cents to 7 cents per 100 pounds in the 1935 Trade Agreement and to
5 cents per 100 pounds in the 1938 Trade Agreement. This rate is now reduced
to 24 cents per 100 pounds.

On hydrated lime the new agreement accords a duty of 3 cents per 100
pounds, This compares with a rate of 6 cents per 100 pounds under the 1938
Trade Agreement, 8 cents per 100 pounds under the 1935 Trade Agreement and
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12 cents per 100 pounds under the 1930 Tariff Act. In the 1938 Trade Agreement
the duty on unmanufactured bentonité was reduced from $1.50 to 75 cents per
ton, and on manufactured bentonite from $3.35 to $1.62% per ton. These reduced
duties are continued in the new Trade Agreement. The duty on fire brick
which was reduced from 25 to 15 per cent in the 1935 Agreement, and to 12} per
cent in the 1938 Agreement, is further reduced by the maximum to 6% per cent
ad valorem in the new Trade Agreement. On ordinary brick the new Trade
Agreement confirms the reduction in duty from $1.25 to $1 per 1,000 secured in
the 1938 Agreement. The new Trade Agreement reduces the duty on cement,
not specially provided for, from 10 to 5 per cent. This duty had been reduced
from 20 to 10 per cent ad valorem in the 1938 Trade Agreement. On ground

_ or crushed stone the 1938 Trade Agreement provided for a reduction in the duty

from 30 to 15 per cent and the new agreement makes a further reduction to 10 per
cent. The new Trade Agreement reduces the duty on corundum, emery, and
garnets in grains from 1 cent to £ cent per pound, and on wheels of corundum
or silicon carbide from 20 to 10 per cent ad valorem. The maximum reduction
in the duty on caustic calcined magnesite from 15/16 cent to 15/32 cent per
pound is also secured. Binding on the free list is continued in the new Trade
Agreement on unmanufactured asbestos, crude nepheline syenite, lignite, natural
gas, gravel, stone, and sand of various kinds, radium and selenite. A new
binding of dutz-free entry is also secured on coal and coke.

Concessions on non-metallic minerals secured in countries other than the
United States include the binding of the present Benelux duty of 2 per cent
on carbon electrodes of 50 kilograms or over and 6 per cent on other carbon
electrodes. Other concessions on carbon electrodes are reduction from 20 to
15 per cent in France, reduction from 40 to 32 crowns per 100 kilograms in
Czechoslovakia, and the binding of duty-free entry in Norway. In Benelux
the binding of duty-free entry of raw asbestos and mica in sheets or ground,
and the present rate of 10 per cent ad valorem on artificial abrasives and
porcelain insulators has been secured. In France duty-free entry of coal tar
pitch is bound, and the duty on silicon carbide reduced from 15 to 10 per cent
ad valorem. In Brazil a reduction in the duty on certain manufactures of
asbestos from 9-24 cruzeiros to 6:47 cruzeiros per kilogram is provided in the
new Trade Agreement. In Czechoslovakia crude asbestos is bound duty-free,
and the duty of 10 crowns per 100 kilograms on silicon carbide is also bound.

Non-Ferrous Metals: Substantial tariff concessions have been obtained in
several countries for Canadian exports of non-ferrous metals. On nickel in
pigs and ingots the United States duty has been reduced by 50 per cent from
24 cents to 14 cents per pound, on nickel bars and rods it has been reduced
from 25 per cent to 124 per cent ad valorem, and nickel ore, matte and oxide
have been bound free of duty. In Benelux, nickel in primary forms has been
bound free of duty. In France, nickel ores and matte have been bound free
of duty, while on nickel in more advanced forms the rates have been bound or
decreased. In China the rate on nickel has been reduced from 12% per cent
to 10 per cent ad valorem, in Czechoslovakia it has been bound free, and in
Norway the rate on matte has been bound free.

On aluminum metal and alloys, the United States duty is reduced from
3 cents to 2 cents per pound, on aluminum scrap from 3 cents to 14 cents per
poungi, and on plates from 6 cents to 3 cents per pound. Benelux has bound
alum}num .ingot, plate and scrap duty free. France has reduced its rate on
alummqm ingot and scrap from 35 per cent to 21 per cent and on aluminum
bars, wires, etc., from 30 to 15 per cent. In Chile the rate on aluminum bars
and sheets is.bound at 0-15 gold pesos per kilogram. China has reduced its
rate on aluminum ingot and grains from 74 per cent to 5 per cent and has
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bound its rates on other aluminum items. Czechoslovakia and Norway have
bound aluminum on their free lists. Smelted alumina (artificial corundum)
has been bound free by Benelux.

On copper ore and refined copper the United States has bound free entry
and is reducing the Internal Revenue Code Tax from 4 cents to 2 cents per
pound. Benelux is binding free entry of copper in pigs and ingots, and France
is binding free entry of copper ores, matte and ingots, with a number of
reductions on the metal in other forms. Czechoslovakia, India, Pakistan and
Norway are also binding free entry of crude copper and Czechoslovakia has
reduced the duty on copper sheets by amounts varying according to thickness.

Concessions on lead were obtained from Benelux (where lead ore has been
bound duty free), France (where lead ore is bound duty free and the duty on
ingot has been reduced from 12 per cent to free), Brazil (where the rate on
lead blocks, pigs, etc., is bound at 196 cruzeiros per gross ton), and China
(where the rate on lead in pigs and bars has been reduced from 25 per cent
to 221 per cent ad valorem).

Substantial concessions have been obtained on zine. In the United States
the rate of duty on zinc ores has been reduced from 1% to § cents per pound
and on blocks and pigs from 12 to % cent per pound, while maximum reductions
of 50 per cent have been made from the 1930 rates on zinc sheets, scrap, dross
and skimmings. In Benelux, zine ore and ingot are bound duty free. In
France, the duty on zinc ingot has been reduced from 20 to 15 per cent, on bars,
wires and shapes from 20 to 16 per cent, and on zinc oxide the rate has been
bound at 20 per cent. China has bound its present rate of 15 per cent on zine
and spelter.

On cadmium, the United States had reduced its rate from 74 to 33 cents
per-pound, and a concession of a 50 per cent reduction has also been obtained
from Brazil. Czechoslovakia has bound this metal duty free.

Cobalt ore and metal are bound free in the United States tariff. The ore
has been bound free in France, and a concession has been obtained in Brazil
of a 50 per cent reduction in the duties on cobalt metal.

On tungsten in various forms the United States has had a compound duty
of 60 cents per pound plus rates of 25 to 50 per cent ad valorem. The specific
rate has now been reduced from 60 to 42 cents per pound, and the ad valorem
rates cut in half. Tungsten ores have also been bound free of duty in France.

On tantalum metal and alloy the United States duty has been reduced
from 25 to 125 per cent. On magnesium metal, scrap, alloys, powder, sheets,
wire, ete., the United States has made the maximum reduction of 50 per cent.

Ferrous metals: On pig iron and spiegeleisen the United States has bound
the existing duty of 75 cents per ton, while the duty of 75 cents per ton on
scrap iron and steel has been cut in half. There have been substantial
reductions in the duty on ferromanganese and ferrochrome. On boron ecarbide
the duty of 124 per cent has been cut in half. On hollow drill steel bars valued
at 8 to 12 cents a pound, which are of importance to a Canadian producer, the
rate, which was formerly 20 per cent with a minimum of 1§ cents per pound,
has been cut in half, the new rates being 10 per cent with a minimum of % cent
per pound. Iron and steel rails are bound at i cent a pound, and fish plates
have been reduced from % to § cent per pound.

CONCESSIONS ON CHEMICALS

The United States duty on acetic acid, containing more than 65 per cent
of acetic acid, which was reduced from 2 cents to 14 cents per pound in the
1935 Trade Agreement and to 1 cent per pound in the 1938 Trade Agreement
has now been further reduced to § cent per pound. On acetic acid of a strength
65 per cent or less, reduced from 1% cents to § cent per pound in the 1938 Trade

=5,




BN T 4 BANKING AND COMMERCE 79
Agreement the rate is now reduced to 4 cent per pound. A maximum reduction
from  cent to 4 eent per pound has been made on crude caleium acetate. In
the 1938 Trade Agreement the duty on crude calcium acetate was reduced
from 1 cent to 4 cent per pound. The duty on vinyl acetate and synthetic resins
made therefrom, which was reduced from 6 cents per pound and 30 per cent
ad valorem to 3 cents per pound and 15 per cent ad valorem in the 1935 Trade
Agreement and confirmed in the 1938 Trade Agreement, is now further reduced
to 14 cents per pound and 7} per cent ad valorem. Maximum reductions from
20 cents to 10 cents per pound in the duty on cobalt oxide secured in the
1935 Trade Agreement and continued in the 1938 Trade Agreement, and from
10 to 5 per cent ad valorem in the duty on Canada balsam secured in the
1938 Trade Agreement are confirmed in the new Trade Agreement. A maximum
reduction from 10 to 5 per cent in the duty on gas black, including carbon
black and acetylene black, is provided for in the new Trade Agreement. In the
1935 Trade Agreement the duty on acetylene black had previously been reduced
from 20 to 15 per cent ad valorem. The duty on cedar-leaf oil is reduced from
124 to 74 per cent in the Geneva Agreement. This duty had been previously
reduced from 25 to 121 per cent in the Trade Agreement between the United
States and France. The 1938 Trade Agreement reduced the rate on packaged
salt from 11 cents to 7 cents per 100 pounds and that on bulk salt from 7 cents
to 4 cents per 100 pounds. These rates are further reduced by the maximum
amount in the Geneva Agreement making the duty on packaged salt 3% cents
per 100 pounds, and on crude salt 2 cents per 100 pounds. A reduction from
$4 to $3.50 per ton has been secured on crude barytes but the duty on ground
barytes remains unchanged. The new Trade Agreement reduces by the
maximum amount the United States duties on acetic anhydride to 1% cents
per- pound, on ethyl alecohol to 74 cents per gal, on selenium dioxide and
tellurium compounds to 124 per cent ad wvalorem, on aluminum hydroxide to
1 cent per pound, on aluminum sulphate to 5 cent per pound, on ammonium
nitrate to 3 cent per pound, on calcium carbide to 4 cent per pound, on
phthalic anhydride to 3% cents per pound and 20 per cent ad valorem, on
naphthalene solidifying at or above 79 degrees centigrade to 13 cents per pound
and 10 per cent ad valorem, on cresylic acid to 13 cents per pound and 10 per
cent ad valorem, on explosives to 3} cents per pound and 22} per cent ad valorem,
on drugs of animal origin to 5 per cent ad valorem, on ethyl acetate to 13 cents
per pound. The Geneva Trade Agreement provides for the rebinding of free
entry of a number of chemicals including sulphuric acid, calcium cyanamid,
certain crude coal-tar products, sodium cyanide, drugs of animal origin,
including fish livers, crude artificial abrasives, radium salts, and for new
bindings of f.ree entry of erude drugs of vegetable origin, of chemical fertilizers,
of erude sodium sulphate, and of selenium and selenium salts.

.. Concessions secured on chemicals in countries other than the United States
include a bmc{mg of duty-free entry of blacks in Benelux, a reduction in the
duty on chemical fertilizers from 15 to 12 per cent ad valorem in France, a
reducpop fr(_)m 10 to 8 per cent in the Cuban duty on calecium carbide involving
the elimination of the preferential margin formerly granted to the United States,
a binding of the duty of 40 crowns per 100 kilograms on lamp and acetylene
black in Czechoslovakia, and a reduction from 36 to 30 per cent in the duty
on penicillin entering India and Pakistan.

CONCESSIONS ON MANUFACTURED GOODS

__Reference has already- been made to concessions obtained in connection
with primary products which have undergone a preliminary manufacturing
process, such as newsprint paper and wood pulp, lumber and other wood
products, metals and certain processed foods, ete.




80 STANDING COMMITTEE

On miscellaneous manufactured products, many substantial reductions
have been made in the United States tariff. Thus, on the whole range of metal -
articles or wares, the rate of duty has been reduced from 45 per cent to 22} per
cent. On the “basket item” of machinery not elsewhere specified, the rate has
been reduced from 27} per cent to 15 per cent. On another “basket item”,
articles or wares composed wholly or in part of carbon or of graphite, the rate
has been reduced from 30 per cent to 15 per cent. This is the item under which
many articles manufactured of rubber substitutes are presently classified. On
a wide range of machines and appliances employing an electrical element or
device, such as motors, fans, electrical shavers, etec., the rate has been reduced
from 274 per cent to 15 per cent, and on electric stoves the reduction is from
174 per cent to 10 per cent.

On rubber substitutes and synthetic rubber there is a reduction from 20
per cent to 10 per cent. Aircraft and parts are reduced from 30 per cent to
15 per cent. Pleasure boats valued at more than $15,000 each will pay a duty
of 15 per cent instead of the former 30 per cent, and the rate of 15 per cent,
accorded in a previous trade agreement on pleasure craft valued at $15,000 or
less, is bound at the present level.

Rates have been reduced on a number of manufactures of wood in which
Canada is interested. These have already been summarized under the heading
of wood and manufactures thereof.

. A wide range of equipment for exercise and play formerly dutiable at 30
per cent will henceforth be dutiable at 15 per cent, and the duty on ice skates
and parts has been bound at the same rate.

Pipe organs and parts, formerly dutiable at 174 per cent will now pay 15
per cent and the rate of duty on player actions and parts has also been reduced
from 20 per cent to 15 per cent.

Binder twine and agricultural implements, already free of duty, are bound
free. Cream separators valued at more than $50 and not more than $100 each.
and parts thereof, formerly dutiable at 123 per cent under the agreement with
Finland, have been reduced to 6+ per cent, the maximum reduction possible
under the Trade Agreements Act. While parts of agricultural implements do
not enjoy free entry into the United States if they are specifically named as
being dutiable under other tariff items, many of them will benefit by reductions
in the other items concerned. Thus the duties on nuts and bolts, rivets and
hinges, have been cut in half and those on power transmission chains and parts
when valued at less than 40 cents per pound have been reduced from 40 per
cent to 30 per cent and when valued at more than 40 cents per pound have been
reduced from 25 per cent to 15 per cent. Tires and inner tubes for agricultural
implements, formerlv dutiable at 25 per cent, will now pay 124 per cent.

Certain alcoholic beverages have in the past constituted an important class
of Canadian exports to the United States and on whisky the duty has been
reduced from $2.50 to $1.50, a concession which is also of interest to the United
Kingdom.

The new Trade Agreement provides for concessions in the United States
duties on articles wholly or in chief value of fur including fur coats, fur collars
and fur cuffs. The former rate of 50 per cent is now reduced to 374 per cent
in the case of articles of silver and black fox and to 25 per cent for articles of
other furs.

A wide range of plastic articles are dutiable in the United States as manu-
factures of products having a binding agent of synthetic resin. The present
Trade Agreement reduces the duty on these articles from 50 cents per pound
and 40 per cent ad valorem to 35 cents per pound and 30 per cent ad valorem.
On manufactures of cellulose acetate, the duty, which had been reduced from
80 to 40 per cent in the United States-French Trade Agreement, is further
reduced to 20 per cent.
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While the manufactured articles mentioned have been among those of
greatest importance in former trade with the United States, extensive reductions
on other items should give scope to Canadian producers for the establishment and
development of new lines of production.

A number of concessions affecting manufactured items have been obtained
through negotiations with countries other than the United States. In Benelux
the rates on soaps, powder and toilet goods have been bound at 24 per cent.
Synthetic rubber continues to enter duty free, rubber belting has been bound at
10 per cent, socks of silk and artificial silk have been bound at 24 per cent, and
a number of agricultural implements of importance to Canada have been bound
at a rate of 6 per cent. In the Belgian Congo, lamps and lanterns, already
enjoying low rates of duty, have been bound at existing rates.
~ In France, synthetic rubber has been bound duty free. On rubber belting,
the duty has been reduced from 25 per cent to 14 per cent. Many types of agri-
cultural machinery, formerly dutiable at 20 to 25 per cent, have been reduced to
15 per cent, and combines have been reduced to 12 per cent. Cream separators
and parts formerly dutiable at 25 per cent will pay 22 per cent. Domestic
heating and cooking apparatus, formerly dutiable at 25 per cent, will pay 18 per
cent. Porcelain insulators, formerly dutiable at 25 per cent, will pay 20 per cent.
Ice skates, formerly dutiable at 25 per cent, will pay 20 per cent ad valorem.
The duty on organs, church and cinema, has been reduced.

In India and Pakistan, the duty on stoves, kerosene and gasoline, has been
reduced from 30 per cent to 20 per cent, and that on domestic refrigerators and
parts has been reduced from 36 per cent to 30 per cent. The duty on aeroplanes
and parts is bound at 3 per cent. Ploughs and parts, agricultural tractors and
parts, hay presses and milking machines, already free of duty, have been
bound free.

In Lebanon and Syria, a concession has been granted on rubber tires, the rate
being bound at 15 per cent. ,

In Norway the rate on aircraft has been reduced from 24 per cent to 12
per cent. E

In Brazil, agricultural implements have been bound duty free and the duty
on sewing machines has been bound at 1-30 eruzeiros per kilogram,

In Chile, the rates on agricultural implements and parts are already low and
have been bound at their existing levels. Similar concessions have been made on
carbon electrodes and storage batteries. ,

In Cuba, a special concession has been granted on needles for machines where
the rate has been reduced from 5 per cent to 4 per cent, eliminating a small
preferential margin formerly enjoyed by the United States.

In China, the rates of duty were in general already low. Many of these
rates have been bound. One rate of some interest to Canada is that on bronze
powder which has been bound at 15 per cent.

In Czechoslovakia, the rate on synthetic rubber has been bound free, and
that on driving belts of rubber has been bound at 2,000 crowns per 1,000
kilograms. Bicycle tires are bound at 1,500 erowns per 100 kilograms and inner
tubes for other types of tires are bound at 2,000 crowns per 100 kilograms. On
tire casings for vehicles other than bicyeles, the rate has been reduced from 3,000
to 1,700 crowns per 100 kilograms. Canadian manufacturers may also benefit
by a reduction in the rate on skis from 1,000 to 700 erowns per 100 kilograms.

Several preferential margins formerly enjoyed by Canadian producers of
miscellaneous manufactured goods have been eliminated or reduced. In the
United Kingdom, the margin on silk and artificial silk dresses has been elimin-
ated but at the same time the protective duties imposed on Canadian products
have also been reduced. The preferential margin on agricultural tractors has
also been eliminated. In New Zealand, the preferential margins on adding and
computing machines and refrigerator units for domestic type cabinets have been
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eliminated, but there is no increase in the rate of duty on Canadian produets. ¥ 8
In South Africa, the preferential margin of 5 per cent on socks has been eliminated
but that on silk and artificial silk stockings has been left unchanged.

Reductions in preferential margins on manufactured products imported into
the United Kingdom cover certain machine tools and parts (where free entry is
retained but the margin has been reduced from 20 per cent to 15 per cent), electrie
stoves and heating apparatus (where free entry has been retained but the margin
has been reduced from 15 to 10 per cent). Cash registers from Canada will
continue to enter the United Kingdom free of duty but the preferential margin
has been reduced from 15 per cent to 10 per cent. On cash register parts the
preferential margin has been reduced from 20 per cent to 10 per cent, Canadian,
products remaining duty free. On welding machinery, Canadian products remain
free but the most-favoured-nation rate has been reduced from 20 per cent to 15
per cent. On paper face and hand towels the most-favoured-nation rate has been
reduced from 16% per cent to 10 per cent, Canadian products remaining free.

In Australia, Canadian preferential margins have been reduced from 20 per
cent to 10 per cent on typewriters, from 20 per cent to 15 per cent on ribbons,
from 174 per cent to 10 per cent on felt base floor covers, from 274 per cent to 20
per cent on electric stoves and elements, from 324 per cent to 20 per cent on elec-
tric refrigerators and parts, from 20 per cent to 15 per cent on bandsaws, from 3d.
to 2d. per pound on car chassis unassembled, from 24d to 1id per pound on truck
chassis unassembled, and from 3d. to 2d. per pound on chassis assembled. On
vehicle parts, rates of duty have been reduced for both Commonwealth and non-
Commonwealth countries with no change in existing margins. Canada benefits
by a slight reduction in the most-favoured-nation rate on gears, since this is an
item on which Canada has not in the past enjoyed a preferential rate. On toys
imported into Australia, the most-favoured-nation rate including primage has
been reduced from 70 per cent to 50 per cent while the rate to Canada has been
reduced from 25 per cent to 20 per cent, involving a reduction from 35 per cent
to 30 per cent in the preferential margin.

CANADIAN CONCESSIONS TO OTHER COUNTRIES

The tariff treatment to be accorded by Canada to goods, the produce of the
negotiating countries above named, is set forth in the Canadian schedule to the
General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade, designated “Schedule V” in the multi-
lateral instrument.

Schedule V (Parts T and II) consists of some 1,050 items or sub-items; of
these 590 provide for reductions in M.F.N. tariff below existing rates and about
460 for the binding or consolidation of M.F.N. rates at present effective. The
B.P. rates are reduced directly in respect of some 100 item or sub-items, and
indirectly in respect of some 50 items or sub-items (in cases where the new M.F.N.
rates are lower than existing B.P. rates). As compared with the present tariff
structure, the adoption of the duties specified in the Schedule means, in the case
of the Canadian Tariff, the elimination of the preference in 94 items or sub-items.

Schedule V provides for one increase in duty, viz.: in the preferential rate
on in-plate under tariff item 383 (b). This is accompanied by a reduction in
the most-favoured-nation rate.

Part IT of Schedule V relates solely to the British Preferential column in the
Canadian Tariff and segregates those items in which concessions were made in
favour of various Commonwealth countries. Each reduction in the preferential
rate necessitated a corresponding or compensatory reduction in the rate applic-
able to favoured-nations since, under the provisions of the Charter and the
General Agreement, no existing preferential margin could be increased and no
new such margin could be created.
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v Following in order the commodity-group divisions of the Customs Tariff of
- Canada, the more important concessions included in Parts I and II of Schedule
-V to the General Agreement may be summarized as follows:

Agricultural Products: Concessions by Canada in respect of agricultural
- products reflect concessions secured in various countries on the like or similar
- goods, a general outline of which has been given. In this field, and as regards the
United States in particular, Canada has continued to apply as widely as possible
~ a basic principle followed in working out the 1938 Agreement with that country,
namely: That wherever possible, identical duties should prevail in the two
countries. Thus in Schedule V, Canadian duties specified on the following
products will “match” those now to prevail in the United States: live cattle (1}
cents) ; live hogs (1 cent) ; beef and veal (3 cents); baby chicks (2 cents) ; eggs
in shell (34 cents); cheese (3% cents); barley (7} cents); oats (4 cents); rye (6
cents) ; hay ($1,25) ; straw (50 cents) ; red clover seed (2 cents) ; alsike clover seed
(2 cents) ; alfalfa seed (2 cents) ; and timothy seed (4 cent).

Apart from identical ratings of which these above are illustrative,
important reductions in the Canadian duties on agricultural products include
the following: certain canned meats, other than beef or pork, from 30 per
cent to 20 per cent; cocoa butter, from 3 cents to 2} cents; coffee, green, from
3 cents to 2 cents; tea, from 8 cents to 6 cents; potato starch and flour, from
2 cents to 14 cents; bulk salt, from 4 cents to 3 cents; prepared cereal foods,
packaged, from 25 per cent to 20 per cent; and Indian corn. from 10 cents to
8 cents.

Of significance to Canadian consumers are the substantial reductions
effected on certain fresh and dried fruits not produced in this country.
Oranges, hitherto free during a part of the year but dutiable at 35 cents per
cubic foot otherwise, are accorded free entry, as also are dried prunes, fresh
grapefruit and table grapes (Vitis Vinifera species). The most-favoured nation
duty on raisins is reduced from 4 cents to 3 cents per pound.

Ttems in the Canadian tariff of very great importance to Canadians, either
as producers or consumers, are those covering the importation of all the more
common kinds of fresh fruits and vegetables. This tariff group comprises
a considerable number of items, and a precise understanding of its nature can
be reached only by reference to the detailed classifications and duties set forth
in Schedule V, Part I. The new tariff treatment may, however, be summarized
as follows: The system at present prevailing, whereby seasonal protection to
Canadian growers is afforded by means of advances in invoice values immedi-
ately before or during the period of domestic production, is replaced by a
scheme of specific duties on a seasonal basis, with provision in most instances
for a revenue duty (10 per cent ad wvalorem) to be applied whenever the
specific duty indicated in the Schedule is not levied. Canada has, therefore, at
Geneva taken advantage of a proviso in the 1938 Agreement with the United
States, whereby she reserved the right to substitute for the “valuation method”
a system of seasonal specific duties. It is believed that the duties now
providéd will reserve for the Canadian producer his position as principal
supplier in his own market during his own season, at the same time giving to
consumers greater access to imported fruits and vegetables during those periods
of the year when the domestic product is not readily available, if at all.

In the field of processed fruits and vegetables, reductions are effected on
canned mushrooms, from 20§ per cent to 15 per cent; on pickled vegetables,
from 32} per cent to 224 per cent; on vegetable juices, sauces, and mustards,
from 274 to 20 per cent in the m.f.n. rate and from 15 to 124 per cent in the
B.P. rate; and on frozen vegetables, from 25 to 20 per cent. Canned peaches
are reduced from 3} to 24 cents per pound; canned apricots, pears, and pine- .
apples, from 3 to 2 cents; and jellies, jams, marmalades, ete., from 33 cents to
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31 cents under the m.f.n. tariff and from 2 cents to 13 cents under the B.P.

Tariff. Nuts of all kinds (other than peanuts) not further proeessed.

than shelled will bear a uniform rate of 1 cent per lb.; and cocoanuts

are reduced from $1 to 75 cents per one hundred (depending on route of
shipment) to 50 cents. There are restrictions in duty on a wide range
of field and garden seeds, certain milk foods, and various kinds of nursery
or florist stock. Included in this tariff group are also the items covering
fruit juices of all kinds, in respect of which rates are changed as follows:
lime, orange, lemon, and passion fruit juices, from 25 per cent to 10
per cent; pineapple juice, from 15 per cent to 10 per cent; and juices not other-
wise provided for, including blends, from 15 per cent to 10 per cent. Grape-
fruit juice is bound at the rate in the existing Agreement with the United
States, viz., 15 per cent.

Fisheries Products: Reflecting concessions gained by Canada in various
countries for products of her fisheries, are reductions in the Canadian tariff, the
more important of which follow: halibut, fresh, pickled or salted, from 1
cent to 1 cent; anchovies, sardines, and pilchards, packed in oil or otherwise
—various reduced rates, including a reduction to 11 cents on the ordinary
8-ounce ‘box; herring (not including kippered herring) in sealed containers,
from 30 per cent to 25 per cent; kippered herring in sealed containers, from
271 to 17% per cent; and fish, prepared or preserved, n.o.p. (including lobsters
and shell fish) from 275 per cent to 22% per cent. Canned salmon is bound
in rate at 275 per cent; and fresh lobsters are put on the free list.

Sugar and Its Products: No reductions are effected in the favoured-nation
rates on raw or refined sugar but the incidence of the existing duties is bound
against increase in the event of a re-wording of the classifications. In this
general group, sugar candy and sugar confectionery, including sweetened gums,
candied nuts, custard and jelly powders, sweetened breads, cakes, etc., are
reduced under both tariffs: the B.P. rate from % cent plus 15 per cent to 15 per
cent, and the m.fn. rate from % cent plus 30 p.c. to 25 p.c.

Tobacco and Its Products: The favoured-nation duties on unmanufactured
tobacco are reduced as follows: Turkish types: from 40 cents to 30 cents per
pound on unstemmed and from 60 cents to 40 cents on stemmed; other types:
from 40 cents to 20 cents on unstemmed and from 60 cents to 30 cents on
stemmed. The present duty on cigars of $3.50 per pound plus 25 per cent is
reduced to $1.75 plus 15 per cent; that on cut tobacco, from 95 cents to 80 cents;
and duties on cigarettes are lowered under foth tariffs; under the preferential
from $3.50 to $2 plus 15 per cent, and under the m.f.n. tariff, from $3 per pound
plus 15 per cent to $2 plus 15 per cent.

Spirituous Liquors, Wines, etc.: Under the new Agreement, the duties on
spirits, both preferential and favoured-nation, are reduced by varying amounts.
The existing rates on whisky of $5 and $6 per proof gallon, become $4.50 and $5
respectively; those on gin, of $5 and $10, become $4.50 and $5, respectively;
those on rum, of $5 and $7, become $4.50 and $6, respectively. The British
preferential rate of $5 on brandy is reduced to $4; and all brandy under the
favoured-nation tariff will now bear duty of $4 per proof gallon, as compared
with existing rates of $5 on Cognac and Armagnac and $10 on other brandies.
Liqueurs, at present $5 and $6, become dutiable at $4.50 under both tariffis. The
favoured-nation rate on Angostura bitters is reduced from $10 to $5 per proof
gallon. Reductions under both tariffs will apply to spirits and strong waters,
n.o.p. The reduction in duty on rum is of special interest to Cuba; those on
brandy and liqueurs, to France; and that on gin, to the Netherlands. Of signi-
ficance to France also are graduated reductions on champagnes and sparkling
wines (e.g.: quart sizes—from $7.44 to $5 per dozen bottles), as well as a
reduction from 55 cents to 20 cents per gallon on various still wines; and the
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pplication of the wine-rate to vermouth up to 28 per cent proof content, hereto-
fore dutiable under all tariffs at 80 per cent. As a consequence of the nego-
tiations with France, the favoured-nation rate on alcoholic perfumes in small
~ containers is reduced to the level of the preferential rate, 30 per cent; and that
- on such perfumes in bulk to $5 per gallon plus 30 per cent.

. Pulp, Paper, Books, etc.: In this group, numerous Canadian items providing
" for free entry or low duties on periodical publications, tourist literature, and .
" books are bound in the Schedule. Reductions in both the British Preferential
~ and favoured-nation rates are effected on labels, tags, tickets, ete., from 22%
| per cent and 274 per cent to 174 per cent and 224 per cent, respectively; on
" bank notes, bonds and similar commercial forms, from 22} per cent and 27}
" per cent to 174 per cent and 223 per cent, respectively; on greeting and similar
~ cards, from 20 per cent and 294 per cent to 15 per cent and 25 per cent, respec-
- tively; on ruled, boxed and coated paper, from 20 per cent and 27}
~ per cent to 174 per cent and 25 per cent, respectively; and on papeteries
. and manufactures of paper n.o.p., from 20 per cent and 275 per cent to
" 17 per cent and 25 per cent, respectively. Reductions in the favoured-
| nation rates will apply also in respect of roofing and shingles of saturated
| felt, from 25 per cent to 224 per cent; on paper bags, from 30 per cent
- to 224 per cent; on wall-paper, from 30 per cent to 22% per cent; on wrapping
. paper from 25 per cent to 224 per cent; on cigarette papers in tubes or packages,
. from 294 per cent to 20 per cent; on containers ,of fibreboard or paperboard,
| from 1 cent per pound but not less than 25 per cent to ¢ cent but not less than 20
- per cent; and on advertising and printed matter, n.o.p.; from 124 cents per pound
- but not less than 274 per cent to 10 cents per pound but not less than 25 per
L cent.

; Chemicals, Drugs, Paints, etc.: About a score of tariff items in this group
* which are at present free of duty are bound in Schedule V and almost as many
. more with rates not exceeding 10 to 12} per cent are similarly bound against
. increase during the life of the new Agreement. Commodities on which the
. favoured-nation rate is reduced include the following: Oxalic acid, from 20 per
- cent to 10 per cent; butyl aleohol, n.o.p., from 25 per cent to 20 per cent; various
* sodium compounds, from 15 per cent to 123 per cent; crude salt cake, from £ cent
- to 4 cent per pound; stearic acid, from 174 per cent to 124 per cent; non-aleoholic
* chemicals or preparations for spraying, disinfecting, ete., from 20 per cent to
- 12} per cent; castile soap, from 2 cents to 1 cent per pound; vegetable glue, from
- 35 per cent to 274 per cent; edible gelatine, from 35 per cent to 25 per cent;
| mucilage and adhesive paste, from 25 per cent plus 24 cents to 20 per cent plus 24
| cents; non-alcoholiec perfumery, hair oils, skin lotions, ete., from 30 per cent
. to 25 per cent; manufactures of pyroxylin plastics, n.o.p., from 274 per cent to 25
(. per cent; motion-picture films, negatives, from 274 per cent to 10 per cent; re-
- generated cellulose, and cellulose acetate, in sheets, etc.,-from 30 per cent to
* 25 per cent; dry red lead, antimony oxide, zinc oxide, ete., from 15 per cent to
L 12} per cent; rough stuff, fillers and dry colours, from 20 per cent to 174 per
- cent; ground and liquid paints, n.o.p., from 25 per cent to 20 per cent; putty,
¥ frqm.27% per cent to 223 per cent; various natural gums, from 10 per cent to free;
. printing ink, from 174 per cent to 15 per cent; olive oil, n.o.p., from 17 per cent
* to 10 per cent; various essential oils, natural, from 7} per cent to free; whale
. oil, from 30 per cent to 15 per cent; and castor oil, from varying rates to free.
Two of the most important “basket items” in the entire group are reduced:
acids, n.0.p. of a kind not produced in Canada, from 20 per cent to 15 per cent;
and chemicals and drugs, n.o.p., not produced in Canada, from 174 per cent to
- 15 per cent. Some five items in this large and varied tariff group are reduced
’und(?r both preferential and favoured-nation tariffs; all medicinal and pharma-
| ceutical preparations compounded of more than one substance, liquid, from 20
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per cent and 274 per cent to 174 per cent and 224 per cent, respectively; toilet
soap, from 20 per cent and 294 per cent to 15 per cent and 221 per cent, respec-
tively; soap powders and soap, n.o.p., from 20 per cent and 25 per cent to 15
per cent and 20 per cent, respectively; glue, n.o.p., from 174 per cent plus 2
cents and 25 per cent plus 5 cents to 15 per cent plus 2 cents and 22} per cent
plus 5 cents, respectively; and varnishes, lacquers, ete., from 15 cents per gallon
plus 10 per cent and 15 cents plus 20 per cent to 15 cents plus 5 per cent and
15 cents plus 15 per cent, respectively. ‘

Crude vegetable oils of cotton seed, palm and palm kernel, peanut and
cocoanut, when imported to be refined for edible purposes, are bound at the rate
of 10 per cent hitherto applicable; and in connection therewith, cotton seed, palm
kernels, peanuts and copra (cocoanut meat)—all raw materials for the crushing
industry—are placed on the free list.

Earthen and Glassware, Ete.: In this group there are several reductions in
rates that will be of especial interest to Canadian housewives; moreover, the more
noteworthy of these relate to goods of which this country is not an important
producer. The favoured-nation rate on all tableware of china, porcelain, or
semi-porcelain is reduced from 35 per cent to 25 per cent; rates of 274 per tent
and 25 per cent applicable at present to a wide range of glass products, ete.
(including glass tableware, cutglass ware, opal glassware, bottles, lamp-
chimneys and machine-made tumblers) are consolidated in a flat rate of 224
per cent; window glass of all-kinds is reduced from 15 per cent to 10 per cent,
and plate glass in panes or sheets not exceeding seven square feet each is
reduced from 20 per cent to 10 per cent. Other reductions in duty under the
favoured-nation column include: manufactures of clay or cement, n.o.p., from
20 to 174 per cent; earthen roofing tiles, from 324 per cent to 20 per cent;
earthen churns, crocks, ete., from 30 per cent to 20 per cent; all sanitary earthen-
were, from 274 per cent to 25 per cent; dead-burned or sintered magnesite, from
27% to 15 per cent; marble, sawn or sand-rubbed, from 20 per cent to 10 per
cent; all manufactures of asbestos, n.o.p., from 20 per cent to 123 per cent;
electric light and arc carbons, from 324 per cent plus 20 cents lb. to 25 per cent
plus 10 cents; incandescent bulbs, from 7% per cent to 5 per cent; sheet glass,
from 25 per cent to 20 per cent; plate glass, n.o.p., from 30 per cent to 25 per cent;
mirrors of glass, from 30 per cent to 221 per cent; stained or ornamental
windows, from 274 per cent to 15 per cent; and spectacles and eyeglass
lenses, from 243 per cent to 224 per cent. A few products in this
group are reduced under both preferential and favoured-nation tariffs: drain
pipe, sewer pipe, earthen blocks, etc., from 20 per cent and 30 per cent
to 15 per cent and 224 per cent, respectively; earthenware wall tile, from 20
per cent and 30 per cent to 15 per cent and 25 per cent, respectively; and
earthenware, n.o.p., (including ordinary table earthenware), from 20 per cent
and 35 per cent to 174 per cent and 25 per cent respectively. Crude asbestos
is placed on the free list.

Various Metals and their Products: The principle of reeciprocity in tariff
treatment so far as concerns the United States in particular has been applied
over one broad sector of this highly important Metals group: the primary
and rolling mill products of aluminum. Concessions in duties have been' made
by both countries (as well as by several other negotiating countries) and the
Canadian rates have been reduced on the more common forms of aluminum
as follows: aluminum pigs, blocks, ingots, slabs, wire-bars, ete., from 27}
per cent to 2 cents per lb.; bars, rods, plates, sheets, strip, ete., from 274 per
cent to 3 cents per lb.; angles, channels and other rolled, drawn or extruded
sections and shapes, from 274 per cent to 22} per cent; wire and cable, whether
or not twisted or stranded, from 274 per cent and 30 per cent to 224 per cent;
pipes and tubes, from 274 per cent to 22} per cent; kitchen or household
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~ hollow-ware of aluminum, from 274 per cent to 224 per cent; and manu-
~ factures of aluminum, n.o.p., from 274 per cent to 22} per cent. In zine
products, the existing free entry has been bound in respect of zinc dust, strip,
. sheets and marine-boiler plates; and manufactures of zinc, n.o.p. have been
- reduced in rate from 20 per cent to 174 per cent. Wire of all metals and kinds
(other than iron or steel or aluminum) is reduced from 30 per cent to 20 per
. cent; such wire, if covered, from 27} per cent to 20 per cent; wire cloth
| or screen, from 22} per cent to 20 per cent; and all manufactures of brass
~ or copper, n.o.p., from 243 per cent to 20 per cent. In the precious-
metal field, reductions apply under both preferential and favoured-nation
| tariffs. As regards articles consisting wholly or in part of sterling or
- other silverware, n.o.p. and all manufactures of gold or silver, n.o.p. from
existing rates of 20 per cent and 323 per cent to 174 per cent and 274 per cent,
respectively. Reductions under both tariffs apply also in the case of nickel-
plated ware and gilt or electro-plated ware, from duties of 174 per cent and
30 per cent to 15 per cent and 224 per cent, respectively. Toilet articles of all
kinds of which the manufactured component of chief value is sterling silver are
reduced from two existing favoured-nation rates of 333 per cent and 374 per
cent to a flat rate of 30 per cent. A very wide range of so-called “jewellery
findings” of metal will be dutiable at 20 per cent instead of 25 per cent as at
present and many types and kinds of wire or strip used in the jewellery industry
are reduced from 20 per cent to 15 per cent. Watch cases are reduced under
both tariffs: from existing rates of 20 per cent and 32% per cent to rates of 15
per cent and 25 per cent.

In the ferro-alloy group, the favored-nation rate on ferro-silicon containing
more than 8 per cent by weight of silicon but less than 60 per cent, is reduced
from 1% cents to 1 cent per lb.

Iron and Steel, and Products Thereof: In any tariff negotiations to which
Canada is a party, all forms of iron and steel and articles produced therefrom
play a vital part. That this was the case at Geneva is illustrated by the simple
. fact that the Scliedule to the Agreement includes no fewer than 350 items
. relating to this tariff group, some 10 of which appear also in Part II of the
Schedule. Many of the items are included in the Schedule for the purpose of
binding the existing tariff treatment but reductions in duty (chiefly in the
favored-nation rate only) are numerous and important.

Considering first the primary forms of iron and steel, up to and including
rolling-mill products, it will be seen from a perusual of Schedule V that tin-plate
of a class or kind not made in Canada is reduced from 15 per cent to 10 per
cent; and that tin-plate, n.o.p., will be subject to a duty of 15 per cent on imports
under both tariffs as soon as the necessary legislation to that end can be enacted.
Flat steel of rust-, acid- or heat-resistant qualities are reduced from 174 per cent
to 124 per cent and structural shapes if punched, drilled or further manufactured
. than rolled or cast, from 35 per cent to 30 per cent. Other reductions provided
- in respect of basic iron and steel forms include: castings of iron, from 22 per
cent to 20 per cent; castings of steel, from 22} per cent to 20 per cent; forgings
of steel, n.o.p. from 274 per cent to 25 per cent; axles and bars for railway
vehicles, from 25 per cent to 224 per cent; axles and bars for other vehicles, n.o.p.,
from 30 per cent to 224 per cent; cast iron pipe, from $10.80 to $10 per ton;
pipes and tubes, welded or seamless, not more than 104 inches in diameter,
from 25 per cent to 224 per cent; fittings and couplings for pipes and tubes, from
25 per cent to 224 per cent; springs, for the running gear of other than railway
vehicles, n.o.p., from 30 per cent to 275 per cent; silent and roller chain, from
20 per cent to 15 per cent; and steel chain, n.o.p., from 30 per cent to 25 per cent.

All farm implements and machinery at present entitled to entry free of duty
are bound against imposition of duty. Ore and rock crushers, rock drills and
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similar mining and quarrying equipment are reduced from 174 per cent to 15 per
cent; and machinery, logging cars, cranes, ete. for use in logging operations,
from 15 per cent to 124 per cent. : ‘

In office machinery and equipment, “parts” of typewriters are reduced from
20 per cent to 15 per cent; book-keeping, calculating and invoicing machines, from
124 per cent to 10 per cent; adding machines, from 20 per cent to 174 per cent;
and “parts” for adding machines from 20 per cent to 15 per cent. g

While the favoured-nation rate of 20 per cent on vacuum cleaners is bound
against increase, the duties on many articles of household equipment are reduced;
electric or other refrigerators, from 25 per cent to 224 per cent; washing machines,
from 25 per cent to 224 per cent; clothes wringers, from 25 per cent to 221 per cent;
lawn mowers, from 30 per cent to 25 per cent; hollow-ware of iron or steel, coated
with vitreous enamel, from 30 per cent to 225 per cent; kitchen and dairy hollow-
ware, including milk cans, from 25 per cent to 20 per cent; bicycles, from 274 per
cent to 25 per cent; children’s carriages, sleds, ete., from 30 per cent to 224 per
cent; all kinds of apparatus designed for cooking or for heating buildings, from
25 per cent to 224 per cent; gas burners and mantles, from 275 to 225 per cent;
lamp shades and holders, and electric light fixtures and appliances, n.o.p., from
271 per cent to 224 per cent. Other electrical equipment to which reductions
will apply includes the following: are and incandescent lamps, from 30 per cent
to 25 per cent; electric torches or flashlights, from 274 per cent to 224 per cent;
electric telegraph apparatus, from 25 per cent to 20 per cent; electric telephone -
apparatus, from 25 per cent to 224 per cent; electric wireless or radio apparatus,
from 25 per cent to 20 per cent; dynamos, generaters and transformers, from
25 per cent to 224 per cent; electric motors, electric insulators, and all electric
apparatus, n.o.p. from 25 per cent to 224 per cent.

Other reductions in the favoured-nation rates applicable to commodities the
chief component of which is steel include the following: electric dental engines,
from 30 per cent to 224 per cent; fire engines and fire fighting apparatus, from
30 per cent to 25 per cent; table knives and forks, from 30 per cent to 25 per
cent; all other knives, from 30 per cent to 20 per cent; spoons, from 30 per cent
to 25 per cent; scissors and shears, from 30 per cent to 20 per cent; razors, from
30 per cent to 273 per cent; safety razor blades, from 25 per cent to 20 per cent;
many hand tools, from 271 per cent to 25 per cent; baths, basins, closets, etc.
of steel, coated or not, from 25 per cent to 20 per cent; railway locomotives,
n.0.p., from 30 per cent to 25 per cent; locomotives and cars for mining and
sawmill operations: if made in Canada, from 30 per cent to 20 per cent and if
not made in Canada from 12} per cent to free; railway cars, from 274 per cent
to 221 per cent; aircraft, from 20 per cent to 15 per cent and aircraft engines,
from 174 per cent to 15 per cent; water pumps for domestie purposes, from
25 per cent to 224 per cent; buckles and clasps of all kinds (not being jewellery)
from 274 per cent to 25 per cent; and household, office or store furniture, sub-
stantially of metal, from 274 per cent to 25 per cent.

A very few items in the Iron and Steel group appear, as stated above, in
Part II of the Schedule, and reductions in both preferential and favoured-nation
rates include these: woven or welded wire fencing and wire cloth or netting, from
20 per cent and 30 per cent to 174 per cent and 25 per cent, respectively; cars,
n.o.p., and wheel-barrows, trucks, scrapers, ete., from 15 per cent and 27% per
cent to 10 per cent and 221 per cent, respectively; and slide, hookless or zipper
fasteners, from 30 per cent and 371 per cent to 25 per cent and 30 per cent,
respectively.

The present Canadian duties on motor vehicles are bound against increase.

Wood and Manufactures thereof: This group is represented in Schedule V
by items which are few in number but which cover an important field, both
import and domestic. The favoured-nation rate on hardwood flooring is reduced
from 174 per cent to 12} per cent; certain plywood, from 224 per cent to 20 per
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cent; skis ‘amd”ﬁttings, from 30 per cent to 224 per cent; fishing rods, from 25
per cent to 20 per cent; picture and photograph frames from 274 per cent to

- 20 per cent; and furniture substantially of wood from 325 per cent to 275 per

cent.

Textile Products of all Kinds: Although represented in Schedule V by only
some 125 tariff items, the Textile Group of the Canadian tariff has contributed
one of the most vitally-important sections of the entire General Agreement
between Canada and other negotiating countries. Negotiations in respect of
textiles and textile products—whether as regards the primary forms of yarns
and filaments, fabrics of all kinds, or made-up garments and articles—were
condueted not only with the United States, Belgium and Luxembourg, the Nether-
lands, France, China and Czechoslovakia, but with the United Kingdom; all
these countries have in the past been important suppliers of the Canadian market
and the particular position of the United Kingdom in this respect is evidenced
by the fact that, out of a total of about 125 scheduled items, no fewer than
30 appear in Part 11 (as well as in Part I) of the Schedule to the Agreement.
The items listed cover textile products of cotton, vegetable fibres other than
cotton, wool, rayon and other synthetic fibres other than cotton, wool, rayon
and other synthetic fibres, and silk, including admixtures of any or all of these.

The favoured-nation rate is reduced on certain cotton yarns, including
cords and twines, from 20 per cent plus 3 cents per pound to 174 per cent plus
3 cents; on cotton sewing thread on spools, from 224 per cent to 20 per cent;
and on mercerized cotton yarns, from 225 per cent to 20 per cent. Both rates
on cotton-thread yarns (Item 522e) are reduced, from 7% per cent to 5 per cent
and 10 per cent, respectively.

Woven fabrics of cotton, not bleached (Item 523) are reduced under the
favoured-nation tariff from 174 per cent plus 3 cents per pound to 15 per cent
plus 3 cents. No reduction in the preferential rate is accorded on this item.
Seamless cotton bags are similarly reduced, from 274 per cent to 22% per cent.

In bleached, mercerized, printed and coloured cotton fabrics, reductions
apply under both tariffs. In respect of bleached or mercerized fabrics (Item
523a) existing preferential and favoured-nation rates of 20 per cent and 20 per
cent plus 3 cents per pound, respectively, become 174 per cent and 174 per cent
plus 3 cents. On all printed, dyed or coloured cottons (Item 523b) the existing
preferential rate of 20 per cent is reduced to 174 per cent; and favoured-nation
rates on such fabrics are reduced as follows:

(i) Fabries valued over 80 cents per pound: to 174 per cent plus 3 cents;
(ii) Fabries valued at 50 cents to 80 cents per pound: to 224 per cent plus 3
cents; (iii) Fabrics valued at less than 50 cents per pound: to 25 per cent plus
34 cents; (iv) Fabrics known as denims: to 175 per cent plus 3 cents; the
reduction in respect of each sub-item being one of 2% per cent in the ad valorem
rate, but with no change in the specific duty.

Cotton cretonnes and gabardines (Items 523j and 523k) are reduced under
both tariffs, from 124 per cent and 274 per cent plus 3% cents per pound,
respectively, to 10 per cent and 25 per cent plus 3% cents per pound. -

Cotton bobbinet, plain, in the web, is reduced under the favoured-nation
tariff only, from 25 per cent to 124 per cent.

~ In th case of embroideries, lace, nets, ete. of cotton (Item 529) the preferen-

tial rate is reduced from 20 per cent to 15 per cent, and the m.f.n. rate from 27%
per cent plus 3% cents per pound to 20 per cent plus 3 cents. Coloured cotton
laces for use in Canadian industries (Item 530) are reduced under the m.f.n.
tariff only, from 17} per cent to 15 per cent.

The most important “basket item” of the cotton group, covering clothing
and wearing apparel and all manufactures of cotton not separately classified
(Item 532), on which the existing rates are 25 per cent preferential and 30 per
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cent favoured-nation, has been subdivided to provide (a) reduced preferential
rates of 224 per cent on cotton curtains and impregnated cotton fabrics and of

20 per cent on cotton bags, not seamless and (b) a favoured-nation rate of 25

per cent on clothing, wearing apparel and manufactures of cotton, n.o.p., of 274
per cent on cotton curtains and impregnated cotton fabrics, and of 224 per
cent on cotton bags. This new subdivision of the item means the elimination
of preference on that part thereof which covers clothing and manufactures of

cotton, n.o.p. Cotton handkerchiefs, presently dutiable at 15 per cent and 30

per cent, respectively, will now bear rates of 12} per cent and 274 per cent.

Twine for baling farm produce is put on the free list and the favoured-
nation rate on linen thread is reduced from 22% per cent to 174 per cent.

Jute yarns (other than singles) and twines (Item 537e), are reduced under
both tariffs from 25 per cent and 30 per cent to 20 per cent and 25 per cent,
respectively. ; .

The free entry at present accorded under the preferential tariff to certain
fine linens and linen articles under sub-items (a) and (b) of Tariff Ttem 540
is continued and the favoured-nation rates thereon are reduced in respect of
sub-item (a), from 30 per cent plus 3% cents per pound to 223 per cent plus 3
cents and in respect of sub-item (b), from 30 per cent plus 31 cents to 20
per cent plus 3 cents. As regards sub-items (¢) and (d) of the same item,
reductions affect both preferential and favoured-nation tariffs, the new preferen-
tial rate on each of these sub-items being 15 per cent plus 3 cents per pound
and the new favoured-nation rate, 20 per cent plus 3% cents.

Reductions in favoured-nation rates, only, apply to linen fire hose, from
324 per cent to 30 per cent; to all clothing, wearing apparel and manufactures,
n.o.p., wholly or in part of vegetable fibres other than cotton (Item 548), from
30 per cent to 25 per cent; and on woven dress linens (Item 548a).

In the wool group, an important provision is for the free entry under both
tariffs of carpet wools. Hair, curled or dyed, is reduced from 174 per cent to
15 per cent and nets made of human hair from 30 per cent to 15 per cent. Changes
in duties on wool yarns are three in number. On the “n.o.p.” yarns under Item
551 the preferential rate is reduced by 1 cent per pound to 15 per cent and 5
cents and the favoured-nation rate from 20 per cent plus 30 cents per pound
to 175 per cent plus 20 cents. Manufacturing yarns (Item 551a) are reduced
under the m.f.n. tariff only, from 174 per cent plus 15 cents per pound to 15
per cent plus 15 cents, and worsted yarns for six-ounce fabries (Item 551d) in
exactly the same amount.

In the wool fabric group, siv-ounce cloths imported for furnishing (Item
554) are reduced under both tariffs by 24 per cent, with no change in the specifie
duty, the resulting being 15 per cent plus 74 cents per lb. and 20 per cent plus
174 cents. ‘Similarly, four-ounce fabrics imported for finishing in Canada (Item
554c) are reduced—but only under the m.f.n. tariff—form 25 per cent plus
175 cents per lb. to 20 per cent plus 15 cents.

The chief item in the wool fabric group is Item 554b, under which
enters the largest part of the total imports of woollen and worsted cloths
and on which the existing preferential rate is 221 per cent plus 12 cents
per 1lb. and the favoured-nation rate, 35 per cent plus 30 cents, the
former having a proviso to the effect that the maximum duty per pound of cloth
shall not exceed fifty cents. Under the new Agreement, the preferential rate
on the item is reduced to.20 per cent plus 12 cents per lb. (with the maximum
duty proviso unchanged); the favoured-nation rate is reduced to 274 per cent
plus 30 cents and, as respects fabrics weighing not more than eight ounces to the
square yard, there is now provided under the m.f.n. tariff a maximum duty of $1
per pound. Other favored-nation rates reduced include those on billiard cloth,
melton cloth and slipper cloth.

On the main “finished goods” item in the wool group (Item 555), which
covers in general imports of clothing, wearing apparel and articles made from
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woven wool fabrics, as well as all non-specified manufactures composed wholly

~ or in part of wool, the preferential rate is reduced from 30 per cent to 25 per cent

and the favored-nation rate from 324 per cent on women’s and children’s outer
garments and from 40 per cent plus 32% cents per 1b. on all other clothing and
manufacturer goods, to 274 per cent. Wool blankets (Item 552) are reduced
under the m.f.n. tariff only, from 30 per cent plus 25 cents per 1b. to 25 per cent
plus 20 cents; and cotton blankets from 20 per cent plus 5 cents per lb. to
174 per cent plus 5 cents.

Yarns of synthetic fibres or filaments appear only in Part I of the Schedule;
that is, they are affected only in respect of the favored-nation rate. All single
and plied yarns (whether viscose, acetate, cupromonium, ete.) are reduced from
the present rate of 30 per cent but not less than 28 cents per 1b. to one of 25 per
cent but not less than 24 cents per 1b. So-called “spun rayon” yarns (Item 558f)
are reduced in an idential manner.

In accord with a reduction on silk fabrics “in the gum,” imported for the
purpose of being finished in Canada (Item 560), there is a reduction in the
m.fn. rate on two silk fabric items: the rate on Item 560a ls reduced from
36 per cent plus 10 cents per yard to 30 per cent plus 74 cents; and that on Item
* 560b, from 294 per cent to 25 p.c. :

One of the most important items in the textile group is that relative to
fabrics woven from synthetic yarns or filaments (Item 561), imports under which
have come in former years from a dozen countries but of which normally the
United Kingdom was the principal source of supply. The existing preferential
rate is an ad valorem only, of 274 per cent; whereas the favoured-nation rate is a
compound one: 36 per cent plus 40 cents per 1b. The Agreement provides for a
preferential rate of 224 per cent and an m.fn. rate of 274 per cent plus 40 cents.

Ribbons of pure silk and of synthetic silk, and necktie silks, are reduced
under the favored-nation tariff, the two former from 27% per cent to 25 per cent
and the latter from 18 per cent to 15 per cent. Embroideries, lace and nets n.o.p.
(i.e.—as distinet from those wholly of cotton referred to earlier in this statement),
dutiable under Item 565 at 22 per cent preferential, and 324 per cent or 27§ per
cent favoured-nation, are reduced to 174 per cent and 22% per cent, respectively.

Under the existing Agreement with the United States, silk clothing and
wearing apparel in dutiable at 30 per cent and other manufactured silk products
n.o.p. (Item 567) at 30 per cent plus 7 cents per ounce. The new Agreement sets
a flat rate of 30 per cent on the entire item, with no change in the existing pre-
ferential rate of 274 per cent. As respects similar clothing and articles of
synthetic silk (Item 567a), the existing preferential rate is 25 per cent while
the m.f.n. rate on clothing and apparel is 324 per cent and on other products,
314 per cent plus 4% cents, per ounce. In the new Agreement, “split” rates are
discontinued; the preferential rate on the entire item will be 20 per cent and the
favored-nation rate 274 per cent.

_ Products of the knitting industry—whether of cotton, wool, silk, artificial
silk or admixtures thereof—are dutiable for the most part under tariff item 568,
on which the preferential rate is 20 per cent, and the favoured-nation rate either
35 per cent. (if clothing or apparel) or 35 per cent plus 25 cents per 1b. (if articles
other than clothing). In the new Agreement, the B.P. rate is unchanged, and the
favoured-nation rate is 35 per cent, without any specific component. The closely
related item (568a) covering hosiery has two sub-items; wool hosiery, with
preferential and m.f.n. rates of 20 per cent plus 30 cents per dozen pairs and 321
per cent plus $1.35 per dozen pairs, respectively, the latter (only) of which is
reduc_ed to 27} per cent and $1.20 per dozen pairs; and other hosiery, with pref-
erential and m.f.n. rates of 20 per cent (no specific duty) and 20 per cent plus
$1 per dozen pairs, the latter (only) of which is reduced to 20 per cent plus 75
cents per dozen pairs.
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Other reductions in favoured-nation duties in the textile group include the
following: church vestments, from 153 per cent to 10 per cent; hats, n.o.p. (Item
569 (v)) from 30 per cent plus $1.50 per dozen to 274 per cent plus $1 per dozen;
wool berets, from 27 per cent plus 58} cents per dozen to 224 per cent plus 50
cents per dozen; and hats, hoods or shapes of fur-felt, or of wool-and-fur felt, on
which the preferential rate is reduced from 224 per cent to 174 per cent and the
m.f.n. rate from 30 per cent to 223 per cent.

Existing preferential rates on cutpile cocoa mats, and on cocoa mats or mat-
ting n.o.p., of 3 cents per square foot and 74 cents per square yard, respectively,
are reduced to 2% cents and 63 cents, with reductions in the m.f.n. rates. Other
textile floor-coverings which appear in the Schedule are carpets and linoleums.
The former enter under Item 572, with a preferential duty of 30 per cent and a
favoured-nation rate of 30 per cent plus 73 cents per square foot: these are
reduced to 25 per cent preferential and 25 per cent plus 5 cents, favoured-nation.
The favoured nation rate on oilcloth and linoleum (Item 573) is reduced from
30 per cent to 274 per cent.

Hides, skins and leather goods: Free entry under tariffs is continued
in respect of hides, skins and plates (Items 599, 601 and 602). A reduction is
provided on fur skins wholly or partially dressed (Item 603) from 13} per cent
to 12 per cent and free entry is accorded to karakul skins, formerly dutiable
under this Item at rates of 10 per cent and 134 per cent, respectively. Sheepskin
or lambskin leather, further finished than tanned, is reduced under the m.fn.
tariff only, from 25 per cent to 224 per cent; and all belting leather as well as
leather further finished than tanned, n.o.p. (Item 604) from 20 per cent to 173
per cent favoured-nation only. The favoured-nation rate only on sole leather
(Item 604b) is reduced from 25 per cent to 224 per cent; genuine reptile leathers,
from 15 per cent to 74 per cent; and pig and morocco leathers (Item 605a), from
25 per cent to 20 per cent. Leather produced from East India tanned kip
(Item 606) bears at present a preferential rate of 20 per cent plus 4 cents per
square foot and a favoured-nation rate of 25 per cent plus 4 cents; these are
reduced to 20 per cent plus 2 cents and 25 per cent plus 2 cents, respectively. The
m.f.n rate on leather belting (Item 609) drops from 25 per cent to 224 per cent.
The existing rates on leather garments (Item 611b) of 20 per cent and 30 per
cent become 174 per cent and 274 per cent respectively; and those on harness
and saddlery (Item 612) of 174 per cent and 22% per cent become 15 per cent
and 20 per cent respectively.

Leather footwear (Item 611a) bears duties at present of 22% per cent and 30
per cent preferential and favoured-nation, and these are reduced in Schedule V
to rates of 20 per cent and 274 per cent, respectively. Canvas shoes with rubber
soles also under Item 611a, dutiable at present at 224 per cent and 35 per cent
will in future carry the same ratings as those attaching to leather footwear,
namely: 20 per cent and 274 per cent. All non-specified manufactures of leather
(Item 613) with rates, preferential and favoured-nation, of 20 per cent, and
25 per cent will be dutiable at rates of 174 per cent and 224 per cent, respectively.

Rubber and Products: The favoured-nation rate of 224 per cent on all non-
enumerated manufactures of rubber (Item 618) is reduced to 20 per cent and
that on belting, n.o.p. (i.e.—all other than leather belting, Item 610) is reduced
from 25 per cent to 20 per cent. Both tariffs are reduced on rubber clothing and
clothing made from waterproofed cotton fabrics (Item 619a), from 25 per cent
and 30 per cent respectively, to 224 per cent and 27% per cent.

Miscellaneous commodities: Scores of commodities not particularly related
to any tariff group but of significance in the daily life of Canadians appear in
Schedule V with reduced rates. Illustrative of the reductions are the following:
anthracite coal, from 50 cents per ton to free; bituminous coal, from 75 cents to
50 cents; pianos and organs, from 25 per cent to 22} per cent; musical instru-
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ments of all kinds not specially enumerated, from 243 per cent to 175 per cent;
brass band instruments, and all manufactures of fur, n.o.p., from 30 per cent
to 25 per cent; braces and suspenders, from 27 per cent to 224 per cent; umbrellas,
parasols, ete., from 27 per cent to 25 per cent; jewellery for adornment of the
person, from 35 per cent to 324 per cent under the m.f.n. tariff and from 25 per
cent to 221 per cent under the preferential tariff; buttons of vegetable ivory,
from 30 per cent plus 10 cents per gross to 25 per cent plus 10 cents; other buttons,
from 30 per cent plus 5 cents per gross to 25 per cent plus 5 cents; toilet and
dressing combs, from 25 per cent but not less than $1.50 per gross to 20 per cent
but not less than $1.44 per gross; brushes of all kinds, n.o.p., from 30 per cent to
25 per cent; pens and penholders, from 25 per cent to 224 per cent; lead pencils,
from 35 per cent to 30 per cent; tobacco pipes of all kinds, from 294 per cent to
22} per cent; cigar and cigarette holders, from 294 per cent to 25 per cent; cigar
and cigarette cases, smokers’ sets, tobacco pouches, ete., from 294 per cent to
25 per cent; motion-picture films, positives, one and one-eighth inches and over
(Item 657a) from 2% cents to 1% cents per linear foot; photographic dry plates,
from 274 per cent to 25 per cent; grinding wheels, blocks or stones and manu-
factures of emery or of artificial abrasives (Item 670), from 22} per cent to
20 per cent; sponges of marine production, from 174 per cent to 15 per cent;
roofing granules, whether or not colored or coated, from 20 per cent to 15 per
cent; hominy grits, corn grits and hominy feeds, from 20 per cent to 10 per cent;
mineral and medicinal waters, natural, from 20 per cent to free; potassic nitrate
of soda, n.o.p., from 20 p.c. to free; certain products or articles of quartz, from
20 per cent to free if not further processed than cut into slabs and ground to
shape and from 20 per cent to 10 per cent if fully manufactured; woven tire
cord fabric chiefly or synthetic fibres or filaments, coated with rubber composition,
from 174 per cent plus 3% cents per 1b. to 15 per cent; wire-drawing dies, in the
rough, from 10 per cent to 5 per cent and oiticica oil, from 20 per cent to free.

Trunks, valises, bags and baskets of all kinds (Item 622) and musical instru-
ment cases, fancy boxes and cases of all kinds, portfolios, satchels, ete. (Item 623),
are reduced under both tariffs: the preferential rate from 15 per cent to 124 per
cent and the favoured-nation rate from 30 per cent to 22% per cent.

A considerable change in the tariff treatment of containers (under Item
710) is provided for in the Schedule. The existing duties of 10 per cent and 18 per
cent on usual coverings containing goods, not machinery, subject to an ad valorem
duty, when not included in the invoice value of the goods (710b) are reduced to
free and 74 per cent, respectively; and the existing duties of 5 per cent and 15 per
cent on machinery coverings (710bb) are reduced to the same rates of free and
7% per cent.
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NOTE REGARDING STATISTICS

The statistics shown for the United States and Empire countries are those of
the country in question; for other countries Canadian statistics have been used.
The classifications of the items in the latter are not always identical with the
descriptions of the items in the tariffs of the countries in which the concessions
were obtained. To this extent the trade figures must be regarded as
approximations. ‘

The statistics are generally for the last prewar year. In some cases (i.e.
Czechoslovakia and China) an earlier period prior to 1938 was taken in order
to obtain a period of greater normalcy.




STATEMENT 1—Importsinto the United States from Canada of principal* dutiable items on which concessions were obtained under the General Agreement on
Tariffs and Trade, calendar years 1939 and 1946, showing rates of duty

(* Statement includes only items valued at $50,000 or more in either year)

Tariff Rates Imports into
U.S. from
U.S. Statistical Description (abbr.) U.S. S - awd Canada
Tariff Fn°°1§309‘w ey 1946 rate Geneva agreement rate
Ttem (i.e. 1930 rate) : 1939 1946
(thousands | of dollars)
Chemicals, Oil and Paints—
Acetic acxd more than 656% by wt.......... 1 2¢ 1b. 1¢ Ib. 2¢1b. 60 327
mel acetate polymerized, and synthetic '2 4 Tb. g 7 i % s 7 44
.................................... 6¢ 1b. plus 30% 3¢ 1b. plus 156% 13¢ 1b. plus 1

Butyl alcohol ............................... 4 6¢ 1b. 6¢ 1h. 3¢¢lb. SR L 51
Vitamins and vitasterols.................... 5 26% 25% 1239, 140
Medicinal preparations of animal origin. .... 5 25% 125% B s A R R e 108
Synthetic resins made from vinyl acetate. . 11 4¢ 1b. plus 30% 3¢ 1b. plus 15% 13¢ 1b. pluB 73% < i it verin 52
CRlotum: Bo0BRES, b v b s va s s i 16 1¢ 1b. 3¢ Ib. Fé-Thy 0L e i R SRR Sk 74
Galoium eatbade = fec ot Crls R U 16 . | 1¢1b. 1¢1b. i¢ 1b. 74 87
Drugs of animal or vegetable origin, n.e.s.,

advanced in value. .. ......iciieiin suanass 34 10% 10% 5% 32 230
divosring orgder, L un Sl s b 42 1¢ 1b. 8/10¢ 1b 4/10¢ 1b 8 114
L | B e T R L e kg U e el 52 5¢ gal., plus 3¢ 1b. IRC tax if gal plus 13¢ Ib. 13¢ géa.l plus L 1 AR PR R 148
G ) R e i e T, R R E 53 3¢1b. - 3¢ 1b } | SRR e\ i 37 L (VR S AR T 63
Cosomboil. s iocr, vl N e L e 54 2¢ 1b., plus 5¢ 1b. 2¢ 1b., plus 3¢ 1b. 1¢ lb., plos /3¢ Iby = v Bl i am 128

\ . IRC tax. IRC tax. IRC tax. -
COaamISRE Ol s R A B s 58 25% 124% 1% 2 72
BT TRt IS L L e i e e s 67 $4.00 ton $4.00 ton $3.50 ton T cug e IR S 269
Acet ol T SR R M e 71 20% 10% 5% 248 404
thetic iron oxide and iron hydroxide
p:gments ................................. 73 20%- 15% 15% 58 96
ium carbonate, calcined (soda ash)...... 81 i¢1b. i¢1b. $Abi o T S R R g s 84
Eal:;tha beart{n{enware, and glassware—

IR DRI B LI £ o ol oL Al B e sis b s 201a 25 12 6 22 83
All other bricks, (including common build- % 1% 1%

...................................... 201b $1.25 M $1.00 M $1.00 M 9 104
Limestone, crude or crushed 203 | 5¢100 lbs 23¢ 100 1bs. 1}¢ 100 Ibs. 37 58
Lime, n.s.p.f 203 10¢ 100 lbs 5¢ 100 lbs. 24¢ 100 1bs. 60 248
Crude Feldspar 207 50¢ ton 25¢ ton ¢ ton 52 128
Untrimmed phlogopite mica................ 208f 15% 10% 5% 5 ol
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Tale, ground, not over $14.00 ton............
Graphite or plumbago, natural, amorphous..
Articles of carbon, n.s.pf........coiiiiin

Metals and manufactures of—
TR BLd steal BOTAD . i i e T ainia o s i o
Y N L RS o S e s I T
Ferromanganese less than 4%, carbon........

Ferromanganese, not less than 4% carbon. . ..

Ferrosilicon, less than 30% silicon...........
Ferrochrome, 3% or more of carbon.........

Alloys used in mfr. of steel, n.e.s............
TR T T T D P R e L SR T A N

Boiler plate, iron or steel, valued not over|

Radls Of ivon or steel. .. v o lidin Koo
Railway Ashplates. ;... . v viraisiresvey
Hollow or flatware, of iron or steel, n.s.p.f. ...
Hollow or flatware of base metal, n.e.s......
Electrotype plates, engraved, for printing....
Needles, tape, knitting, and other, n.s.p.f....
Electric generators and parts, n.e.ss..........
Elootrio MOTOTS, MeO.8.5 s vs s o 55 caniss s svn s
Radio apparatus and parts..................
FElectrical goods and parts, n.e.s.............
Electrical machines and parts, n.s.p.f........
Kitomobiloparts. . e asinate e
ABPIAneR . A i s S e 5l
Aireraft parts (other than engines)..........
Pleasure boats (not more than $15,000 each). .
Parts of steam locomotives.................
Internal combustion engines.................
Parts of internal combustion engines. .......
Other sawmill and wood working machinery,

BB, bl g i PO Eodan s Mo Ak
Machinery and carts, n.e.s. (not agricultural)
Aluminum metal and alloys, crude..........
ADDHIREND. SBERY. 5 v s vab s Tiaviat s itk 5o
Aluminum plates, sheets, ete................
Magnesium, metallic and scrap..............
Copper in rolls, sheets and rods.............

(1) Duty suspended until June 30, 1948.
(2) Tax on copper suspended from April 30, 1947, for a period of two years.

372
372
374
374
374
375
381

35%

E:

45%

75¢ ton

75¢ ton

11¢ 1b. on manganese
content.

1i¢ lb. on manganese
content.

2¢ 1b. on silicon content

21¢ lb. on chromium
content.

25% ¥
$2.00 1b. plus 25%
5/10¢ 1b

¢ 1b.
35%, plus 4¢ Ib. IRC tax
on copper content.

b.
23¢ 1b., plus 4¢ Ib. IRC
tax on copper content.

o
30%

75¢ ton()

75¢ ton

1%¢ 1b. on manganese
content.

1¢ Ib. on manganese
content.

1¢ 1b. on silicon content

1i¢ 1b. on chromium
content.

121%
$2.00 1b. plus 25%

35/100¢ 1b.

35%, plus 4¢ 1b. IRC tax
on copper content.

1/10¢ 1b. ~

i¢1b.

40¢ 1b.
23¢ 1b., plus 4¢ Ib. IRC
tax on copper content.

%

15%

373¢ ton()

75¢ ton

15/16¢ 1b. on manganese
content.

11/16¢ 1b. on manganese
content.

1¢ 1b. on silicon content

3¢ 1b. on chromium
content.

123%

$1.00 1b. plus 123%

10% (min. 0.175¢1b.)
173%, plus 2¢ Ib. IRC tax

on copper content (2).
1/ l({)t 1b.

159,
24Tb.
13¢ Ib. (1)
3¢ 1b.

20¢ 1b.
11¢1b., plus 2¢ 1b. IRC(?)

tax on copper content.

............

192
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Tariff Rates Imports into
1 (abbr.) US. et
U.S. Statistical Description (abbr. anada
Tariff Smoot-Hawley 1946 rate Geneva agreement rate
Ttem (i.e. 1930 rate) 1939 1946
(thousands | of dollars)
Metals and manufactures of—Con. .
Brass rods, sheets, strip, ete................ 381 4¢ 1b., plus 4¢ lb. IRC| 4¢ lb., plus 4¢ 1b. IRC| 2¢1b., plus 2¢ 1b.(*) IRC|............ 73
tax on copper content. tax on copper content tax on copper content. ;
Nickel in pigs, ingots, ete..............oo0n. 389 1¢ 1b. 2 1}¢ 1b. 24,458 38,301
D RATINTIONO 1, i s s sy o v s 5 odiarie s 393 1¢1b. on zine content 3¢ 1b. on zinc content(?) 4¢'1b. on zinc content  |............ 2,890
Zinc, old and wornout.........icuiuiiinin, 394 14¢ 1b. on zinc content i¢ 1b. on zinc content(*) | ¢ lb. on zinc content 12 85
Zine, dross and skimmings................. 394 1%¢ 1b. on zine content 4¢ 1b. on zinc content(2) 4¢ 1b. on zinc content 2 184
Zine, blocks, pigs, orslabs.................. 394 1¢ 1b. on zine content %¢ 1b. on zine content(?) %¢ 1b. on zinc content 427 14,195
Iron and steel manufactures, not plated, 7 3 e
.................................... 397 45% 45 2219%, 1
Metal armcles not plated with platinum, gold, W '
C R e SR SR I e e (T B 397 45% 45%, 221% o 9 87
Wood and manufactures of—

Timber, round, for spars or wharves........ 401 $1.00 M. bd. ft. 50¢ M. bd. ft. 50¢ M. bd. ft. Sl SR 308
Boards, fir and hemlock, rough............. 401 $1.00 M. bd. ft., plus 50¢ M. bd. ft., plus 25¢ M. bd. ft., plus

$3.00 M. bd. ft. IRC tax. | $1.50 M. bd. ft. IRC tax. | 75¢ M. bd. ft. IRC tax. 2 114
Boards, fir and hemlock, dressed........... 401 $1.00 M. bd. ft., plus 50¢ M. bd. ft., 25¢ M. bd. ft., plus

$3.00 M. bd. ft. IRC tax. | $1.50 M. bd. {t. IRC tax. | 76¢ M. bd. ft. IRC tax. 938 2,216
Boards, Douglas and other fir, rough. ...... 401 $1.00 M. bd. ft., plus 50¢ M. bd. ft., plus ¢ M. bd. ft., plus J

$3.00 M. bd. ft. IRC tax. | $1.50 M. bd. ft. IRC tax. | 75¢ M. bd. ft. IRC tax. 46 565
Boards, Douglas fir and other fir; dressed.. . . 401 $1.00 M. bd. ft., plus 50¢ M. bd. ft., plus 25¢ M. bd. ft., plus

$3.00 M. bd. ft. IRC tax. | $1.50 M. bd. ft. IRC tax. | 75¢ M. bd. ft. IRC tax. 1,532 1,703
Boards, Hemlock, rough................... 401 $1.00 M. bd. ft., plus 50¢ M. bd. ft., plus 25¢ M. bd. ft., plus

$3.00 M.. bd. ft. IRC tax. | $1.50 M. bd. ft. IRC tax. | 75¢ M. bd. ft. IRC tax. 4 241
Boards, Hemlock, dressed.................. 401 $1.00 M. bd. ft., plus 50¢ M. bd. ft., plus 25¢ M. bd. ft., plus :

$3.00 M. bd. ft. IRC tax. | $1.50 M. bd. ft. IRC tax. | 75¢ M. bd. ft. IRC tax. 341 1,192
N RO T o e e s Wi s 401 $1.00 M. bd. ft., plus 50¢ M. bd. ft., plus 25¢ M. bd. ft., plus

$3.00 M. bd. ft. TRC tax. | $1.50 M, bd. ft. IRC tax 75¢ M. bd. ft. "TRC tax. 3,623 19,391
Boards, Spruce, Western White............. 401 $1.00 M. bd. ft. 50¢ M. bd. ft. 25¢ M. bd. ft. 2,989 ,943
Boards, Pine, Northern White, and Norway..| 401 $1.00 M. hd. ft. 50¢ M. bd. ft. 25¢ M. bd. ft. 2,736 3,249
Boards, Pme BRRRRC s o LB am o e s 401 $1.00 M. bd. ft., plus 50¢ M. bd. ft., plus 25¢ M. bd. ft., plus 333 3,928

$3.00 M. bd. ft. IRC tax. | $1.50 M. bd. {t. IRC tax. 75¢ M. bd. ft. IRC tax.
BORPARPERPOIED. /5, vis e ai st e et sy 401 $1.00 M. bd. ft., ptus 50¢ M. bd. ft., plus 25¢ M. bd. ft., plus 13 183

$3.00 M. bd. ft. IRC tax. | $1.50 M. bd. ft., IRC tax.| 75¢ M. bd. ft. "IRC tax.
Ry wood; 1ed eolar. 5. . 500w, Lk st cangs 405 40%, 0% 750, T L 1 08 Bt R Sl e el e e 1,153
Veneers of birch or maple ................... 405 20% 10 ?8% 21 45
Veneers of wood, other. .................... 405 20% 20% 10% 5 132
Blocks or sticks, holts, habe:o s ok, S i 406 109, 5% 5% 106 415
Barrels, casks (other than beer barrels). . ... 407 15% 1% 3% 2 276
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Bentwood furniture................ e P
Wood furniture, n.s.p.f. (except chairs)......
Paint-brush handles. . .............c.ouiennn
Broom and mop handles....................
Manufactures of wood or bark, n.e.s.........
Canoes and canoe paddles...................
Vehicles, wood, other than horsedrawn

(includes trailers, sleds, ete.) .............

Sugar, molasses, and manufactures of—
Molasses, not for extraction of sugar nor for
human consumption. .......ccoevvaseeensas
MR, 2 5 5 ot e s e s s
Maple SYTUP . oovonenersacecniosatnnnts

Agricultural products and provisions—
Cattle: less than 200 lbs. each...............

Dairy cows: 700 1bs. or more each...........
Cattle, n.s.p.f., 700 Ibs. or more each........

Beef; fresh, chilled or frozen................
Beef and mutton tallow (inedible)..........
Pork; fresh or chilled.........ccovonainlone.
L e i R O N s ey s
Hams and bacon, not cooked...............
0 e MR MR N AR P
Condensed milk, unsweetened...............
Buttermilk, dried
I addar DRBea 0 s s s A e e
Eggs in shell, chicken............c.oo0venens

Horses, not over $150 per head..............

(*) Tax on copper suspended from April 30, 1947, for a period of two years.
(*) Agreement with Mexico provides that, effective 30 days after termina
blocks, pigs, ete. 13¢ per 1b.; old and worn-out zinc, dross and skimmings, 13¢ per lb.; zinc-hearing ores, 13¢ per lb.

(*) Quota suspended January 30, 1943.

(%) Provided that quota shall be effective 30 days after the President, after termination of unlimited national emergency, shall have proclaimed that the abnormal
situation in respect of cattle and meats has terminated.

502
503

701

701
701

-03¢ 1b. of total sugars
6¢ 1b

| 4¢1b."

24¢ 1b.

3¢ 1b.
3¢ 1b.

6¢ 1b.

1¢1b., plus 3¢ 1b. IRC tax.
23¢ 1b.

24¢ 1b.

31¢ 1b.

6¢ 1b., (min. 20%)
18/10¢ 1b.

3¢ Ib.

7¢ 1b. (min. 35%)
10¢ doz.

$30 each

257"

.

331%

-03¢ Ib. of total sugars
3¢ Ib.
2¢ 1b.

13¢ 1b.
23¢ 1b. on imports in ex-
cess of 100,000 head
during any calendar
year.(®)

13¢ 1b.

13¢ 1b.; e

23¢ Ib. on imports in ex-
cess of 225,000 head
during any calendar
year, or 60,000 head
during any quarter. (3)

6¢ 1b.

1¢1b., plus 13¢1b. IRC tax.
11¢ 1b.

2§¢l Ib.

2¢ lb.
3¢ 1b. (min. 15%)
1 8/10¢ 1b.

13¢ 1b.
4¢ 1b. (min. 25%)
¢ do:

5 Z.
$15 each

Ee
15

163%

03¢ 1b. of total sugars
2¢ 1b. '
14¢ 1b.

13¢ 1b.
21¢ 1b. on imports in ex-
cess of 200,000 head
entered in the 12 month
penod.begi.nn‘ing April 1

13¢1b.;
21¢ 1b. on imports in ex-
cess of 400,000 head
entered in the 12 month
period beginning April
1 in any year, or
120,000 head during
any quarter. (%)

141b., plus 13¢1b. IRC tax.
¢ 1b.

13¢ Ib.

144 1., (min. 73
1 o

3910; (min. 17
3i¢ sy i g

$10 each

550
12,080

170

372
1,298
486

104

S s i
273
476

tion of unlimited national emergency proclaimed on May 27, 1941, rate shall be as follows:—

g 5
W
;
B
Q
]
§‘
.
&
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Tariff Rates Imports into
UéS. faom
U.S. Statistical Description (abbr.) U.S. anada
Tariff Smoot-Hawley 1946 rate Geneva agreement rate
e (i.e. 1930 rate) 1939 1946
(thousands | of dollars)
Agricultural products and provisions—Con.
Horses, over $150 per head.. 714 20% 17%% 15% 35 60
Foxes, silver or black....... AR e 4 15% 15% 15%, 69 25
Live animals, n.8.p.f. . ... ...ocoviiiiannnnnns 715 15% 15% 3% 21 78
O e =L R e B 722 20¢ bu. 15¢ bu. 73¢ bu. 334 6,499
LT A e g e e e T b S A 722 40¢ 100 1bs. 40¢ 100 1bs. 30¢ 100 1bs. 1,290 149
Oats, hulled or unhulled.................... 726 16¢ bu. 8¢ bu. 4¢ bu. 1,485 2,441
Oats, unhulled, ground. . ................... 726 45¢ 100 1bs. 25¢ 100 1bs. 25¢ 100 lbs. 19 1,445
s B R R e NS e 728 15¢ bu. 12¢ bu. = 2,488

VRGNt 5 e e S e e e 729 42¢ bu. 42¢ bu. 21¢ bu 21 73
Wheat, unfit for human consumption. . ...... 729 10% 5% 5% 35 68
WRERt ot T e b 729 $1.04 per 100 1bs. $1.04 per 100 1bs. 52¢ per 100 lbs. 55 34
Bran, shorts, middling, ete. (direct importa-|

T R R R e i O e 730 10% 5% 23% 4,835 1,504
Bran, shorts, middling, ete. (withdrawn

from bonded mills).... .......oovevrnrsn, 730 10% 5% 21% 2,039 1,427
FE L P b ) RN e WIS S e R 730 $5.00 ton $3.75 ton $1.90 ton 223 232
By-product feeds, other than wheat......... 730 10% 5% 21% 74 86
IAROR ROORME S 0 2 s L i i 730 10% 5% 5% 69 135
O R R e bin o Soat 730 10¢ 100 Ibs. 5¢ 100 1bs. 25¢ 100 1bs. 91 2,124
Dog food, canned and dried................. 720 10% 5% % = 130
Screenings, scalpings, etc., other than flax-

BBed BOTOBIINES .« | ik be Ak ss oo o s 731 10% 5% 24% 436 10,273
Flaxseed screenings................cccueun... 731 109, 5% 21% 6 1,008
Cereal breakfast foods, n.s.p.f............... 732 20% 10% 0? 62 66

{)ples GTORR P FADEL . o St ot s BN 734 25¢ bu 15¢ bu. 124¢ bu 72 1,899

eberries, natural or in brine....,......... 736 1i¢1b 1¢ 1b. 1¢1b 82 2,884
Berries, edxble, natural or in brine, other

(except blueberries, strawberries or lingon

L R TR IR 736 13¢1b 3¢ Ib. i¢1b 1 92
Blueberries, frozen.............o.0ovvevnnnn. 736 35% 173% 10% 241 461
Berries, edible, frozen, other................ 736 35% 174% 14% iy 59
T T s A 738 5¢ gal. 3¢ gal. 3¢ gal. 24 268
Grapes, other than hothouse. ............... 742 25¢ cu. ft. 12%5 cu. ft. Feb. 15 to June| 6}¢ cu. {t., Feb. 15 to June - 284

25¢:u. ft., July 1 to Feb. 17%‘470 cu. ft. July 1 to Feb.
14. .

001
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Brome-grass 866d. . (' c.cc.oiviiriiiranieaan
WHORt Brass seed . i, . o Joximy vy i
5 T R NS SO s T S e S S
Canned peas (10¢ or more per 1b.)...........
Potatoes, certified seed.....................

Potatoes, other (table stock)...............

Turnips and rutabagas. .............covueenn
Vegetables, prepared, n.s.p.f................
C6008; UDRWORLRNO . 1o\ 1l o voisin vt s ot e

Fish, fresh or frozen—

Whitefish, fresh or frozen...................
T AT e Sl G e L et MY e
JRCKS O EIASS PO . .75 st s v vuaiss sasionioie s
R i . S T R D sl ca s
b N ) o L R SR e SRR B T SR o I
PIEDBOBT & M i v s e S e n e e e Vs
Lake herring and ciscoes...........coouvvnn.
) o L PRI el LA SR A

BN DIKB: la s daawi Tt o B s ten s A s
Fresh water fish,nes..........cc..0. ol

Salmon

Sturgeon, fresh. .
Sturgeon, frozen. ..

(g

2¢ Ib.
75¢ 100 lbs.

75¢ 100 1bs.

25¢ 100 1b.

13¢ 1b.

374¢ per 100 lbs.;

75¢ per 100 1bs. on imports
in excess of 1,500,000 bu.
per 12 month period be-
ginning Sept. 15.

374 ¢ per 100 1bs.

ar. 1 to Nov. 30;
60¢ per 100 lbs. Deec. 1 to
last day of Feb.;

75¢ per 100 Ibs. on imports
in excess of 1,000,000 bu.,
plus quantity domestic
crop falls below 350,
000,000 bu., per 12
month period beginning
Sept. 15

pt. 15.
124¢ 100 1b.

=55 FEFFEFFFEFFEEy

H“*i—"—' i—“—‘i—'i—‘c‘l—‘i—‘i—lr—li—‘nﬁl—d)—l—l
o2

F5EE

ot 10D D ek ok ok 20 i a3
BN GG. OB G- OO OO

Pt bk ot

1¢ 1b.
37%¢ per 100 lbs.;
75¢ per 100 1bs. on imports
in excess of 2,500,000 bu.
per 12 month period be-
inning Seft. 15.

373¢ per 100 lbs.;

75¢ per 100 lbs. on im-
ports in excess of 1,000,-
000 bu., plus quantity
domestic crop falls be-
low 350,000,000 bu., per
12 month period be-
ginning Sept. 15.

61¢ 100 Ib.
14

223

............

AOYANIHNOD ANV ONIMNVE
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Tariff Rates Imports into
UéS. from
ik s 2 Shads
U.S. Statistical Deseription (abbr.) 'Ig.r?ﬁ Smoot-Hawley e i ek we g
Tann (i.e. 1930 rate) 1939 1946
(thousands | of dollars)
Fish, fresh or frozen—Con.
C(}id hhz}_ldﬁloclé hake, pollock cusk and rose- Skl 24 1b 154 1b.: 124 1b 710 7 788
s o e S e S M gt 4 . ’
23¢ 1b. on imports in ex- | 2}¢ 1b. on imports in ex-
cess of 15 million pounds cess of 15 million pounds
or 15% of U.S. con- or 15%, of average ag-
sumption if higher. gregateapparent annual
consumption during the
3 preceding calendar
years, or one-fourth of
the total so entitled
duri the first 3
mont s, one-half dur-
the first 6 months, .
or three-fourths during
: first 9 months.
er- N nlleted, etie.. . .\ 1 i, dvvasdhois 71 ¢ 1b. 2 5 . ’
Other fish, filleted 7b 23¢1b ¢1b 2%¢ 1b. 453 2,622
Fish, prepared or preserved—
Sargr nes in oil, over 9¢ perlb............... 718a 30% 30% 44%;5 llth valued not over 1 172
30%, if valued over 13¢ 1b.
but, not over 18¢ 1b.
30%, if valued over 18£ 1b.
ut not over 23¢ 1b.;
15%, if Ib valued over 23¢
r -
Sardines and other herrmg, notinoil........ 718b 25 12 12 o 975
Salraen, plalled i LS s 719 25?., 121% 1 o 7 307
od, haddock, ete. pickled or salted, neither
skinned nor boned, not over 43% moisture.| 719(2) | 1i¢1b. §¢1b. 3¢ 1b. 81 1,186
Cod, haddock, ete. pxckled or sal bed neither
skinned nor boned, over 43% moisture. . 719(2) | i¢1b. §¢1b. 1¢ib. 925 1,296
Cod, haddock ete., pickled or salted, skin|
AL O DO wics s o s o nd Vs s o 719(3) | 2¢1b. 14¢ 1b. 1}¢ 1b. 199 1,290
Hernng. pickled or salted valued 6¢ or more|
.................................... 719(4) | 1¢1b. i¢ 1b. 3¢ 1b. 2 550
Hemng pickled or salted beheaded but not| ° 2
further advanced. ........................ 719(4) | 1¢1b. 3¢ 1b. 19

i¢lb.

z01
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Split herring, pickled or salted..............
Mackerel in containers, weighing more than
T o Rl ey SRS S SR e Y
Alewives in containers weighing more than
04 TV T e, A S TR AR SR
Herring, hard dry smoked.................
Herring, boned, smoked or kippered........
Herring, eviscerated (not boned), smoked
DL DD ) <) ws v el 5 ke e ol S0 o W,
Cod, haddock, etec. smoked or kippered,
whole, or beheaded or eviscerated. .......
Cod, haddock, ete. smoked or kippered, skin-
NBE SEDORO "y o s wwinis s s v 58 5 530 wisds-aure
Fish prepared or preserved n.s.p.f. in contain-
ers weighing more than 15 lbs. each.......

Spirits, wines and other beverages—

Gin, 1 gal. containersorless................

Whisky in containers of 1 gal. or less........

Whisllcly. in containers of more than 1 gal.
eac

Beer, in containers of 1 gal. or less..........

Textiles—
Printers’ rubberized blanketing of cotton.. ..
s R R SRR R AR SR R Rt
Flax yarn single not finer than 60 lea. .......
Flax thread, twineand cord.................
Clothing wool finer than 44s but not finer

than 56sinthe grease.....................
Clothing wool finer than 56s, in the grease. . . .
Combing wool finer than 44s, in the grease. . .
Combing wool finer than 56s, in the grease. . .
Wool noils not carbonized...................
Top, slubbing, roving and ring waste........
Thread or yarn waste........cceveeneiieeons

QOLTRRN: st St wiedie S TRk i PN LA o)
Wool hose and half hose, valued over $3.00

IR e e o R 8 e G S RRRTE
Wool wearing apparel, not knit valued not:

o 018 o | L BRI QS SRR s 7 s SRR
Wool wearing apparel, not knit valued more

than $4.00 Ib

Silver, tops and rovingsof rayon............

719(4)
719(4)
719(5)

1004c

1102b
1102b
1102b
1102b
1105a
1105a
1105a
1105a

1114b
1115a

1115a
1302

1¢1b.
1¢ 1b.
1§¢ 1b.
13¢ Ib.
3¢ 1b.
3¢ 1b.
21¢ 1b.
3¢1b.

13¢ 1b.

$5.00 pf. gal.
$5.00 pf. gal.

$5.00 pf. gal.
50¢ gal.

40%
1¢ 1b.
35%
40%

34¢ 1b.
34¢ 1b.
34¢ 1b.
34¢ 1b.
23¢ 1b.
37¢ 1b.
25¢ 1b.
18¢ 1b.

50¢ 1b. plus 50%
33¢ 1b. plus 45%

50¢ 1b. plus 50%
10¢ 1b. plus 30%

i¢ 1b.

1¢ 1b.
§¢ 1b.
#¢1b.
13¢ 1b.
2¢ 1b.
13¢ 1b.
2¢ 1b.
13¢1b.

$2.50 pf. gal.
$2.50 pf. gal.

$2.50 pf. gal.
25¢ gal.

30%
3¢ 1b.
25

9¢ 1b.
50¢ 1b. plus 25%
33¢ 1b. plus 30%

50¢ 1b. plus 30%
10¢ 1b. plus 30%

i¢1b.
3¢ 1b.
i
156 Ib.
13¢1b.
1¢ 1b.

1¢1b.
1¢1b.

$1.25 pf. gal.
$1.50 pf. gal.

;éjo pf. gal.
(provis.ion for 12}¢ gal.)

1.
25

37%¢ 1b. plus 20%
25¢ 1b. plus 256%

373¢ 1b. plus 25%
5¢ 1b. plus 15%

111

238
21,411

1,641
2,520

FOYANIN0D ANV ONDINVE
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max. 55%

Tariff Rates Imports into
UCS. from
U.S. Statistical Description (abbr. U.S. 4 anada
¢ . 4 Tariff Smoot-Hawley 1946 rate Geneva agreement rate
Tiatn (i.e. 1930 rate) 1939 1946
(thousands (of dollars)
Papers and Books—

Book and prmtm% S e e SRR 1401 1¢ 1b. plus 10% -1/5¢ 1b. plus 5% 1/5¢ 1b. plus 5% 496 6,479

Pulpboard in rolls for wallboard, not pro-

e e N R O el 1402 | 10% 5% 5% 187 483
Leatherboard, counterboard................ 1402 10%, 10% 10% 71 205
Boxes of paper with coated surface.......... 1405 5¢ 1b. plus 20% 5¢ 1b. plus 10% 5¢ 1b. plus 5% 39 61
Lithographic prints not exceeding 12/1000 3
Hmch in thickness. ..... e A {406 :;g‘éy 1b. :;gé 1b. g(i)?y 1b. 5 2%

anging paper, not prmte ................. 409 A 0 0 = o )
Hanging paper, printed. .................... 1409 13¢ 1b. plus 20% 1¢ 1b. plus 10% 1¢ 1b. plus 10% 4 194
Bound books of all kinds, of foreign author-

ship, n.e.s. (exleather)................... 1410 15% 3% 5% 17 108
Printed matter, n.s.p.f., not of foreign author-

AR R S A 1410 | 25% 20% 15% =Als 70
Pulpbonrd in rolls, for wallpaper processed..| 1413 30% 15%, lﬁ 160 997
Ribbon fly CAtCRerS. . . . ..v..eererenessos 1413 | 359 274% 271% L 60

Sundries—
Ice skates and parts. .............c...ovin.ns 1502 20% 15% 15% 368 325
Silver or black fox, whole skins. . 1519¢ | 50% 373% 373% 1,467 2,047
Nets and nettings of cotton not in part of

N R A N R 1529a | 90% 45%, 30% = . 66
Kip skins, wet salted. . 1530a | 10% 5% 5% 225 13

alf skins, wet salted.. 1530a | 10% 5% 5% 298 T
Sole and belting leather offa 1530b (1)} 123% 10% 10% 98 15
Cattle side upper grains..... 1530b (4)| 15% 121% 124% 35 382
Patent leather.......... 1530b(*)| 15% 73% o 497 321
Calf and kip leather, uppe 1530b (4)| 15%, 12%%0 125% 244 774
Goat and kid leather,  upper 1530c | 10% 10% 10% A = 57
Boots and shoes, men’s welt. . 1530e | 20% 50¢ pr. min. 12(())7;; 40¢ pr. min. 5% e

max. 20% max. 20% —
Boots and shoes, women’s welt............. 1530a 20% 50¢ pr., min. 10%, S0¢.pr., min. 109 15 LSRG 55

) max. 20%. max. 20%. 5
T U A el s e 1530a 20% 10% 6 1,723
Mocassins. ............ 1530a | 209 1 1 1 54
Manufactures of leather, n 1531 35% 25 i T PRI NN T | alerice 82
Gloves of horsehide or cowhide 1532(b) | 25% 15% W0~ 1525 Vo e Sl S e S 188
Fishing reels $3.50 orover.................. 55% $1.50 each, min, 16%,|... cveuuent 109

01
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Automobile tires and tubes.................
PR OB .. v s vomans sy o agrrarais
Raw motion picture film, 1” or more in width| 1551
Textile waste, n.e.s......... T e 1555
Fur waste—pieces or trimmings............. 1555
Do vasts, Ot o it sand manta 1555
RO RN ERROR. o o nsns Lt daries pabeaes 1558
Synthetic rubber and mifrs., not in part of

(T TN M R S R b Ay SRR 1558

1537(b) | 10%

1548 50¢ ton
§/1o¢ lin. ft.
}

10%

20%

10% . 10%

50¢ ton 50¢ ton
2/10¢ lin. ft. 1/10¢ lin. ft.
e . %
7% %

5% 5%

20% 109%

............

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DUTIABLE ITEMS

Total of items Hated in table: ot . i o s s e S s St s st s e RoAh o p N DL o e MY GRS

Total dutiable imports into United States from Canada
Percent of total represented by above items

(016903,?)00 om%ggd)

$99-2 2774
114 2027
81%  94.8%

-

=
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STATEMENT 2—Imports into the United States from Canada of certain items free of customs duty but subject to Internal Revenue Import Tax on which concessions

were obtained under the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade, calendar years 1939 and 1946

U.8. Statistical Description (abbr.)

Copper concentrates.........cooevvvievinsnannn
Copper, unrefined, in pigsor bars..............
Copper, refined, in ingots, plates or bars.......

Copper,‘old and Borap: ...« fi . ses i v o

Gasolline, under 100 octane, and other motor
A s ety R IGR ey

Unfinished oils for further processing..........
Lubricating oils, including paraffinoil.........
Boards, cedar siding.........ciihviininieenan.
Boards, other 6edar.. ... ..o v dinssiniaiessss

Boards, maple, birch and beech...............

Boards, hardwoods other..................... 2

Tariff Rates Imports into
U.S. from
TU Sﬁ- Smoot-Hawley 1 G Shigts
Ia;xn (i.e. 1930 rate) 946 rate eneva agreement rate s 1546
(thousands | of dollars)

1658 Free, plus 4¢ 1b. IRC tax| Free, plus 4¢ lb. IRC tax| Free, plus 2¢ Ib. IRC tax 14 2,473
on copper content. on copper content. on copper content (1)

1658 Free, plus 4¢ 1b. IRC tax| Free, plus 4¢ 1b. IRC tax| Free, plus 2¢ Ib. IRC tax 157 -
on copper content. on copper content. on copper content (1)

1658 Free, plus 4¢ 1b. IRC tax| Free, plus 4¢ 1b. IRC tax| Free, plus 2¢ Ib. IRC tax 73 4,338
on copper content. on copper content. on copper content &)

1658 Free, plus 4¢ 1b. IRC tax| Free, plus 4¢ Ib. IRC tax| Free, plus 2¢ 1b. IRC tax - 114
on copper content. on copper content. on copper content (1)

1733 Ftee, plus 2i¢ gal. IRC Free, plus 2}¢ gal. IRC| F x:f, plus 1i¢ gal. IRC - 137

1733 Free. plus iégal. IRC tax. Free, plus 1égal. IRC tax.| Free, plus 3¢ gal. IRC tax. 2 155

1733 Free, plus4¢ gal. IRC tax.| Free, plus4¢gal. IRC tax.| Free, plus 2¢ gal. IRC tax. 674

1803 (1) Free, plus $3.00 M.bd.ft.| Free, plus $1.50 M.bd.ft.| Free, plus 75¢ M.bd.ft. 2,023 2,341
IRC tax. IRC tax. IRC tax.

1803 (1){ Free, plus $3.00 M.bd.ft.| Free, plus $1.50 M.bd.ft.| Free, plus 75¢ M.bd.ft. 292 4,967
IRC tax. IRC tax. IRC ta:

1803 (*)| Free, plus $3.00 M.bd.ft.| Free, plus $1.50 M.bd.ft.| Free, plus $1.50 M.bd.ft. 2,290 10,403
IRC tax. IRC tax. IRC ta

1803 (1)| Free, plus $3.00 M.bd.ft.| Free, plus $1.50 M.bd.ft.| Free, plua $1.50 M.bd.ft. 143 3,679
IRC tax. IRC tax. IRC ta

(*) Tax on copper suspended from April 30, 1947, for a period of two years.

901
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éTATEMENT 3—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH

COUNTRIES, OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—BENELUX

162
194
195 e
195 f
790
195 h
303
305
362(a)
(b)
366
367

Zine, lumps, ingots

Molybdenum and manganese ore. . ..

Free
Free
Free
Free
Free
Free
Free

Free

(]

Free

6%

Free
Free
Free

Free

oL

Free
Free
Free
Free

15% }

Free

6%

3 Canadian Exports to
Tariff Short Desecription Previous Agreement Benelux
Item Rate Rate
1938 1946
$ $
19 Fish, fresh chilled or frozen......... Free | Free 24,737 207,142
The Benelux monopoly charges
are not applicable to this item on
imports up to 150% of the average
imports in 1936, 1937 and 1938. ;
26(c) Cheese, hard or medium............ 15% 15% (No mon- o801 e
opoly charge) :
59(a) Anplas, fraalr. ... C W U SA) 329, to 52%| 20% 40;485 Tt
4 °| 6%, Feb. 1—
Rates on apples, fresh, include May 31
both tariff and monopoly charge.
62(a) Apples and pears, dried.............. 15%, L T St e ] et £
WHORE . T8 R e Free Free 9,072,291 | 14,315,998
See separate note on monopoly
charge and mixing regulations.
75(a) iFlour, whest =7, o o oy 3% 3% 76,768 802,792
separate note on monopoly
charge and mixing regulations.
84(b) Clover and other seeds for meadows|* Free Free (No mon- 4,568 824,923
opoly charge)
gt Beads: iohn e e Free Free 4,667 39, 660
' Maximum rate of Netherlands monopoly duty or
corresponding Belgian-Luxembourg charge for seeds
of grasses f.15.—or fr. 247-80 per 100 Kg. net
respectively.
12023 |Salmon,canned..................... 25% 20% B8 983 1% o0 e
Lobsters, aatned ... .. 0 il 30% 25% AT i
134 Alimentary pastes................... 15% 5% LT TR et

1
Maximum rate of Netherlands monopoly duty or
corresponding Belgian-Luxembourg charge will be
the Netherlands monopoly duty or corresponding
Belgian-Luxembourg charge for wheat or other
cereals, multiplied by the reciprocal of the extracting
ratio of the flour content of the products, provided
for under this Item.

PAIZBS N i e
717,646 564,012
22,455 183,798
1,281,023 321,057

Not available

14,464 314,207
19,876 40,816
8,803 4,044
2,702 4,388
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STATEMENT 3—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH
COUNTRIES, OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—BENELUX—Continued

el : Canadian Exports to
}‘ggf Short Deseription Plﬁzltzus Agrlﬁnt‘:“t Benelux
1938 1946
368 Fur skins, made up. ................ 249, 24%, 345 2,187
ex 369 a Synthetic rubber. .........ooivn.n. Free g |00 Dotk s el 201,965
374 a Rubber conveyor belting. .......... 10% 10% 19,899 46,619
382 Pulawood = I siiine h e msiEos: .| Free Free ANLTBY 1. L b A
383 Wood, squared with the axe or by
sawing, not elsewhere specified or
aneluded, 8 e Ul e
exa |Douglas fir, pitchpine, ponderosa
pine, white pine and redwood. . ... Free Free
exb |Ash, cypress, gum, hickory, oak,
poplar, jarrah, teak, pyinkado,
ingyin-andieng o .S B S Free Free
384 Wood merely sawn longitudinally not
elsewhere specified or included: 229,744 719,339
ex a Douglas fir, pine, redwood
1. having at any point a thickness
exceeding 76-2 mm or a width
exceeding 279-4 mm. or a length
exceeding T=0L X0 . v i s tiimanis »a v 10% 10%
2. DOL SPOOIHBH .- ios o bl e iTeae st 3% 3%
ex b |of ash, cypress, gum, hickory, ete...| 3% 3%
416 Woodipill. el iV RIS s i, Free Free 30,614 881
580 Socks and stockings, real silk. ... ... 24%, 24%,
+ 33,410 354,617
581 Socks and stockings, artificial silk...| 24% 24%
584
585
ggg Clothing, B el i i, o b e e eI, 24%, Bound 259 5,898,781
588
600 Common half boots................. 15% Bound -5 P o s davea 1,051,986
601 Slippers and house footwear......... 24%, Bound 2,580 . o e
602 Other leather footwear.............. 24% Bound
604 Rubber footwear. .......... PR 24% 24% 16,876 175,479
634 Grindstones, whetstones and polish-
ing stones of natural or artificial
ADTARIVER. 15 b ns 4l s v tls npws ogil s s 10% 1005 55 108 i s At 20, 148
650 Bricks and refractory materials. . ... 10% 1005, 2 e A e 27,342
697 Forro alloys; TaW. < ot cyvssoss awsne Free Free 86,743 1,438,708
756 Copper ingots, grains, plates...... l‘ ..| Free Free
757 C 57, PR Sty A9 0 8T T Bind at 8%
g S s |} 2,666,268 | 1,302,969
CODPOT WHDR S 03 o 4 v s S 5id s i< 4% 4%
762 Rough pieces of copper.............. 6% 6%
770(a) BT 1) T ¢ s Ak S e AL S L PR Free Free 2, 566, 694 393, 659
774(a) AT, TRW. | oo ins ot e Free Free & 59, 664 1,613,690
834 Manure spreaders, seed drills........ 6% 6%
835 a & b |Mowers, reapers, reaper threshers. ..| 6% 6% 26, 587 771,856
836 Agricultural machines and equip-
5 7 AECRSEPEN 0 o 05 S SR, ST 6% 6%
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STATEMENT 3—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH
" COUNTRIES, OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—BENELUX—Concluded

+ sl . i Canadian Exports to
Lo 12 Short Description ot B i v s Potons
1938 1946
861 Alealine storage batteries and plates| 20% 10% 561 | 240,215
ex 864 L T e e Y B e e a s | 12% 12%, 3% 327 75,377
875(a) Porcelain insulators................. 10% 10% 18,004 A s
878 Washing machines.................. 10% 10% 285 72,144
890 Automobiles with body or complete. | 24% Bound
891 Automobile chassis. ... ...... bk et 249, Bound
892 Coachwork for automobiles......... 249, Bound :
r 27,900 9,934,315
893 Components and separate parts of
automobiles . .. .. - e i oo b 6% Bound
exa |2. bodywork not specified.......... 15% Bound
ex ¢ [1. chassis frames, bumpers, protec-
tive bars, wheels of pressed sheet
iron or steel, rims of iron or steel,
o ey SRR N ST 15% Bound
901 Airplanes and other heavier than air : 3
BDDBEATR o Lo tare S s bt 10% L e SRS R s R g 452,964
R Otal ADOVE TOI0E s s Pl e s [ o s st T 5 S s 17,690,289 | 42,463,978
Total exports from Canada to Bene-
T Bt g B S S T I e STy e b b 10 it 19,822,297 | 97,509,469

Nore.-—A large part of the exports of non-scheduled items in 1946 comprised shipments of locomotives
and other railway rolling stock and oats.
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STANDING COMMITTEE

STATEMENT 3—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEAL THCOUN-
TRIES, OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—BRAZIL

Cruzeiro=$0-0544 Canadian Kilog=2-204 1bs.

. Nore: It was agreed at Geneva that, due to the depreciation of the cruzeiro and the increased value
of imported goods, most Brazilian specific duties were to be increased bK 40 cent on which basis
negotiations were conducted. This proposal is now under discussion in Brazi butm not yet been brought
into force. The following table, consequently, shows the present rate of duty, the proposed new duty
a;:ac'l t:(}ix;a rate agreed upon under the Geneva Trade Agreements (rates are in cruzeiros kilog unless otherwise
s >

Pasist - 5 i (’}rezoava. Canadian Eglport's to
ari S resen egotiating rade razi
Thion Short Description Rats Rato Abrianit
Rate 1939 1946
: S $
37 Furs prepared or tanned. ....... 41-60 58-24 29- 12} 24,323 160, 848
Same; patehed:, ... Ty L 31-20 43-68 22-40
‘Ex 86 Canned soups, with and without 10-40 150118305~ (2 sl il i b TS 1,165
meat
87 Casein, DPOWART: .\ [T 05 it opr 2-70 3-78 TR O S R S
89 Glue:
i 5 sy e UGt DN I R 5:20 | 7-28 G20 e 20,973
Otherlamds. s v mdh vt 3-10 4.34 280
98 Milk:
Condensed or concentrated,
Withiatears | Lot St 3-10 4-34 2:10 T T e
Same, without sugar or in
POWARE T 15 s s e 1 2-60 3-64 1-82
103 Cod Biveroil . L S e ot 4.20 5-88 B0 L s e S S
106 Cod, dry-salted, unboned
metric ton 440-00 616-00 200-00 5,224 114,822
plus Surtax | plus Surtax | plus Surtax
0-30cr. Kg. |0-30cr. Kg. [0-30 cr. Kg.
plus Con- | plus Con- | minus Con-
sumption | sumption | sumption
tax 0-20 tax 0-20 tax 0-20
cr. Kg. cr. Kg. cr. Kg.
Cod, dry, salted, boned........ 0-70 0-98 113 | PR 61,037
Herring, smoked............... 3-20 4-37 Y e 1,726
225 Apples, freah s o TR i Free Free Free 98,579 376,716
229 Diried fradte.are b Do i 2:10 208 1 F000 . 1 i i il T s A
230 Preserved fruit in syrup or jam|. 6-24 8-74 4-20} 576 5,161
Preserved fruits, without syrup. 15-60 21-84 10-92
234 L~ iy e T Lt ENTET R ton 250-00 350-00 Ly L BN £ P
239 Whesb: il et vess metric ton 62-10 86-94 804 A 1,495,956
240  [Preserved vegetables........... 4-16 5-82 4780 e o T 5,586
245 ORE- HOBTL T i s ¢ e b sty 0-78 1-09 1200 {iipivio i 6,922
Wheat flour..... s metric ton 155-00 217-00 155-00 26,493 | 5,573,878
247 Barley malt.......... metric ton 250-00 350-00 350-00 08,088 1.5 dis s
254 Grass and clover seeds.......... > 2-70 878V Free~ 770 11 iR s a ool vibsa s 00E ke
Certified seed potatoes......... Free Free Free 108 662
294 Planks and boards........ cu. m. 130-00 182-00 182-00 7,012 30,147
276 Whiskoy .. v cin s nale it vy gt i 6-80 9:62 | * 9-52 8,641 141,479
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kilog=2, 204 lbs. -

Pr Negoti et R Mg et g
Tariff P esent egotiating e raz
Ttem Short Description Rato Tata Agreement
Rate 1939 1946
8 3
556 Standard newsprint............. Free Free Free 257,559 | 3,505,455
Wrapping (white)............... 31 4.34 | 2-80 | Not sepmiiaetgly classi-
B T T N SRS Y S 1:6 2-24 1-60 | Not separ- 811
ately :
Classified
569 Asbestos, raw or in fibre ....... 1-00 1-40 | Free 8,970 273,787
Millboard, leaves or sheets..... 3-30 4-62 = 07 o St Not ':epa.r-
a
P classified
587 Grinding wheels................ 1-60 2-24 2.24
7,678 26,053
Granulated abrasives or fabrie. 2-60 3:64 2-24
677 Lead bars, ingots, pigs metric ton 230-00 322-00 322-00 354,002 803, 623
€
716 Zinc ingots and pigs. .metric ton 260-00 364-00 182-00
718 Pure or purified zinc in eylinders 8,823 160, 306
shot.or.yode? 5. Aol S 10-40 14-56 12-60
735 Copper blocks, ingots, pigs
metric ton 140-00 196-00 196-00 384,998 452,273
894 Antimony for indusrtial use..... 1-10 1-54 | Free Not sepalt'f.eté;ly classi-
902 Cadmium bars, eylinders or in-
o 1 R G R MR I o 2-70 3-78 L8097l Sais 4,979
907 Cobalt cubes, leaves, ingots or
granulited. ..t 13-30 18-62 9-31
Cobalt powder................. 42-50 59-50 o Y40 ] R e 2,728
Cobalt, purified, refined or pure 63-70 89-18 44-59
8 $
P80 [ Rertiligarn: . S T e A Free Free Free 994 1,687
945 Woodpulp........... Metric ton 85-50 119-70 119-70 26,233 1,020,390
974  |Disinfectant and insecticides for :
use on the farm............... 0-20 0-28 0-14 I\%otdseparat,ely classi-
ed.
982 (O PR AR . ot D 1-17 2-24 1-63} 111 44,958
(7) Paint primers............... 3-10 4-34 3-27
1583 |Electric sound amphﬁers for
radios, gramophones, etc.. 11-40 15-96 10-36
Telephone, telegraph, wireless 35,804 105,541
telephone telegraph and tele-
vision receivers and trans-
il S i S e 12-70 17-78 17-78 ‘
1632 |Electric dry cells, separate or in
batteries weighing up to 50 gr. 3-00 4-20 2-10
Weighing over 50 cys. to 100 ' ......................
L e rtilie S T S 2-60 3-64 1-82)
1652 |Transformers weighing up to
N N 0 5-50 7-70 3:15) | Not separ-
ately 5,523
Transformers weighing over 10 ! classified
R GO0 MR A 4-20 5-88 2-94
1778 |Aircraft and parts.............. 0-70 0-98 008 1.0 00 Lo 104,800
1779 |Automobiles, passenger and Various Rates
o T G i M Bound 1,100 124,881
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' STANDING COMMITTEE =

Cruzeiro = $0-0544

Tariff Pr t | Negotiating Gsz:iva “ Bm
. . e”n ego e s
Ttem Phot P plion Rate Rate | Agreement
Rate 1939 1946
5 _ - $ $
1782 |Auto chassisparts.............. 3-40 4-76 2-38 1 29,
1829 | Relrigorators..n. chi iy o sesmsi Various Rates~ o soimis 1,63_7’ I
‘ Bound :
1825 |Agricultural implements........ Free Free Free 79,350 126,412' ;
1831 |Sewing machines and parts..... 0-93 1-30 1-30 ;1,488,839 1,547 21_":
1831 Ty DOWELE8. s ven i v s i bies 7-96 11-14 ) P (e AT T 4,884 ‘
Various:  [Machinery ... . it i casd s ¥ Various Rates on 61,117 . 343,675
many kinds
bound and y
a few reduc-
tions made -
® Fotal above Hame . . ov. firr s A S il ke s s Ay 2,949,613 | 16,587,963
Total Canadian exports to Brazil|............[.......ooo oo, 4,406,789 | 24,601,962

Other important Canadian exports to Brazil:

Tires and tubes, $682, 140; aluminum and manufactures, $305, 127.
1946: .
Aluminum and manufactures, $1,825,521; ships sold, $830,700; brass and manufactures,
$351,817; rye $339, 541; rolling mill products, $447,400; pigments, n.o.p., $310, 575.

The above items were not scheduled at Geneva.



Gold Peso=21 cents approx.
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: ‘STATEMENT 3—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH
COUNTRIES, OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—CHILE

' BANKING AND COMMERCE
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Rates expressed in Gold pesos per kilo unless otherwise stated.

. - Canadianhlj?ixports to
'{gf Short Description Prﬁ\;}(gus Ag’ﬁ:’;"’"t Chile
1939 1946
$ $
FR a5 LA ANEOUE. 1 i vl st i 0-07 0-05
549 42,158
1200 |Aluminum in bars or sheets.......... et 0-15 0-15
12 = [ Nickel Iningots: 00w S taniene 35, o 0-075 0-05 66,326 65,270
47  |Pine, rough or sawn (includes Douglas Fir)| 70 pesos per| 70 pesos per S LT IR
cu. metre| cu. metre
AN ST 8 T o R S e s e A 0-15 (1730 b PRl e 235, 607
Bl lCodfshi-driod - i TR e 1-75 00 [2 7 08 s e s e
Ex 83 |Cattle for breeding..............c...../i. 90 each Wietioh -t Lopst et 82,122
108 thmcerne geb. . . . Jie i) s s b s ks 0-15 (3180 [0 (s ) | S
R TR e e e B e 0-07 [ T IOt Sk, S 900
B8 S ADBlEa 00BN .. vk s o s s T T Free Free T b S el 2 e
260 (Whinkey %ot 8 Do S s n R ~..| 9.00 pesos | 6.00 pesos 1,130 77,116
per litre per litre
306 |Oilcloth and linoleum..................... 0-70 10 B e e 1,793
324 |Cotton duck, less than 300 gms. per sq.
o 7 M O R WK S e SN 5-00 1-90
325 |[Sameover300gmS..........viuirinrninnn. 3-00 1-10
R O O A B ver Ol T . e e T T 0-75 (1775 8] s e R ) S RO pr O
Ex 1189  |Iron or steel bars more than 3 metres in
TR el e R O SR RE R 0-10 (0 UL S e sy 113,578
$580 S i Bronae' Valves. ko b DS I L T 1-20 DAL 0 S SRR 3,484
1343 [Mining machinery. .............cco0viin.ins 0-18 0-18)| Not
e separately 13
-1344  |Mining apparatus. ... ...oiiiiiinaiinsonin 0-25 0-25)| classified
SO I longhe s v T R L T e 0-35 0-25 23,202 13,715
1347 |Other agricultural machines............... 0-125 0-125 48,174 208, 749
1351 |Parts for agricultural machines............ 0-30 0-30 15,109 32,311
1358 [Industrial machinery..................... 0-125 0-125
721 106,771
1359 |Industrial apparatus...................... 0-25 0-25 X
Ex 1387 |Transmission belts, rubber................ 1-10 1-10
79,795 231,780
1388  |Belts for conveyor machines, of rubber. . . . 1-20 0-20
1406 |Carbons and electrodes. .................. 0-15 172 F O B 5,178
1418 - I ElectrIG TaOtarS. . .. .l ot e it 1-10 1-10 | Not 69,099
3 separately
. classified
1415 |Storage batteries weighing more than 100
..................................... 0-35 0-25 11,603 36,388
1497 |Asbestos in fibre, ete...................... 0-075 0-075 125,800 38,171




Tariff Previ Agreement ¢ anhil o)
'ari - revious en e
Sy Short Description Rate Rate _
1939 1946
$ 8
1498 |Asbestos wrought for engine packing....... 1-10 1-10 LR TR ey
Tota]l AROVETtOMIA: & v i it o bbb e L sy s SRS B et 385,692 1,364,203
Total Canadian Exporta 4o Chile.«. [ in i f it s oo 956,392 3,564,804
Other Canadim; Exports to Chile, on items
not scheduled:
Motor vehicle casings........ eIy NS, S el e i Sl 227,714 205, 668
TRBEE THINeR 3 & Ve o st e et i ot B e D e 31,159 24,043
Newaprint. o it et ¢ ot L b i i A 2 ST el 79,031 780,077
Sewing macInes And BartR. o L e s b o s o e L o cT e 182,212
Soda and sodinm 'compounds: ... . 5. e i r ke ior i vafes e b s s s 23,067 89,028
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BTATE"MENT 3—PRIN&JIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH
COUNTRIES, OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—CHIN A

; Camadiéll:1 Exports to
Tariff e Previous | Agreement P
Fiort' Short Description Rate Rata AT
1937 1946
- $ $
147a BRI TOTl 3 = 6 L e S s e 20% 20%
149 Aluminum grains, ingots, slabs.......... 7%%,’, 5% 484,883 1,479,588
150 EAlominnh gheebs. 5. .. .o idcou e siivae 15? 15%
151 Alaminum, other..,. . ..., ol 12 % 123%
164 Copper barsand rods..............c.on00 10% 10%
166 Copper ingots and slabs. ................ 10% 10% 1,314 335,169
169 Copper sheets and plates................ 10% 10%
ABBEES - ARGIA, AT S s o G b v ok s st S 3% AT B B O 1,372,669
218 Lead pigs or bars 25% 221%, 260,789 82,016
225 Nigkcel>0 .. o, 121% 10% 18,180 2,588
Ex236  |(Zincand spelter...................... o 15% 15% 229,570 1,729
244 Agricultural machinery and parts........ 1% 7% 7,631 197
245 Dynamos, electric motors and trans-
EOISITBER TR o o Srat i b ey vt s tor At 15%, 1219, 15 813,196
1 ‘0 10%
A POrRlt and PRBER: =, Sl e s Sy 5% 5% 20,472 80, 655
HOOTRY s SANCOR IO R vl 510 i s ot ldaroints o sie o 159, 15%, } ............ 3,500,208
30% 25%
256(c) 2 |Auto parts and accessories............... 15%, 15% 65 952,953
307 T b B e ceoe T C RS T e T Rt 35%, 30% 5,804l
323 iProceasedntlie: o0 A e e 25%, 20% 48,307 | 2,966
357 IREAE T o e o e oo 4 e i te s 15% 15%, 335,890 9,053, 525
Rolled oats and oatmeal................ 25% 25% 5,382 50,123
e TR e R ol T AT N 15% 1219, 10:880' 4 sty
395 v AT Ry R R N e e MR AR B QR 15% s el T e e 34 2,090,116
414 LT e IO L et ol 809, 809, 20, 581 33,109
415 I ol o e eets e S i sl e 80% 80% 1,869 7,637
436 Sulphate of alumina..................... 10% 10% Not separately classified
487 Bronse POWder. 1. ...l tis s sy eniise 15% 15% Not separately classified
559 Wood pulp, chemieal.................... 5% 5% 170, 588 122,867
567(a) |[Skins and furs undressed................ 10% 10% 49,114 59,913
582 Timber n.e.s. rough hewn, softwood.. ... 124% 121% 367,990 124
584 S b g L e B IR S 20% 20%- )
r 757,885 1,820,928
586 Timber, ordinary, softwood............. 20% 20% )
588 RANWay Sleepers . 50, i wrias il el 10%, 109, 122,995 1,012,972
x 644d Rubber tires and tubes.................. 25% 20% 230,472 159, 564
T ofAlBbOve Mems i oths. v &% S0 Cas e il o 3,150,226 | 23,034,812
Total Canadian Exports to China........}0........c...loeeiuieni. 4,809,488 42,915,14
Other Canadian exports to China on
items not scheduled:
N T T T ERNE SR e e e R b RNy DN SRR 593,476 2,215,630
Gunas Filles and other fPearne. . tLa v 15 oo e oy i Bt st 3,207,184
ST e Sl TN, R QR GRS TR e S AN SO 5,472,750
Electrical Apparatnn, D.0..; . ..o v afir . cit sl sk v o v 4,082 805,080
Fertilisers, manufactured........ ... cocnninvini]iiieonn.... 177,896 1,048,795
20071 Wranping pEpeFa:. L S L oA b e T (S s 213,130 59,106
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STATEMENT 3.—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH

COUNTRIES, OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—CUBA
Note.—Cuban peso=$ U.S. ! ’

Agree- Change Canadian Exports
Item Short D inti Previous Rate ment in to Cuba
No. ke gl A to Canada Rate to U.S.
Canada | Preference 1939
$
72-B Aluminum in bars, plates
AN WATE: L et s o $5.00 per 100 Kg. . $4.00 | Reduced 2,288
72-C(1) |Aluminum in powder. . ... $5.00 per 100 Kg. $2.00°| U.8. ratealsol]. .5 oo v LU0
reduced but
margin nar-
rowed
72-D(2) |Aluminum hammered into
fine legwea i . 7 oacov s $7.50 per 100 Kg. $7.00 | Redueed ..l 50 L ai] . s 0008
82-B MAIE G0 ot e $0.30 per 100 Kg. $0.25 | Reduced 107,935
99 Pills, including quinine,
17 s R At RGNS P $0.40 per Kg. $0.28.| U.8.ratealsof. .., 0~ s s
reduced but,
margin
remains
100-A  |Pharmaceutical specialties! :
or patent medicines. . . .. $0.20 per Kg. $0.20 | No change 469
100-B  [Biological and opothera-
peutical products in any
ferm. o G Ui $0.25 per Kg. $0.25 | Nochange [:i....«.c.foese. oond
102-A  |Cod liver oil and others.. . |$2.00 per 100 Kg. $1.60 | Eliminated W7 {is . 3008
152-D |Newsprint inrolls........ Free PrOE o Faths SRR 389,816 | 1,197,814
152-E -~ |Book paper............... $5.00 per 100 Kg. $5.00 | Nochange .......... 10, 696
166-B  |Crates, shooks............ $1.20 per 100 Kg. $0.06 | Eliminated |[.......... 53,963
166-E  |Broom handles........... $0.20 per 100 Kg. $0.16 | Eliminated 2.043 9,126
188-C  [Cattle, for reproduction...| Free i e b R SR LA Nil 10,219
193-G  |Patent leather, in hides or
Zh:ets?é. : er m : l esm $0.50 per Kg. $0.45 | No change 39, 585 39,158
216-A  |Machinery apparatus, in- s
struments, agricultural..| 8% 6% Eliminated 922 12,658
216-B  |Machinery apparatus, in- 3
struments, industrial....| 11:4% 10% Reduced 18,012 23,031
217 Motors, all kinds, and
o n 7 R T e e 11-4%, 10% Reduced  [.........: 659
223 Teleph , electri -
ial:s,(::;?. ’ eec nc appar 17% 15% Reduced 52,941 170,512
Needl p i -
s ot g i 1 1% Eliminated | 14,747 | 11,617
247-A  |Cod fish and stockfish. .. .|$5.50 per 100 Kg. $4-125 | Eliminated 169, 983 322,413
247-B Salteg.skatﬁ l}:é‘ldo(cik and
sardines, dried and com- ;
e B el $3.50 per 100 Kg. $3.50 | No change 360 [..........
247-C  |Hake and other similar| iy
) S B A A e iy $4.00 per 100 Kg. $3-00 | Eliminated |[..........|J.c.c..n0nt
248 Herring in brine, smoked, s
salted or pickled..:..... $1.30 per 100 Kg. $0-975 | Eliminated |..........[.......c..
254 WA TS e e M £0.40 per 100 Kg. $0-16 ! Eliminated ..........
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STATEMENT 3—PRINCIPAL, CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH

e e B Agree- Change Canadiaén ]lﬂ)xports
m P vious ment in to Cuba
No. Short Desoription to Canada Rate to U.S.
Canada | Preference 1939 1946
$ $ :
256-A |Wheat flour..............: $1.30 per 100 Kg $0-83 $ 063 25,071 175, 647
256-D  |Flour, meals and semolinas|
OLTORER 10T ol o i $1-625 per 100 Kg.| $1-625 | Nochange |..........|J..........
260-A  |Potatoes certified to be for
seed lmported Sept. 1 to
.................. Free Free Cae v it s hoiee | 005 AL 711,273
B0-B L SPotatoan & 5.0 - Nov: alibol= i tedlsE aolittng i acie Ml it Samt ST R e e
R iR b e $5.00 per 100 Kg. $5.00 | No change e
260-C  |Potatoes n.s.c. July 1 to I
31, and Oct., 1to 31..... $4.00 per 100 Kg. $2:001-No change | '« it feies
The same imported from
Aug 1 to Sept. 30 of each
.................... $4.00 per 100 Kg. $3.50 [No change in
margin. U.S.
ratealsoreduc-
ed and reduc:
tion to Canada
may be mere-
ly consequen-
tial.
276-D  [Whiskey in bottles........ $0.36 litre $0.29 |No change in
margin.
note below. 2,596 70,631
313 Games, toys and other
Ty T P e N L 25% 18.75% | Reduced }.......... 22,930
Ex 324-B ICalcium carbide.......... 10% 8% Eliminated 96,871 163,578
otal abhowes YoM ol e S S T $1,354,292|%,3,744,11

$1,497,352/85, 269,891

8907—7%
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STATEMENT 3—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH
COUNTRIES OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—CZECHOSLOVAKIA

Rates shown in Kcs (Crowns) per 100 kg.  Crown = 2 cents

Tariff Shon Desorinti Previous | Agreement Canéd::ﬁo]zltgomrﬁaw
Ttem e Rate Rate
1937 1946
$ $
ex 39 Apples and pearsdried.................. 300 L B AR, P A
Other.dried fraits. . o di S it S0ans 300 1000} e v T R
ex 49 Lucerne seed (alfalfa)................... 350 8-, 191,282
50 GRasdReodB. . 0 il s e STt e st e 500 21N PSRRI e e | A i
83 Sking and hides:. ..o . sihh i oo de i Free Free 74,010 4,292
ex 108d | [Ginand whisky...........nereeurnnenn. 3,700 3,000 ¥ P
ex 114 ' |Baked flakes and similar cereal prepara- ¢ :
iy Dt R gl e e R g R 1,500 700175 e Snadentodonas
120a Herrings, salbed. . ivs vrii i dne s nnva s 20 TR i gt 244,128
120b Horrmgs, BACKOW: v su b, a4 ¢ ok sma vn s 70 0 s v e et
ex 121a Pish, -niaipifasaltedii i, oo so vy ahne 10 1008 St 193,325
ex 131b Preserved SalmOn. ...........coveueen-as 2,000 B0 Ls i s ) Sae gk
ex 131b Preserved lobster........cooeveeivennees 2,000 1,000 6. 0870, i
TS R TSRt S i 2,000 o ] e R (B
134b Wood for building logs or rough blocks... Free Free 1. thaerise A
ex 150b ASDeston, Oruae,dasiill, to oy sk e s sayiae s Free Tree - S| o, wrmoihs 1% s fe
ex 296al Rotary Pregs:papers L), (5, . «v sl Meras i s 140 Bind T A
ex 296a3 Other white paper iwthout lignine....... 800 |- 4BId A SRR R ke
Othor PRPer N8I .. .+ s e nsiasnsisnansiod 200 Bind 741 e RO ST
ex 304 Synthetic rubber and waste thereof...... Free i W ORI Smero e (s DR
320d Driving belts of rubber.................. 2,000 000,17 o L e e e e
ex 320el Pneumatic tires for bicyeles............. 1,500 1,500 | Not sepzflirea(i.ely classi-
. O e el aiB | ki S okE
ONLOr COVRIBI. L\ *515 o v iy o sid e » g fia 9700 3,000 1,500 14900 1ot ok ies
330 Calf leather—except patent—
suetle eaede. - ek Lol R gt
336 Patent leather............ et 1,800 800 T T et
ox SO0(R) " IBKIS. . o d i S e e s e Ea b e 1,000 500} ot ity Mit) ;
ex 358 Bl atiokas . i Vi e s by 1,700 700 ed
469a Needles for machines.................... 1,200 I o ST TR, R 1 e
fe ¢ fLemdandlwduliigs, coile o ST [l O
ex 488d Copper, refined. .. .05 . o, snrwes A s ah Free Free 652,698 |......c....0
ex 488c Niekel; erude ... o5 simsonss inasnads Free o T e et S oo 6,596
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STATEMENT 3—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH
COUNTRIES OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—CZECHOSLOVAKIA—Concluded

Rates shown in Kes (Crowns) per 100 kg.  Crown = 2 cents

Tariff : Previ A t Ca.nad l&!}ll sl ;h?_sato
ari g vious greemen zechoslov.
Thad Short Description Rate Rato
1937 1946
3 $
ex 488f Aluminum and alloys, crude............. Free Free 76,857 2,186,117
ex 448g AT Sols ot TR L L R e s Free Bea i | s e e
ex 491 d1  |Copper sheets and plates over 5§ mm.
et R SR UG Sy 480 900 Foa N LR Rl S R
2  |Copper sheets and plates less than 5 mm.
tiick ................................. 600 1 pe s e 4 R ISR S
545 BEOTAEa DATLeIIR ., s e s b b aiah ol B2 1,200 355 A e i b G A bl PR P S
546b1 Electric carbons:
Weighing each 3 kg. orover........... 40 32 6,906 202, 525
ex 553 ¢ |Autos freight not over 1,500 kgs......... 3,200 2000 T e 116,238
ex 553 ex b Passenger automobiles:
ex1 Not over 1000 kgs; chassis parts....... 3,800 3,400
ex2 | Over 1000 kgs: chassis parts........... 4,500 2,900
T TR i B et SR T @ el el S L Gr p RSN I RIGIE LSS © ERRSE Kyl 2 126,673
ex 1 |Trucks:
Not over 1,500 kgs: chassis parts...... 3,200 2,900
554 Single partsof engines...................loceiaal Various
605 Lamp black and acetylene black........ 40 40 Nob - e
separatglgv
classifi
622d Silicon carbide and artificial corundum. . 10 10 Not 41,002
separately
classified
ROk ABOVe- HemE:: = 8 e e G P s e e A R S 227,948 3,700,777
Total Canadian Exports to Czechoslo-
¢ e B st S PR o W TS ARG PSS S I 855,128 9,870,930

Nore: Other important exports to Czechoslovakia in 1946 on items not scheduled.

T e e R AT eI Tt U G R 8 e R 2,669,744

o N s s I TR T R S A U e R IR B S e st , 664
W T e, S e S S e e a s SR SO e S A 127,340
T ETIT  I  C e T S S bRAC e 190, 296
R N s T e s e B i AN A sy Eoan s s 9 55 Coeae 335,405
B e e e R e R R T A O SIS S, e 621,434

s T R R R R e e S e A S 122,850
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STATEMENT 3—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH
COUNTRIES OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—FRANCE

Nore.—The duties of the prewar French tariff were in most cases specific. That is, they were levied
on the basis of the weight or some other unit of quantity. Devaluation in the value of the franc and the
greatly increased cost of imported goods has to a large extent decreased the ad valorem incidence of these
duties. A new French tariff was announced in 1947, under which most of the duties have been converted
to an ad valorem basis. At the same time, the whole tariff was re-written and simplified. The rates estab-
lished under the new tariff are the approximate equivalent of the 1939 specific rates of the minimum tariff.
Consideration was given to the fact that, before the war, imports into France of many products were
limited by quota restrictions, which were adopted instead of increased dutles This tariff, was the basis
for negotiations at Geneva.

: : Canadian Exports to
".E:g;f Short Description Prel\{;(;:s Agrﬁe;:;ent France
1938 1946
3 3
1A |Horses for breeding purposes........ ad val.| 80% s T B SRR R T I e e s
Draught horses, admitted in the limits of
an annual quota of 800 head, under the
conditions laid down by a decree of the
French Minister of Agriculture.......... 80% O < A SR 856, 800
Othor hotses:: 0 oL 8, T s Tt de ey 80% A Sl e s A
Ex 23A |Salmon, freshorfrozen................... 10% 10% b1 54 1 B R
24 Fillets of sea fish, fresh................... 70% 35% but Not 1,201,234
not less separately
than 25 fr.| classified
kg. gross
32 CheeEe - s S T s S e R 20% 15% 17,803 § e 22w
Ex 67E |[Seed potatoes, admitted in the limits of a
quota fixed each year by decree of the
French Minister of Agriculture and under
the conditions laid down by said text...| 30% 48%, -1 R T e e ekl
67) |Leguminous vegetables (French beans,
beans in grains, fresh in the pod)...... .o 25% I8 s R e il O e S e
69A |[Beans, in grains, decorticated, broken or
BDH T e s B e SRS 25% 20%
........... 59,349
69B |Beans and horse-beans, in grains, decorti-
cated, broken or split................... 15% 12%
v BT T Y Sl e A I e Free Free 442 376 10, 868
76A |Table apples:
From February 15 to March 31.......... 15% 8%
From April 1to May 31.......50 ... .. 15% 6% 2, Y e, T
From JuneltoJuly 81.. .. ... . 5. 15% 8%
From August 1 to February 14.......... 15% 129,
80B |Dried applesand pears. ................... 15% kT | P e RS (LS S S ]
93 Wheat, spelt and meslin................... 50% 30% 3,539,194 3,020, 888
The French Government undertakes that
the resa]e price of wheat imported by
the ‘‘Office National Interprofessional
des Cereales’’, exclusive of internal taxes,
transportation, distribution and other
expenses incident to the purchase and
sale, and for a reasonable margin of
profit, shall not exceed by more than
15% the average landed cost, duty-paid,
of wheat imported during the previous
uarter. Further in the event of wide
uctuations or variations in world pnces
the amount of maximum protection
agreed to in this item may be adjusted
in order to maintain the stability of the
domestic price, subject to agreement
between the countries party to the nego-
tiation.
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STATEMENT 3—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH
COUNTRIES OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—FRANCE—Con.

Canadi;n Exports to
% ) 7 1 t
'{:'::f Short Description Prﬁ;;zus Agr}iegltn;en rance
‘ 1938 1946
i $ $
98 T T S e e R e Sy S e B 50% B0 S i b Ty L T e e
Groats, semolina, husked or pearled cereal
grains, crushed grains and grist, flakes:
102A |  Of wheat, spelt and meslin............ 50%-80% | 80% . foie.ome.. I P R
102C OFoala: 05 Sr N s i Ao 50% 30% 80; 816 0, e
112F |Flaxseed for sowing, admitted in the limits|
of an annual quota .. .. ... i s e ae Free ooy A R S 67,937
113C leover, lucern, hop cloveld ra;;—grassf ddn-
s aceo! other fodder
s(;z:isgramnc 2 us : an ................. Free Free 46, 685 . 113,228
146A |Linseed oil, erude . . i . il o i i 30% Lo i I A . 261,793
(includes
flaxseed )
Preserved meat in tins, ete.:
162A Of game, poultry, rabbit, truffled or not.| 15% 129%,
Ex 162B Of pork nottroffled - 5.7 00 1.0 Lo e, 60% 50%
........... 3,189,626
162C 6 & STy PR e T il ters o 60% 35%
Ex 162D Not specified, not truffled............... 60% 50%
164 Clanned salyhonen it che Sn T o s B 30% 25% 654,802 1.5 Tt
165 Canned Lobstel: . . bl cod. s vmi e 15% 10% 10872821 2 v e e
168A |Maple sugar and maple syrup.............. 130% 30% B000
190A |Tomatoes and tomat;o sauces, canned or
bottled including in dry extract:
Less than 7% (tomato juice)............. 30% 189, } o x
From 7% inclusive to 15% inclusive.. ... 30% 25%
263 Asbestos in rocks, fibres or pulverized..... Free Free 598, 680 1,629,787
204 Ores of copper, including chalcopyrites.....| Free e T T s A
299 CRaBimickal 7 2¢- Va2 8 Free i 0 oA s S R D ot s
300 KOveasal Bobalt s il e s Al T s, Free PR AT s S S L
326 CORT CaR DRt S e L Free Free 109, 509 54,854
Petroleum heavy oils and assimilated
products, lubricants with a base of
petroleum products:
336B Spmdle and lubricating fuel oil:
On IMpOrtation. s oL 2 2, e s 249, 18%
On removal from controlled factories. .|............ e | P et B SR
349 Selenium and tellurium:
Crude selenium at 99-75 per 100 or less...| 20% 10% ‘l Not
Separately 64,229
Othefs. o Do SR 25% 25% J| Classified
Ex 404 |Artificial iron oxides (containing 70 p. 100 Not
and morein Fe20s....................... 15% 15% Separately 2, 600
Classified
569 Medicinal preparations used in human or
veterinary medicine, not put up for retail
e T e S LS A e i 20% 18%
: 373 1,307,517
570 Medicaments used for human or veterinary
medicine, put up for retail sale.......... 20% 10% of sell-
ing price to
the
public
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STATEMENT 3—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH
COUNTRIES OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—FRANCE—Con.

Tariff

Previous

Canadian Exports to

Frar Short Description Rate Agrﬁgﬂent raneo
1938 1946
~$ $
573 Nitrogenous chemical fertilizers........... 16% Free
574 Superphosphates and ammonium phos- W
Phates . 1ol e e in e s e e 12% 7%
) A e R e e e e T 1,955,741
Other phosphated chemical fertilizers.. ... 129% Free
577 Unspecified fertilizers..................... 129%, 7%
700A |Polyvinyl acetate and other vinylic prod- Not
L1741 ¢ PO o ik St S S L IR S L T 35% 35% Separately 46, 696
Classified
711A° [Artificial rubber...........iioviiiiiananns 256% Free it o 880, 622
719 Rubber Belts (conveyor or transmission
1553} £ ) R IR i, B fons oL Sy R 25%, My s A S P 7,113
724B |Innter tubes, weighing each: !
More than 2 kg v s iie. o s aR s 20% 18%
2 kevanddess il |8 s ORI e S et 25% 22%
724C |Outer covers:
Pneumatic tires for aireraft.............. 25% 22%, 57,812 48,800
Otl’;ler including tubular tires, weighing
eac
More'than 1B kg . 2a: cideas s vsisnmisian 20% 18%
15kg.and less............ g 25% 22%
7281 | Hides OF SlinR; TaW. . cu s s s o s e susre date Free Free 53,409 54,972
736E |Patent or metallized leather (large bovine
ARIARIE) o s Fe s R s s e 25% 20% v 3 R
737D |Patent or metallized leather (calf)......... 25% 17%
737A |Calf skins, vegetable tanned or synthetic-
ally tanned:
Skins, not fat-liquored................ 15% 12%
10,346 1,050 S s
Fat-liquored skins. ................... 15% 15%
760 Furs, dressed:
Rabbit and hare, white, not dyed Free Free
Sea otter, nutria, and beaver 15% Free 26,545 4,839
Other, ;.o dmon (ol = 15% 10%
761 Furs, TNade UDet < v v ok SA s alt o WA 30% 30% 401 1,678
Ex 765A |Common wood, round rough (pulpwood and
i Cothers) ..... St ke A ; 15“? i%a
y; ommon wood square 15 .
Ex 767A |Sawn common wood, unspecified over 75 3 % 76,080 1,368,150
M Sk T E NG s Rl 20% 14%
779 Wood (timber), planed, grooved and (or)
tongued and grooved; planks, friezes or
strips for flooring, planed grooved and
(or) tongued and grooved................ 20% 1895 s b T R R R
Ex 794C |Wooden articles for industrial purposes,
mnspeciBad. .  h ol s s 8% 8%
796 Handles for tools 8% 6% 5 1,614,740
798B |Small wares and cabinet make: (Statistics cover exports
NBPOCHISE: -1« veie e wibips wile ae A 20% 15% of manufactufrg of wood
n.8.p.
Ex 799B [Manufactures of common wood, unspecified! 15% 10%
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STATEMENT 3—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH
COUNTRIES OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—FRANCE—Con.

Tariff
Item

Short Deseription

Previous
Rate

Agreement
Rate

Canadian Exports to
France

1938

1946

Ex 822A

Ex 827

941

Ex 1067D

1071

1142

1144

1146

1310

Paper pulp, chemieal, dry:
Unbleehed .o imis ke e Al e

Bloaehorl, 5o s N ol h s vt i

Paper and cardboard, not specified, made
on the winding machine:

Containing more than 60 per cent of
mechameal pulp i idar . o liBes e

Containing 60 per cent and less of me-
chanical pulp, obviously of a density
of less than 1 30 a.lso w1thout mecham—
cal pulp..

Paper and cardboard, tarred, bituminized,
(7300 e 1187 s e M O e ke o3 CrAD:

Books:
Stltched bound in boards or in cloth

Bound in natural or artificial leather.....

Hemp yarn or genistra yarn, pure or mixed
single or twisted, not glazed, single or
T et A SR 5 O G

Yarn of jute or assimilated materials or
of typha e({:ure or mixed, single or twisted,
not glaz

Endless fabries or circular woven fabrics,
whether or not impregnated or coated;
felty fabrics for paper manufacturing and
other technical uses:

Of wool, pure or mixed................

Of cottonand other...................
Outer clothing for men and boys...........

Rags and seraps of textle materials........

Footwear with natural or artificial leather
or rubber soles; with uppers of natural
or artificial rubber, not elsewhere speci-
fied or included, also footwear extending
abovethe ankle.: ...t .. . oviin.seins

Footwear with natural or artificial leather
or rubber soles, with the uppers of other
materials, not elsewhere specified or
included:

Not extending above the ankle, other
than slippers with rubber soles. . . ...

Extending above the ankle............
Copper, electrolytic or thermic refined

(rough lumps, ingots, plates, anodes,
pellets, cathodes, wire-bars, blocks,

N O ) Y S o

25% or 30%
30%

30%

35%
25%

Free

30%

30%

20%
20%
30%

Free

30%

30%
30%

Free

22%
24%

25%

25%

20%

Free }
20%

20%

18%,
20%

20%
15%
2%

Free

25%

22%
20%

727,088

Not
separatel
classifie

6,716

15,304

1,474,532

1,031,221

74,166

117,267

............

450,073

867,302

99, 552

2,470,419
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STANDING COMMITTEE

Canadian Exports to

Tariff g Previous | Agreement France
Ytam Short Description Rate Rate
1938 1946
s A 8 $
1332 |Nickel, pure or alloyed with manganese,
unwork:
Ingots, cathodes, discs, cubes, balls,
PANELE o5 hir v es i ren SR TeAh TR 8% 8%
Castanodes: o= 0o St e i 8% o
" 1333 Wire, solid bars and profiles (sections) of|
nickel:
Hot-forged (spun), orrolled............. 15% 10%, > 99,457 2,473,571
Y | P A L O SRR AU S e R 15 13%
Brtindod i o A b s 257 22,
Ex 1334 |Sheets, slabs and bands of nickel.......... 20% 8%
or 18%
1347 |Aluminum, unworked................... .. 35% 21%
1348 |Aluminum wire, solid bars and profiles, 125 993,615
simply rolled, hot-forged or extended.| 30% 20%
1349 |Aluminum sheets, slabs, leaves or bands. .| 30% 20%
1366A. |Zine, unworked, in rough lumps (ingots,
blocks, cathodes, ete., pellets, powder)..| 20% 15%
181,284 3,811,999
Ex 1368 |Zinc leaves, slabs, sheets and bands, with
an unworked surface. ............c...... 20% 16%
Ex 1376A |Lead or lead alloys, unworked in ingots,
rough lumps, blocks, pigs, plates and
rods, not argentiferous. ................. 12% 10% 177,751 1,885, 690
1390A |Tantalum and tantalum alloys unworked:
Powder. Si i vov (i vrmias S o A 40% 35% Not |
separately
classified
Rough lumps, waste and scraps of manu-
Taetube sl ol s B S S o R 15% By oY s
1393 |Cobalt and cobalt alloys:
Products of the first smelting (cast,
IAAEE0; BDOISS). 5 s i el s e SR T Free Free ]
Refined in rough Tumps; Waste and sarapel . i £ Lol ot o= (o5 S0sas R NSEREU
of maanufactaure. ... s e e Free Free
1588 |Machinery and appliances for preparing and
draining the soil:
Disc apparatus and their components....| 20% 15%
Ploughs other than disc-ploughs and
similar apparatus, and their compo-
T - Vol e RSN g RIS S 25% 15% 94, 521
Cultivators and similar apparatus in-
cluding ‘‘Canadian-harrows’’ and their
OO DONONEEL 47 £ s s R ity o re ¥ 20% 15%
1590. |Harvesting and hay-making machinery:
Reaping and binding machines. ......... 25% 15%
Reaping and threshing machines. ..... -| 26% 129, 94,521
1591A Grain threshers (cereals and seeds)...... 25% 15%
1630A |Heads of sewing machines:
Domestic sewing machines, with or
without electric motor................ 25% 16% }
Industrial machines..................... 30% T A | B A
—20%,
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STATEMENT 3—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH
COUNTRIES OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—FRANCE—Conc.

Canadian Exports to

Tariff K g Previous | Agreement France
S oy Short Description Rate Tato
1938 1946
$ $
1721 |Insulators:
Of porcelain, earthenware, stoneware,
pottery, with or without metal parts. .| 25% T8 i Rl At e VR R S
Of rubber, hardened or not, with or with-
oul Metal DS, o otT vo P T v 26% - 20% Not separately
classified ;
1718A, |Locomotives, loco-tractors, and rail-cars
B&D for track of 0m60 and less gauge:
With steam engines, including tender-
locomotives; with explosion or internal
combustion engines; locomotives pro-|
pelled by compressed air and other....| 20% 18%
........... 6,099, 350
i O B S 0 T e RO e S e e e R R e, S 25% 20%
1797 |Passenger automobiles.................... 70% 35% 589 2,219
1708 IMotor brueks: . ... . iiiumanis, Fagy S 70% SO s g e 10,116,064

1802 |Automobile parts, except:

1804 Shock absorbers........ S s S 70% 30% )
} 2,049 4,981,454
1804D | Shock absorbers......................u. 70% 25%
1817A |Sea-going vessels with a gross tonnage of!
morethan 250 tons...... ..o coivrniives Free iy i agh il R T 4,105,000
1828 |Aircraft (aeroplanes, seaplanes, helicopters,
gliders, etc.) with or without engines,
weighing empty: '
Marethan 1500 kg, .= imta et o 35% 25%
........... 692,023
4 000ckeg. and-leas: ol S i 35% 35%
botal above thems o Lt Nl e s w a5 8,557,137 | 59,156,064
Total Canadian exports to France.........|............]lcvueinn.. 9,152,226 | 74,380,394
Other Canadian exports to France, on
items not scheduled:
RERWAS BN T o e s s MR A e e T s L 1,457,858
BHROr BRIHON. s s t1t (T E i o o b onstrd s asa i G T o 1,215,350
Ca T S S S MR SRS T B SRt 5 R e 1,481,397

A i S
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Krone=$0-2015
Tariff Short Description Previous Agreement Cana%iznrwlix;orts .
Ttem Rate Rate
1939 1946
$ 3
ex 138 Lobster, canned................... per kg.'l 50 kr. |per kg. 0.75 kr. 15418 1. TS
ex 139 Salmon, canned................... per kg. 0.60 kr. |per kg. 0.30 kr. 1 1 SR RO
143 Salmon, salted: . v e ae per kg. 0.40 kr. |per kg. 0.30 kr. {57 L S CERa R
176 Carbon electrodes for electric
;gll:sl?ing farnnoes i It r et Free Free 194,387 42,446
213 August 1 to February 15......... per k. 0.80 kr, [per kg. 080 k2, 1, .voviitad e iivensvnis
214 February 16 to March 15........ per k. 0.80 kr. [per kg, 0.40 kr. i\ vi v st bi Jol e mes o
215 March 16 toJuly 31............. per-kg. 040 kr. Jper kg, 0.20 kx. [..c.oioitnac]ha v sanavad
408 Barlter e it TR e et Free Free 8L 8 1k vt e
411 8 R G I e T e Free Free 55,853 1. 5- ivieieas
4125 IWWHeBL v s 1% s it b i T el Free Free 2,977,146 3,907,637
414 L £ % Sl it e s Sgate o) S us o perkg. 010k, jper kg  0:00 ke (51 vt ity ans st
415 ) 3 5. PERCEYIP GRMAIISCES A SR I s (S Free Free 526,485 834,831
424 Wheat flour, 07 oot C ot Lo Free Free 492,674 3,078,334
ex 516 Aluminum crude......cccoveeen.n. Free Free & 72N Lo it
ex 516 Copper, crude in pigs and bars.....| Free Free y (R B SRR
635 Nickel copper matte.............. Free Free 4,086,592 3,997,027
656 CHeenn, .. i fiiss ol Ay N per kg. 1.20 kr. [per kg. 1.20 kr. 2 AT G v e
ex 954 Adveraft... i e s e 24% 13% Ve e e e 256,703
ex 054 Automobile trucks, also bodies and
chassis therefor and motors for
automobiles and aircraft........ 249%, 0% 1 Sl e R Y 1,010,508
ex 955 Automobile and aircraft parts..... 40% 25% 2,121 331,546
ex 957 ANtO BINe ORBIE . A a s o s s T per kg. 0.60 kr. |per kg. 0.60 kr. 65,333 5,188
Total AboVe IHEIE ., 2w cssinfoanisbiaress bonssanlecotonsami sty 8,504,677 | 13,464,220
Total xports 1o INOTWA s tis s |« th sivvisio s s s soblssimesssiesintes 10,903,889 | 19,266,569

Nore—Exports of ships to Norway in 1946 were valued at $4,411,000.

There was no concession on ships.
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: 'STATEMEI.‘IT 3—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH
COUNTRIES OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—SYRIA-LEBANON

Mcts e e CaléatiianLEgporm to
a L] vious eement yria-Labanon
Teors ~ Short Description Tote Rats
1938 1946
$ $
goBa - Cod-Bver ol 7.l s o i st 11% h 272 25 e PR A e P T A%,
117 Meat preserves (except salted, smoked or
simply preserved).........cooviineinnnn. 25% D PR R SRt S SRR
120  {Preserved fish (except salted, dried or
SIIORAA ). s bt o o e b s e e 25% e SR T R el
125 (0100 10T R (o et R N SR, A ot b oo o 40% 00 e e ek S s 1,854
218a |Industrial nitricacid..............ccuun... 11% 11% Not separately classified
306a |Lithopone and zinc oxide.................. 119% 11% Not separately classified
306b |Other dry mineral colours........... Saer o 25% 1.7k I SR S aneds SR
292 Prepared medicines................. R 11% 11%
309¢ |Toothpastes and powder.................. 50% 25% 344 8,414
309d/e| Other cosmetic articles.................... 50% 409,
376b |Tires and tubes.................. PR, e 25% 15% 28,952 4,974
3377 Rubber articles n0.D. & ccrivoms sdeaovins 25%, 25% 144 443
4190 - INewsDpTint DADPET. . . ..ioesvsan s siossnosnes Free T A e e g BEE | T 15,152
436c  |Books (except text books)................. 25% Uy A R i S 8 D 15282,
Ul R e T T T T e R B e 25% DB ) s e b e B | e
642 Manufactures of asbestos.................. 25% 25% 3,144 3,290
709/11 |Pipes and tubes of iron.................... 11% b R W EGRR  AE p
* 812a |Lamps of commonmetal.................. 25% 2%, } a2
812b |[Same, same gilded, plated, ete............ 40%, A | e
834/6 |Agricultural machines.................... Free Trod 1,612 9,077
839 Various industrial machinery............. %% L7 R PO e 1,588
ete. —25%
B M aRbInR BODI. . s s L 3% HORs = e e PR
852 J BT T e e R e e S LR PO 25% A ) Ee e et ] B
853  |Calculating machines..................... 25% SR ] e e A e e S
861  |Storage batteries..................ooouns 25% 20% 4. 8105] et o s
868 RO APPRPAEUR 47 o 2 s oot & i s ok e 40%, OROA SRSl e L 3,723
874  |Insulated cables and wire................. 25% 20% 67 26
878 Electric apparatus, n.0.p............c...... 25% o e R R R R 1,686
890  |Passenger automobiles.................... Various 140 piastres|............ 1,727
according | per kg.
to weight| (provis-
and H.P. | ional
rate)
893 ADNO PR e SR e A 9-6 to 24 Nochange|............ 211
piastres
per kg.
with mini-
mum of

25%




128 STANDING COMMITTEE

STATEMENT 3—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN NON-COMMONWEALTH
COUNTRIES OTHER THAN THE UNITED STATES—SYRIA-LEBANON—Conc.

2 3 ¥ Canadian Exports to
’Il‘gf Short Deseription Prﬁ\;;t;us Agrﬁgxt!;ent S i
1938 9146
g $
915 ete.| Various scientific apparatus............... 25% O e A L SRR 243
982 Fountain pen and mechanical pencils. ...... 40% 25% 267 3,646
 ota Ll abOVO RemN, L U i Tl i S e el A S e e N R i 7 39,340 71,613
Total Canadian Exportsto Syxiaz. & i b b anmsn. 63,616 227,507
Other Canadian Exports to Syria and|
banon on items not scheduled:
Thadvessed Tural . it 5l s s, R e S e e o gt 7,061 26,549
R e ROBR L s L R T T e e e T e ot 2,166
Patentleather. ou. o 2u. 00 s 0] e zan I SRRl il L UIAME 5 9,629 5,599
Boal paper. 5 i e il et e el e RS oo 12,743
T ADDINE DRDOT L, i on Ty e b s e ey 4,905
Bond and: writing plper, Went. . o L i e S A e e R e s 14,330
Btoves; ZRsolne Or O1L . ok e e e e 1,678
Partg ol Blowal . 5 . i o i R i A e e s e R s TN hahs s A A 1,380
Jewellers sweepings and SerAp.. 2 ianr b ey UL et e e e 48,092
Spark plugs and ignition apparatus......|............|c.coiieinn. 918 7,339
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(o

STATEMENT 4.—-PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN fNDIA. AND PAKISTAN

Rupee (16 Annas)=230-22 cents Canadian : ; ewt.=112 lbs.
o 3 o % Canadiain gxports
I:er:n Short Description rﬁ;;(;us &r ﬁegg;ent 10 faltie

! 1939 1946
$ $
ex 4(1) [Milk, condensed or preserved............. 30% 25%, 22, 269 328, 681
ex 7 Dehydrated vegetables (except tomatoes,
onions, potatoes and cauliflowers)....... 36% L A 5yl M AR 823,080
ex 8 Apples and pears, fresh.................... 36% 0% s AR
12 Grass and cloverseeds.................... 30% § B AR e e e B
1668) -+ [Canmed sl et S TS ah L e e 30% 20% 42,864 157,823
ex21  [Soups, canned or bottled.................. 0% | 2% 11,062 12,256
ex 28 Penicillin and its produets................. 36% 30% Not separately
x classified
ex 40 Douglds fir-timaber. .. 5 L s T 30% . | AT e U (o Wl e TR B Pt 5
ex 45 Fountain pens, complete. . ................ 30% 30% 34 442 413
(includes
pencils)
ex:03(1).“tZme, aawronght. .. .. 5 S sl g Free Free 43,427 52,417
70(1) = ICopper, unwrotught, ...  Jov. il ol Free Free 249, 644 861,527
ex 71 Stoves for use with kerosene, gasoline or
other liquid fuels and burners........... 30% 1 e 9 i R e 13,430
ex 72 Boot and shoe manufacturing machinery. .| 10% 10% Not 158,319
separately
classified
ex 72 Metal working machinery.............. ... 10% 10% 17,373 21,527
72(5) |Domestic refrigerators and parts.......... 36% 30% 2068 I3 3nn e
72(8) " [Ploughs and parts. . it ciis v e Free Free 1,617 58, 282
Agricultural tractors and parts............ Free Free
Not separately
EEAD DOBREBR o il 2 e Tt B .| Free Free classified
22(9) - - IMARINg B CINOTY - . - it sa it s din o Free Bpeee el 75,843
40 R L T T G T e e e e SRR et 30% 20% 34,418 125
74(2) |Wooden railway sleepers.................. 18|% T g T [P b b
75 Motor vans and lorries, complete....... ... India undertakes to
3 eliminate the prefer-
75(1) |[Motorcarsandparts...................... ence extended the
; United Kingdom over
75(3) |Buses, chassis and truck chassis......... .. a period of years. The
margin is not to exceed
6 per cent ad valorem
during the first 3 years
of the agreement nor 3
per cent from the
beginning of the fourth |} 2,647,934 3,593,038
year, and the prefer-
ence is to be elimin-
ated entirely from the
beginning of the
seventh year. The
schedule contains no
undertaking respecting
the rate of duty under
the m.f.n. or preferen-
tial tariffs.
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STANDING COMMITTEE

STATEMENT 4—PRINCIPAL CONCESSIONS GAINED IN INDIA AND PAKISTAN—Conc.

Tariff Pr Agree s i”‘I!xlld gu
ari g evious ment, to India
Ttem Short Description Rate Rate )
1939 1946
$ $
76 Atreraftiand DAES L iR FidTias it e 3% B L SRl S 127,286
T otal above THeME . T 7 s s Wl e e S R s 3,072,705 6,706,470
Total Canadian Exports to India and
PaKIStAD L i T Rt i e e i g e SR, e it oMUl 5,165,873 (49,045,795
Other Canadian Exports to India and
Pakistan on items not scheduled:
Wheat e s e N e e e DL M e SN e 173,482  |20,109, 542
'8, AR RO et S IR N s DR DL DM e 1,050 1,496,107
NOWSPTINb .03 2 o 7 e ks & ATt L s S R e ST A S 130,375 1,477,584
Oatmeal andirolledionts .. o B ray il a i A Rt 2 133,023
Eocomoetives ARG DATES. .. .5 0., «ah o densis | e e et e b v s s sy el 3,181,369
Railway cars, coaches and parts: . i |l il v oo b e tosi s s e o f e st et , 673,799
Alamvimim ‘Dars; 1ods, sheets s, 2o n s e s e Ky s b pas 63,249 2,473,491
Kertiligers, MamMactIready . & oo o Sl o ie s B a il i € s ot 328 938,528
Tives; MOtoTVehICIe s, . kit ST, Tal s il e b ae ok 412,377 409
Tnnertubes, motor - yehicles! iiesi =t onnlo i Se iR T s e o ) ,435 59
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STATEMENT 5—ITEMS OF IMPORTANCE TO CANADA IN THE UNITED KINGDOM AND DOMINIONS' TARIFFS ON WHICH
PREFERENTIAL MARGINS WERE REVISED BY THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—UNITED KINGDOM

Previous Rates Geneva Agreement Imports 1938
Item Item
To Canada Full To Canada Full From Canada Total
£ £
4 Apples, imported from Aug. 16 to April 15 i nany
ST e o M R R R T e Ll T S Free 3s. cwt. Free Free 2,419,649 6,015,173
31(4) Fruit dried without sugar; apples, pears, peaches
(1) (b) (1) and nectarines. Free If valued not | Free Free 2,322 105,978
over £3 10s. |
ewt.; 7s. ewt.;
otherwise
10% ad wval.
4 Peaches preserved in Syrup.............co.oveunn. Free 15% Free 129, 36,823 1,443,305
: Plus sugar duty on added
sugar content in each case.
4 Poars, preserved in BYTUD., ... .. veul duisvioids dak 4 4 Free 15%, Free 129, 167,265 1,454,420
Plus sugar duty on added
sugar content in each case.
31(4) Cherries, stoned, preserved in sugar, or syrup, Free 15% Free 10% 8,197 13, 550
(i1) (a)(2) with or without added flavouring matter. . Plus sugar duty on added
sugar content in each case.
Ex 3(7)(i1) Beans in airtight containers with or without
flavouring, but not including beans in pod...| Free 20% Free 10%, 328,470 415,3411
Ex 31(7) (ii) Peas in airtight containers....................... Free 20% Free 10% “"N.S8.S. 27,413
Ex 31 (7)(ii) Vegetables, preserved in airtight containers other
than tomatoes, peas, maize, beans and aspar-
D e s Free 20% Free 15%, 35,7201 230, 2211
4 D & 0%, AT S B (UL o e b b L 0 A Free 5s. cwt. Free 3s. 6d. cwt. 63,094 189,176
or, if higher,
10% but not
more than 5s.
cwt.

! Statistical classification not identical with tariff item.

? The Government of the United Kingdom shall be befree to maintain until Septemr 1, 1948, the rates in force at the date of the Geneva Agreement.

AQHANIWOD ANV ONIINVE
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STATEMENT 5—ITEMS OF IMPORTANCE TO CANADA IN THE UNITED KINGDOM AND DOMINIONS' TARIFFS ON WHICH
PREFERENTIAL MARGINS WERE REVISED BY THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—UNITED KINGDOM

—Continued

Item

© Item

Previous Rates

Geneva Agreement

* Imports 1938

To Canada

Full

To Canada ' Full

From Canada

Total

3G.AV.
4)
G.AV.

Salmon preserved in airtight containers..........

Chilled or frozen salmon

53s. 33d. per
1b.

Free
Free

Free

54s. 10d. per
1b.

(1) If at any future time the
rate of ordinary MFN customs
duty upon tobacco unmanufac-
tured, unstripped, containing
10 1b. or more of moisture in
every 100lb. weight thereof
does not exceed 45s. 2d. per lb.,
such tobacco shall thereafter be
exempt from ordinary MFN
customs duties which exceed
the preferential duties thereon
by more than 1s. 3d. per Ib.

(2) If at any future time the
said MFN rate chargeable on
such tobacco does not exceed
36s. 6d. per lb., such tobacco
shall therefore be exempt from
ordinary MFN customs duties
which exceed the preferential
duties thereof by more than
1s. per lb.

Only basic rates are given.
These apply to tobacco, un-
manufactured, unstripped, con-
taining 10 lb. or more of
moisture in every 100 1b. weight
thereof. Rates on all other to-
baccos, unmanufactured or man-
ufactured, are calculated with
reference to these rates.

Free 5%
Free

Free

£
1,165,730

772,299
203, 056
. 7,887

£
22,712,606

4,616,019
624,249
696, 964

(444

AALLINNOD DNIANVIS
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3G.AV.

3 G.A.V.

3V(@2) @[
EX 3V ITI(4)

and EX 3X(1)

EX 3VIII(4)
EX 3X(1)

EX 3VIII(4)
EX 3X(1)

EX 3VIII(5)

31X (2) (ii)
31X (2) (ii1)

3X(2) (xviii)

and 3X(2)(xix)

Canned, ground, or chipped meat consisting
wholly of pork.

Sausage casings, hog, natural of a value exceeding,
£10 per cwt.

Pig'iron.an speoifiedl. . . . ol oo s o s s i sy
Circular saws for cutting metal as specified. . ....
Hacksaw blades, bandsaw blades, jigsaw blades,

iatiRy 1)1 R e e R TS, A i o

Files and rasps as specified......................

Alarm clocks valued not less than 12s. each .....

Elecftirisal cooking and heating apparatus as speci-
Bl e ol 3 T e e

Parts of office machines as specified............

1 Statistical classification not identical with tariff item.

2 The Government of the United Kingdom shall be free to maintain until September 1, 1948, the rates in force at the date of the Geneva Agreement.

Free

Free
Free
Free
Free

Free

2%%

Free

Free

10%

10%
333%
20%
20%
20%

331%

15%
20%

Free

Free.

Free

Free

Free

Free

168%

or if higher
2s. 8d. each
Free

Free

Agreementlelim:
inates preferen
and binds rate
to M.F.N.
against increase
above 10%. For|
the time being
this item is free
from all
sources.

5%

Agreement
binds rate to
M.F.N. against
increase above
10% and mar-
gin of preference
at not more
than 5%.

Free

25%
15%

15%
15%

25%
or if higher
4s. each.

10%
15%

1,218,902

59,635
(All tinned pork products).

92,743

36,599
N.S.8.
N.8.8.

46,180

N.S.8.

39,034
97,615

1,231,410

1,204,162

50,392

77,470
66,454

N.S.8.

174,888
666,044

HQIAWN OO ANV DNIINVE
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STATEMENT 5—ITEMS OF IMPORTANCE TO CANADA IN THE UNITED KINGDOM AND DOMINIONS' TARIFFS ON WHICH

141

PREFERENTIAL MARGINS WERE REVISED BY THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—UNITED KINGDOM

—Continued
Previous Rates Geneva Agreement Imports 1938
Item ITtem
To Canada Full To Canada Full From Canada) Total
£ 2
Ex 3X(2)(iii) |Typewriters over 221bs.........coevmneesansenss Free Valued not over | Free £2 each or, if 135, 712! 455, 087!
£6 each, £2. higher, 20%
10s. each; but not more
valued over £6 than £3 10s.
each, 10s. each. 32
each. E
3X(2) (xiv) Cash registere: i o nio Yl i Free 15 ¥ 1
s % ree 0% } 188, 567 306,833 §
Ex 3X(1) Cash register parts as specified.................. Free 20% Free 10% E
3X(2)(xx1v) Refrigeration machinery over 12 cu. ft. storage Q
X 3X(1) CADAUTER LIRS ) e R A e Free 20% Free 15% N.S.S. N.S.S. &
Ex 3X(1) Glass-working machines as specified............. Free 20%, Free 15% 27, 559! 91,575 g
3X(2) (xxix) Rolling mill (metal-working) machinery, as = ;
i A R e SR S | Free 3319 Free 25% 6 659,315 g
3-XI-8 Wood and timber as specified: 11 ins. or more in g
width throughout its length................... Free 16s. per Free 8s. per (<]
standard standard
3-XI-8 Wood and timber as specified: Less than 11 ins.
in width throughout its length and of a value
of £18 or more per standard................... Free 16s. per Free 8s. per
standard standard
3-XI1-8 Wood and timber as specified: Less than 11 ins.
in width throughout its length, and of a value
of £16.12s. or more, but less than £18 per|
T bR RO R e e ST S T Free Valued at Free 10% less 1% 5
£16.12s. or for each 4s
more but less by which 4,054,163 19,724,410 '
than £17 per value exceeds |
standard: £16.18s. per
10% dard




3-XIII-1

3-xI1I-1

Articles of apparel as specified, consisting wholly
of cotton.

Stockings and socks made wholly of silk or con-
taining silk components the value of which
exceeds 20% of the aggregate of the values of
all the components thereof....................

Stockings and socks (containing no silk) made
wholly of artificial silk or containing artificial
silk components the value whereof exceeds
20% of the aggregate of the values of all the
components: Where all the artificial silk con-
sists of regenerated cellulose or cellulose acetate

Stockings and socks (containing no silk) as above:
Where none of the artificial silk consists of
regenerated cellulose or cellulose acetate.......

Undergarments as specified, containing lace or
embrOldery: o v ca sl R T s

1 Statistical classification not identical with tariff item.

2 The Government of the United Kingdom shall be free to maintain until September 1, 1948, the rates in force at the date of the Geneva Agreement.

Free

2889, or if
higher 8s. per
1b. but not more
than 8s.4d. per

doz. pairs

35% or if higher
3s.102d. per lb.

359% or if higher
3s.10%d. per 1b.

Free

Valued at £17
or more but
less than £18
per standard:
10% less 1%
for each 4s. by
which value
exceeds £16.16s.
per standard

20%

If containing
lace, embroid-
ery, ete., 30%

4319, or if
higher 12s. per
Ib. but not more
than 10s. per
doz. pairs

429, or if higher
4s.8d. per Ib.

429 or if higher
4s.8d. per Ib.

30%

Free

273% or if
higher 10s. per
doz. pairs®

30% or if higher
6s.9d. per doz.
pairs

30% or if higher
9s. per doz.
pairs

Free

174% or if higher
15.9d. each.
If containing

lace, embroid-
ery, ete., 25%

334% or if
higher 12s. per
doz. pairs®

303% or if
higher 7s.6d.

per doz. pairs

334% or if
higher 10s. per
doz. pairs

25%

If containing
silk or artificial
silk, silk duties

apply.

N.S.8.

87,041

N.8.8.

8,696

N.S.8.

432,076

1,347,671

162,783

AQIAWNOD ANV DNIMINVE
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STATEMENT 5—ITEMS OF IMPORTANCE TO CANADA IN THE UNITED KINGDOM AND DOMINIONS’ TARIFFS ON WHICH -
PREFERENTIAL MARGINS WERE REVISED BY THE GENCER;\u{iJ c{&GREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—UNITED KINGDOM
—Conclude:
Previous Rates Geneva Agreement Imports 1938
Item Item
To Canada Full To Canada Full From Cana da| Total
£ f
3-XIII-1 Corsets and similar body supporting undergar-
ments and Drassieres. . ;... .ovsvs o sler b Free 20% Free 15% 36, 639 156,345
If containing
silk or artificial
silk, silk duties
would apply 52
3 XIII-5-ii Hats of felt as specified....... N P e £ Free 3s. per doz. or | Free 5s. per doz. or | N.S.S. 126,417 3
if higher 30%. | In containing | if higher 25%. B
silk or artificial S
silk, silk duties =
would apply. / %
3XIII(2)(i) Men'’s footwear as specified...................... Free 20% Free 15% 691,437 1,080,409
If containing ¥ 8
silk or artificial P
silk, silk duties | =
; would apply. S
3XIII(2)(iii)) |Women's footwear as specified................... Free Valued over | Free 3s. pair or if 42,782 1,228,471 :33
10s. pair. 2s. | If containing higher 10%. [<3]
pair, or if high- [silk, silk duties 53]
er, 15?,. Other | would apply.
0+
BXEV(B)09) S PDOI6E BoBtis -l N s el ot b et e el Free 30% Free 25% 525,523 533,753 |
3G.AV. Maize starch valued over 10s. ewt.............. Free 10% Free 74% or, if high- | N.S.8. 385,539
] . er, 1s. per ewt.
3 XV(3)(iii) |Tubing and piping partly or rubber, balata, or
BB POrORa i ¢Sl e W Free 14d. 1b. or if | Free 10% 9,719 31,082
higher, 15%.
3XVI(8) Paper dress patterns including their envelopes. ..| Free 15% Free 10% N.S.8. N.8.8.
3XVI(9) Face and hand towels wholly of paper, as specified| Free 163% Free 10% N.8.8. N.8.8.
3XVI(10) Serviettes and handkerchiefs wholly of paper, as !
PO -, 1 S o S B L e e Free 168% Free 10% N.8.8. N.8.8,




Ex
3XVII(2) (i)
(a)

3XVIII(2) ()
6

Motor vehicles: Agricultural tractors (not track-
laying).

Toilet preparations as specified..................

Dresses and skirts wholly of silk or containing
more than 20% by value of silk or silk-and-
artificial silk

Dresses and skirts wholly of artificial silk or con-| 35%

taining more than 20% by value of artificial
BB NG MR ST 0005 i o v s eees e

10%

Free

368% .
or if higher
10s. per lb.

or ‘i’f higher
3s. 10-d. per lb.

15%
20%

431%
or 1f higher
12s. per lb.

2% .
or if higher

4s. 8d. per lb.

15% ()

Free

33t%
or 1f sigher
15s. per Tb (2)

30%., ..
or if higher

6s. 9d. per
1b.(?)

15% (*)
15%

381% .
or if higher
15s. per 1b.(%)

30%
or if hlgher
6s. 9d. pe:
1b. (‘)

Nil

62,086

46,292

575,071

1 Statistical classification not identical with tariff item.

2 The Government of the United Kingdom shall be free to maintain until September 1, 1948, the rates in force at the date of the Geneva Agreement.

8
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STATEMENT 5—ITEMS OF IMPORTANCE TO CANADA IN THE UNITED KINGDOM AND DOMINIONS’ TARIFFS ON WHICH
PREFERENTIAL MARGINS WERE REVISED BY THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—AUSTRALIA

Previous Rates Geneva Agreement Imports 1939
Item Item
To Canada M.F.N. to Canada M.F.N. From Canada Total
: L £
51B Fresh fish, smoked or dressed (but not salted)
or preserved by cold process. ................. 1d. per 1b. 4+ | 1id. per 1b. + 1d. per 1b. 1d. per lb. 3,471 281,194
10% primage 10% primage
51C (1) Crinad- salmoft s c i ioir D Sl g S e 1d. per lb. + 4d. per 1b. + 1d. per lb. 24d. per 1b. 358,301 571,787
10% primage 10% primage
51C(3)(a) Canned sardines n.e.i. sild, bristling and similar
smallimmaturefishs . . o - S NS 1d. per lb. + | 3d. per Ib. 4 1d. per 1b. 2d. per lb. 23,0421 145, 578t
109% primage 10% primage
51C(4) Canned fish other than salmon and sardines. . ... 1d. per 1b. + /| 3d. per 1b. 4+ 1d. per Ib. 3d. per lb. 15,717 110,492
10% primage 10% primage
105A(1)(a)(1) Cotton piece goods, grey, unbleached, not being ;
printed, dyed or coloured..................... 3d. per sq. yd. | 1}% per sq. yd. | 4d. per sq. yd. | % per sq. yd. 134,360 444,743
or if higher 5% or if higher 5%
105A.(1)(a)(2) Cotton piece goods, bleached, not being printed,
dyedior colonfed i it St veah s e A ped 3d. per sq. yd. | 13% per sq. yd. | % per sq. yd. | 1d. per sq. yd. 1,608 694,839
” or if higher 5% or if higher 5% f
106B Trimmings and ornaments n.e.i. for hats, shoes
and other attire not being partly or wholly of
gold or silver; braids n.e.i.; frillings; rufflings;
pleatings; ruchings; galoons n.e.i.; ribbons
n.e.i., tinselled belting n.e.i., webbings n.e.i.,
belting for apparel n.e.i. and not being cut to
lengths for belts; jabots and textile bows, being
articles of women’s attire. .................... Free 20% + 5% Free 15% 1,741 181,288
+ 5% primage primage
110A5(b) Dresses of woel or containing wool.............. 12s.6d. ea. 4 12s.6d. ea. + 12s.6d. ea. + 12s.6d. ea. + 3381 14, 709!
374% or if higher|373%, or if higher| 309, or if higher | 30% or if higher
60% + 5% 60% + 10% 50% 50%
primage in each | primage in each
case case
113B Textile gloves and mitts; gloves n.e.i. (except
rubber, harvesting, driving, housemaids and
Sardentig): . o TR R e S Free + 10% 20% + 10% Free 15% 1,323t 14,975!
primage primage

AALLINWOD DNIANVIS




EX118C

137A(2)

169A.(2)

179A(1)

Ex 179D(1)(d)

181A.(2)

P
215B(1)

P;
Ex 231 (E)
Ex.244A

291H(1)

201H(2)

Felt base floor coverings having a similar surface
0 Hnelom el § 100 B L A e s o A

Aluminum angles, bars, pipes, plates, rods,
sheets, strips, tees and tubes, not further
mggufactured than plated, polished or decor-
U I P A R N R N I St e L S R

IS R By s e G I I S

Electric cooking and heating appliances: Stoves,
ranges, ovens, cookers, grillers, boiling plates,
boiling rings and the like, including elements
therefor whether imported separatelv or
forming part of a complete appliance. . .

Electric motors under 1 h.p. when not integral
parts ob msohines’s i 5 I L Sy

Valves for wireless telegraphy and telephony,
including rectifying valves. ...................

Locket, brooch and watch glasses................

Undressed timber(3) in sizes 12”7 x 6’ (or its
equivalent) or over........... N s s

Undressed timber(4) in sizes 7 x 2}’ (or its
equivalent) and upwards, and less than
12" x 6" (or its equivalent)..................

20% + 5%
primage

15% + 5%
primage

Free + 10%
primage

30% + 5%
primage

30%

4s.3d. ea. or if
higher 20% +
10% primage

30% + 5%
primage

2s. per 112 1bs.
or if higher 10%

Free + 5%
primage

10s. 6d. per 100
super ft. +
10% primage.

12s. per 100
super {t. + 10%
primage

3% + 10%

primage

30% + 10%
primage

20% + 10%
primage

573% + 10%
primage

50%

6s. ea. or if
higher 40% +
10% primage

50% + 5%

primage

3s. per 112 lbs.
or if higher 25%

20% + 10%

primage

12s. 6d. per 100
super ft. + 10%
10% primage

14s. per 100
super ft. + 10%
primage

20% bound

15%

10%‘

25%

25%

4s.3d. ea. or if
higher 20%

Free

Free

6s. per 100 su-
per ft.(5)

9s. per 100
super ft.(%)

30%

30%

20%

45%

40%

5s.6d. ea. or if
higher 40%,

'540%
Free

10%

7s. per 100 su-
er ft.(5)

10s. per 100
super ft. (%)

20,9282

5,545

132, 904

25,713

51,203

184
N.S.8.

6,541

56,112

470,277%

117,746

224,157

80,221

171,931

139,672

23,757

N. 8.8.

34,609

56,112

77,959

AOYAWNOD ANV ODNIMNVE
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STATEMENT 5—ITEMS OF IMPORTANCE TO CANADA IN THE UNITED KINGDOM AND DOMINIONS’ TARIFFS ON WHICH
PREFERENTIAL MARGINS WERE REVISED BY THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—AUSTRALIA

—Continued
Previous Rates Geneva Agreement, Imports 1939
Item Item
To Canada M.F.N. to Canada M.F.N. From Canada Total
- :
291H (3) Undressed timber in sizes less than 7 x 23"' (or
368 BQUIVRIBRE) ot i L it e R e 13s. 6d. per | 15s.6d.per 100 | 12s. per 100 | 13s. per 100 8,677 249, 549
100 super ft. super ft. super ft. (5) super ft. (5)
+ 10% + 10% 2
primage primage. g
201J Timber for making boxes being cut to size and =
dressed or partly dressed.................... 14s. per 100 | 16s. per 100 | 14s. per 100 | 15s. per 100 78,993 122,261 2
super ft. -+ super ft. -+ super ft.(%) super ft. (5) E
10% primage. | 10% primage. . =
291N(1) Veneers, the value for duty of which does not, S
ex0oed 208 0o A0 EG Ab: 1. ciiin s e T 213% + 5% | 423% + 10% | Shall not ex- 35% 3,326 30,111 Q
primage. primage. ceed 25% g
201N (2) Veneers the value for dtuy of which exceeds 25s. =
ot J00 aqath. Pt i B s e s e 8s. per 100 sq. | 10s. 74d. per 8s. per 10s. 74d. per See item por
ft. + 5% 100 sq. ft. + | 100 sq. ft. 100 sq. ft. 291N (1) 3
N primage. 109% primage. <]
293A Timber, undressed in sizes less than 7’ 6’/ x 103"/ ™
x 24" for use in the manufacture of doors...... 4s. per 100 su- | 6s. per 100 su- | 4s. per 100 su- | 5s. per 100 su- 21,005 38,921
per ft. + 10% | per ft. 4+ 10% per ft. per ft.
primage. primage.
204(A) Staves, undressed, ni@.d...c.. .. vit i, 8s. per 100 + | 10s. per 100 + | 8s. per 100(5) | 9s. per 100(%) 7,663 20, 688
10% primage. | 10% primage.
204(B) Staves, dressed or partly dressed, but not shaped| 11s. per 100 + | 13s. per 100 + 11s. per 1008 12s. per 100° N.S.8. 36,197
10% primage 10% primage
204(C) Staves, undressed, as prescribed by Depart-
saembal By e . oo, SR, S T Free Free + 49, Free Free (bound) See item
primage 204(A)
310A(1) Cricket bats, bladesand balls. ................. 25% + 5% 674% + 10% 25% (bound) 50% N.8.8. 9,190
primage primage




310(B)

329

334F (1)

334Q(1)

334Q(2)

Ex.351B(2)

359D (4)(a)

359D (4)(c)

Women's and children’s boots and shoes.........

Writing and typewriting paper, irrespective of
size or shape, but not ruled or printed in any
way. In rolls less than 13" in width; in sheets
less than 21” in length or less than 163" in width

Strawpaper and strawboard other than corru-
gated, and boards n.e.i., of which the f.0.b.
price per ton is, or is the equivalent of in
sterling:—not more than £7

Strawpaper and strawboard other than corru-
gated and boards, n.e.i., of which the f.o.b.
price per ton is, or is the equivalent of, in
sterling; more than £7, but not more than £17

Valves for pneumatic tyres, other than valves
of the rubber sleeve type...................

Chassis, including lamps but not including rubber
tyres and tubes, storage batteries, shock
absorbers (except steering dampers) bumper:
bars, radiator assemblies sparking plugs and
springs unassembled; viz.; car and car type
capable of use for commercial vehicles......

Chassis including lamps, but not including rubber
tires and tubes, storage batteries, shock
absorbers (excepting steering dampers) bum-
per bars, radiator assemblies, sparking plugs

and springs—assembled.....................

25% + 10%

primage

25% + 5%
primage

30% + 5%

primage

£1.10s. per ton
+5% primage.

£1.10s. per ton
+ 4s. per ton
for each £1 by
which the
f.o.b. price ex-
ceeds £7 sterl-
ing +5% prim-
age.

Free + 10%
primage.

2id. per 1b. +
7d per 1b.

4d. per 1b. +
7d per 1b.

60% + 10%

primage

60%, + 10%

primage

56% + 10%
primage

£4 per ton +
10% primage.

£4 per ton +
10s. 9d. per ton
for each £1 by
which the

f.o.b. price ex-
ceeds £7 sterl-
ing + 10%

primage.

15% + 10%

primage.

5%¢d. per Ib. +
7d per 1b.

7d. per lb. +
7d. per 1b.

20%

25% (bound)

30%

£1.10s.

£1.10s. per ton
+4s. r ton
for each £1 by
which the
f.0.b. price ex-
ceeds £1 sterl-
ing.

Free

3d. per 1b. (¢)

41d. per 1b. (7)

50%

45%

55%

£3.58.

£3.5s. per ton
+9s. 6d. per
ton for each £1
by which the
f.o.b. price ex-
ceeds £7 sterl-
ing.

10%

5d per lb. (%)

63d. per 1b. (7)

10,928

5,414

52,448

14,333(1)

See item
334Q(1)

18,616

1,321,831

6,438

186¢,40

- 48,082

497, 602!

\

230,492(1)

87,230

4,553,387
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STATEMENT 5—ITEMS OF IMPORTANCE TO CANADA IN THE UNITED KINGDOM AND DOMINIONS’' TARIFFS ON WHICH

PREFERENTIAL MARGINS WERE REVISED BY THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—AUSTRALIA

—Concluded.
Previous Rates Geneva Agreement Imports 1939
Item Item
To Canada M.F.N. to Canada M.F.N. From Canada Total
£ £
359D (4)(b) |[Chassis including lamps, but not including rubber
tires and tubes, storage batteries, shock
absorbers (except steering dampers) bumper
bars, radiator assemblies, sparking plugs!
and springs: . Unassembled, viz.—Truck,
omnibus or other commercial vehicle. ..... 23d. per 1b. + 4id per 1b. +°| 2id. per 1b. (8) | 41d. per lb. (8) 565,944 1,737,073
7d. per 1b. d per 1b.
359F (1) Vehicle parts n.e.i., including axels n.e.i., springs
n.e.i., hoods, wheelsn.e.i. and bodiesn.e.i. .. .| 40%+5% prim-| 60%+10% 30% 50% 86,622(1) 494,042(1)
age. primage.
359F (3) Motor vehicle gears imported separately........ 409% and 2s. 3d. | 409% and 2s. 3d. 37%% and 2s. | 37id. ?,’, and 3,306 31,021
per 1b. + 10% | per 'b. + 10% | per lb. 2s. per lb.
primage. primage. y
359F (4) Motor vehicle parts, viz.:—shackle bolts, pins,
and assemblies, spring hangers, kmg pins,
tie rod pins, tie rod ball pins, tie rod ball
B e e 6d. perlb. orif | 1s. 9d. per 1b. | 6d. perlb. orif | 1s. per lb. or if See item 359F (1)
higher 20% + | or if higher | higher 30%. higher 30%.
5% primage. 513% + 10% \
7 primage.
9) Axel shafts and propellor shafts for motor vehicles| 4d. per 1b. or if| 8d. per lb. or if| 4d. per lb. or if| 7d. per lb. or if See item 359 F (1)
higher 25%+| higher 533%-| higher 25% higher 40%
5% primage. 10% primage. | (bound).
359F ((10) U-bolts for motor vehicles. ................cov... 6s. 9d. per cwt.|13s. 9d. ewt. or | 20% 35% See item 359 F (1)
or if higher | if higher 531%
\ 25% + 5% +10%
primage. primage.
350G (2) Bumper bars for motor vehicles................. 30% + 5% 60% + 10% | 30% 40% N.S.S. N.S.8.
primage. primage. bound.
Ex 382 L0/T T TR SRR AR LA R S Free + 10% | 20% 10% Free Free 24,303 170,293
primage.

primage.

(4 4%
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Ex 176F (1) Machines and machinery as specified............ 331% + 5% 65% + 10% | 30% ad val. 50% ad val. 26,735 1,077,533
primage. primage.
Ex 187F(1) Air or gas compressors as specified........... .| 3339% ad val. | 65% ad val. | 224% ad val. 423% ad val., 4,186 4,504
+ 5% + 10% ¢
primage. primage.
176F (2) (a) Refrigerators and parts. ............coooeiuianns 2% + % | %% + 10% | 35% 55% 45,384 140,008
primage. primage. \
380A.(2) CAIPEt SWEEDETS. .. ... e eovneeaenennrnsenennens 50% + 5% | 60% + 10% | 50% 5% + 5% 9,722(1) 26,345(1)
primage. primage. primage.
Unspecified ARDEBtOR; eTUAR Ll B e N TR i L o Free Free + 4% Free Free 95,941 178,494
primage. (bound). 2
Norr

15:
(1) Statistical classification not identical with tariff item. kS

(2) Statistics cover ‘‘Linoleums and Floor Coverings having a surface similar to Linoleums’’. These rates only refer to felt based floor coverings. The whole
item appears in Part II of the Schedule and the Commonwealth rate is bound at 20%.

(%) The former specifications for this item read 12" x 10" and over.:

(4) Specifications changed from 12" x 10" to 12" x ¢". :

(5) Although in Part II of the Schedule the rate to Canada is not bound being included only to establish the maximum margin.

(¢) Previous rate to U.K.—free plus 7d. per Ib. Geneva rate to U.K.-—}d. per1b. No rates are set forth in the Schedule and the Agreement only provides that
the Canadian preferential margin shall not exceed 2d. per lb. The former additional duty of 7d. per lb. is eliminated.

(") Previous rate to U.K.—1%d. per 1b. plus 7d. per lb. Geneva rate to U.K.—13d. per Ib. No rates are set forth in this Schedule. The Agreement only
provides that the Canadian preferential margin shall not exceed 2d. per 1b. The former additional duty of 7d. per lb. is eliminated.

(%) Previous rate to U.K.—free plus 7d. per Ib. Geneva rate to U.K.—jd. per Ib. No rates are set forth in the Schedule and the Agreement only provides that
the Canadian preferential margin shall not exceed 2d. per Ib. The former additional duty of 7d. per 1b. is eliminated.
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STATEMENT 5.—ITEMS OF IMPORTANCE TO CANADA IN THE UNITED KINGDOM AND DOMINIONS’ TARIFFS ON WHICH
PREFERENTIAL MARGINS WERE REVISED BY THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—NEW ZEALAND

Previous Rates

Geneva Agreement

Value of Imports 1939

Item Item
To Canada G T. To Canada M.F.N. From Canada Total
£ £
7 OBIOBE: - il sy oy S bl P e 2 £1 per ton + | £4 per ton + | £1 per ton (!) | £2.10s. per ton 3,099 9,357
surtax of 2249, | surtax of 22}%
of duty (U.K. | of duty.
-£1 per ton).
35(3) Fish, potted and preserved including any liquor,
oil, or sauces, other than by sulphurous acid
process. 14d. per 1b. + | 3d. per 1b. + | 13d. per lb. 23d. per 1b. 2,559 28,113
surtax of 223% surtax of 223%
of duty (1id. | of duty.
per 1b. U.K.)
Ex.100 Chloroform; ethyl ether; other general or local
anaesthetics, as may be approved by Min-
ister; creosote refined; camphor, creosol,
guaiacol, iodoform, menthol, mercuro-
chrome, naphthols, resorcin, thymol, thymol
iodide, and such other substances (excluding
penicillin) specially suited for use as anti-
septics as the Minister may approve......... Free + 3% | 20% + surtax | Free 20% 3,489 17,763
primage (U.K. | of 22}% of duty
—Free + 3%
primage).
121(1) Medicinal preparations (except wines containing
50% proof spirits or less; medicinal prepara-
tions, drugs, druggist sundries and apothe-
caries’ wares, n.e..; also aerated-water|
makers, cordial makers and brewers’ drugs,
chemicals, and other sundries, n.e.i.; chem-
icals, and chemical preparations, n.e.i....... 20% + surtax | 46% + surtax | 20% 40% 4,998 365, 225
of 2219, of duty | of 22§% of duty.
(To U.K.—20

%0)-

144}
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134(2)

Ex.136(7)(a)

' Ex.136(7)(b)

152

237

Ex 239

Ex 239

300(2) (a)

Surgical and dental instruments, also operation|

chairs specially suited for dentists’ use;
dentists’ self-flushing spittoons; opticians’
trial cases, frames, spectacles, plain spectacle
cases, test cards and diagrams, also such
other mstruments and appliances peculiar
to surgeons’, dentists’ or opticians’ use as
may be enumerated by Minister; medicated
remedial plaster or plasties................

Apparel, clothing and hosiery, n.e.i.:—Hosiery,
viz., socks or stockings of artificial silk or
L L Wy TSR T TR TR R SHCHE vl ey el

Apparel, clothing, and hosiery, n.e.i.:—women's
and girls’ outer garments of woven fabries. . .

Elasties, all kinds; plain tape of cotton, linen, or
jute; webbings, all kinds, ete................

Clocks, time-registers, and time detectors......

Sporting, gaming and athletic requisites n.e.i.
including billiard requisites, n.e.d............
Fansy goods And CoNE 0. (5. ik s fad Sl ket e s

PRI o, T e S A

Paper n.e.i. includIng tin foil paper, and gummed
paper n.e.i. In sheets less than 20" x 15" or
SQUIVAIERT I, o oyt it I T Tt

Free + 3%
prlmage ’17

+l3% prlmage)

55% (U.K.—
25

0)-

45% (U.K—
25%).

Free 4+ 3%

primage.

20%-+-surtax of
2219% of duty
U.K.—20%).

20% -+ surtax

of 223% of
duty.

(To U.K.—

20%) ;

Free + 3%
primage.

20% -+ surtax
of 221% of duty
(To U.K.—
20%)

209% + surtax
of 221% of duty.

65%-+surtax of
221% of duty.

65%+surtax of
223% of duty.

10%+-surtax of
221% of duty.

45%+surtax of
2219 of duty.

50% + surtax
of 221% o
duty.

@
25% -+ surtax
of 223% of
duty.
40% + surtax
of 22}% of duty
(M.F.N.—40%)

Free

55% (U.K.—

259%).

4% (U.K—
%).

Free

20%(*)

20%

“«

Free(!)

20%(")

65%

65%

65%

10%

40%

45%

20%

35%

6,129

48,119
5,616

5,360

17,395
8,050(%)
See above

15,726

8,147

110,715
11,707

90, 385

48,635

137,769

77,595

17,321
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STATEMENT 5.—ITEMS OF IMPORTANCE TO CANADA IN THE UNITED KINGDOM AND DOMINIONS’ TARIFFS ON WHICH
PREFERENTIAL MARGINS WERE REVISED BY THE GENEé{AL Al(i}REEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—NEW ZEALAND
— Continue:

Previous Rates

Geneva Agreement

Value of Imports 1939

covers but not ribbons); duplicating maohmes

and apparatus n.e.i. add

ressing machines. .

of 223% of
duty.

Item Item
To Canada G.T: To Canada M.F.N. From Canada Total
£ £
300(2)(d) Paper in rolls n.e.i. (newsprint).................. Free 20% -+ surtax Free (2) Exempt 347,305 447,686
of 223% of from customs
duty. duties which
(M.F.N.— exceed the
20%)- duties on such
products under
the  British
Preferential
Tariff by more
than 10% ad
val. surtax to
M.F.N. coun-
tries eliminin-
ated.
300(2)(e) Paper n.e.. includmf tin-foil paper, gummed
paper n.e.i. in rolls less than 10" wide except
such rolls specially suited for industrial or
similar purposes in such widths not exceeding
2" as the Minister may determine........... 20% + surtax | 409 -+ surtax | 20%(?) 35% N.S.S. N.S.S.
{ of 224% of of 223% of
duty. (To | duty.
U.K.—20%). (M.F.N.—
40%).
Ex 332 Adding and computing machines and instruments,
accounting and bookkeeping machines, com-
bined adding and typing machines, but ex-
cluding ribbons for foregoing machines. . . ... Free + 3% | 26% + surtax | Free + 3%(!) | Free + 3% 8,510 75,002
primage of 223% of primage duty. | primage.
(U.K.—Free). | duty.
Ex 332 Cash registering machines (excluding recording| Free + 3% | 25% + surtax Free(1) 20% 17,948 27,520
paper and ribbons); typewriters (including| primage.

9%1
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6—L068

Ex 338(7)

342

Ex 348

352(a)

P.19
353
Ex (6)(b)

P.19
Ex 354

Machinery or appliances, electrical, viz.:—Mica

Measuring, counting, testing, indicating, and
recording machines, instruments, and appli-
ances, n.e.d., drawing instruments; com-
passes, not being watch-chain pendants. .. ...

Tractor engines and tractors....................

Machinery, machines, machine tools, engines|’

and appliances, as may be approved by the
Minister, peculiar to use in manufacturing,
industrial and similar processes, viz.i—,
Bakers, confectioners, boot-making, brick
and tile-making, flour and grain milling,
gas-making, refrigerating, stone-crushing,
woollen-mill and hosiery mill insulators and
STROBT PUPDINGS o Lt el R e, ) e

Machinery, machines, engines, and other appli-
ances, n.e.i., viz.:—refrigerating units having
a heat removing capacity of less than 6,000
B.T.U. per hour for use in domestic type
cabinets of capacities not exceeding 25 cubit
ft. but not including such units when im-
ported in or with cabinets...................

Artificers’ tools, n.e.i. (not including brushes or
brushware, vices and joiners’ c%amps), and
the following tools, viz.: axes, hatchets, forks,
picks, mattocks, hammers, scythes, sheep-
shears, reaping-hooks, scissors (not less than
10” in length), butchers’ and other cleavers
and choppers, hand-saws, saw-blades, ma-
chine or hand, bill-hooks, brush-hooks and
RedRe-RRIVER . i1 i sps sk o el s pros S DG

Free

Free + 3%
primage.

Free

Free

30% (U.K—
20%)-

Free -+ 3%
primage.

25% - surtax
(()if 221% of

20%+surtax of
2249 of duty.

10%+surtax of
5% of duty

25%+surtax of
221% of duty
(M.F.N .-20%)

50%,+surtax of
224% of duty.

25%+surtax of
2239, of duty.

Free(!)

Free (1)

Free (1)

Free (1)

20% (U.K—
20%).

Free (1)

10%

20%

10%

15%

20%

173%

51,152

13,357(%)

6,484

5,871

6,194

56,243

218,023()

64,116

444,438

297,286
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STATEMENT 5.—ITEMS OF IMPORTANCE TO CANADA IN THE UNITED KINGDOM AND DOMINIONS’ TARIFFS ON WHICH
THE PREFERENTIAL MARGINS WERE REVISED BY THE G%NEZI%A}. AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—NEW ZEALAND
—Conclude

Previous Rates

Geneva Agreement

Value of Imports 1939

Item Item
To Canada G.T. To Canada M.F.N. From Canada Total
£ £
P.20 Hardware, hollowware and ironmongery, n.e.i.,
356(1)(b) manufactured or partly manufactured articles
of metal, or of metal in combination with
any other material, n.e.d.................... 30% (U.K.— | 50%+surtaxof | 30% (4) 50% 5,222 32,231
20%,). 223%, of duty.
P28 Bicycles, tricycles, and the like, vehicles, in-
379 cluding motor eycles, also hubs, spindles, and
other finished or partly ﬁmshed or ma-
chined parts of same, n.e.i., slde-cars for
matorayoten oS IR SR R 10%+-surtax of | 40%-+surtax of ) Exempt from 6,060 9,135
223% of duty. | 224% of duty. duties which
(To U.K.— exceed duties
10%). under the Brit-
ish Preferential
Tariff by more
than 20% ad
val.
P22 Motor vehicles, n.e.i., viz.: (a) Unaseembled or
389 (a) completely knocked down (c.k.d ...| 10%+surtax of | 50%-+surtax of *) 409, 364,276 629,?63
225%. (Can. | 2219, of duty.
content not less
than 75%).
124% +=urtax of
21% (C
cont.ent not ]ess
than 65%). 50%
-+ surtax of
221% (Cana-

dian content
less than 65%,).

8vI
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389(c) Motor vehicles, n.e.i. viz: other kinds except
motor vehicles unassembled or completely
® knocked down; and except chassis for elec-
o~ trically propelled motor vehicles of certain \
-~ iy o U S SRR ST A E I e e 25% + surtax | 60% + surtax O] 50% 5,942 805,777
4 of 92% (Can. | of 223% of -
[t content not duty.
less than 75%)
60% - surtax
of 224% (Can.
content less
than 75%).
404 Ex (2) Timber rough sawn or rough hewn—viz: Red-
wood, Douglas Fir in pieces having a length
of not less than 25 ft. and having a minimum
cross sectional area of not less than 150 sq. ©] (3 : >
e R R o S, e S R S S 7s. 6d. per 100 | 9s. 6d. per 100 | 7s. 6d. per 100 | 8s. 6d. per 100 9,258 9,258
super ft. + sur- | super ft. + sur- | super {t. super ft.
tax of 5% of | tax of 5% of
duty (U.K.— | duty.
7s. 6d. per 100
super ft.)
404 Ex (3) | Timber rough sawn or rough hewn, n.e.i. viz:
Douglas Fir, other than in pieces having a
length of not less than 25 ft. and having a
minimum cross sectional area of not less than (©) (©)
380 BT nehes o o e i Sl 9s. 6d. per 100 | 11s. 6d. per 100 | 9s. 6d. per 100 | 10s. 6d. per 100 32,072 32,072
super ft. 4+ sur- | super ft. + sur- | super ft. super ft.
tax of 5% of | tax of 5% of
duty. (U.K. | duty.
9s. 6d. per 100
; super ft.)
CUTE Dl b B R R R e NPT b e S e i 20% + surtax | 45% -+ surtax | 20%(%) 35% 19,762(2) 100,499(2)
of 223% of of 221% of
duty. duty.
414(2) Woodenware, and turnery, n.e.i., saddle-trees,
wooden tackle-blocks...........cocovvinayan 30% (U.K.— | 50% -+ surtax | 30% (U.K.— | 50% 9,343 28,224
20%). of 223% of 20%).
duty.
FoorNores:

(1) Rate not set out in Schedule XIII.
(2) Statistical classification not identical with tariff item.
(*) No rates specified. Preference to be reduced proportionately to any reduction in the import excise tax payable on Canadian timber imported into the U.S.A.

and to be eliminated when, and for as long as, such import tax ceases to apply.

(4) Not mentioned in Schedule.

(U.S.A. import tax has been reduced by one-half.)
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STATEMENT 5.—ITEMS OF IMPORTANCE TO CANADA IN THE UNITED KINGDOM AND DOMINIONS’ TARIFFS ON WHICH THE PREFER-

ENTIAL MARGINS WERE REVISED BY THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—UNION OF SOUTH AFRICA

Previous Rates Geneva Agreement Value of Imports 1939
Item Item
To Canada M.F.N. To Canada M.F.N. From Canada Total
£ £
15(a) (i) Whost 50 grain. ;.. 7o oo O e e R e 26s. 6d. per | 2s. 8d. per 100 | Not fixed (1) Not fixed (1) 3,569 31,997
100 1bs. Ibs.
15(a) (ii) Wheat ground or otherwise prepared............ fg 4d. per 100 lsls) 8d. per 100 | Not fixed (1) Not fixed () 2,061 6,183
. S. S.
70 Hoslery aookse o F i et T e e 10% 16% ad gl e SR T, o b PG Stk s o N.S.S. N.S.S.
279(a) (i) Softwood: unmanufactured...................... Free 9s. per 100 cu. | Free 4s. 6d. per(?) 51,985 851,187
ft. 100 cu. ft.
Nores:

(1) Preference to be eliminated.
(2) Preference reduced.
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BANKING AND COMMERCE 151

APPENDIX C

STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-
) FAVOURED-NATION RATES
IN EFFECT ON JULY 1, 1939 AND ON JANUARY 1, 1948

AND

IMPORTS FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE
PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I OF SCHEDULE V TO THE
GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE

W. J. CALLAGHAN,
Commussitoner of Tariff.

STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
NATION RATES IN EFFECT ON JULY 1, 1939, AND ON JANUARY 1, 1948, IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I

OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE

Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
B.P. M.F.N. B.P. M.F.N. 1939 1946
$ $
1 Free Free Free Free 201,047 767,171
5 (a) Free 2 cts. 1b. Free 1} ets. 1b. 70 | (a) 2,401
ex (c) Free 20 p.c. Free 7% p.c. (b) 136,571 | (b) 834,737
6 Free 1 ct. lb. Free 1 ct. 1b. » >
(a) 4 cts. 1b. 6 cts. 1b. 4 cts. 1b. 3 cts. 1b. 8,859 1,097
ex(a) 4 cts. 1b. 4 cts. 1b. 4 cts. 1b. 1} cts. 1b. but, 13,737 »
not less than
7% p.c.
ex(c) 2 cts. 1b. 1} cts. 1b. 2 cts. 1b. 1} cts. 1b. 2,464,465 131,392
ex 8 15 p.c. 30 p.c. 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 47,709 | (¢c) 1,949
ex 8 15 p.c. 24 p.c. 15 p.c. 22} p.c. 11,556 *
ex 8 15 p.c. 24 p.c. 15 p.c. 10 p.c. > -
8a 10 p.c. 30 p.c. 10 p.c. 30 p.c. 233,362 672, 606
9 12} p.c. 15 p.c. 124 p.c. 15 p.c. 119,511 | (a)1,210,548
9d Free 4 cts. 1b. Free 2 cts. 1b. 9,001 14,081
10 (d) Free 1% cts. 1b. Free 1% ets. 1b. 399,911 16,293
(b) Free 3 cts. 1b. Free 2 cts. 1b. 43,442 4,593
12 Free Free Free Free 67 7,427
12a Free 15 p.c. Free 15 p.c. 1,070,768 1,401,027
14 Free 17% p.c. Free 17§ p.c. 40,730 703,715

* Not separately recorded.

(a) Includes goats, hogs, sheep and lambs, n.o.p.

(b) Includes menageries, horses and cattle, Item 701.
(c¢) Includes canned pork and canned hams.

(d) Includes imports of quails, etc., Item 9a.




152 STANDING COMMITTEE

STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
NATION RATES IN EFFECTONJULY 1,1939, AND ONJANUARY 1, 1948, AND IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
B M.F.N. B.P. M.F.N. 1939 1946
$ S
1515 (i) Free 18 p.c. 15 p.c. Free
., 49,913 199, 630
(i1) 15 p.c. 18 p.c. 15 p.c. 15 p.c.
ex 15 15 p.c. 18 p.c. 15 p.c. 15 p.c. . 1
ex 711
16 2 cts. doz. 5 cts. doz. 2 cts. doz. 3% cts. doz. 23,573 70,332
16b 10 p.c. 25 p.c. 10 p.c. 25 p.c. 72,758 4,623
17 3 cts. 1b. 7 cts. or 3 cts. 1b. 3% cts. 1b. 377,867 617,614
5-95 cts. 1b. ;
18 8 cts. 1b. 12 cts. 1b. 8 cts. 1b. 12 cts. 1b. 1,656 5,109
19 73 p.c. 10 p.c. 7} p.c. 10 p.c. * .
20 3 cts. 1b. 4 cts. 1b. 3 cts. 1b. 3 cts. 1b. 1,697 5,311
20a Free 3 cts. 1b. Free 2% ets. 1b. 519,051 473
21 4 cts. 1b. 4} cts. 1b. 4 cts. 1b. 4 cts. 1b. 8,983 11,798
22 22% p.c. or 27% p.c. or
2 cts. 1b. 24 cts. 1b. 223 p.c. 22% p.c. 216,159 4,884
23 121 p.c. and | 27} p.c. and | 10 p.c. and  |-20 p.c. and 122,117 56,292
23 cts. 1b. 2% cts. 1b. 2% cts. 1b. 23 cts. 1b.
24 2% ets. 1bs. 3 cts. 1b. 2% cts. 1b. 2% cts. 1b. 10 i
25 3 cts. 1b. 5 cts. 1b. 3 cts. 1b. 3 cts. 1b. 16,801 (a) 18,986
28 Free; 3 cts. 1b.; .
29 2% cts. 1b. and| 3ets.lb.and | Free 2 cts. 1b. 4,154,63|1 15,571,933
7% p.c. 10 p.c.
28a, 4 cts. 1b.; 8 cts. 1b.;
29a 10 cts. 1b. 10 cts. 1b. 4 cts. 1b. 6 cts. 1b. 10,090, 837 10,207,799
30 Pepper Free 10 p.c. Free 5 p.c. v107.279 321,450
Cloves Free 12% p.c. Free 10 p.c. 41,943 25,591
30 Cinna-
mon Free 12} p.c. Free 12} p.c. e >
Ginger | Free 12% p.c. Free 12} p.c. 36,957 64,375
Spices,
n.0.p. Free 12} p.c. Free 12} p.c. (b) 111,668 | (b) 208,591
32 Free 17} p.c. Free 15 p.c. 44,428 49,948
34 17} p.c. 25 p.c. 12} p.c. 20 p.c. 330,892 175,822
35 6 cts. 1b. 10 cts. 1b. 6 cts. 1b. 10 cts. 1b. 237,565 2,771,434
39 (i) 1 ct. 1b. 2 cts. 1b. 1 ct. 1b. 1} cts. 1b. 134,570 08,383
(ii) 1 ct. 1b. 1} cts. 1b. 1 ct. lb. 1 ct. Ib. 77,074 802,128

* Not separately recorded.
(a) Includes imports under Item 24,
(b) Includes cinnamon, unground.
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- STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
- NATION RATESIN EFFECT ONJULY 1, 1939, AND ON JANUARY 1, 1948, AND IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
- Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
RBiPs M.F.N. BB M.F.N. 1939 1946

$ $
39 (i) ct.lb. | licts.lb. |et.lb. 14 cts. Ib. 90,053 211,28
(ii) ct. Ib. 1} cts. 1b. § ct. 1b. 1 ct. Ib. 9,233 15,896
39¢ % ct. 1b. 1ct. Ib. % ct. 1b, 1 ct. Ib. 151,138 576,919
n Free 6% cts. per | Free 3jctsper  (a)| 216,171 | (a) 361,205

100 Ibs. 100 1bs.
42 Free 4 cts. per Free 3 cts. per 193,233 627,932
100 1bs. 100 1bs.

43 23 cts. 1b. 3% cts. 1b. 25 cts. 1b. 33 cts. 1b. 1,825 6,932
43a 2% cts. 1b. 5 cts. 1b. 2§ cts. 1b. 5 cts. 1b. (b)] 16,269 | (b) 11,513
45 (1) 20 p.c. 25 p.c. 20 p.c. 20 p.c. 38,762 102,814
(i) 20 p.c. 25 p.c. 20 p.c. 20 p.c. 79,637 99,486
46 15 p.c. 15 p.c. 15 p.c. 15 p.c. 26,152 551,487

~ 47 (a) Castor| Free 1} cts. 1b. Free Free > 4
(b) Soya | Free Free Free Free 144,329 3,797,359

(c) Lima | Free 1 ct. Ib, Free % ct. 1b. % .

47 (d) Kid-

ST Bl P }3 oo ol hcz'f,;})ib. © | 1280 © 428,034
48 Free % ct. 1b. Free % ct. 1b, 176,719 563,170
52 Free 15 cts. bu. Free 7% cts. bu. 249 ((d) 14,033
53 Free 50 ets. bbl. Free 50 cts. bbl. 63,241 161, 580
55 Free 10 cts. bu. Free 8 cts. bu. 4,571,474 8,634,491
56 Free 8 cts. bu. Free 4 cts. bu. 284,292 1,234
58 Free 9 cts. bu. Free 6 cts. bu. 23 -

61 Free 50 cts. bbl. Free 50 ets. bbl. 306,071 189
62 Free Free Free Free 1,004,082 1,658,527
63 50 ets. per 70 cts. per 50 cts. per 70 cts. per 479,063 139,667
100 1bs. 100 lbs, 100 1bs. 100 1bs.
64 174 p.c. 25 p.c. 12} p.c. 17} p.c. 74,560 46,102
65 12} p.c. 22% p.c. 12 p.c. 173 p.c. 168, 982 375,017
65a Free 73 p.c. Free 7% p.c. 1,252 5,247
66 20 p.c 30 p.c. 20 p.c. 25 p.c. 26,987 243,492
66a Free 30 p.c. Free 20 p.c. 183,999 55,675
69 Free $1.75 per ton | Free 50 cts. per 973 |(e) 22,874
* Not separately recorded.

(a) Value of bags, etc. not included.

(b) Does not include dried milk for feeds.

(c) Includes Castor, Lima, Madagascar and red kidney beans.
(d) Includes buckwheat and rye.
(e) Includes hay.




154 STANDING COMMITTEE

STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED
NATION RATES IN EFFECT ONJULY 1, 1939, AND ONJANUARY 1, 1948, AND IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I-
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
B.P. M.F.N. BP; M.F.N. 1939 1946
$ $
69b Free $1.75 per ton | Free 511;(.);5 per ton 5,015
Tla Free 1 ct. per Ib. | Free 3 ct. 1b. 227,300 32,041
71b Free 2% cts. 1b. Free 2cts.1b. - 13,378 145,667
72 5 p.c. 9 p.c. 5 p.c. 73 p.c. : 17,129 57,954
72d 5 p.c. 9 p.c. 5 p.c. 7% p.c. 13,343 20,442
73e 15 p.c. 27 p.c. 15 p.c. 22} p.c. 1,370 40,480
73 5 p.c. 9 p.c. 5 p.c. 73 p.c. 183,095 | (a) 358,054
ex. 73 5 p.c. Free 5 p.c. Free . *
ex Tob gps e RS e . .
ex 276b Free 10 p.c. Free
74 (i) Free 2 ets. 1b. Free 2 cts. 1b.
(i1) Free 3 cts. 1b. Free 2 cts. 1b. 59,156 -
(iii) Free 4 cts. 1b. Free 2 cts. 1b.
75 (i) Free 3 cts. 1b. Free 2 cts. 1b. 68,475 #
(i) Free 5 ets. 1b. Free 4 cts. 1b. }
76 (i) Free 10 (}ts. 1b. Free 7% cts. 1b. ]
(ii) Free 15 cts. 1b. Free 12} cts. 1b. 53,742 -
(ii1) Free 20 cts. 1b. Free 15 cts. lb. J
76a Free 5 ets. 1b. Free 2} ets. 1b. 30,966 q
76b 15 p.c. - 25p.c. 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 33,281 (b) 620,545
76d 5 p.c. 9 p.c. 5 p.c. 73 p.c. 3 92,670 71,662
77b Free 10 p.c. Free 5 p.c. 192,570 242,937
78 15 p.c. 20% p.c. 15 p.c. 17% p.c. 27,527 55,565
79 Free 15 p.c. Free 12} p.c. 541,663 1,031,954
(133 p.c.)
ex 79b Free 25 p.c. Free 12} p.c. 128,818 307,866
81 (a) Free 6 cts. ea. Free 6 cts. ea. 12,204 ’ 31,249
(3 cts. ea.) ;
(b) Free 8 cts. ea. Free 8 cts. ea. 13,253 37,644
(3 cts. ea.)
(c) Free 5 cts. ea. Free 5 cts. ea. 7,167 12,671

* Not separately recorded.

(a) Includes grass seed onl 5

(b) Covers ‘“Garden, field, root and other seeds, n.o.p."’; apparently includes 1946 imports under items
73, 74, 75, 76, 76a and 76b.
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STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
NATION RATESIN EFFECT ON JULY 1, 1939, AND ON JANUARY 1, 1948, AND IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
SR, M.F.N. B.P.: M.F.N. 1939 1946
$ $
82 (a) Free 2 cts. ea. Free 2 cts. ea. 5,005 *
(b) Free 1 ct. ea. Free 1 ct. ea. 1,372 (a) 34,601
(9/10 ct. ea.)
(d) 1} cts. ea. 3 cts. ea. 1} cts. ea. 3 cts. ea. 30,599 226,063
(e) 12§ p.c. 175 p.c. 12} p.c. 123 p.c. 78,820 162,919
ex (e) 12} p.c. Free 12% p.c. Free * b
83 (a) Free Free Aug. 1 | Free Free Aug. 1 707,537 6,829,615
to June 14; to June 14;
otherwise otherwise
373 cts. per 37} cts. per
100 1bs. 100 Ibs.
(e) Free Free Free Free 180,059 609, 285
84 (a) Free 30 p.c. Free 15 p.c. ) 227,590 867,209
(b) Free 30 p.c. Free 1 et. 1b.
(1% cts. 1b. (40 wks.);
52 wks.) otherwise
10 p.c.
85 (a) Free 10 p.c. Free 3% cts. lb. (b) 13,786 (b) 23,945
(4-7/10 cts. (52 wks.);
1b., 52 wks.) otherwise
10 p.c.
(b) Free Dried 15} p.c.| Free 15 p.c. (c) 36,268 (c) 38,546
Canned
20/% p.c.
Preserved
27% p.c.
(e) Free 273 p.c. Free 10 p.c. & »
87 (a) Free 10 p.c. Free 3} cts. 1b. 103,501 194,252
(5 cts. 1b. (8 wks.);
10 wks.) otherwise
10 p.c.
(b) Free 10 p.c. Free 1} cts. Ib. 299,514 578,612
(1-9 cts., (14 wks.);
14 wks.) otherwise
10 p.c.
(c) Free 10 p.c. - Free 10 p.c. . 5
87 (d) Free * 10 p.c. Free 9/10 ct. 1b. 285,376 1,161,053
(0-9 ct. (26 wks.);
26 wks.) otherwise
10 p.c.
(e) Free 10 p.c. Free 1 ct. 1b. 432,772 1,757,124
(Carrots (26 wks.)
1ect. b otherwise
26 wks; 10 p.c.
Beets
1-2 cts. 1b
26 wks.)

* Not separately recorded.

(a) Includes bushes, roots and vi d by Item 82 , (b d (e).
(b) Includes truffles, fresh. R e D) aad (o)
{(c) Includes truffles, canned.
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STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
NATION RATES IN EFFECT ON JULY 1, 1939, AND ON JANUARY 1, 1948, IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

STANDING COMMITTEE

3 Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
B.P. M.F.N. B.P. M.F.N. 1939 1946
8 $
(69 Free 10 p.c. Free $ et. 1b. 141,394 461,913
(Cauliflower (20 wks.);
1-8 cts. 1b., otherwise
20 wks.) 10 p.c.
() Free Free Free Free . L
(g) Free 10 p.c. Free 1 ct. 1b. 573,693 2,051,860
(1-1 cts. 1b. (24 wks.)
26 wks.) otherwise
10 p.c.
(h) Free 10 p.c. Free 2% cts. 1b. 95,823 360,615
(2-4 cts. 1b. (12 wks.);
20 wks.) otherwise
10 p.c.
@) Free 10 p.c. Free 1 ct. 1b. 923,215 2,670,736
(1-1 ets. 1b. (18 wks.);
18 wks.) otherwise
10 p.c.
6)) Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. . .
87 (k) Free 10 p.c. Free 2 cts. 1b. 182,840 235,577
(2:6 cts. 1b. (12 wks.)
12 wks.) otherwise
10 p.c.
4)) Free 10 p.c. Free % ct. 1b. i 9
(1-2 cts. 1b. (10 wks.)
5 wks.) otherwise
10 p.c.
(m) Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 619,322 359, 558
(n) Free 10 p.c. but | Free 11 cts. Ib. 1,449,951 6,684,011
not less than (32 wks.)
1% cts. 1b. otherwise
10 p.c.
(o) Water-| Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c.
cress
En- Free Free Free Free
dive (a) 314,214 | (a) 902,349
(®) Free Free Free Free
N.o.p.| Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c.
89 (a) Free 1} cts. 1b. Free 1} cts. 1b. 53,309 2,424
ex (b) Free 1} ets. 1b. Free 1} cts. lb. 2,048 129
(e) Free 1} cts. 1b. Free 1} cts. 1b. 2,026 31
(d) Free 20 p.c. Free 15 p.c. 106,578 76,470
90a 15 p.c. 22} p.c. 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 109,330 149,731
90b 15 p.c. 32} p.c. 15 p.c. 22} p.c. 104,807 172,033
90c 12} p.c. 27% p.c. 12} p.c. 20 p.c. 284, 500 338, 667
90e 15 p.c. 32% p.c. 15 p.c. 20 p.c. . 261,000

* Not separately recorded.
(a) Includes fresh vegetables under sub-items (¢), (j), (1) and (o).
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STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
NATION RATES IN EFFECTON JULY 1, 1939, AND ON JANUARY 1, 1948, AND IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number -
BT, M.F.N. B.P; M.F.N, 1939 1946
$ $
92(a) Free 10 p.c. Free 1 et. 1b. (a) 97,603 | (a) 461,006
(2. cts. lb (10 wks.)
52 wks.) otherwise
10 p.c.
(b) Free 10 p.c. Free 2cts. 1b. 128,514 237,157
(4 cts. 1b (7 wks.)
7 wks.) otherwise
. 10 p.c.
(e) Free 10 p.c. but Free 1ct.1b. 227,792 530,539
not less than (12 wks.)
1% cts. 1b. . otherwise
10 p.c.
(d) Free 10 p.c. Free 1} cts. 1b. 262,740 1,277,760
(1-8 cts. 1b. (9 wks.)
9 wks.) otherwise
10 p.c.
(e) Free 10 p.c. Free 1ct.1b. 636,143 1,527,524
(1-4 cts. 1b. (15 wks.)
15 wks.) otherwise
10 p.c.
92 (f) Free 10 p.c. Free 1 et.1b. " 309,001 1,449,831
(Plums 1-2 (10 wks.)
cts. 1b. 10 otherwise
wks.; prunes, 10 p.c.
1-2 cts. 1b.
8 wks.)
) at Free 10p.c. Free 1-3/5 cts. 1b.
(Straw- (2-4 cts. 1lb. (6 wks.)
berries) 6 wks.) otherwise
wise 10 p.c.
(b) 512,891 | (b) 347,934
(Rasp- Free 10 p.c. Free 2 cts. 1b.
berries (2-9 cts. 1b. (6 wks.)
and logan 6 wks.) otherwise
berries) 10 p.c.
(h) Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. b b
i) Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. ~ -
93 Free 15 p.c. Free Free May 20 226,208 403,892
(1-2 ets. 1b. to July 12,
52 wks.) inc.; § ct. 1b.
July 13 to
May 19, inc.
94 (a) Free 1ct. 1b. Free Free
(b) Free 1 ct. 1b. Free 1 ct. 1b.
(15 wks.) 1,072,762 5,490,172
otherwise
10 p.c.
95 Free 10 p.c. Free 11 cts. 1b. 227,385 798,988
(1+6 cts. 1b. (8 wks.)
8 wks.) otherwise 10
p.c.
* Not separately recorded.

(a) Includes quinces, passion fruit and nectarines,
(b) Includes edible berries, n.o.p.
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STANDING COMMITTEE

STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
NATION RATES IN EFFECT ON JULY 1,1939, AND ON JANUARY 1, 1948, AND IMPORTS
TOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number -
B M.F.N. B, M.F.N. 1939 1946
$ $
95a Free 2 cts. ea. Free 2 cts. ea. 126, 861 827,503
96 Free 10 p.c. Free Free 28,716 48,370
Free
97 Free Free Free Free 268,893 1,435,502
98 Free 50 cts. stem | Free 50 cts. stem 2,398,173 20,118,735
or bunch or bunch
99a Free 1 ct. 1b. Free Free 780,673 3,117,915
99b Free 15 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 101, 149 136,535
99¢ (i) Free 4 cts. 1b. Free 3 cts. 1b. 3,205,703 3,902,721
(i) Free 4 cts. 1b. Free 4 cts. 1b. 473,972 330,836
99d Free 3 ct. 1b. Free % ct. 1b. 248,199 487,268
99%e 1 ct. Ib. 1-575 cts. 1b. | 1 ct. 1b. 1} cts. 1b. 289,391 2,298,673
99f Free % ect. Ib. Free 3 ct. Ib. 219,194 2,149,429
99g Free 223 p.c. Free 15 p.c. 404,062 1,493,839
{100 Free 1 et. 1b. Free Free 1,269,902 5,008, 366
100a 3 ct. 1b. 1 ct. 1b.
101 Free Free Jan. to| Free Free 6,212,292 26,703,182
July; 35 cts. J
cu. ft. Au-
gust to De-
cember.
101a Free : Free Free Free 1,348,245 2,886,518
103 $2.50 gal. and| $2.50 gal. and| $2.50 gal. and| $2.50 gal. and 37 o
60 p.c. 60 p.c. 60 p.c. 30 p.c.
104 $10.00 gal. $10.00 gal. $10.00 gal. $5.00 gal. and - s
and 30 p.c. and 30 p.c. and 30 p.c. | 30 p.c.
104a 1} cts. 1b. 21 cts. Ib. 1} cts. 1b. 1} cts. 1b. (a) 108,161 | (a) 1,550,582
105 (i) 1} cts. 1b. 2% cts. 1b. 1} cts. 1b. 2 cts. 1b. } » g
(ii) 1} cts. 1b. 2% cts. 1b. 13 cts. 1b. 2 cts. 1b.
ex 105b 10 p.c. 10 p.c. 10 p.c. 10 p.c.
ex 105¢ 20 p.c. 10 p.c. 20 p.c. 10 pec. }( b) 306,107 | (b)1,495,908
105¢ 20 p.c. 323 p.c. 20 p.c. 25 p.c. 34,458 142, 507
105d 2 cts. 1b. 33 cts. 1b. 1} cts. 1b. 31 cts. 1b. 73,839 103,881
105e 20 p.c. 31% p.c. 20 p.c. 27% p.c. 39,250 396,416
106(a) 2 cts. 1b. 3% cts. 1b. 2 cts. 1b, 2} cts. 1b.
195,726 65,561
(a) 2 cts. 1b. 3 cts. 1b. 2 cts. 1b. 2 cts. 1b.
(b) 1 ct. 1b. 3 cts. 1b. 1 ct. 1b. 2 cts. 1b. 778,810 180,916
(e) 2 cts. 1b. 3 cts. 1b. 2 cts. 1b. 1 ct. Ib. 133,979 46,128

* Not separately recorded.

(a) Includes imports under Item 105 (i) and (ii).
(b) Includes olives not bottled.
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STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
NATION RATES IN EFFECT ON JULY 1, 1939, AND ON JANUARY 1, 1948, AND IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

Tariff Item %:?ﬁ?l;n l],sg)%%t oﬁ:ﬁ:;?yEl‘?%gS Eﬁpé);flsngti)g
Number
BiP: M.F.N. B.P, M.F.N. 1939 1946
$ $
108 2 ets. 1b. 1} cts. 1b. 2 cts. 1b. 1} ctg. Ib. 4,234 700,277
Bt P SRR vl ey o O e Nissiad Mg
3 cts. 1b. 3 cts. lb. 3 cts. 1b. 1 ct. 1b. e i
109a Free 1 ct. Ib. Free Free 985,867 7,941,621
110 ?80 ‘cts. per | $1.00 per 100 | Free ?80 .cts. per 176,515 336,074
111 Free 75 cts. per
100. s
113 Scts.lb. | G6ets.lb. | 2cts.lb. | 3ets. b, 39,778 349,528 {
113a Free 2 ct. 1b. Free Free 2,765,484 t%
ex 114 3 cts. 1b. 3 cts. 1b. 3 cts. 1b. Free (a) 45,229 1;
115 3 ct. Ib. } ct. Ib. } ct. 1b. 3 ct. Ib. 680,236 2,678,980 4
116 bet. Ib, 1ct. Ib. }et. Ib, }et. Ib. 17,096 . )
117 Free Free Free Free 156,420 88,727 Vu
120 (a) 35 cts. box 4 cts. box 33 cts. box 3% cts. box : 1,545 » {
(b) 2} ots. box | 3% cts. box | 2} ets. box | 3 cts. box 7,409 *
(c) 2 cts. box 2% cts. box 2 cts. box 2 cts. box 3,642 »
(d) 1} ets. box 1% cts. box 1} cts. Abox 1} cts. box 344,870 | (b) 172,826 |
122 20 p.c. 30 p.c. 15 p.c. 25 p.c. 11,149 2,913
(i) 17% p.c. 27% p.c. 174 p.c. 17} p.c. 13,584 121
(ii) 173 p.c. 27% p.c. 17} p.c. 225 p.c. 38,093 46,568
(iii) 174 p.c. 27% p.c. 17% p.c. 223 p.c. 5,841 4,524
@iv) 174 p.c. 273 p.c. 17% p.c. 273 p.c. 8,225 6,903
(v) 17} p.c. 273 p.c. 17} p.c. 22} p.c. 53,700 21,370
ex 123a 173 p.c. 15 p.c. 173 p.c. 15 p.c. (c) 392,393 | (c) 21,403
124 .7 cts. gal. 5 cts. gal. 7 cts. gal. 5 cts. gal. 195, 694 484,261
128 17} p.c. 15 p.c. 17% p.c. 15 p.c. 6,064 631
ex 133 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 15 p.c. Free 66, 668 328,390
ex 134 Various Various No No 20, 599, 682 32,415,641
ox 135b pra Nt 2 o
139 % ct. 1b. 1} cts. 1b. i ct. Ib. 1} cts. 1b. 64,981 2,046, 637
141 % ct. Ib. and | % ct. Ib. and | 15 p.c. 25 p.c. 445,364 1,312,115
15 p.c. 30 p.c.
142 (a) (i) | 20 ets. b, 40 cts. 1b. 20 cts. 1b. 30 cts. Ib. 205,260 308,118
(1) | 30 cts. Ib. 60 cts. 1b. 30 cts. b, 40 cts. 1b. 883 11 b et ies

* Not separately recorded.

(a) Includes ivory nuts.

(b) Includes imports under Items 120 (a), (b) and (c).

(c) Includes crabs and clams in sealed containers.
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STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
NATION RATESIN EFFECT ONJULY 1,1939, AND ONJANUARY 1, 1948, AND IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

STANDING COMMITTEE

Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
B. P M.F.N. B:P. M.F.N. 1939 1946
$ $
(b) (1) 40 cts. 1b. 40 cts. 1b. 40 cts. 1b. 20 cts. 1b. 1,581,800 1,685,733
(ii) 60 cts. 1b. 60 cts. 1b. 60 cts. 1b. 30 cts. 1b. 103,258 928, 565
143 $3-901b. and | $3-901b. and | $3-901b. and | $1:751b. and 35,889 61,283
25 p.c. 25 p.c. 25 p.c. 15 p.c.
143a $3.50 per 1b. | $3.00 per 1b. | $2.00 per 1b. | $2.00 per 1b. 38,844 37,106
and 15 p.c. | and 15p.c. and 15 p.c.
plus $2.00 per | plus $2.00 per
thousand. thousand.
144 80 cts. 1b. 95 cts. 1b. 80 cts. 1b. 80 cts. 1b. 318,877 334,584
plus plus
15 cts. 1b. 15 cts. 1b.
145 75 cts. 1b. 90 cts. 1b. 75 cts. 1b. 90 cts. 1b. 90, 552
plus plus
. 15 cts. 1b. 15 cts. 1b.
except snuff. | except snuff.
146 25 cts. gal. 35 cts. gal. 25 cts. gal. 35 cts. gal. 62 Ly
plus plus
30 cts. gal. 30 ets. gal.
147 15 cts. gal. 50 cts. gal. 15 cts. gal. 50 cts. gal. 123,502 | (a) 12,309
plus plus
30 cts. gal. 30 cts. gal.
152 (i) Lime | 15 p.c. 25 p.c. 15 p.c. 10 p.c.
Orange 15 p.c. 25 p.c. 15p.c. 10 p.c.
Lemon | 15 p.c. 25 p.c. 15 p.c. 10 p.c.
Passion
fruit 15 p.c. 25 p.c. 15 p.c. 10 p.c. (b)1,006,134 | (¢) 7,688,377
Pineapple| 15 p.c. 15 p.c. 15 p.c. 10 p.c.
Grape-
fruit 15 p.c. 15 p.c. 15 p.c. 15 p.c.
N.o.p. | 15 p.c. 15 p.c. 15 p.e. 10 p.c.
(ii) 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 15 p.c. 10 p.c. * ”
152a 12} p.c. 17} p.c. Free 5 p.c. 2,313 27,920
ex 156 (i) $5.00 gal. $6.00 gal. $4.50 gal. $5.00 gal. 4,344,154 4,766,923
plus plus .
$7.00 gal. $7.00 gal.
(ii) $5.00 gal. $10.00 gal. $4.50 gal. $5.00 gal. 216,249 254,371
plus plus
$7.00 gal. $7.00 gal.
ex 156 (iii) $5.00 gal. $7.00 gal. $4.50 gal. $6.00 gal. 425,496 3,804,577
plus plus
$7.00 gal. $7.00 gal.
(iv) $5.00 gal. 1$5.00 gal. $4.00 gal $4.00 gal. 532,952 1,123,453
plus plus
$7.00 gal $7.00 gal.

* Not separately recorded.

(a) Includes imports under Item 146.
(b) Includes fruit syrups.
(¢) Includes fruit syrups and concentrated fruit juices.
T $10.00 on other than Cognac and Armagnac.
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161

N RATES IN EFFECT ON JULY 1, 1939, AND ON JANUARY 1, 1948, IMPORTS

BTAgE%%NT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-

FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
BP; M.F.N. BP M.F.N. 1939 1946
¥ $ $
) $5.00 gal. $6.00 gal. $4.50 gal $4.50 gal. (a) 84,046 | (a) 230,450
plus plus
$7.00 gal $7.00 gal.
ex 156 $2.00 gal. $10.00 gal. $2.00 gal $5.00 gal. . ¥
156b
159 $5.00 gal. & | $10.00 gal. & | $3.00 gal. & | $5.00 gal. & 23,869 33,749
30 p.c. 30 p.c. 0 p.c. 30 p.c.
160 (i)(a) 30 p.c. 60 p.c. 30 p.c 30 p.c. () 56,922 | (b) 99,983
(b) $5.00 gal. $5.00 gal. & | $5.00 gal $5.00 gal. & | (¢) 52,269 | (c) 91,272
40 p.c. 30 p.c.
(ii) (a) 30 p.c. 60 p.c. 30 p.c. 45 p.c. - *
(b) £5.00 gal. $5.00 gal. & | $5.00 gal. $5.00 gal. & 2 .
40 p.c. 40 p.c.
ex 162 80 p.c. 80 p.c. 80 p.c. plus | 20 cts. per 44,813 237
42% cts. gal. | gal. when 28
p.c. or less
proof, plus
42% cts. per
gal,
ex 163 55 cts. gal. 35 cts.per gal.| 55 ects. per | 20 cts. per 650, 721° 2,447,829
when not gal.; plus 42} | gal. up to 24
more than | cts. per gal. | p.c. proof;
23 p.c. proof, plus 42} cts.
if of fresh per gal.
grape, non-
sparkling; 55
cts. per gal,
when 24 p.c.
proof, if of
fresh grape,
non-spark-
ling;55¢ts per
gal. on other
non-spark-
ling wines.
(Sacrament~
al wines 35
cts. per gal.)
165 (a) qts. | $9.30 perdoz.| $7.44 per doz.|$9.30 per doz. | $5.00 per doz
plus plus
$1.75 per gal. | $1.75 per gal
(b) pts. | $4.65 per doz.| $3.72 per doz.| $4.65 per doz.|$2.50 per doz,
plus plus
$1.75 per gal. | $1.75 per gal.
118,974 250, 592
(c) § pts. | $2.32 per doz.| $1.86 perdoz.| $2.32eprdoz.| $1.25 per doz
plus plus
$1.75 per gal. | $1.75 per gal.
(d) large | $4.50 per gal. | $3.60 per gal. | $4.50 per gal. | $2.50 ;l)er gal.

* Not separately recorded.
(a; Includes mescal, angostura bitters, ete.
éb Includes Item 160 (ii) (a).
¢) Includes Item 160 (ii) (b).

plus
$1.75 per gal.

plus
$1.75 per gal.

R S
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STATEMENT SHOWING THE- BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
" NATION RATESIN EFFECT ON JULY 1, 1939, AND ONJANUARY 1, 1948, AND IMPOR'
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I

- OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

STANDING COMMITTEE

RTS

Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Ttem on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
B.P. M.F.N. BiP: M.F.N. 1939 1946
$ $
ex 167 1/3 ct. 1b. 2/5 ct. 1b. 1/3 et. 1b. 1/3 et. 1b. 2,513 2,134,709
168 25 p.c. 5cts.1b.and | 20 p.c. 25 p.c. and 48,127 | (a) 109,366
30 p.c. 2 cts. 1b.
168a 25 p.c. 5cts.1b.and | 20 p.c. 25 p.c. * *
30 p.c.
169 Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 26,474 473,177
ex 169
ex 184a
ex 184b Free Free Free Free ~ *
ex 184¢
ex 184d
170 Free Free Free Free 131,902 296,709
171 Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 2,030, 844 5,148,011
ex 172 Free Free Free Free ¥ *
ex 172 Free . Free Free Free (b) 506,803 | (b) 1,393,078
178 (ii) 5 cts. 1b. 12} cts. 1b. | 5cts. 1b 10 ects. lb. 1,464,511 1,855,579
but not less but not less
than 273 p.c. than 25 p.c.
ex (ii) 5 cts. 1b. Free 5 cts. 1b. Free = 5
179 223 p.c. 27% p.c. 17% p.c. 22} p.c. 115,337 259,130
180 (i 12} p.c. 20 p.c. 123 p.c. 20 p.c.
o 54 o i s } 497, 663 1,816,967
(ii) 12} p.c. 20 p.c. 123 p.c. 20 p.c.
(iii) { 12% p.c. 20 p.c. 12} p.c. 20 p.c. 189,028 | (¢) 1,176,053
180c Free 9 p.c. Free 9 p.c. 18,172 41,334
181 22% p.c. 27% p.c. 173 p.c. 22} p.c. 597,518 1,236,966
181a 20 p.c. 30 p.c. 15 p.c. 25 p.c. 602,190 580, 262
184 Free Free Free Free (d) 6,710,848 | (d)11,302,961
187 Free 20 p.c. Free 20 p.c. 1,032,197 1,569,056
187a Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 3,178 50,453
187b Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 30,924 64,394
188 Free Free Free Free 92,493 346,003
189 Free Free Free Free 26,238 66,473
192 15 pic. 22} p.c. 15 pec. 22} p.c. 1,308,740 3,364,923
192b 12} p.c. 20 p.c. 12} p.c. 20 p.c. 60,797 111,321
192¢ Free 25 p.c. Free 22} p.c. 2,611 4,581

* Not separately recorded.

(a) Includes malt flour containing 50 per cent or over of malt.

(b) Includes Bibles.

(¢) Includes engineers’ drawings, etc., Item 180e.
(d) Includes magazines, unbound, etc., and Items 184a and 184c.
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STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
NATION RATES IN EFFECT ONJULY 1, 1939, AND ON JANUARY 1, 1948, AND IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
BE. M.F.N. B.P. M.F.N. 1939 1946
3 $
192d Free 121 p.c. Free 121 p.c. 35,548 118,970
192 15 p.c. 221 p.c. Free 73 p.c. * 11,222
193 15 p.c. 30 p.c. 15 p.c. 22% p.c. 135,036 610,853
194 5ets. pack | 7cts. pack | 5ets. pack | 7 cts. pack 38,536 181,451
195 173 p.c. 30 p.c. 175 p.c. 221 p.c. 132,474 323,199
197 15 p.c. 22} p.c. 15 p.c. 221 p.c. 2,071,417 3,263,870
197b \ipe | |%pe: 174 pee. 223 p.c. 346,726 875,218
197¢ (i) 10 p.c. 15% p.c. 10 p.c. 115 p.c. 36,980 | (a) 351,632
(ii) 15 p.c. 22} p.c. 10 p.c. 15 p.c. 2 2
197¢ Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 93,309 599,742
198 20 p.c. 27% p.c. 174 p.c. 25 p.c. 944,863 1,650, 256
198b 10 p.c. 15% p.c. 10 p.c. 15 p.c. 3,537 1,467
199 20 p.c. 273 p.c. 175 p.c. 25 p.c. 1,530,749 2,793,386
199b 1 ct. Ib. 1 ct. 1b. but| 1 ct. Ib. % ct. 1b. but 545,913 1,286,673
ol il 1
199¢ 10 p.c. 271 p.c. 10 p.c. 25 p.c. 157,743 245, 684 1
199d 17 p.c. 242 p.c. 17} p.c. 20 p.c. 478,496 56,970
199f 10 p.c. 221 p.c. 10 p.c. 221 p.c. 1,833 3,006 |
199¢ 15 p.c. 22} p.c. 5 p.c. 121 p.e. 125,803 242,194 ‘
200 Free Free Free Free 811,508 1,557,774 ‘
203a Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 397,310 707,730 |
203 Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 3,065,068 | 4,836,628 |
204 Free Free | Free Free 159,149 483,389 ‘
205 Free Free Free Free 14,204 43,183
206b Free Free Free Free 28,450 83,119
ex 208 Free Free Free Free 2,453,836 4,271,081
ex 208 Free Free Free Free 926,188 435,390
ex 208 Free Free Free Free 94,854 6,016
ex 208 Free Free Free Free 90, 340 140,558
208a 1. Free 15 cts. per 100| Free 15 cts. per 100 26,550 | (b) 105,630
Ibs. Ibs.
208¢ Free Free Free Free . y
20$e Free 15 p.c. Free 15 p.c. 7,004 31,963

* Not separately recorded.
(a) Includes cigarette paper, ungummed, in sheets, Item 197¢ (ii).
(b) Includes Item 208a 2.

8907—10




164 STANDING COMMITTEE

STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
NATION RATES IN EFFECTONJULY 1, 1939, AND ONJANUARY 1, 1948, AND IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
B.P. M.F.N. B.P. M.E.N. 1939 1946
$ $
208h Free Free Free Free 1,489,598 1,430,613
208j ?) gree 10 p.c. gree ;0 p.c. } 459,073 7,802
(i) Free % b Freo 2o 111,564 50,380
2081 Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 22,889 7,101
208m Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 234,259 108,965
208n Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 10,983 25,937
2080 Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 319,520 620,846
208q Free 20 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 29,559 75,880
208r Free 15 p.c. Free 15 p.c. 61,186 37,980
208s Free 20 p.c. Free 20 p.c. 98,327 56,474
208t Free 17% plc. Free 15 p.c. (a)4,977,764 | (a)16,862,298
ex 208t Free 12§ p.c. Free 12} p.c. 269,756 244,934
ex 208t Free 25 p.c. Free 20 p.c. * . =
208u Free Free Free Free 784,076 735,367
208v Free 25 p.c. Free 25 p.c. (b) 84,224 | (b) 458,109
208w Free Free Free Free 114,167 138,487
209¢ Free 15 p.c. Free 15 p.c. 27,700 34,031
210 (i) Free 15 p.c. Free 12} p.c. 376,324 562,639
(i1) Free 12} p.c. Free 12} p.c. 254,765 410,682
210d 1ct. Ib. % ct. Ib. 1 ct. Ib. % ct. Ib. 73,575 244,617
210e Free Free Free Free 1,148,575 468,821
212 Free 15 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 781,348 711,422
215 Free 173 p.c. Free 12} p.c. 170,047 | (¢) 138,271
216 Free 20 p.c. Free 15 p.c. (d) 735,855 (d) 1,479,104
216d Free Free Free Free 91,385 47,352
218 Free 25 p.c. Free 25 p.c. 52,618 120,647
219 (i) 12} p.c. 22} p.c. 12} p.c. 22} p.c. } e 2,078
(ii) Free 22} p.c. Free 22% p.c.

219a (i) 5 p.c. 22} p.c. 5 p.c. 12} p.c. 66,785 288,838
(i) Free 7% p.c. Free 7% p.c. (e) 1,089,927 | (e) 3,224,260
219b Free Free Free Free 85,497 270,579

* Not separately recorded. !

(a) Some goods recorded under Item 208t paid duty under Item 711.
(b) Includes imports of butyl alcohol.

(¢) Includes stearic acid imported under Items 215 and 215a.

(d) Some goods recorded under Item 216 paid duty under Item 711.
(e) Includes materials duty free under Item 791.
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ATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
NATION RATES IN EFFECT ONJULY 1,1939, AND ONJANUARY 1, 1948, AND IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I

- OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

* Not separately recorded.
(a) Includes imports of chloroform under Item 476¢c.
(b) Includes imports under 220a (i) and (ii)

(c) Includes imports under Item 241.

8907—10%

Tariff Ttem on Tty 1, 1050 a1, Eods i Conntrias
Number :
- BP. M.F.N. BiP. M.F.N. 1939 1946
$ $
219d Free 20 p.c. Free 20 p.c. (a) 90,880 | (a) 143,197
220 (i) 17} p.c. | 20 p.c. 17% p.c. 20 p.c. (b)1,688,492 | (b) 3,937,269
i (i) 20 p.c. 273 p.c. 17% p.c. 22} p.c. (b) 549,985 | (b) 878,850
4 - 220a (i) 174 p.c. 20 p.c. 15 p.c. 20 p.c. AR .
: 20 p.c. 273 p.c. 15 p.c. 20 p.c. }
(ii) 60 p.c. 60 p.c. 30 p.c. 25 p.c. 5 .
ex 225 5 p.c. 73 p.c. 5 p.c. Free ! s
228 (i) 20 p.c. 29% p.c. 15 p.c. 223 p.c. 137,292 171,925
(i1) 20 p.c. 25 p.c. 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 104,088 | 249,278
- 229 50 cts. per | $1.50 per 100 | 50 cts. per | $1.50 per 100 282, 281 538, 637 |
100 1bs. 1bs. 100 1bs. 1bs. 1
230 Free 2ots.b. | Free 1ct. b, 39,389 1,112
231b 173 p.c. and | 25 p.c. and | Free Free . %
2 cts. Ib. | -5 cts. 1b.
282 (i) 17% p.c. and | 25 p.c. and | 15 p.c. and | 22} p.c. and 171,962 769,858 i
2 cts. lb. 5cts. Ib. | 2 ects. Ib. 5 cts. lb. |
(i) 174 p.c. and | 25 p.c. and | 15p.c. 223 p.c. 106, 426 8,920 4
2 cts. Ib. 5 cts. 1b.
232b 10 p.c. 35 p.c. 10 p.c. 273 p.c. 47,937 6,879
232¢ 10 p.c. 35 p.c. 10 p.c. 25 p.c. 495,464 1,120,329 ,
232f 15 p.c. and | 25 p.c. and | 15 p.c. and | 20 p.c. and 37,926 42,251 i
1} cts. 1b. 2} cts. 1b. 1} cts. 1b. 2} cts. lb. 4
234 .15 p.c. 30 p.c. 15 p.c. 25 p.c. 423,926 529,390 |
236 10 p.c. 20 p.c. 10 p.c. 20 p.c. 317,776 347,380 J
238a 10 p.c. 273 p.c. 10 p.c. 25 p.c. 401,722 880,321
ex 238a 10 p.c. 273 p.c. 10 p.c. 10 p.c. s 2
238e 20 p.c. 30 p.c. 20 p.c. 25 p.c. 374,016 1,995,008
239 Free Free Free Free 540,436 2,106,180 {
240 Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 244,221 504,162 !
24la Free 15 p.c. Free 15 p.c. (c) 154,898 | (c) 239,617
242 Free 15 p.c. Free 12} p.c. 2,051,293 3,232,340
243 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 701 10,745
244 20 p.c. 25 p.c. 20 p.c. 25 p.c. 1,562 132
245 5 p.c. 15 p.c. 5p.c. 15 p.c. 56,873 81,929
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STANDING COMMITTEE

STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
NATION RATES IN EFFECT ONJULY 1,1939, AND ONJANUARY 1, 1948, AND IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

o
Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
B.P. M.F.N. B.P. M.F.N. 1939 1946
$ $
246 123 p.c. 20 p.c. 12} p.c. 174 p.c. 994,137 2,040, 667
246b Free 20 p.c. Free 20 p.c. (a) 54,638 | (a) 63,551
247 17}'p.c. 25 p.c. 175 p.c. 20 p.c. 304, 656 794,226
2472, (i) Free 25 p.c. Free 15 p.c. (b) 85,513 | (b) 197,070
(ii) Free 27% p.c. Free 22% p.c. 23,454 46,758
248 75 cts. gal. 85 cts. gal. 75 cts. gal. 85 cts. gal. 58,558 284,349
249 15 cts. gal.| 15 cts. gal.| 15 cts. gal.| 15 cts. gal. 190,071 446,293
and 10 p.c. and 20 p.c. and 5 p.c. and 15 p.c.
250 Free 7% p.c. Free 7% p.c. P05 I RN G
252 12} p.c. 223 p.c. 12} p.c. 174 p.c. 476,051 785,299
253 174 p.c. 27% p.c. 175 p.c. 22% p.c. 13,255 33,189
254 (i) Free 10 p.c. Free Free (c) 188,411 | (¢) 159,933
(i) Free 10 p.c. Free Free 69, 399 285,524
(iii) Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 610,488 3,097,947
256 12} p.c. 173 p.c. 12} p.c. 15 p.c. 246,783 363,085
259a Free 223 p.c. Free 22} p.c. 5,689 1,665
261 Free Free Free Free 420,143 1,602,172
262 Free 17 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 353,083 324,869
263 Free 5 p.c. Free 5 p.c. 2,927,449 4,075,721
264 (i) Free 7’} p.c. Free Flree } 1,070, 507 3,582,334
(i1) Free 73 p.c. Free 73 p.c.
264a Free 5 p.c. Free Free 92,256 150,927
265 12} p.c. 30 p.c. 12} p.c. 15 p.c. 57,752 1,275,394
265a 124 p.c. 20 p.c. 12} p.c. 20 p.c. 216, 583 573,032
265b Free 15 p.c. Free 15 p.c. 379,709 240,236
265¢ Free 20 p.c. Free 20 p.c. 15,785 187
ex 266 Free Free Free Free 908,323 448,379
267b Free 1 ct. gal. Free 1 ct. gal. < »
272 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 324, 506 659, 989
ex 273 Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. (c) 198,096 | (c) 435,612
274 Free Free Free Free 962,537 2,816,666

* Not separately recorded.

(a) Includes imports under Item 246¢c. i
(b) Includes pastels of a value of one cent per stick or over (247a (ii)).
(c) Includes mastic and sandarae Item 254 (ii); Australian and kauri Item 254 (iii).
(¢) Includes asphaltum or asphalt, not solid.
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- STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
- NATION RATES IN EFFECT ONJULY 1, 1939, AND ON JANUARY 1, 1948, AND IMPORTS
: FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

= Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
B.P. M.F.N. 7 1 M.F.N. 1939 1946
” $ $
ex 276b : ]
- ex 277 Free 10 p.c. Free 10 p.c. (a)4,462,253 | (a) 2,744,793
~ ex 278b
ex 278c
ex 277 Free 10 p.c. Free | 10 p.c. * *
278e Free Free Free Free 173,858 831,046
ex 208t Free 173 p.c. 17% p.c.
ex 711 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 20 p.c.
ex 281 Free Free Free Free (b)1,153,685 | (b) 1,509,637
281a Free Free Free Free 494, 396 1,708,588
281b 5 p.c. 15 p.c. 5 p.c. 15 p.c. 841,071 1,680,976
282 3 12} p.c. 15 p.c. 12} p.c. 15 p.c. 34,037 94,280
282a 12} p.c. .| 20 p.c. 125 p.c. 173 p.c. 141,023 361,882
284 (i) 20 p.c. 30 p.c. 15 p.c. 223 p.c. 15,768 101,761
(i1) 20 p.c. 30 p.c. 15 p.c. 25 p.c. 123,689 340, 858
284a Free 32} p.c. Free 20 p.c. 10,731 9,806 ;
285 15 p.c. 275 p.c. 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 56, 209 110,140 ]
286 20 p.c. 30 p.c. 20 p.c. 20 p.c. 7,657 14,786 |
287 Free 35 p.c. Free 25 p.c. 3,023,375 6,326,800 i
1
288 20 p.c. 35 p.c. 173 p.c. 25 p.c. 401,691 1,599,387 E
288a Free 20 p.c. Free 20 p.c. 13,854 72,328 1
)
288b Free 20 p.c. Free 20 p.c. . 5,114 5,247 ;
i
289 15 p.c. 27% p.c. 15 p.c. 25 p.c. 147,976 741,070 :
ex 296 Free Free Free Free :
22,831 58,645 i
ex 296 Free Free Free Free ¢
ex 296b 20 p.c. 27% p.c. 20 p.c. 15 p.c. \]
(¢) 37,366 | (c) 385,573 !
ex 296b 20 p.c. 27% p.c. 20 p.c. 20 p.c.
296¢ Free 20 p.c. Free 20 p.c. 51,864 40,994 |
296d Free 15 p.c. Free 15 p.c. 10,379 13,622 {
296e Free Free Free Free 16,745 - “‘
297 Free Free Free Free 190, 305 584,418 ‘
300 Free 15 p.c. Free 15 p.c. 100, 350 188,252 {
ex 305 10 p.c. 12} p.c. 10 p.c. 10 p.c. 20,436 43,343 {
306 (i) Free 20 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 32,716 91,077
(ii) Free 20 p.c. Free 15 p.c. 19,800 44,196
* Not separately recorded.
(a) Includes cottonseed and also includes palm oil for all purposes. 1946 imports include peanut oil “

and cocoanut, oil for all purposes. .
(b) Imports include fire brick made substantially of silicon carbide and/or fused alumina,
. (¢) Includes caustic-calcined or plastic magnesia.
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STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
NATION RATES IN EFFECT ONJULY 1, 1939, AND ONJANUARY 1,1948, AND IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

STANDING COMMITTEE

Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
B M.F.N. B.P. M.F.N. 1939 1946

$ $
306¢c Free 15 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 11,088 53,068

ex 308 20 p.c. 22% p.c. 20 p.c. 22% p.c. . X
312 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 15 p.c. 124 p.c. (a) 849,875 | (a) 1,606,122

312a Free 20 p.c. Free 12§ p.c. s ‘
313 Free 73 p.c. Free 7% p.c. 13,384 98,847
314 15 p.c. 22% p.c. 15 p.c. 22% p.c. 101,148 408,846
315 Free Free Free Free 315,697 481,630
316 221 p.c. 323 p.c. and | 223 p.c. 25 p.c. and 2,393 56,842

20 cts. Ib. 10 cts. Ib.

316a Free 6% p.c. Free 5 p.c. 552,625 1,137,233
317 Free Free Free Free (R L e
318 Free 15 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 1,159,896 2,671,831
319 Free 25 p.c. Free 21 p.c. (b) 622,163 | (b) 1,091,936
320 Free 20 p.c. Free 10 p.c. 493,535 901,209
321 Free 20 p.c. Free- 20 p.c. 206,780 518,702
322 173 p.c. 30 p.c. 173 p.c. 25 p.c. 356,020 820,511
323 20 p.c. 30 p.c. 20 p.c. 22} p.c. 134, 608 376,242
325 | 20 p.c. 27% p.c. 20 p.c. 15 p.c. 2,832 350
326 (i) 15 p.c. 271 p.c. 15 p.c. 221 p.c. 1,226,281 5,425,473
(ii) 10 p.c. 25 p.c. 10 p.c. 22} p.c. (c) 69,832 | (¢c) 77,549
(iii) 10pe. 25 p.c. 10 p.c. 22} p.c. 949,354 2,327, 547
326a 10 p.c. 173 p.c. 10 p.c. 17§ p.c. 748,232 2,044, 553
326e Free Free Free Free 216,371 601,879
326g Free 15 p.c. Free 15 p.c. 523,777 2,580,469
327 20 p.c. 243 p.c. 20 p.c. 22} p.c. 81,190 177,256
330 Free Free Free Free 27,092 374,066
339a Free 274 p.c. Free 25 p.c. 78,652 457
339b 10 p.c. 27% p.c. 10 p.c. 27% p.c. 64, 523 128,204
340 7% p.c. 17} p.c. 7% p.c. 174 p.c. 48,280 116,700
341 10 p.c. 20 p.c. 10 p.c. 20 p.c. 17,785 25,602
345 Free Free Free Free 654,114 600,473
346 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 15 p.c. 174 p.c. 283,127 1,043,212

* Not separately recorded. *
(a) Includes imports under Item 312a.
(b) These imports include some glass under Items 320 and 321.
(¢) Includes glass shades or blobes_and_opal glassware,
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STATEMENT SHOWING THE BRITISH PREFERENTIAL AND MOST-FAVOURED-
NATION RATES IN EFFECT ON JULY 1, 1939, AND ON JANUARY 1, 1948, IMPORTS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEARS 1939 AND 1946 OF THE PRODUCTS LISTED IN PART I
OF SCHEDULE V TO THE GENERAL AGREEMENT ON TARIFFS AND TRADE—Con.

; Rates in Effect Rates in Effect Imports from
Tariff Item on July 1, 1939 on January 1, 1948 all Countries
Number
B.P. M.F.N. BP; M.F.N. 1939 1946
$ $
346a Free Free Free Free 60, 232 146,272
348¢ 5 p.c. 10 p.c. 16 p.c. 10 p.c. 313,571 | (a) 1,387,287
350 10 p.c. 30 p.c. 10 p.c. 20 p.c. 142,883 593,184
315 20 p.c. 273 p.c. 20 p.c. 20 p.c. 146, 549 1,117,972
351b 175 p.c. 223 p.c. 175 p.c. 20 p.c. 35,512 39,322
352 20 p.c. 24% p.c. 20 p.c. _ 20 p.c. 2,907,247 6,627,572
ex 352
ex 362¢ :
ex 432d Various 10 p.c. Various 10 p.c. 34,717 103,063
ex 446a
ex 506
353 (i) Free 27% p.c. Free 2 cts. 1b. 90,049 83,970
(i) Free 273 p.c. Free 3 cts. 1b. 789,273 2,371,896
(iii) Free 273 p.c. Free 223 p.c. 59,810 72,024
(iv) Free 30 p.c. Free 1 p.c. 5,809 720
) Free 27% p.c. Free 223 p.c. 52,283 25,969
(vi) Free 30 p.c. Free 30 p.c. 248,997 | (b) 117,310
 353a (i) Free Free Free Free 2,070 >
(ii) Free Free Free Free 17,844 108,640
354 15 p.c. 273 p.c. 15 p.c. 223 p.c. 858, 603 2,161,739
354a 20 p.c. 273 p.c. 20 p.c. 223 p.c. 116,965 676,530
357 15 p.c. 25 p.c. 15 p.c. - 25 p.c. 170,178 121,421
361 15 p.c. 30 p.c. 15 p.c. 30 p.c. 104,105 124,929
362 20 p.c. 323 p.c. 17% p.c. 273 p.c. 306,795 842,718
362a 20 p.c. 25 p.c. 20 p.c. 173 p.c. 28,485 114, 650
362b 174 p.c. 37; p.c. 175 p.c. 30 p.c. 25,907 23,841
33% p.c. y
362¢ 174 p.c. 30 p.c. 15 p.c. 22% p.c. 2,151,067 4,256,681
364 Free Free Free Free 4,129,532 4,002,457
365a 15 p.c. 25 p.c. 15 p.c. 20 p.c. 89,799 | (¢) 515,743
365b Free 20 p.c. Free 15 p.c. 1,838 c?
366 20 p.c. -30 p.c. but | 20 p.c. 30 p.c. but 227,913 1,850,330
not less than not less than
40 cts. ea. 40 cts. ea.
366a Free 15 p.c. but | Free 15 p.c. but 868, 982 3,170,329
not less than not less than
40 cts. ea. 40 cts. ea.
* Not separately recorded.

(a) Imports include some material under Item 352.
(b) Imports include Item 353a (i)
(¢) Imports include Item 365b.

e
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